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Strategic Report

Chairman’s statement

The events of last year are well
documented in July the Secretary
of State for Justice announced that
an independent audit of the billing
arrangements of the Electromic
Monitoring contracts Serco
operates had highlighted potential
overbiling and in September,
matenals were provided to the
Sernous Fraud Office on this
matter In August, the Mimstry

of Justice {(MoJ) and Serco made
announcements regarding the
referral to the City of London
Pohce of the misreporting of data
on the Pnsoner Escort & Custody
Services contract The i1ssues

that were identified on these

two contracts should never

have happened and we have
apologised unreservedly for them

May I take this opportunity on
behalf of the Board to make an
equally fulsome apology to our
shareholders We are doing
everything in our power to make
sure that such i1ssues cannot
reoccur anywhere in our business
around the world Our objective
continues to be the delivery of
excellent public services with
openness and transparency,

and | believe the actions we have
taken and are taking will support
this now more than ever
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Twelve months ago | wrote “In all parts of
Serco, when | visit our coniracts | meet people
who have the same commitment to service,

to making a difference through helping those
with whom they work, whilst at the same time
delivering against our promises " | stll believe
that at the core of Serco 15 a combination of

a strong ethos of public service with a real
entrepreneunal drive ta succeed and deliver
aganst commitments, inside and outside the
company The independent reviews that we
have performed of our culture and systems
confirmed a high commitment to chent service
with ng evidence of a corrupt culture, and key
procedures and controls that were adequate but
could be mproved However the reviews also
demonstrated the need for attiiudinal change,
a change |, our Board, and Ed Casey, our
Acting Group Chief Executive, are committed
to implementing The reviews showed that
culiurally there was a dnve to succeed and
deliver that could lead our people at times to
make decisions that priontised commercial
objectives over ethical behaviour Also, whilst
our systems and controls formed a solid basis
for a management framework there was a lot
more we could do to ensure that if there are
1ssues, they are identified early acted upon,
and lessons leamed

| recognise that such inapproprate actions
and decisions undermine the conhidence
people have inus Our company relies upon
the confidence of our customers and the
conhdence of the public, and anything that
damages that, damages us But it 1s not just
our company the whole industry relies on
such confidence ¢ 1t 1s damaged, we lose
the opportunity 10 show the difference
outsourcing can make and we lose the ability
to show how the private sector and competition
can contnibute to excellent, efficient, low-cost
public services This is why your Board has
taken these matters so seriously

{ was very pleased to reach a settlement with
the UK Government prior to the end of the
financial year, in respect of issues ansing

on the Electroric Monitoring contract The
separate audits of our other MoJ contracts and
the Cabinet Office’'s wider review across our
other major UK Central Government contracts
also concluded by the end of the year, with

no further matenal 1ssues raised Dunng the
fourth quarter of last year, we developed and
set in train a comprehensve programme of
corporate renewal At i1s hean this programme
aims - through leadership, traning, guidance,
and appropriate performance management

- ta change the balance of dnvers within our
business, such that the commitment to do what
15 nght and to deal with our customers farrly and
transparently always transcends that sustained
drive to outperform This will be supported by
the nght management structures and controls
and best-in-class ines of assurance, to ensure
that through early identification of nsks and
1ssues and ther swift resolution, we never again
compromise on our values and ethics | was
very pleased that at the end of January, the
Cabinet Office pubhshed a positive assessment
of our programme and, as a conseguence,
Serco can now be considered on an equal basis
to other suppliers for the award of new contracts

[t 15 hard for those outside the company to
appreciate how disruptive were the events of
last year to the normal conduct of our business
Not only was our pipeline of contracts with the
UK Government impacted by the suspension

of awardabrlity last summer, but the associated
reputational damage also adversely affected
our ability to win contracts with the private
sector We have made significant management
changes at the most senior level, with new
people sometimes in an acting capacity,
needing to assimilate therr responsibilities

and determine how to take forward ther

pans of the business Absolutely correctly
management has focused on the development
and implementation of our programme of
corporate renewal, diverting focus from where
they wou'd otherwise be concentrating therr
efiorts 10 make our business more efficient,
extend existing lines and explore new ones

The nevitable consequence has been a matenal
loss of momentum, pariicularly in the UK,

which translates itself into lower organic revenue
growth and profitabiity than we would otherwise
have aimed to achieve in 2314 In addition, 2014
will be impacted heavity by a major change of
governmenit policy affecting one of our largest
contracts that for the Austrahan Department of
imtrigration and Border Protection, whilst there
is also a greater known impact of attrtion from
lost contracts such as Electromic Mondonng

Qur expenence at Forth Valley and other UK hospitals
helped us to win the coniract al Fiona Stanley hospital
n Perth Western Austraha
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It 1s essential that we take the steps now that are
necessary to put Serco onto a sound basis for
future growth, even if to do that means a degree
of reversal of past growth Key 1o that 1s strong
effective leadership and | am very pleased to be
able to announce that Rupert Soames QBE has
accepted the Board's mafalion 10 take the role
of Group Chief Executive He wall start with us on
1 June He has an outstanding track record as
chief executive of a FTSE 100 company, having
created very significant value for shareholders
during his long tenure at Aggreko plc | would
like to take this opportunity to express my great
appreciation on behalf of the Board of the work
of Ed Casey, in taking the helm in the most
ditficult of crcumstances and providing great
leadership 1o get the company back on track

| would also repeat my thanks to Chns Hyman
for hus enormous contnibution to Serco over
19 years As CEQ since 2002, he took Serco
from a predominantly UK business with

a turnover of £1 3bn to the £5bn international
services business it 15 today

In thinking about the potential of the husiness
for the future, Serco has a unique combination
of capabilities with internaticnal reach No other
company has the breadth across both frontline
and middle and back ofice services No

other company can apply the expenence and
irack-record that we have in one of our markets
in the UK, Europe, the Amencas, the Middle
East Asia Pacific or Australia to support the
winning of new contracts in another geography

We would not have won the Fiona Stanfey
hospital in Perth, Western Australia +f we had
not achieved what we have at Forth Valley and
elsewhere in hospitals in the UK We would not
have won Mt Eden pnison in New Zealand had
we not achieved what we have in prisons in the
UK and Australia We would not have won the
Virginia Department of Transportation contract
without our traffic management expenence

in the UK and Hong Kong

One should not lose sight of what the business
did achieve in 2013, desprite the issues n our
relationship with UK Central Government We
were awarded contracts to a value of £3 7bn
and achieved organic revenue growth of 6%,
albeit with a somewhat lower operating margin
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Chairman’s statement

Continued

that left Adjusted pre-tax profits at £254m,

6% lower than 2012 Particularly gratdying was
the progress achieved in the Amencas where
in 2012 we had expenenced the toughest
trading condstions, with new contract awards
beng constrained by the inabxlity 10 agree a
US Federal Budget Despite this uncertainty
continuing during 2013, we won new conlracts
with the United States Department of Health
and Human Services' Centers for Medicare

& Medicaid Services to provide processing
support for new health benefit exchanges, worth
potentally US$1 25bn, and with the Virgimia
Department of Transportation to manage
traffic In the state of Virgimia worth US$356m
In Canada we were successful in the rebid

of our contract to provicde dniver examination
services In the state of Ontano for a further

ten years, worth C8500m

Furthermore, we celebrated Serco's 25 years
as a listed company, with our staff undentaking
phenomenal challenges 1o raise mare than
£400,000 for chanties alt around the world

| am delighted to welcome three new non-
executive directors to our Board They add

to our diversity of thought and expenence,

as we congider how best 10 take the business
forward Mike Clasper has a strong reputation
as both executive and non-execulive Latterly
in his executive career he was CEQ of BAA,
whilst as a non-executive he was Chairman
of HMRC and 1s senior independent director
at ITV and Chairman of Coats He will join the
Audit, Corporate Responsibility and Nomination
Cormmittees Rachel Lemax will join the Audit
Cormmittee and will become the Chair of

the newly formed Corperate Re$ponsibility
Committee This committee will have
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responsibility for the ethical and governance
oversight of the Group, as well as taking over
from the man Board detai'ed consideration of
the company’s health and safety, environmental
and nisk policies and management Rachel

15 a past Deputy Governor of the Bank of
Engtand, and has been Permanent Secretary

at both the Department of Work and Pensions
and the Depariment for Transport She 1s
currently Charman of the Conduct & Values
Committee of HSBC Tarnara Ingram 1s currently
an executive vice president of WPP and

last year rotated aiter nine years from being

a non-executive director of the Sage Group

She will join both the Remuneration and
Corporate Responsibility Committees

In conclusion | would like 1o say thank you

on behalf of the Board to all those of cur
managemeni and staff who have worked so
hard over the last 12 months, both to deler
our promises on our contracts and to address
the chailenges that have faced us It 15 very
hard mantaining one s energy and commiment
worlung for a company that 1s in the news for
the worst of reasons, the determined response
of our people over this period stands testament
to the strong foundations of Serco and gives
confidence in our ability to realise our full
potential This confidence supports the Board's
decision to maintain the final dvidend payment
resuling i a total dvidend for the year of

10 55p, anincrease of 4 5%

Alastar Lyons CBE
Charman

We were awarded the contract al Mt Eden prison
in New Zealand because of our achigvements at
the prisons we run i the UK and Ausiralia
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What we do

We deliver services thal make a positive difference o people’s lives
Our customers are local, state and natronal governments and major private companies

They face an increasingly complex and competitive world People and communities
have rapidly changing needs and expect the services they use to make a positive
and tangible difference to their ives

The organtsations that serve them — our cusiomers - have imited resources Many are
having to do more with less Delivenng service, and doing it well, 1s more difficult than
ever To overcorne these challenges, our customers want a partner who can improve
the quality and efficiency of their services and help themn keep their promises to therr
own customers and citizens

All of thus means thal service has never been more iImportant or more challenging
It needs a specialist approach

We specialise In service delivery
Serco has specialised In service delivery for more than 50 years The combined
capabihties we offer, across frontline, middle and back office services, are umique

Our customers know what outcome or service they want to deliver and we find new and
more effective ways 1o achieve it for them Together, we make a difference to the lives
oi mitions of people around the world

Our people are always looking for ways to improve our service delivery We transfer
our skills, insights and 1deas from one sector or region to another, so we can meet new
challenges for customers Drawing on this broad experience 1s at the heart of what
makes us different It ensures we deliver well today and use what we iearn o anticipate
our cuslomers’ needs tomorrow It transforms good senice into great

Greal service can look different from sector to sector and from country to country,

bul the values and capabilities it needs are broadly the same Our service speciaism
means our customers can focus their ime and people on what they do best, confident
that our expernence, iInnovation and scale will deliver the business and cusiomer
benefits they want

Our capabilities allow us to work around the world on behalf of defence, transport,
justice, health, and state and local government customers in the public sector, and to
provide customer contact and business process activities for private sector customers
in finance, retail, travel and telecommunications

We have a strong service ethos
Our people have a strong service ethos and a real desire to deliver the promises we
make to our cusiomers

We value working with our customers in a collaborative, flexible and imaginative way
We understand the principles and passions that motivale public sector managers
and we seek to share ther ethos and standards of conduct We encourage social
responsibility and try to treat people in the way we would wish to be treated Our most
powerful tool in improving performance 1s to instil a more stimulating culture, where
people feel they can personally make a difference We have honed this tool into four
Goverming Principles we foster an entrepreneunal culture, we enable our people to
excel, we deliver our promises, and we build trust and respect

Following the challenges of 2013, we launched an independent review of our culture
and ethics, and were reassured to find a workforce that believes strongly in Serco’s
commitment to service excellence Our employees spoke openly and candidly, with the
clear intent of providing constructive feedback to serior leadership as to how to restore
Serco's good name The events of 2013 were painful and embarrassing for our people,
who care deeply about Serco and the customers it serves There was no evidence that
Serco has a corrupt culture or that the Company knowtngly encourages improper or
unethical behaviour What was identified was an environment in which Serco employees
could make inappropriate decisions 1o achieve commercial success, and it 1s this
environment that we are committed to change as a fundamental part of our

corporale renewal

05



Serco Group plc | Annual report and accounts 2013

Strategic Report

How we performed in 2013

A challenging 2013 and near-term outlook,

rmarkets remam attractive

Revenue growth of § 6% for the Group,

growth of 5 9% on an organic basis

® UK & Eurcpe organic growth of 3%, driven
by first half growth from new contracts won
in the previous year

¢ Amencas held steady with new health and
transport contract wins despite a challenging
US federal market

® AMEAA organic growth of 18%, supported
by increased volume of work in immigration
services

@ Global Services organic growth of 5%, with
strong first hall from previous awards partially
offsel by a weaker second half of the year

Reduced profit and cash generation

® Adjusted operating margin from ongong
achvities declined to 5 6%, dnven in particular
by higher BPO bid investment and fewer
contract awards in the year

@ Adusted earnings per share (basic) of 39 53p,
a declne of 2 1% at constant currency

@ Net exceptional charge of £9& 5m, reflecting
principally the Electronic Monitonng settlerment
and one-off costs together with an estimated
£21 Om of other indirect costs n relation to
the UK Government reviews

® Operating proht of £143 8m, a decline
of 44 6% at constant currency

Notes and definitions

@ Eamings per share (basic) of 19 51p,
a decline of 58 0% at constant currency

® Fiee cash flow declined 1o £84 8m, after BPO
working capital investment and other adverse
timing effects

Increased total dividend for the year

and robust financing position

® Proposed final dividend held at 7 45p, total
dividend for the year of 10 55p, up 4 5%,
ongaing transition to higher payout ratio

@ Group recourse net debt of £725m, sufficient
financing headroom maintaned

Further progress on contract awards
and strategic positioning
@ £3 7bn of contract awards, order bock

of £17 1bn as at 31 December 2013

& New US contract awards successiully
broadened the Amencas portfolio

® Non-core disposals reflected ongoing
assessment of operations against theiwr
fit o Group strategy

Challenging near-term outlook

¢ 2014 {aces above-average coniract attntion,
reduced volume of work In Australian
immigration services and fower expected
growth from new contracts awarded

® As previously disclosed, a mid-single digi
organic revenue decline and a 50-100 basis
points reduction in Adjusted cperating margin
1$ anticipated

o Of 2014 revenue, arder book visibility of 77%,
rebicd/extension revenue still to secure of 8%

Securing Serco’s position in large

and growing markets

® Equal bidding basis for current UK Central
Government work restored following
corporate renewal positive assessment,
setilement reached with UK Ministry of Justice
(Mod), conclusion of UK Government audits
and reviews

& Comprehensive programme of corporate
renewal, to ensure consistency of appropriate
behaviours and iImprove operalions acress
the Group

¢ Ongoing demand for efficient, high-quality and
nnovative service provision from public and
onvate sector customers around the workd

@ Pipeline of new bid decisions over
next two years valued at approximately
£12bn or aggregate annual revenue of
approximately £1 4bn

® As announced recently, Ruperl Soames
OBE appointed as Group Chief Executive
with effect from 1 June 2014, currently
Group Chief Executive of Aggreko plc,
the FTSE 100 support services company

2012 1s restated for changes 1o accounting standards 1AS 19 Bevised {Employee Benefits) and IFRS 11 {Joint Arrangements)

Adjusted measures include Serce s proportional share of joint ventures  Adjusied operating profit and Adusted proit belore tax are before amortisation ol intangibles
ansing on acquisiions  transaction-related costs and exceptional items as shown on the face of the Group s conselidated income statement and the accompanying
notes They are also before management s estimate of indirect costs Incurred and allocation of expenses inrelation to the UK Government reviews The Adjusted
earnings per share measure also takes account of the tax effect of these adjusting tems Adjusted net debt includes Serca’s proportional share of joint venture net cash
Reconcihations to GAAP measures together with descnptions of each adjusiing item, are included in the Finance Rewview on pages 42 to 51 and the income statemant

15 presented on page 113

Change at constant currency has been calculated by translating non Sterling revenue and earnings for 2013 into Sterling at the average exchange rates for 2012

Ongoing actvities measures exchuide the financial results of subsidianes and operations disposed of in 2013 (being the UK occupational health business and the
UK transpor maintenance and technology business) and in 2012 (being nuclear consulng sernces, defence-related German operations education softwars and

UK data hasting operatons)

Organic revenue growth 1s the change at constant currency in Adjusted revenue from ongong actmties {(thereby excluding disposals) and also excludes incremental
revenue from acquisiions completed in the current or prior financial year

Free cash flow 1s from subsidiaries and dmdends recerved from jont ventures, and s reconciled to recourse net debt in Section 6 of the Finance Review and to the
movernent in cash and cash equivalents including the share of joint venture cash movements 1n Section 3 of the Finance Review

The order book reflects the estimated value of future revenue based on all existing signed contracts including Serco s proportional share ot [oint ventures [t excludes
contracts at the preferred wdder stage and excludes the award of new Indefiniie Delivery Indefinite Quantty (IDYY) contract vehicles and Multiple Award Contracis (MACs)
where Serco 15 one of a number of comparues able to tid for specihic 1ask orders 1ssued under the IDIC or MAC The value of any task order ts recogrised within the order

book when subsequently won

The total opportunity pipeline 15 the estimated value of all future potenlial new expansion rebid and extension oppenuniies that are clearly defined and wdentifiable
including the estimaie of any proportional share of fuiure joint venture arrangemenis The pipeline of new id decisions over the next two years 15 the aggregale value
ol polential new contracls thai are anticipated to be tbid in the near term where annual revenue for ¢ach 1s estirmated to be in excess of £10m and where the estimated

total contract value of each s capped at £1bn
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Ad]usted Revenue*

£5,143.9m

Revenue

£4,288.1m

2012 £4,9130m
+4.7%

2012 £4,060 tm
+5.6%

Operating profit

£143.8m

Ad|usted profit before tax*

£254.4m

(47 1%)

(6.3%)

Adjusted earnings per share*

39.53p

Dividend per share

10.55p

Adjusted operating profit*

£292.0m
(7.0%)

Profit before tax

£106.6m
(62.1%)

Free cash flow

£84.8m

2012 £1812m

(4.9%)

+4.5%

(£96.4m)

*Adjusted measures include Serco s proportional share aof joint ventures and are before amorisation of intangibles ansing on acquision transaction related costs
a pre-tax net exceptional charge of £9¢ 5m (2012 net exceptional profit of £51 7m} and management s estimate of indirect costs incurred and allocation of expenses
n refation to the UK Government reviews of £21 Om Ongoing activities exclude the financial results of disposals Notes and definiions are provided on page 6

reconciiations and descriptions of costs are ncluded in the Finance Review on pages 42 1o 51 and the income staternent 15 presented on page 113

07



Serco Group plc | Annual report and accounts 2013
Strateglc Report

Our business

In October 2013, we announced our intention to separate
the UK & Europe dwision into two, with one business
focused on our UK Central Government customer

and the other on our wider UK public sector actvities
This new structure came into effect on 1 January 2014

In 2013 we delivered our services through four
divisions, as described below More information
on our divisions and ther performance in the
year can be found in the Divisional Reviews

on pages 24 to 41
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UK & Europe

2013 Ad|usted revenue from
ongoing actlivities

£2,514m

+3%

2012 £2,436m

Americas

The UK & Europe division mcludes our
frontline services In Transport and Local
Direct Services, Delence & Science,

Home Affars (encompassing justice-related
operations, mmiegration and border secunty,
and walfare), and Health

2013 Adjusted revenue from
ongoing activitles

£765m

+1%

2012 £753m

AMEAA

Our Amencas division provides professional,
technology and management services
focused pnmanly on the US Federal
Government, including every branch of the
military, a broad range of civilan agencias
and the national intellgence community

We also provide serices to the Canadian
Government, and selected US state and
municipal governments

2013 AdJusted revenue from
ongolng activities

£1,050m

+19%

2012 £883m

AMEAA consists of our operations in
Australasia, the Middle East, Asia and Africa
We provide a range of frontline services
including transport, justice, immgration,
health, defence and other direct services,
such as facilties management

Global Services

2013 Adjusted revenue from
ongoing actlvities

£772m

+10%

2012 £702m

Qur Global Services dwvision provides
business process ouisourcing (BPO)
services to both the private and pubhc
sectors, bninging together Serco's middle
and back office skills and capabilties across
custorner contact, transaction and financial
processing, and related consulttng and
technology services
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Our business model

QOur business model s bullt on a set of key strengths,
which enable us to compete effectively and create
value for our shareholders and other stakeholders
These competitive advantages denve from our focus
on delivering the best service for our customers,

the unique breadth of our business, our structure
and our people

Our strategy (see pages 10 to 11) bulds on and

reinforces these strengths

Serco 1s a people-based business so we
seek to employ excellent people with a stron
semvice ethos Their insight experience of service
delivery and desire to make a difference for
our customers underpin everything we do

To enable our people to delver their
best we continue 10 Invest In engaging
and developing them along with the
systams and leadership framework
that support them

The competitive environment
Competition 1s necessary for our markets to
operate, as i encourages customers 1o put
services oul to tender, provides a benchmark
10 ensure they are getting best value and
drives innovation

Our business breadth means we have many
competitors for both public and private sector
contracts These competitors are pnimarily
companies but for government contracts they
can include public sector and voluntary bodies

Delivening excellert serace for our
custorners and the puolic 1s at the heant
of our offenng 1t enables us to buld long term
relationships which allow us to grow our contracts
and retain them at rebid 1t also helps us to win new
work ard enter new markeis

We use our 50 years of expenence to brng fresh
perspectives 1o custormers problems tor example by
creating new cantracting or partnership models Qur
track record of nnovation and delivery also makes us

an attractive pariner for other organisations so we
can combing our skils to produce unique and
compelling customer oftenings through joint
wentures or through our supply chan

Customer
focus

Value
creatlon

Committed
people

Broad
business

Local
responsibility,
global
scale

We devolve day to-day
decision making 1o the contract level
empowenng our people 1o deliver excellent
service This also helps makes our business
scalable as we take on more contracis At the
same time we use our scale to drive eficiency and
support our service delivery through shared services
and common processes

The Serco Management Sysiem (SMS) 15 designed 1o
ensureg local decisions are in Serco s best interests, as
well as the customer s Followang the 1ssues in 2013
tn two of our UK Government contracts we have
reviewed the SMS as part of our corporate renewal
programme, strengthening and expanding
It to ensure 1t provides a rebust control
framework into the future

As we enter new markets, we meet competitors
who specialise In those areas While we see
effective competitors in every market, no
organisation competes with us 1n all of them
and only a few operate in more than one

The overall level of competition 1s nsing in our
markets and customers are increasingly seeing
assured service delivery as a prerequisiie, rather
than as a differentiator They want providers

that bring confidence, expenence and insight,
and wha can partner with them to deliver

Serco has unique breadth No other
company can match our range of services,
which combung frontline delvery with muddle
and back ofiice processing We have real depth
of expertise In the sectors we work in and
the capabilihes we cifer With cperations
inover 30 countnes we also have
signiicant international reach

Our broad business allows us 1o target the best
opportunitigs 1n whichever market or country
they occur This reduces our reliance on any one
market and allows us 1o transfer skills honed
Inong market to others around the world
opening up new opportunibes

something different including anticipating their
changing needs and working with them 1o dnve
innovation

QOur business model makes us a strong
competitor In our markets and allows us to
target opportunities where we can differentiate
ourselves from other prowiders, for example
through innovation the depth of our expertise
and the breadth of our capabilities
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Our strategy

Setting our strategic direction
Although Serco faces s own challenges and Strategy
there are some uncerlainties in both developed
and emerging economies, our markets are
growing and we see that continuing This
growth 1s driven by economic and demographic

fundamentals, which have strengthened over i

the last few years Citizens are demanding more BU I |d| ng

and better services within constrained pubhc

sector budgets There s a desie {or new pubhc a balan Ced
services In countries where the size and wealth i

of the populatien 1s growing Demographic po rthI I O

shifts continue to underpin demand, with more
and more pressure being put on physical and
social infrastructure, especially healthcare,
social services, transport and immigration

Despite the specific challenges Serco taced in
2013, our strategic approach remains centred
on organic growth, white also emphasising the
factors that will support that growth — service
qualty, efficiency and people development
Where It 1s valuable to add capabilities that
complermnent our existing service offenng, or
we want to establish a presence in new markels
that offer opportunities for our existing service
ines, we will consider acquisitiens 1o take our
strategy forward

Our Group strategy 7l

Qur strategy 1s focused on three key pillars D I’IVI ng
building a balanced porifolio, driving Improved

service and margn, and enhancing our people, tm proved

systems and brand servi ce
and margin

Enhancing
our people,
systems
and brand

10




Strategic Report I |

Description

Cur strategy aims to bulld a balanced portfelio across developed and emerging
markets frantine and BPO services and pubbc and private sectors

Thes reduces our exposure 1o market fluctuations, enables us to select the best
opportunities wherever they anse and allows us to transfer expertise from one
markel to another

To suppeort our orgamc growih we consider acquisiions and stralegic
partnerships which add to the depth of capabilities we can take to our
customers or enabie us lo enter new markets for exising service lines

Our proactive portfollo management also involves ongoing assessment of
our contracts and businesses for strategic it expected perdormance and nsk-
adjusted returns  This results 10 our exit from markets no longer core

1o the Group s future development

Underpinning our strategy s our ability 1o consistently delvar efficient and
tugh-quality services across the world As Serco grows we increasingly look
for opportumiies to transfer our capabilines across geographies so that more
of our capabilities are available to more of our customers

Growth allows us to drive economies of scale providing the opportunity
to support our portfolo with shared serces processes and platforms
These also help bind teams and businesses across sectors and countnigs

We therefore continue to develop and share global best practices and am
to maximise the efficiency of our cperations

Our people are our greatest asset so getiing our people strategy nght Is
essental {0 meeting our strategic goals Our people strategy therefore aims (o
drive the nght behaviours capabiliies structures and incentives Our focus 1s
on further developing owr feaders equipping our staff to deliver the very Dest to
our customers and having employee engagement processes designed 1o make
Serco a great place 1o work

We also look 10 have the nght informabion technology o support our business
and to aciively manage our brand and reputation which 1s increasingly
important as we entar new markets

Key achievements in 2013

We delivered Adjusted revenue growth of 4 7%

We saw strong orgamc growth in our AMEAA dmvsion and held our
Amencas revenues steady despite a further year of shninkage 10 the

US Federal outsourcing market New contracts supporting US healthcare
eligibilty and stale transporiation services have successiully broadened
our porfoho in this region

Growth was also achieved in the UK and in our Global Services division
Reviaws such as that covering UK clinical health have led to decisions
to exit early from cerain contracts

In 2013, we divesied some operations that had become non-core
including UK transpont mantenance and operational health services

In 2013 we expenenced significant 1ssues with two contracts for the
UK Ministry of Justice (MoJ) Audits of all our other MoJ contracts and
reviews of all our major UK Central Government contracts concluded
to our customers satistachon Our corporate renewal programme will
also support further service improvement alongside changing atitudes

2013 was an important year for transitioning operations on major
contracts such as Shop Direct Group and Fiona Stanley Hospital as well
as starting new, 'arge operations such as those for the US Depanment of
Heaith and Human Services Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services
and Virginia Department of Transportation

Our margin declined in 2013 The pnncipal drivers of margin reduction
included increased cost investiment in contract idding and new market
development in Global Services reduced discretionary and project
wark, and the general challenge Serco faced in progressing UK contract
awards given the issues with our UK Government customer In addition
there were other margin mux effects such as lower margins on the

inmal stages of new contracting areas and the start of the new

five-year pricing pencd at the Atomic Weapons Estabishment

In 20113 we developed a new leadership medel which covers everyone
1 Serco and will be launched In 2014 (see page 53)

We continued to focus on drmng engagement Our annual Viewpoint
survey highlighted a generally positive culture but overall levels of
engagement dechned shghtly i the last 12 months i part reflecung
the challenging environment Serco has faced

We also continued 1o enhancg our MyHR human resources system,
pesIonng us to add new functionahty which will support our people
strategy (see pages 53-54)

Fallowng the evenls of 2013 we recogrise the need 1o rebuild our
relahonships and reputation with our UK Government customer and the
public at large and have starled a programme of reputation recovery

Within our programme of coiporate renewal, which was developed
dunng the last quarter of 2013 and 15 now being /mplemented we are
working 10 embed a change in our approach to doing business and
te enhance our framework of reporiing, systerns and controls

11
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Principal risks

The Group Risk Register «dentifies the princrpal
nsks facing the business as a whole, including
those that are managed directly at Group level
These are managed through a formal process
More information on our nsk management
framework can be found on pages 70to 73

The Group's key stakeholders include, but

are not imited 1o, customers, shareholders
supplers, staff, trade unions, government,
regulators, banks and insurers The way we
operate as a responsible company recognises
the interests of the commumnity in areas such

as social, environmental and ethical impact as
described within the Corporale Responsibility
sechon

The most significant risks relate to our
reputation, and to operational and financial
performance, which are all direct threats to
the achievement of our strategic objectives
Surnmarised on the following pages are the
key nsks we have identified that could have
a material impact on our reputation, our
operations or our financial performance

A number of our other nisks reflect sooial
and ethical 1ssues

Group risks and mitigating actions overview

Market nsks

Risk | Change in the political environment

We also have matenal investments in a
number of jaint ventures, where we have

joint contral over management practices

Our representatives wilhin these companies
ensure that their processes and procedures for
dentifying and managing nsk are appropnatg
and that internal controls exist and are regularly
moniored

We keep reputational and emerging nisks under
active review and inform the Board of changes
Ermerging nsks cover longer-term nsks that
could represent a threat to our activities but
which are not yet sufficiently defined to be
included as active nsks

Description / Comment Impact Mitigation

As amajor proportion of Serco s customers are governments and governmental e Reduction in market opporunites e Business strategy
agencies, a substanhal part of the business 1§ dependent on government policies & Changes to terms of existing or & Diverse business across
budget pnoniies and regulatory or polibcat constraints 11 particular those regarding new coniracts geographues and markets

maintasning and improving pubhc infrastructure, which could have a significantimpact e Faiture 1o meet growth or profit
on the size, scope trming and duration of contracts and orders under them and

expectations

theretore on the level of husiness that we may win As such these businesses are
susceptible to changes 1n government government policy budget allocations and
the poliical environment pnmanly in the UK Australia and the US Any reduction in
such government expendiure and funding could resuli In a suspension, cancellation,
termination or non-renewal of contracts Revenues may also be adversely aflecled
by changes to the UK Government s US Government s or Australian Government s

policy in respect of outsourcing

Failure to understand and manage the conseguences of changes in the palitical
environment, adverse changes in polilicat stability political leadership policy and
economic conditions will ofien negatively aftect current and future business The
sustainability ol Serco s business with governments 1s dependent on normal stable
government and a favourable pohicy chmate to cutsourcing The policy environment
may change and favourable marketis may become hostle leading 1o loss of business

and reduced opportunities

o Dedicated teams regularly
morntor the politcal landscape
and government activities
reporting on government policy
changes and the political
environments where we are
operating We continue 1o
develop expertise and capability
n new markets and geographies
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Risk | Failure to win a strategic or significant bid or rebid

Description / Comment

Impact

Mitigation

Falure to win matenal bids or renew matenal contracis could restrict growth
opportunities for the future or have an adverse impact on Serco 5 busmess tnancial
condition and results of operations Further a signdicant number of Serco s contracts
with the UK Governmeni, the US Government and other public sector customers
including renewals and extensions of previous conlracis are awarded through formal
competiive bidding processes Compettive bidding processes present a number of
nsks including substanual cost and management tirne and effort to prepare bids and
proposals for contracts that may not be won In addition there 1s often a long penod
between a successful competibion tender offer and entering into definitve contractual
documentation and financial close and In some cases inancial close may not occur

It Serco dogs not continue 1o be competitive, show entrepreneunal spint and deliver
our prormuses, It may result in cur faling to win matenal bids of renew matenal
coniracts which could restnct growth oppornumues for the future or have an adverse
impact on Serce s business financial condimon and results of operations We will
become increasingly less competiive and our growth will stagnate Margins waill
rermain ai current tevels or reduce impacting on share pnce and making us en
increasingly less attractive praspect for investars Serca will also sutfer from losing
money due to the financing of unsuccessiul bids

& Failure to meet growth or profit
axpectations

® Sgmificant financial loss or cost
overrun

o Negative reputational impact
potentally resulting n ioss of
existing o new business

» Impact on strategic objectives

Business Lifecycle governance
process embedded in SMS
Governance struciure managed
through Investment and Ethies
Committee Programme and
Project Boards Dmsronal and
Contract Boards

Business strategy and targets
managed through internal boards
Regular review and monitoning
of Risk Registers

Gate rewews of bids and formal
sign-off process

Robust idding and contract
review proCess including
ftinancial, techrical and
commercial reviews

Risk | Failure to effectively manage brand / reputation

Description / Comment

Impact

Mitigation

The economic value of our business 1s significantly impacted by our reputation
reflected i our shase price, rating ability to atttact and retain tatent, win business,
aftract finance and maintain our licence to operate That reputation is held in the
minds of others and broadly consists of thew attitudes 1owards our Company and

the actions they subsequently take Reputation counts Our future success will not
Just depend on rational factors such as pnce pay leve!s or contractual perfarmance
but also emotional atiitudes towards the Company and the contracting market as a
whole We will need (o decide how we wish to define and be seen by the full spectrum
of customers - from the economic buyers 1o ihe actual end users and beneficianes

of the services we provide - and other stakeholders

The events of last year refating i two UK government contracis have negatively
impacted Serco s reputation and brand including our ability to bid for and win
LUK Government business dunng the second half of 2013

» Failure to meet growth or profit
expectations
# Significant inancial loss or cost
overrun
Loss of contract revenue related
lo operatiens and service charges
+ Couldimpact share price
» [nability to attract the human and
financial capital necessary to
grow of expand Into new markets
+ Damage to reputation resulting
in lass of existing or new business
e Impact on strategic objectives

Governance siructure managed
through Investment and Ethics
Committee, Programme and
Project Boards and Dwvisional
and Coentract Boards

An effective nsk 1ssues and
controls structure dentifies
potential reputational impacis
allowing effective management
and oversight

Customer engagement and
employes engagement siralegies
Relationship managemeni

and communication with
cxternal stakeholders
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Operational nisks

Risk | Major information security breach

Description / Comment

Impact

Mitigation

Serco must comply with restrictions on the handhing of sensitive information {(including
personal and customer) and provide for secure transmission of such mformation

This 15 a heightened nsk paricularly with respect to government contracts due to
the sensitive and cenfidential nature of goveinment data Despite controls 1o ensure
the confidentialty of such information Serco may breach restnctions or be subject

to cyber altacks (e g fram computer programs or hacklvist groups) that may attempt
to penetrate its network securty and risappropnate confidental information

o Loss of serace 1o our customers

« Damage to reputation resulting
inloss of existing of new

business such as disqualfication

from future tenders or contract
termination

« Impact on strategic objectives

o Costly to rectify and poiential for
dilution of shareholder returns

o Crnminal and civl action

o Contract and business external
accreditations withcrawn

» Significant media attention and
futurg scrutiny

Security and information syslems
policies systems and embedded
governance structure

Think Privacy campaign to raise
staff awareness provide training
promote incident reporing and
strengthen control processes
Cyber security contract

Risk assessments

Cyber resiience of enterpnse
apphcations

User management multifactor
authentication, user awareness
Regutar nsk reviews

1S0O 27000 certification

Governance risks

Risk | Significant incident of bribery or corrupt practice

Description / Comment

Impact

Mitigation

Serco operates In international markets which brings with it inherent nsks including
bnbery and corruption particularly in certain developing natons

Serco operates in a number of countnes wiich are recogrised as having a higher
bribery and coruption nsk Increasing legislation significantly increases the
consequences of bribes and other corrupt practices

o Legal action and fines against
the company

« Debarment from tender kists

e Damage 1o roputatign resulting

n loss of exising or new business

» Signiicant media attention and
future scrutiny

Palicies and systems embedded
n SMS

Code of Conduct

Ethics Committee

Speak Up process

Ethics and compliance
programme and traning

Risk assessment

Third party contracts
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People risks

Risk | Failure to retain / attract key leadership talent

Description / Comment

Impact

Mitigation

The success of the company depends on the efforts, abilities expenence and
experiise of the senior management teams and on recruiiing, retaining motrvating
effectively communicating with and developing highty skilled and competent people
at all levels of the orgamisation  There can be intense competition $or persennel
from other companies and orgamsations and these may al any ke be shortages

in the availlability of appropnately skilled people at all levels within Serco Further,
the company cannct guaraniee the: retention of such key execuives and technical
personnel The tailure of the company to retan and/or recrut adduional or subshtute
seruor managers and/or other key employees could have a matenal adverse effect
on (s business

® Risk af not achieving level of
planned growth

» Increased cost in recruitment
activity and time taken to fill roles

# Instabilty and loss of business

continuity

Culution of brand and values

# Reduced employee engagement
through loss of compeling
leadership

* Strengthen competitors through
loss of leaders 1o tham

e People policies and systems
strategy and targets supporied
by governance structure
inclucing Remuneration
Commitiee

# Succession planning

e Leadership model

& Annual external (iIndependent)
remuneration review

e Job structure and grading system

» Talent database and leadership
development programme

o Employment engagement
strategy (including annual

staff survey
Finance risks
Risk | The iImpairment of goodwlll could adversely impact reported results
Description / Comment Impact Mitigation

Goodwill accounted for 45% of Serco Group s recorded 1otal asseis as at

31 December 2013 Serco evaluates goodwill for impairment annualty or more
frequently when ewidance of potential impairment exists Any decrease in expected
cash flows or detenoration in markeat conditions could require Serco 1o record
impairment charges that could have a matenal impact on the hnancial position
and results of operatons

e Inabilty to meet profit
axpectations

@ Potential for breach of fnancial
covenants

o Damage o repuiation and
shareholder confidence

® Impact on slrategic objecuives

* Interna) board and governance
structure

@ Strategic plans

o Business plans

® Business Liecycle Governance
process

& Financial review and reporting
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Key performance indicators

In 2013, we used the key performance indicators
{KPlIs) below to monitor our performance They are
split between financial and non-financial measures

As part of our corporate renewal programme,
we are reviewing our KPIs This will ensure we

Financial

Adjusted revenue (Em)

Definition

Adjusted revenue represents the amounts due
lor goeds and sernices we provided dunng the
year and includes our share of revenue from
joint ventures Adjusted revenue 1s stated net
of dscounts VAT and other sales relaled taxes

Adjusted operating profit (Em)

Definuon

Adjusted operating profit s before ameoryisation
of inlang bles ansing on acquisiions
transaction-related costs and exceptional
items as shown on the face of the Group s
consolidated income slatemenl and the
accompanying notes In 2013 itis before
managerment s estmation of other costs i
refabien te ihe UK Government reviews

Figures for 2008 2012 have been resta ed for
changes in accounting policies

Ad|usted earnings per share (EPS) (p)

Defrution

Adsted earnings per share 15 caiculated on
the basis of eamings before amortisation of
ntang bles ans:ng on acquisilions transaciion
refated costs and exceptional items as shown
on tha face of the Group s consoldated ncome
statement and the accompanying notes It s
a'sa before management s estimation of other
coslis in relation to the UK Government reviews
In addition Adjusted earnings per share takes
account of the tax elfecl of these adjust ng items

Figures for 2009 2012 have been restaled for
changes in accounting pohcies

Group free cash flow (£m)

Defirtion

Group free cash flow 1s the free cash fiow
generated by our subsidiares pius the
dadends we receve from jont ventures

have a balanced set of metrics that gives
appropnate emphasis to both the financial
and non-financial aspects of our performance,
and will include customer satisfaction,

people engagement and contract

comphliance indicators

Relevance o stralegy

Qur revenue growth flows diractly from
successiul implementation of all aspects of
our strategy ~ & halanced portfalio of growth
opportunties delivenng improved service for
customers anad ensunng we hava the nght
people sysiems and processes

Relevance (o sirategy

Adjustad operating protit reflects the ability
to win and relain contracts with appropriate
marg ns suslaing of IMproving marg n
through efficrent operations and proactive
portfolio management 1o ensure appropnate
perlormance and returns

Relevance 1o sirategy

Adjusted EPS reflects the ability to grow both
revenue and Adjusted operating profit margin
together with the strength of fund ng and
overall nancial positon

Aelevance lo strategy

Group free cash flow reflects our ability to
generale funds to invest in our future growth
and siralegic development

Performance

Growlh of 4 7% year on year was a good
performance conskienng the 1ssues in the
LIK encountered in the second hal! of the
year Growth was dnven primanly by contract
awards in the provious year and high levels
ol organic revenue In AMEAA

Performance

The dechine of 7 0% represents o decrease
Inmargin from 8 4% to § 7% reflecting the
increased nvesiment in markel development
activity in the Global Services dvision
reduced projecl work and ihe ganeral
challenge {aced :n the talter part of the year
and other marg n mix effects

Performance
The decline of 4 3% reflects the challenges
faced in the second hal! of the year

Performance

The reduction in Group free cash flow
prncipally reflected the increase in the level
of working capital relating o the kming
d.iference between the perod when costs
are iIncurred 0 the delivery of the contract
and the period when we can contreclualty
bl our custerner and lower dividends from
[ont ventures
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Non-financial

Major reportable Incident rate {per 100,000 employees)

Oefintion

Mapor injunes ara classed as fatalties

fractures amputatons dslocations koss of
sight chemical and hot metal bums alectncal
bums unconsciousness caused by aspinyxia
Of exposura to a harmiul substance and acute
Uness resu’ting from substance inkalation

o ngestion Tha rale measures our success
n provid ng a safe and secure workng
emaronment and exciudes jont veniures

Carbon emisslons headcount Intensity (ionnes of C0,e per FTE)

Oefirition

We report our greenhouse gas emissions as
tomnes of CO,e per 'l ime equvalent (FTE)
employee This normalises our emissions to the
size of our business In 2013 we adopted ISO
14064 1 2012 to enswre we meel greenhouse
As repoing requ rements and provide a far
and transparent pcture of our greenhouse gas
emssions Ths has resu ted in us caplunng
far more comprehensive data than in previous
years As aresu't we are using 2013 as the
baseline for fulure reporting

Investment In society (Em)

Definition

Each year we aim 1o inves! 1% of our Adjusted
pré-tax profits into society We do this through
cash donatons gfts n kind employes
volunleenng and management ime

2013

4.04

Re'evance to slralegy

Delvenng excellent service to our cuslomers
requ res us to operate n the safest way
possible Safety &'so has a drect beanng
on the commitment and engagement of

out peopla

Relevance lo sirategy

Our carbon dioxice emissions are d rectly
related lo our energy use and hence to the
effiency of our operations

Relevanca to strategy

Strong community relationships help us to
win and relain contracts and o engage our
peaple as well as drectly benefiing the lives
of the people we assist

Performance

Tha number of major reportabie incidents lelt
by 45% to 33 1n 2013 resuling n a rata of
33 4 per 100 000 employees This was well
ahead of our target of 57 and Iha UK Health
and Safety Executve Tolal Sennce Industnes
benchrnark 0! 915

Performance
Our emissions 0 2013 were 4 04 tonnes
of CO.e per FTE

Periormance

We invested £2 575 029 through donatrons
ol money assels and 1me o community
projects and charlles representing 1% of
our Adjusted pre-tax prefit

Far more on our non-financial KPls sea the
Corporate Responsibility section on pages 52 1o 57
and greenhouse gas emissions on pages 58 10 59
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Chief Executive's statement

£d Casey, Acting Group Chief
Executive, said “We have been
through a difficult year and there
remamns much to be dene to
ensure the agreed programme of
corporate renewal is successfully
implemented However, the work
we have completed and the
undertakings we have made
demonstrate our commuitment

to achieving this

“The events of 2013 absorbed
management’s focus and,
therefore, interrupted the normal
process of improving efficiency
and developing our business into
new areas Qver the second half of
2013 and until the end of January
2014, we were not able to be
awarded new contracts by UK
Central Government, which also
had an impact on the development
of our business 1N certain

other sectors

“Our focus 1s clear to ensure that
the Group has stable operations,
appropnate operational controls
and differentiated capabilities, to
make the most of the breadth of
our offering across frontline and
middle and back office services,
and our referenceability from one
country to another | am confident
that these attrnibutes will enable
Serco’s return to growth, in what
remain fundamentally attractive
service markets around the world "

18

2013 has brought significant challenges,

n particular from certain contract issues with
the UK Ministry of Justice Organic revenue
growth was 5 9% dnven principally from
contract awards in the previous year Profitability
deciined due to less work with UK Central
Government and fewer wins in the BPO market
Net exceptional charges, reflecting principally
the Electronic Monitoring settlement, totalied
£90 5m, wih other indirect costs and charges
refated to the effects the UK Government
reviews had on the business estmated by
management at £21 O0m Adjusted EPS, before
these exceptional charges and costs, were

39 53p, a dechne of 2 1% at constant currency
Free cash flow also dechned in the year

The dividend payment 1s increasing reflecting
our ongoing transition to a higher payout ratio
The Group mantains a robust financing posihion

The value of contract awards totalled £3 7bn

In the year, with further progress made on

the strategic positioning of cur pertfolio The
outlook for 2014 remains challenging, with lower
profits anticipated We will continue our efforts
to rebuild the confidence of our UK Government
customer and strengthen the Group as a whole,
through the comprehensive corporate renewal
programme There 1s ongomg demand in

large and growing markets for our services,
with a pipeline of opportunities to take the
business forward

Organic revenue growth of 5 9%

for the Group

Adjusted revenue from ongong activiiies
was £5 1bn, a growth of 7 8% at constant
currency Excluding incremental revenue from
acguisitions, our portfolio across multiple
markels and vared conditions delivered
organic revenue growth of 5 9%

In the UK & Europe division, organic revenue
growth was 3% 1n 2013 This was drniven by the
additional revenue in the first half from previous
new contracts in their initial year of operation,
including community healthcare in Sufictk, the
Northern Isles ferry services in Scotland, and
asylum applicant accommodation and fransport
services in North West England and Scotland &
Northern Ireland The Electron:e Moritoring (EM)
and Prisoner Escort & Custody Services (PECS)

contract 1ssues iImpacted the second half of
the year, whilst we worked to regain eligibility
for new UK Central Government conltract
awards Good progress continued to be made
on extending existing contracts in areas such
as environmental services, non-chinical health
operations and defence traiming and support

In the Amencas dvision revenue held steady,
a positive outcome given the third year of a
decliring and uncertain US federal contracting
market, drven by government budget and
funding 1ssues Momentum was achieved

n the second half of the year, through the
start of major new contracts in healthcare
elgibilty processing and state government
transportation support

The AMEAA dvision achieved crganic revenue
growth of 18% A sigruficant proportion of

this was due to an increased volume of work
providing immigration services in Australa This
contract having grown to be the largest within
the Group, began to see lower volume fevels
by the end of the year, following sigmificant
changes to government policies that are
expected to continue 1o reduce the size of

the contract in 2014 Numerous new contract
developments were achieved n ¢ther pars

of the region, pariicularly the Middle East

The Global Services division, representing
Serca s BPO middle and back office skills and
capabilities, achieved organic revenue growth
of 5% in 2013 Ailter a strong first half, which
included the first year of operation of previcus
new relationships such as Shop Direct and
AEGON UK, the second half saw performance
weaken There was a lower level of work with UK
Central Government customers and fewer major
private sector bids were won than in 2012

Reduced profit and cash generation
Adjusted operating profit from ongoing acivities
was £285 4m representing a 2 3% decline

at constant currency and a margin decline to

5 6% compared to 6 3% in 2012 The principal
drivers of the margin reduction included
increased investment in contract bidding and
new market development actwity in the Global
Services division, reduced discretionary and

ad hoc project work and the general challenge

We operate the naticnal network of immuigratien centres
for the Australian Department of Immigration and
Border Protaction




e

Serco faced in progressing UK contract awards
over the latter pan of the year, and other
margin mix effects, such as lower margins on
intial stages of new coniracts or from related
operational 1ssues, and the start of the new
five-year pricing perniod at the Atormic Weapons
Establishment (AWE}

Adjusted profit before tax was £254 4m and
Adjusted earnings per share were 39 53p,
decliing by 3 6% and 2 1% respectively

at constant currency

The Group incurred a net exceptional charge
of £90 5m in the year This reflected principally
the seltlement reached with the UK Ministry

of Justice In respect of the iSsues ansing on

the Electronic Monitoning contract, as well
as the direct one-off costs regarding the
UK Ceniral Government audits and reviews,
and the development of Serco s corporate
renewal programme In addition, there were
an estimated £21 Om of other related costs

Group free cash flow dectined to £84 8m
compared with £181 2m n the previous year
There was an anticipated ingremental working
capital investment in BPO actmvities and lower
dividends from joint ventures There was a
greater adverse timing impact that reduced
cash flows on certain contracts, including some
delays to customer payments and some timing
differences of cash costs incurred compared

to our contractual customer invoicing profile

Earnings, cash flow financing and related
matters are descnbed fully in the Finance
Rewview on pages 42 to 51

Increased total dividend for the year
and robust financing position

The Board has proposed an increase of 4 5% to
10 55p in the total dividend for the year, holding
the 2013 final dvidend at last year s 7 45p

This reflects our ongoing transition to a higher
payout ratio Based on Adjusted basic earnings
per share of 38 53p, the dividend represents

a payout of 27% (2012 24%), or dividend cover
of 3 75x (2012 4 11x) The Board set out In
2013 the intention to move o dividend cover

of 2 5-3x over ime, beyond which point it would
expect to revert to increasing the total dvidend
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Chief Executive's statement

Continued

each year in line with the increase in underlying
earnings The final dividend will be paid, subject
to shareholder approval, on 14 May 2014 to
shareholders on the register on 14 March 2014

Serce also mantains sufficient and suitable
financing strength and funding arrangements for
anticipated corporate purposes Adjusted total
net debt has increased from £581m to £701m,
princtpally as a result of the cash payments
related to the exceptional charges The Group's
financial leverage ratio remains, however
suitably below our credit faciity financial
covenants

Further progress on contract awards
and strategic positioning

Contract awards in 2013 totalled £3 7bn,
representing signed contracts valued at £3 5bn
and preferred bidder appointments of a further
£0 2bn Our order book stood at £17 1bn at

31 December 2013 (£19 1bn at 31 December
2012) Wins included smaller and medium-sized
awards which are important to growth, as well
as significant rebids, extensions, expansions
and new contracts Of the total contract award
value, approximately 40% reflected services
newly contracied with Serco, with approximately
60% being retids or extensions

Notable contract awards, along with
approximate total value and contract length
where appropnate, included

@ Build and operate additional capacity at
HMP Thameside (£120m over 22 years)

& Operation of the Docklands Light Ralway
in London (£100m over 18 months)

20

Environrmental services for various UK
councis (£100m over four-1o-eight year terms)

Non-clinical support senaces for Plymouth
Hospitals NHS Trust (£40m over three years)

Multi-engine pilot training at RAF Cranwell
{£36m over five years)

Parking enforcement services for London
borough councils (£30m over five years}

European Space Agency operational
IT support for satelite infrastructure
(€30m over five years)

Defence Science and Technology Labaratory
(Dstl} procurement services (£15-25m aver
seven years)

Barclays Cycle Hire phase 3 expansion
in London (£15m over three years)

European Parlrament telephony and
communication equipment support
{€17m over six years)

Pre-deployment trawing for the UK's Ministry
of Defence (E10m over one year)

US healthcare eligibility processing support
(excluding opticnal tasks, US$600m over
five years)

Driver examination services In Ontario,
Canada {C$500m over ten years)

Virginia Department of Transportation
(VDOT) operational services {US$355m over
SIX years)

US IDIC task orders — across areas including
IT systerns and services human capital
management engineernng support, logistics
and programme management - totaling over
USE180m

Systems engineenng and technical
assistance for US intelhgence community
(LUS$40m over five years)

o City of Colorado Springs fleet management
and mantenance services (US$35m over
five years)

@ Dubal Metro operation and manienance
{£355m over five years)

® Austrahan immgration detention services
{volume-related value over six months)

® Hong Kong road transportation
management, cperation and mamntenance
{£80m over six years)

& Facilites management services tn the United
Arab Emirates (£30m over six years)

® Iraq ar trafiic control services, training and
support (£24m over 18 months)

¢ Tramway operation and maintenance
Dubar (£18m over five years)

& Middle East logistics and base support for
the Austrahan Defence Force (£18m over
one year}

& Healthcare support services in Abu Dhabi
(£5m over three years)

@ Procurement, finance and accounting
services for an NHS Hospital Trust
{£112m over four years)

& UK Central Government BPO services
including Child Mainterance Group
(£100m over three years)

#® Customer management services for UK leading
high sireet retaller (£50m over ten years)

® Public sector shared services for the Urited
Arab Emrrates (£24m over four years)

® Ciizen contact services and ICT support for
UK councils (totalling £20m over five years)

® BPO services for Indian banking energy
and telecom customers (totaling £20m
over (hree years)

During 2013 we delvered the cxpansion of Barclays
Cycle Hire to western boroughs of London
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More detai's of some of these awards are In
the Divisional Reviews, with further information
and other smealler and medium-sized awards
descrnbed in the contract news updates and
announcements On www serco com

New contract awards in the Americas
division are broadening our portfolo in this
region We successfully leveraged Serco's
global capabilities to achieve growth in the
transpartation market the VDOT contract
deepens our credentials further and the
successful rebid of driver examination senvices
in Canada strengihens our managed service
capability The award by the Urited States
Department of Health and Human Services'
Centers for Med:care & Medicaid Services
(CMBS), where Serco 1s providing ekgibihty
processing support for the new federally-
facitated marketplace, 1s a significant
development for our nvolvement i

US heaithcare and expands our customer
reach in an attractive market

Our proactive portfollo management involves
an ongoing assessment of operations against
therr fit to the Group's strategy This has
resulied i further disposals - pnincipally cur
UK occupational health and UK transport
maintenance and technology businesses —
which had become non-core to Serco's future
development in the health and transportation
markets While remaining primarily focused on
organic growth, we would consider potential
nfill acquesitions that bring additional skills,
capabiliies or market access (o enhance the
portfolio We will also continue to evaluate the
potentizl for further non-core dispesals

Challenging near-term outlook

As previously disctosed our business plans
reflect specific challenges that lead us to expect
a further reduction in profits in 2014 At the
same yime, we are working 1o secure Serco's
position In large and growing markets to
strengthen our performance in the longer term

In 2014, the level of contract attntion will
have a greater impact than the Group has
faced in the past The incremental revenue
contnbution from new contract awards 1s not

expected to fully offset the attnition, with this

In part a consequence of the 1ssues faced n
the latter part of 2013 The most significard
factor 1s that tollowing recent impigration policy
changes, lower volumes of work in Ausiralia are
anticipated 1o reduce Group revenue further,
our operations which grew 1o over £450m

of revenue in 2013 could reduce up to 50%,
though the nature of thrs work makes il difficult
to forecast These faclors are each described
more fully in the Divisiona! Reviews

Serco's revenue visibility from s order book
as at the start of this year was 77% for 2014
and 52% for 2015 This reflects the progress
made durng 2013 1n secunng rebids and
extensions, as well as the contnbution of new
wins Recurnng task orders, project work and
additional services for existing customers
typically add a turther 5-10% to the Group's total
visibility n indnvidual years There s additional
revenue that can be secured through known
near-term extension and rebid processes,
amounting to 8% of anticipated Group revenue
In 2014 and 19% 1n 2015 Major contracts due
for extension or retxd, with ther approximate
contnbution to Group revenue in 2013 and
extsting contract end date, are as follows

® Australan imemigration detention services
(9%, December 2014)

® Northern Rail franchise in the UK, operated
In partnership with Abellio (6%, Apnl 2014)

@ Defence garnson support services In
Austraha, operated in partnership with
Sodexo (2%, Jung 2014)

® Operation of the Dockiands Light Ratlway
in London {2%, September 2014)

@ Systems engineenng and technical
assistance contracts for a US inteligence
agency (1%, 2014)

Serco's internal forecasts tor 2014 mply a
mid-single digit perceniage decling in terms of
Group organic revenue This takes into account
the above factors, including assumed success

In secunng rebids and extensions, as well as

assumed incremental revenue coninbubion
from successful oulcomes of current bid
opportunities Compared to £5 1bn of Adjusted
revenue from ongoing actwvities in 2013,

for 2014 we anticipate £4 7-4 Sbn at

constant currency

Our internal forecasts for 2014 also imply |
a further reduction in the Group's Adjusted

operating margin of 50-100 basis points This

takes Into account the impact on the average

margin of the above-mentioned revenue factors,

together with the ongoing incremential cost

of corporate renewal programme delivery

estimated at approximately £10m

Based on the above, the Group's Adjusted
operating profit tn 2014 would be approximately
£220-250m at constant currency Thus compares
to £285 4m Adjusted operating profit from
ongaing activities for 2013

Adjusted net finance costs are anhkoipated to be
approximately £40m The Adjusted effective tax
rate and weighted average number of shares
are also expected to be broadly unchanged
This would result n Adjusted EPS of 28-33p

at constant currency As previously announced,
a resiructuring charge estimated at £10-15m
will be incurred in 2014 1o implement further
reductions in headcount and refated costs,

and one-off costs to implement the corporate
renewal programme are estimated at £15m

Our constant currency forecasts assume the
average exchange rates in 2013 prevail through
2014 The Group has approximately half of its '
revenue In nen-sterling currencies, therefore 1f

the sterling average rate were stronger in 2014

then the Group's results in reported currency

terms would reduce and vice versa

Free cash flow in 201415 anticipated to be
hugher than 2013, refleciing lower working
capital Investment in BPO actwity and some
reversal of the adverse timing impacits
expenenced in 2013 Net debt at the end of the
year 15 expecled to be broadly unchanged from
that at the end of 2013 The Group antictpales
that suffictent inancing headroom would

be mantained

From left
With our partner Abelo we run Northern Rai
the UK s largest train franchise

In Hong Kong wa are marke! lcader in managing

operating and maintawiing road tunnels, brdges
and related tollway infrastructure
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Securing Serco's position In large
and growing markets

The focus of 2014 will be to take the actions
necessary to return the business to longer term
growth in revenue and profiabitity Whilst Serco
has strong foundations (n its breadth of proven
capabiles across fronting, middle and back
office services, its long history of delivering
excellent service and its geographical reach,
there 1s much to do In 2014 We must stabilise
those UK operations impacted by the events of
2013, implement the plan of corporate renewal,
re-establish our momenturn within our markets,
particularly in the UK and the private sector,
and ensure we continue to bulld differentiated
capabilies that will secure the Group's future
progress in large and growing markets

Cur varnious public service operations for UK
Government make it collectively cur single
largest customer, with 2013 and 2014 involving
substantial effort to rebuilld confidence In

Serco There have been three main areas of
actmty Firstly, we cooperated fully with the
detalled independent forensic audit of the EM
contract, the separate audits of our other MoJ
contracts and the Cabmet Office’s wider review
across our other major UK Central Government
contracts Beyond the EM and PECS 1ssues
that had previously been identified, no further
material Issues were raised and the audits and
reviews were, therefore, concluded satisfactonly
by the end of 2013

Secondly, Serco agreed a seitlement with the
Maod in respect of the 1ssues ansing on the EM
contract The settlement reflected the difference
In (nterpretation regarding billing arrangements
for the EM coniract since 2005, together

with a repayment of an element of past profit
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earned on the contract interest and the UK
Government's costs of the audits and reviews

Thirdly, Serco has developed and 1s now in the
process of mplementing the comprehensive
programme of corporate renewal that we
outlned in our announcement n January
2014, jo ensure consistency of behawviours and
strengthen operations across the Group Our
plan was assessed externaliy by an Oversight
Group of Government non-executive directors,
with independent adwisers appointed by the
Government 10 review our progress aganst
agreed milestones In January 2014, a positive
assessment was provided on our programme,
confirming Serco's consideration on an equal
basis to other suppliers for current Central
Government contract awards

A stronger Serce will be positioned to benelit
from the engoing demand for efficient, high
guality and innovative service provision, from
public and private sector customers around

the warld In each of our major markets - the
UK the US and the countnes in which we
operate within the AMEAA region — there s
substantial spend by governments that 15
expected to continue to generate long-term
growth in each of our main areas of service
provision Transport, Defence, Home Affarrs
(iIncluding justice, borders and welfare services)
Health, and other areas of integrated faciities
management Our latest assessment of the total
addressable market spend in these areas 15
equivalent to over £150bn of annual spend

In overall terms, total government expenditure
that has been outsourced to daie as semvice
contracts 1s estmaled at 10-20%, with pclicy
development suggesting that governments

will continue 1o expand this proportion In
developed economies, the primary driver
remains fiscal pressure on government
spending, while the established presence that
Serco also has in developing economies adds
further cpportunity, given the fikely continued
hugher growth In demand for new or significantty
improved services for citizens Meanwhile, the
global BPO market 1s both large and continues
to grow, and Serco will look to further develop
its strategic posiioning with both private sector
and public sector customers in this market

We are tracking a total opportunity pipeline
valued at an estimated £28bn Versus a year
ago, the reduction from approximately £31bn
reflects where we have won, lost or taken the
decision to withdraw from bidding Over the
nex! two years, our pipeline of new bids, which
excludes the value of rebids and potential
extensions, has an estimated total value

of £12bn, or aggregate annual revenue of
approximately £1 4bn This near-term pipeline
consists of approximately 40 opportunities
that each have anticipated annual revenue of
at least £10m and are at a relatively advanced
stage of tendenng Described in more detail
in the Divistonal Reviews, examples of notable
oppornunities nclude those for

@ UK Defence Infrastructure Organisation (DIQ)

® UK Magnox nuclear site
decommissioning activities

® UK transport operations, such as the
Caledonian Steeper rail service and
Clyde & Hebndes ferry services

® UK military arr traffic management
sSupport services

® UK NHS trust integrated facilities
managerment

® UK Tocal council environmental
services oppertunities

& US Nawy systems and engineenng services

® US Patent & Tradernark Office
citizen services

® US Departrment of State passport services
® US state transportalion operalions
® Australia new-build prison in Victona

® Sydney North West Rail ink and light rail
opporunities In the region

¢ Middle East ar navigation and other
transport systems cperation

We run lifeline passenger and freight ferry
services 10 the Northern Isles in Scotland
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@ Private sector customer contact, account
management and multi-channel support
services bids

® Public sector citizen contact and other
8PO support

Serco's pontfelic of operations and opportunities
around the world continues to provide elements
of both resilience and future growth patential
Whilst the Group has a challenging near-term
outlook, and successful delivery of corporate
renewal 1s required, our position should be
restored to one of strength in what reman large
and growing markeis There exists a balance

of risks and opportunities, but the Board 1s
confident in the potental for Serco's long-term
growth While we will strategically review our
involvemnent in certain markets, and continue
our proactive portfolio management, the
Group's strategy remaimns to operate a strong
and diverse contrac! portfoho, reducing our
exposure to market fluctuations, enabling us 1o
select the best oppeortuniies where they anse
and allowing us to transfer expertise and nsight
across sectors and geographies

Ed Casey
Acting Group Chief Executive

From left
We are a major supplier of support semces
to UK hospitals

The Middle East s horne to sorme of Serco &
longest standing arr traffic contrel contracts
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This section 1s presented according to the four
divisions, based around our pnncipal markets

® UK & Europe
® Americas

® AMEAA (Australasia, Middle East,

Asia and Africa), and
¢ Global Services

The section includes references to contract
awards which are significant because of therr

value or therr strategic contribution to cur business
Further details of these, as well as cther medium
and smaller-sized contracts, can be found on

our website www serco com

Europe

The UK & Europe division
includes our frontline services In
Transport & Local Direct Services,
Defence & Science, Home Affarrs
(encompassing justice-related
operations, immigration and
border secunty, and welfare},

and Health

24

Transport & Lacal Direct Services

We are a key provider of transport services in
the UK With our partner Abello, we run both
Northern Rail, the UK's largest train franchise,
and Merseyrall, the UK's maost punctual train
operator In London, we run the Docklands Light
Raitway and the Barclays Cycle Hire scheme,
supporting growth in regular journeys as well
as major events such as the London Marathon
the Dizmand Jubilee and the 2012 Olympic
Games Dunng 2013 we also provided traffic
management operations and local authority
parking enforcement in the capital In Scotland
Serco runs hfeling passenger and frerght ferry
services 1o the Northern isles

Serco provides environmental services and
manages leisure facilities for local councils and
community lersure trusts across Bntain Qur
envirgnmental services include refuse collection,
recycling, street cleansing and grounds
maintenance Our leisure business provides a
comprehensive range of health, lesure, fitness,
well-being and community focused services

Defence & Science

Serco works for the Royal Ar Force, the Army
Air Corps and the Royal Navy's Fleet Air Arm,
providing services such as training, engingenng
or operational support

We also support the Royal Navy's three main
UK bases and operate and mantan strategic
assets such as secure satellte communicatiens
the Defence Academy of the United Kingdom,
the Emergency Planming College on behalf of
the Cabinet Office and the UK’s ballistic missile
early warning system

We provide systermns engineenng, safety
assurance and nisk management services,
and support the essential research carmed
out at the Defence Science and Technology
Laboratory (Dstl) Qur joint venture with
Lockheed Martin and Jaccbs Engineering
manages the Atomic Weapons Establishment
(AWE), which provides the warheads for the
UK s nuclear deterrent

Home Affairs

Serco 1s a leading custodial accommodation
provider, operating six adult pnsons in England
and Scotland These inciude HMP & YOI
Doncasier, which has been piloting Payment
by Results, and HMP Thameside, one of

the world's most technologically advanced
prisons We also run the secure training centre
at Hassockfield in County Durham, for young
people aged between 12 and 17 years who
are either awaiting trial or serang sentences

From left
We extended our Mull Activity Contract at
RAF Brize Norion dunng 2013

In 2013 we achieved all-bme high performance
at the Docklands Light Raillway in London
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From left
We operate HMP Thameside one of the world s mast
technologically advanced prisons

QOur operations for Sandwell Metropolitan Borough
Council saw the opening of a new £10m waste transfer
station handling 700 tonnes of waste and recycling
each week

25



Serco Group plc | Annual report and accounts 2013

Strateglc Report

Divisional reviews

UK & Europe

Continued

During 2013 we have provided prisoner escort
and custody services In London and the South
East of England, and electronically monitored
defendants and ofienders subject 1o home
curfew In partnershup with the London Probation
Trust, we have delivered Commurity Payback,
which reguires offenders {o do unpad work for
the community On behalf of the Home Office
we run two immigration remcval centres and
provide technology services for barder control
and securnty We also provide accommodation
and transport services for asylum applicants

in the North West of England, Scotland and
Northern Ireland

As part of the Department for Work &
Pensions’ Work Programme, Serco and its
partners are placing thousands of jobseekers
into sustainable employment A Serco-led
consortium also operates the National Citizen
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Service In six regions across the country,
enablng 16 and 17-year-olds to develop skills
through projects that contribute to society

Health

Serco delivers GP out-of-hours services In
Cornwall and provides a comprehensive range
of chinical services in the community in Suffolk
We are the largest independent prowider of
custodial health services We are also a major
supplier of support services 10 a number

of UK hospitals GSTS Pathology, our joint
venture with two magor NHS teaching hospitals,
1s the UK's leading independent pathology
services provider

UK & Europe - 2013 review

Adjusted revenue from ongoing activiies
grew by 3% to £2,514m (2012 £2,436m), and
represented 49% of the Group (2012 51%)
On an organic basis revenue also grew by
3% Adjusted operating profit from ongoing
operations dechned by 8% to £150 7m (2012
£163 4m), with the margin dechning 1o 6 0%
(2012 8 7%) Including the impact of disposals,
Adjusted revenue was broadly flat at £2,557m
(2012 £2,561m) and Adjusted operating profit
declined by 11% to £157 3m {2012 £177 1m)

Whilst the first half of 2013 grew strongly, dnven
principally by the additicnal revenue of the

new contracts that staried in the second half of
2012, as welt as additional project-based work
on certain contracts, the issues that arose with
the LK Government impacied our business in

the second half of the year As a consequence,
revenue in the second half declined aganst
the comparable penod in 2012, given the lower
contnbution from new contract starts and less
discretionary and ad hoc project wark

The margin reduction reftected the inihal stages
of the major new contract starts, which tend to
invelve greater upfront invastment the effect

of the new five-year pricing penod for our
management and operation of AWE and the
lower margin on managing capital projects

for certain customers

Transport & Local Direct Services
QOperations across Transport & Loca! Direct
Services accounted for approximately 40%
of UK & Europe Adjusted revenue from
ongoing activities

At Northern Rail in the most recent National
Passenger Survey (NPS), averall customer
satisfaction was broadly level on a year earlier
We continue to invest in areas that will improve
our customers’ experience with us, including the
upkeep of our trains and keeping passengers
informed The challenge of increasing capacity
will be a major focus for the successor
franchise, which we would anticipate bidding
on dunng 2015, ahead of its start in February
2016 At Merseyrail, we are very pleased that it
has ¢continued {0 be ranked top in the NPS for
overall customer satisfaction At the Docklands
Light Railway, all-time high performance
metrics were achieved in the year and an

From left
We prowde a comprehensive range of community
health services in Suliolk

Merseyrail 1s the UK s most punctual train operator
and continues to be ranked top for overall customer
satisfaction in the National Passenger Survey




w1 | T

We support the Royal Navy s Fleaet Air Arm at RNAS Yecwilton

18-month extension was signed with a value
of approximately £100m

Ferry services to the Northern Isles of Scotland
completed therr first full year under Serco s
management This has seen the refurbishment
of all three passenger vessels and numerous
other mprovements delivered to assist
ncreasing usage of the hfeline freight and
passenger services In similar operations
Serco and iis locat joint venture partner
Stromma Tunsm & Syofart AB were selected
during the year to manage and operate

four ferries currently carrying over two million
passengers annually in Stockholm

Serco delivered the phase 3 expansion of
Barclays Cycle Hire for Transport for London,
adding approximately 5,600 new docking points
and 2,400 new bikes to western boroughs
Serco was also awarded an innovative new
contract to provide end-to-end on-street parking
enforcement or the West London Alliance,

a parinership between Ealng, Hounslow

and Brent borough councils

In Local Direct Services, Serco successiully
extended or rebid Its coniracts for environmental
services for Canterbury City Council, Welwyn
Hatheld Borough Council and Breckland Borough
Councll, valued intota! at over £100m Qur
operations for Sandwell Metropolitan Barough
Council saw the opening of a new £10m waste
transfer station in Tipton, handing more than
1,700 tonnes of waste and recycling each week

Defence & Science

Operations across Defence & Science
accounted for approximately 30% of UK
& Europe Adusted revenue

Our management and operation of AWE,

as part of a jont venture with Lockheed Martin
and Jacobs Engineenng, began the next
five-year pncing penod in Apnl 2013 Strong
operational performance and programme
delivery has continued Projects that became
fully operational in the penod included Orion,
AWE's new laser faciity, which 18 now one of the
world's most powerful lasers and of mmense
interest both internationally and o the wicter
academic community working In areas such as
fusion energy and astrophysics Meanwhile, at
Serco's strategic partnership with Dstl, further
largel service options such as procurement
have been added to the existing pnime contract

In our support services for the Armed Forces,
Serco extended and then subsequently

rebid successtully its Multi-Engine Pilot

Traning contract at RAF Cranwell, valued at
approximately £36m over five years Serco
provides up to 5,500 flying hours annually

n the King Air B200 awrcrait, as well as up to
2,700 arrcraft simulator hours Other extended
contracts included maintenance for the Search
and Rescue fleet of Sea King arrcraft, our
Multi-Actnity Contract at RAF Brize Norton

and our A Trathc Services at Wattisham, for the
British Army's Apache helicopler fleet In related
services for the private sector, Serco has retud

and expanded its services to Airbus for ar traffic
control, manoeuvning area safety training, aw
traffic engineenng and faciittes management
services We also successfully rebid our suppon
tc the United States Ar Force in Europe, which
provides transportation, supply and faclies
management For the British Army, our pre-
deployment fraining Contemporary Operating
Environment Force contract was extended for

a further year

Operations in Eurcpe have similary been
successfully retnd during 2013 Serco

will continue 1o manage the European

Space Agency's operational conitrol cenire
infrastructure and tracking stations network,
under a five-year contract worth over €30m

We rebid our contract providing telephony,
videoconierencing and cabling support across
Eurgpean Parlrament sites, and expanded it
further to cover TV distributicn, in & new contract
valued at approximately €17m gver a maximum
of s years

Home Affairs

Operations across the Home Affairs market
accounted for approximately 20% of UK &
Europe Adjusted revenue

Durning the year a detaled independent forensic
audit of our Electroric Monitoring (EM) contract
was completed with Serco's full cooperation,
with the audit identfying issues with billing

A settlement of £64 3m with the Mol reflected
the difference in contract interpretation

From left

Our Defence Business Servces coniract lor the
Ministry of Defence was our first pure back-offtce
contract in the UK public sector

Our joint venture continues to achieve strong

operational performance and programme delivery
at the Alomic Weapons Establishment
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UK & Europe

Continued

regarding the biling arrangemenis since

2005, together with a repayment of past profit
earned on the contract, interest and the UK
Government's costs of the audits and reviews
The difference n coniract interpretation led

to nstances of daily charges being applied
when there was an open Court Order but
where no active monitorning was taking place
The setilement was full and final In respect

of contractual claims, with the proviso that
additional payments might be sought in imited
circumstances, such as if cnrmnalty were 1o be
established Serco continues to cooperate fully
with the ongoing investigations by the Sericus
Fraud Office The settlement was included as
an exceptional cost in the year The EM contract
underwent an accelerated transition {o the new
service provider, with the associated costs of this
reflected within management's estmate of other
costs in reation to the UK Government reviews
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A second significant contract issue also arose
duning the year Serco and the MoJ jomntly
referred misreporting of data on the Pnisoner
Escort & Custody Services (PECS) contract to
the City of Loendon Police Under the contract,
Serco 1s required to deliver defendants to
Court with performance measured against

the defendant being 'Designated Ready and
Available for Court Time’ {DRACT) Serco
identified misreporting of DRACT data locally,
such that performance reported to the customer
was overstated A settlement of £2 Om was
reached in repayment of profit earned since
the contract was renewed in 2011, this was
included as an exceptional cost In the year
Significant cost was incurred to deliver service
improvements that enabled the MoJ to confirm
that Serco could retain this contract whilst
forgoing any future profits, this cost 1s included
within management's estimate of other indirect
cosis in relation {o the UK Government reviews

Separate audits of all of our Mod contracts,

as well as the Cabinet Otfice s wider review
across the range of our other major UK Central
Governmeni contracts concluded in December
2013 Beyond the EM and PECS contracts,

no further matenal 1Issues were raised

Within our custochal operations, at HMP
Thameside, Her Majesty's Chief Inspector

of Pnsons and mare recently the Independent
Monitonng Board have recognised the
progress that has been made since the pnson
first opened, which has included a number

of health and welfare intiatives to )/mprove
operational performance at this new London
prison Supporting the MoJ's programme

to modernise the UK prison estate, we are
increasing the capacity of HMP Thamesice

with a contract expansion valued at £120m
over 22 years, which includes a £36m 18-month
construction phase During the year, Serco
fransiioned HMP & YOI Ashfield from being

a Young Offender Institution te being an Adult
Male pnson At HMP & YOI Doncaster, our
payment by results pilot programme saw
significant improvement in reoftending rates for
prisoners serving less than 12 months, this waork
and our London Community Payback contract
will conclude by the end of 2014 1n order

for thern to be rolled into the Government's

new Transiorming Rehabilitation programme,
where Serco will look at cpportunities to support
others in the development of the new probation
services market

As reported by the National Audit Office in January
2014, our contract under the Home Office's
COMPASS programme 10 provide accommodation
and support services 10 almost 10,000 asylum
applicants in the North West of England and in
Scotland and Northern Ireland, has expenenced a
challenging transition since taking over the service
i late 2012 Whist the report recognised that
Serco had worked hard to raise standards, there
remains scope for further improverment and we
are committed to working with our customer and
our partners in local government, the NHS and the
voluntary sector to achieve that

AL HMP Thameside we are supporting the
Mirisiry of Justice s programme to modernise
the UK pnson estate
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In the welfare market, Government statistics
for the Work Pregramme show that the national
picture 1s improving and that Serco continues
to achieve good results i its two contracts

To date, we have helped 20,000 long-term
unemployed people inte employment across
the South Yorkshire and West Midlands regions
The NCS Network, a parinership of Serco
Catch22 the Natonal Youth Agency UK Youth
and vinspired, 1s delivening the National Citizen
Service across six regions in the UK More
than 10,000 young people have completed the
programme in the first year ganing skills useful
for their future working lives

Health

Operations across Health accounted
for approximately 10% of UK & Europe
Adjusted revenue

Core to our strategy in the UK 15 providing
healthcare orgarmisations with integrated
faciiies management For example, Serco
signed an extension to continue providing
support services to Plyrmouth Hospitals NHS
Trust, valued at approximately £40m over three
years Our UK skills and capabilities in this
sector have also continued to be important
references for contracts won in other regions

QOperations at certain clinical health contracts
have proven challenging n 2013 Our
management of Braintree Hospital has been
Impacted by lower levels of patient referrals
than predicled, with Serco’s ability io improve
utiisation of the hospital being imited At our
Cornwall GP out-of-hours contract, overall
patient feedbrack 1s positive and the Care Quality
Commission's report noted the improvements
made and that essential standards of qualily
and safety were being fully met However, the
implementation of the NHS Pathways IT system
dunng the year proved an additional challenge
for a contract that Serco has acknowledged
publicly that it has not delivered as successiully
as it should have As announced in December
2013, Serco will end these two contracls early

Serco began a significant new contract for the
NHS in Suffolk in October 2012, providing a
wide range of community health services The
contract s one of the first of its kind and runs
for three years Serco has delivered some early
benehts in 2013 such as reducing the length
of stay in community hospitals by around a
week and improving access to the service by

establishing a 24-hour care coordination centre
However demand on the service has increased
and 11 1s taking tonger than anticipated 1o bring
about the cperational performance levels that
are expected At all times Serco has ensured
that the service 15 properly resourced o deliver
a sale quality service and wali continue to do
so Serco remains committed to the community
heaithcare market and to the service in Suffolk

Prowisions for estimated losses in future years
on the Suffolk and Carnwall contracts, together
with provisions against the underlying assets
of the Braintree contract, led to a non-cash
exceptional charge of £17 6m n the year

UK & Europe - future developments
The 2014 financial year will be impacted by

a greater level of attntion, which includes the
ending of contracts such as the Elecironic
Monitonng service and the anticipated transition
of the management and operation of the

UK’s National Physical Laboratory These two
significant contracts together have previously
accounted for around 5% of divisional revenue
The overall level of atintion 15 expected to have
a greater impact on profitatality A reduced
level of project-related work 1s also anticipated
compared te 2013

Over the next two years, significant
Serco contracts that require extending
or rebidding include

® Northern Rail, where the existing contract
15 clue 1o expire N Apnl 2014 and revenue
in 2013 was approximately 13% of the UK
& Europe division, Serco1s in advanced
stages of agreeing an extension to continue
operations through 1o early 20186, at which
point the franchise would be retendered

® Docklands Light Ralway, where the existing
contract 1s due to expire in September 2014
and revenue in 2013 was approximately
3-4% of the UK & Europe division, Serco
15 currently one of three shortiisted parties
bidding for the next contract

Future growth 15 expected to be driven by
competitive outsourcing continuing to support
the UK Government's am of achieving savings,
whilsi improving services and social outcomes
The reform of public services provision 1s an
ongoing process, with the Cabinet Office and
spending departments continuing to bring

new opportuniies to marke! Bids and market
development in other areas continue 10 be
pursued, ncluding direct services for local
government, non-chincal and community
healthcare services and other frontline support
to organisaiions in the UK and Europe In
addition, middle and back office opporiunities
for local and central government will be
pursued, in conunction with the skills and
capabilities of our Global Services dvision

New bid opportunities that are expected to be
decided over the next two years include

@ Sirategic pariner to the MoD to delver further
efficiencies to the Defence Infrastructure
Organisation

& Management of decommissioning activities
at 12 UK nuclear sites, in parinership with
CH2M HILL and AREVA

@ Operational and engineenng suppon for
the Defence Fire and Risk Management
Organisaticn

® Transport operations including the
Caledonian Sleeper rail service and Clyde
& Hebndes ferry services

® Operational support for Programme
GATEWAY at RAF Brize Norion

® Engneenng and support services to UK
military arr traffic management

® Non-¢climical health support services to
an NHS trust

® Numercus environmental and itegrated
waste management servces for local councils

As previously noted, from 2014 the
operations of this division will sphit Into two,
with a separate division for our UK Central
Government work to achieve a focus on
government as a collective customer

From left
Cur community healih senvices contract i Suffolk
1s one of the first ¢f its kind

Serco continues 10 deliver good results inaits two
Work Programme contracts
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Our Americas division provides
professional, technology and
management services focused
pnmartly on the US Federal
Government, including every
branch of the military, a broad
range of civihan agencies and the
national inteligence community
We also provide services {o

the Canadian Govermment,
and selected US state and
municipal governments

30

For nearly two decades, Serco has served as
one of the largest systems engineernng and
technical assistance contractors in US Ar Force
Space Command, supporting a wide range

of military satellite systems, missile defence
systems, command and control systems and
mission essential networks and [T systems
worldwide We install and test communications
and data networking systems for shore ship
and submarine installations for the US Navy
We also assist a major intelligence agency

to acquire next generation IT systems

Serco provides personnel and family support
services to over two millon military persennel
and ther families Serco has processed and
assigned appropriate US and international
classifications tor over 2 3 million US patent
applications In 2013, we implemented the
Cooperative Patent Classification system,

a global classification systern for patent
documents We manage ar traffic control
services at 64 iowers across the US, ensuring
the safe transport of nearly nine mithon
commerc:al arcraft passengers a year

Under our contract with the Virginia Department
of Transportation we are integrating and
operating the State's five transportation
operation centres Serco has responsitylity

for managing the services of the Safety Service
Patrol Operations, Transportation Operations
Cendres, Floor Operations and ITS Maintenance,
overseaing 57,000 miles of roadway

Through a new Department of Health and
Human Services contract Serco supports the
US Federal Government's newly created health
beneflit exchanges We manage over 3,500 staff,
who provide the routing, processing, reviewing
and troubleshooting of applications Sefco also
designed and mplemented the technology
infrastructure and workflow management
systerm that support this work

In Canada. we provide driver examination
services at approximately 100 locations across
Ontanc and provide complete base operations
services, Including faciities maintenance,

fire protection, and arr traffic control, at the
Canadian Arr Force base in Goose Bay

Americas — 2013 review

Adjusted revenue from ongoing activities

on areported currency basis grew by 1%

1o £765m (2012 £753m) and represented
15% of the Group (2012 16%) On a constant
currency basis before the effect of a marginal
strengthening of the average US dollar

rate organic growth held steady Adjusted
operating profit from ongoing activiies

grew by 7% on a reported currency basis

10 £58 8Bm (2012 £55 2m), with the margin
increasing to 7 7% (2012 7 3%)

Challenging condiions have continued for
US federal contractors During 2013, both 1he
Department of Defense and civillen agencies
had to implement automatic spending cuts
known as ‘sequestration’ Failure to reach

From left
Serco delvers all nen military senaces at the
Goose Bay Canadian Armed Forces Base

We provide personnel and career transition support
1o US soldiers and their tamilics
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From left
We oversee driver knowledge and road lests across
Ontano Canada

Serco produces deployable medical systems for
global disaster relief operations

N
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a budget agreemenit resulted in a US Federal
Government shutdown lasting several weeks
In October Additionally, 'small business set
asides’ have restncted our ability to compete
as the pnme contractor in some cases,

and government emphasis on lowest price
solutions versus best value has remained

a significant pressure

In the third year of a US federal contracting
market reducing in size, Serco's performance
of helding organic revenue steady was a good
outcome Growth was achieved in the second
half of the year through the start of major new
contracts for the United States Depariment

of Health and Human Services’ Centers for
Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) and
Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT)
The increase in margin includes the benefit of
higher margin project work performed dunng
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the year, further ¢ost reducton actvity and
a leverage effect of returning back 1o growth
in the second half of 2013

Reflecting a significant development 1n our
stralegy to broaden the Amencas porifolo,
Serco was awarded & major new contract

by CMS Since July 2013, Serco has been
providing processing support for applications
submitied for enrolment into a Qualfied
Health Plan and for nsurance affordability
programmes The contract had an inmal
one-year base perod valued at approximately
US$115m with four one-year optiens, with a
potential total contract value of approximately
US$1 25bn, including alt option penods and
oplional tasks Following a modification to the
contract, the value has increased to US$202m
In the first year Serco has set up four facilites
and hired over 3,000 staff and subcontractors,
who are processing paper applications and
working with consumers seeking healthcare
caverage through the federally-faciiated
marketplace Future operational levels will be
dependent on funding and poalicy development
of the Affordable Care Act, which legislated
for the development of the services Serco

15 supporting

Serco was awarded a new contract for the
VDOT, with this further significant portiolio
development bullding on the skills and
capabilibes that we deliver in other parts of the
Group around the world Serco 1S Integrating
and operating VDQOT's transportation operaticns

centres, managing the Safety Service Patrol,
and implementing a state-wide advanced
traffic management system that oversees
57,000 miles of rcadway The contract has

a six-year base period valued at US$355m
and three two-year option periods Also in the
transportation market, Serco successfully rebnd
its Briver Examination Services contract for the
Ontaric Ministry of Transportation in Canada
Serco 1s providing these vital services as

pant of a ten-year partnership, with estimated
ravenue io Serco of approximately C$500m
over the contract term Serco ts responsible for
overseeing approxmately 575,000 knowledge
tests and 675,000 road tests annually, at 95
testing centres across Ontario, and the new
contract 1 expanded to include upgrading and
enhancing nformation technology solutions

Existing Sea Enterpnse and HRsolutions 1D1Q
frameworks generated wins modifications and
extensions worth US$139m dunng the year
This includes integrating and upgrading IT
systemns for the US Navy and human resource
services for the US Army Task orders valued

at US$22m were awarded under the Aliant IDIQ,
through which Serco provides a full range of
integrated information technology solutions {0
federal civilan agencies and the Department

of Defense Serco s the sole provider on the
C4I2TSR IDIQ, which supports the US Air Force
Space Command's command and control
systems, with this generating task orders
valued at US$25m in 2013 Serco also provides
systems engineenng and technical assistance

From leit
We process documents to assist US consumers
seeking federally faciitated healthcare coverage

Serco utilses logistics supply oparations to keep
US Navy assetls mission-capable
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In Virginia, Serco operates transportation operation centres,
manages the road-side Salety Service Patrol and 1s developing
a single advanced, stateside solution that oversees 57,000

miles of roadway

to the US intelligence community, and signed
a five-year extension to one of its contracts
valued al approximately US$40m

Americas - future developments

The 2014 finanoal year wili be impacted by

the ending of certain areas of work for the US
Federal Retirement Thrifi Invesiment Board

the Department of Veteran Affars and the US
Army Together, these contracts have previously
accounted for around 8% of dvisional revenue
and a greater proportion of profits The level of
higher margin project work expenenced in 2013
15 not expected 10 repeat The annualisation

of the CMS and VDOT new coriract awards
should substantially offset the revenue impact

Over the next two years significant Serco contracts
that requwe extending or rebidding include

@& IT support services for a US inteligence
agency, where the existing contracts expire
at vanous points in 2014 and revenue (in
2013 was approximately 9% of the Amerncas
division

#® Coniracts for the US Department of
Homeland Secunty supporting the United
States Ciizenship and Immigration Services
where the contracts are due to expire In
Naovember and December 2014 and revenue
In 2013 was approximately 5% of the
Amernicas division

@ Support to the Department of State's

National Visa Center and Kentucky Consular
Center where the contracts are now
expected o be extended to January 2015
and revenue N 2013 was approximately

5% of the Americas division

® C4I2TSR services for the US Air Force, where
the existing IDIQ contract vehicle 1s due to
expire tin 2014 and revenue In 2013 was
approximately 4% of the Americas division

Future growth within the federal government
senvices market wilt continue (0 be a challenge
in the short term While the US Federal
Government 1s funded through to September
2014, questions still remain on what the
overall impact will be on specific programmes
and coniracts In the longer term the market
remains attractive in size and growth

Foliowing the progress 1in 2013 in broadening
the Amerncas portfolio within sectors where
Serco has strong globat capabilities, we
continue 1o pursue opportunities in our
established core market segmenis which
include acguistion and programme
managemeni, delence readiness, aviation
and arr traffic management, C4I1SR,

cizen services, and facilites and asset
management We will pursue further growth
oppartunities in government health services
and other healthcare support and in suriace
transponation With this market segment
approach to growing the business, the
Amencas division has recently realigned its

orgamsational structure and adjusted growth
investment to support its strategy going torward

New bid opportunities that are expected to be
decided over the next two years include

® Asignificant number of task orders under
the Sea Enterpnise IDIQ, for US Navy
network services

@ Data capture, processing and document
management for the US Patent & Trademark
Otfice

@ Processing and case management
for the Department of State Passport
Suppon Services

® Expanded IT and support services for the
US inteligence community

® Management of staie transportation
operations centres

® Support to state-based exchanges for
health insurance

From left
Serco manages airport traffic control towers across
North America, to ensure the safely of our skies

We maintamn satelite communicaton systems for the
US Ar Force, to ensure data sharing around the world
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AMEAA consists of Australasia,
the Middle East, Asia and Africa,
where we provide services
including transport, justice,
immigration, health, defence
and cther direct services such
as faciities management
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in Australia, Serco offers systems integration
and complex project management, as a key
provider for the Australan Defence Force Our
manne arm, DMS Mantime, makes us one of
the couniry's largest marine services providers
Our work n justice and correchions focused
on reducing reoffending, was again publicly
recognised by further awards (in 2043 In health,
we have taken over responsibilty for Westemn
Australia's flagship Fiona Stanley hospital site
where we are \ntegrating faciities management
and support services We also provide medical
logistic services to the military We operate the
natienal network of immigration centres for

the Australian Department of Imrmigration and
Border Protection In transport our services
range from operating cusiomer services and
processing information to developing and
maintaning infrastructure Serco also owns
Great Southern Rail, which operates Australia’s
iconic frans, the Indian Pacific and the Ghan

In New Zealand, we manage Mt Eden
Corrections Faciity, which s currently the
country’s only pnvately operated prison, and are
part of the consortium which 18 bullding and will
operate the new pnson at Wi, South Auckiand,
under a public-private parinership

In Hong Kong, we are the market feader
N managng operating and mantaining
road tunnels, bridges and related tollway
infrastructure We provide domestic and
transportation services to two major hospitals,
and in 2013 we commenced our first contract

to provide road and parking faciliies
management services at the Hong Kong
Intermaticnal Airport

The Middie East is home to some of Serco's
longest standing ar traffic control contracts
We are afso the region’s largest international
operator in urban surface transport Most
notably, we cperate the Dubai Metro, the
world's longest and most-advanced drniverless
light ranl systemn Qur technology business
serves the {elecommunications, marnne and
biomedical sectors, and we provide integrated
facities management to the education and
commercral sectors

In India, Serco operates and maintains the
new Bus Rapid Transit System, in the city of
Indore in the state of Madhya Pradesh We
have implemented a pilot project for electronic
road toli collection with ICICI Bank, intended to
pave the way for a long-term parinership and
nationwide implementation

AMEAA - 2013 review

Adjusted revenue from ongoing activities on
a reporied currency basis grew by 15% to

£1 050m (2012 £883m), and represented
21% of the Group (2012 18%) On a constant
cutrency basis, before the effect of local
currency weakness against the average
sterling rate, growth was 22% Excluding the
contnbution from the pror vear's acquistion
of the remaiming 50% equity stake in DMS
Mantime, organic growth was 18% A significant

From left

Durning 2013 management of the Fiona Stanley hospital
site passed to Sorco By early 2015 we will be managing
more than 1 000 nen clinical staft at the hospital

Qur work in justice and corrections was again publicly
recognised by awards in Australia n 2013
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From left
Our portfolio of air traffic control contracts
includes Baghdad International Airport Iraq

We are one of Ausirala s fargest manne
senaces providers
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proportion of this was due to the volume of our
work providing immugration services in Australia,
with other iIncremental revenue coming from
growing cur transpor and health operations

in the wider AMEAA region

Adjusted operating proiil from ongoing activiies
grew by 28% on a reported currency basis

to £82 1m (2012 £64 3m), with the margin
increasing to 7 8% (2012 7 3%) The increased
margin reflects principally the beneficial effect of
operational leverage, particularly in imnugration
services, and other cost management activity
undertaken in the penod

In Immugration Services in Australia, a record
number of people arrived by boat without a
vaiid visa, over 20,000 indmiduals arrved i this
ranner in 2013 and the number of people In
our care averaged 7,400 This increased the
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volume of work carned out under centracts
Serco has for the management and operation of
the detention services and the related transport
arrangements This resulied in further growth

In revenue to over £450m for the Group in
2013, and the employment of more than 3,000
people across Australia Following significant
changes to government policies, the population
n our care declined to below 5,000 by the end
of February 2014 A six month extension (o

10 December 2014 was awarded for our main
contract for the detention centres

Inv justice services, operational improvements at

Mt Eden Corrections Facilty have continued to

be recognised A new performance grading of all
pnsens in New Zealand has placed Mt Eden in

the ‘exceeding’ category In Australia, Southern
Queensland Correctional Centre was henoured
with a prestigious Australian Business Award in the
Innovation category, recognising a ground-breaking
education project being tnalied at the prison, with
the ultimate aim of reducing recffending

Serco’s pre-operational support for the Fiona
Stanley hospital in Perth contnued 1o build over
2013 and management of the site transferred to
Serco in Becember The hospital 1s the largest
public terhary health facility in Western Australia
with Serco providing an extensive range of
faciites management and support services
The first patients will be admitted in October
2014 and by early 2015 Serco will be managing
mere than 1,000 non-clinical staff required o
operate the hosputal

Serco's presence in the health markes
elsewhere in the AMEAA region 1s developing
well Serco was awarded a new heallhcare
support services contract in the Middle East at
Healthpoint in Abu Dhabi Healthpoint is & fully
Integrated, primary care and multi-specialty
nospital, offering a wide range of cutpatient
and inpatient services In Hong Kong, where
we currently employ more than 600 people

in heakih-related businesses, we extended

our facilities management services contract,
covering four hospitals and one rehabibtation
centre in the western distncts

Also in Hong Keng, Serco was awarded a new
fransportation management, operatton and
mantenance contract for the Tsing Sha Control
Area, with a total estimated value to Serco

of HK$860m (approximately £80m) over the
six-year base penod Our extensive arr traffic
control services in the region while no langer
serving Abu Dhab, were strengthened with a
new 18-month, £24m contract for the Iraq Cwvl
Aviation Authorty and a new frarmework contract
for the Qatar Civil Aviation Authonty

During the year, Serco signed an exiension to
its contract with the Dubar Government Roads
and Transport Authonty (RTA) to operate and
mantain the Dubai Metro  Serco has continued
to deliver world class safety and operational
standards, Including 99 9% of trains on time
while also expanding rnidership to over 137
million journeys in 2013 The five-year extension
1§ valued at approximately £355m, with an

From left
Serco operates the Dubal Metro the world s longest
and most-advanced driverless light rail systemn

We manage Mt Eden Corrections Facility which s
currently New Zealand s only privately operated pnson
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At HMAS Watson in Sydney, Australia, we apply the highest
standards of engineering, software development and technical

skills to sunulator based mantime warfare traimng

opportunity to extend for a further two years to
2021 Also for the RTA, Serco signed a contract
for the new Duban Tramway valued at £18m
over five years Further extending our range of
services In the region, a six-year contract valued
at approximately £30m was awarded to provide
faciities management services in the United
Arah Emirates, and a contract for employrment
support and traning services was awarded in
the Kingdom ¢f Saudi Arabia

In defence services, Serco extended and
expanded its contract with the Austrahan
Detence Force (ADF) to provide logistics and
base support services in the Middle East
Valued at approximately £18m for a further
year, we continue to deliver fully integrated
support for ADF bases, to ensure the provision
of high-quality services in areas such as
maintenance and accommodation, and will
also assist through a complex programme

of demobilisation from Afghanistan We also
secured our first direct contract to provide
traimng services in the Middle East defence
market in the period

AMEAA - future developments

The 2014 hknancial year 1s expected to be
sigmiicantly impacted by reduced activity levels
for Serco's Immigration Services in Australia
Activity levels have proven unpredictable in

the past due to a number of factors, however
they have fallen following recent changes

In government policy and we estimate that

the contract could reduce by as much as

50% in 2014 As the Group's single largest
operation, accouniing for around 9% of Group
revenue and achieving a margin reflecting the
complexity of the services involved this is the
single largest factor underlying the Group s
anticipated reduction tn financial performance
tor 2014 Hawving secured an extension through
to December 2014, the operations are then
subject to relnd

Qver the next two years the only other
significant rebid in the AMEAA division relates
to our various Australian regional defence
garrison support services contracts, operated in
partnership with Sodexo These have accounted
for approximately 8% of revenue of the AMEAA
dwision, are due to expire in June 2014 and are
under evaluation currently

There remain significant market opportunities
to achieve further growth in the AMEAA region
These include the justice market in Australia
and New Zealand, non-chnical healthcare
support services across the region, defence
suppaort services, and transport operations
including the rait, bus and aviation sectors
Serco has strong skills and capabilities in
each of these operational areas within the
AMEAA region and the ability 1o leverage
referenceability from across the Group

New bid opportunities that are expected to be
decided over the next two years include

® Anew-build prison design, construct and
operale contract in Vicioria Australia with
Serco's SecurePathways consortium one
of two shortlisted

® Service operation of the Sydney North West
Rail Lnk, with Serco s TransForm consortium
one of two shortlisted for the proposed new
rapid transport system

® Operation and mantenance of public bus
services In Bahrain

& Oman ar navigation services
@ Traffic management services in Abu Dhaty

& Further support and operation of metrg
systems in the region, including the
Sydney Light Rail project, with Serco’s
SydneyConnect consortium one of three
shorthsted

@ Non-clirical support services to health
orgarisattions in the Middle East

From left
We operate and manage parking meters for
18 000 street parking spaces in Hong Kong

Serco owns Great Southern Rail which operates

Australia s iconic trains  the Indian Paciiic and
the Ghan
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Global Services brings together
our customer contact, middle
and back office skills, allowing

us to provide broad end-to-end
BPO services to public and
private sector customers

Our combination of our BPO
expertise and frontline services
sets us apart from other providers
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Global Services operates in more than 100
locations across 13 countries and employs

60 Q00 people Werldwide, we conduct more
than S0 million multi-channe! interactions n

20 languages each year, as well as 600 millon
calls and 60 millon back office transactions
Our widespread presence allows our customers
10 choose the onshore, nearshore or offshore
delivery location that best matches their skili
and cost requirements

We cffer three hines of service business
process cutsourcing (BPO) consulting anc
technology services Qur specialist teams
address customers' needs across functions,
including HR, finance and accounting,
procurement, customer services management
and consulting We provide advisory, design
and delivery expertise in the areas of cperations
strategy, transformation, programme delivery,
cutsourcing, people performance and selection,
change management and research We are also
experts In handiing large workforce transfers
and managing cenfidential data

Our solutions are industry-specific, for
customers in Banking & Financial Services,
Insurance, Retall, Travel, Telecoms, Utilities,
Healthcare and the public sector We build
customised solutions assisted by industry
experts, whether our customer 1s a bank looking
1o improve the quality of its mongage portfolio,
a city council with a need to transtorm its local
services or an arrline wanting to reduce its costs

Global Services - 2013 review

Adjusted revenue from ongoing activities on a
reported currency basis grew by 10% to £772m
(2012 £702m), and represented 15% of the
Group (2012 15%) On a constant currency
basis, before the effect of local currency
weakness against the average sterling rate,
growth was 12% Exciuding the comnbution
from the prior year s Vertex acquisition, orgarnic
growth was 5% Adusted operating profit from
ongaing operaticns on a reperted currency
basis declined by 35% to £39 9m (2012

£61 3m), with the margin dechning to 5 2%
(2012 87%) Including the mpact of disposals,
Adjusted revenue on a reported currency basis
increased by 8% to £772m (2012 £716m) and
Adjusted operating profit declined by 36% 1o
£39 9m (2012 £62 1m)

The major contract awards that began in the
second half of 2012, including Shop Direct and
AEGON UK, helped to drive strong revenue
growth in the first half of 2013 However,
performance weakened in the second half of
the year There was less success In winning
new contract awards, and there was a lower
level of UK Central Government discretionary
and ad hoc project work The significant margin
reduction reftected increased costs of contract
bidding and new market development actwity,
the reduced level of typically higher margin
project work and the transitional stage of the
major new contracts, which tend to involve
greater upfront investment

Globa! Services operates in more than 100 locations
and employs 60 000 people
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Worldwide Global Serices conducts more than
90 milton multi-channel interactions in 20 languages
each year
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In our first full year of providing all customer
contact services across Shop Direct's brands,
we have delivered our transformation plan

for the rationalisation of UK operations, the
delwery of new digital services from our
centre In Cardiff and the establishment of
oftshore and nearshore locations in India and
South Afnca This has included the transfer

of around 2 000 Shop Direct emiployees to
Serco, the introduction of three new sites and
the closure of twe legacy siies Similarly with
the transformation programme at AEGON UK,
dunng our first year of operation we have
successiutly transitoned over 300 staff

to Serco and have around 500 000 polices
under maragement

New contract awards n the year for private

sector customers included providing a range
of BPO services such as sales and payments
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collection for a further leading UK high sireet
retailer The adoption of an integrated contact
cenire approach saw Serco transition customer
services to our centre in Sheffield, as part of

a ten-year contract worth approximately

£50m Of particular iImportance are Serco's
capablilites in multi-channel contact, with
specific develepments for those customers
who are using tablet or mobile devices for therr
shopping and account management needs

Al the Anglra Support Partnership (ASP)
where we provide shared service support

to NHS organisations, we have continued to
see expanston of our platform and framework
contract A further contract was signed with a
large NHS hospital trust, to provide strategic
procurement and finance and accounting
services, Invalving the transfer of the trust's
systemns to the ASP shared service platform
The four-year confract 15 expected to generate
revenue of approximately £112m

Serco secured extensions in the year for

a number of UK Central Government BRPO
contracts valued at over £100m in total, with

an average extension penod of three years

The contracts include the provision of specialist
complex case management services for the
Child Maintenance Group at the Department for
Work & Pensions (DWP), managing enguires
on behalf of Jobcentre Plus and the Universities
& Colleges Admissions Service, supporting the
delvery of the Department of Health's 'Healthy
Start’ programme and operating the Food

Standards Agency s emergency helpline

For our Child Maintenance Group operations
Serco wen the 'Value for Money Award’ at

the DWP Supplier Excellence Awards 2013,
recognising our continuous Improvement
ethos and innovative appreaches to enhancing
customer experience, whilst driving down ¢osts
for the DWP

In our local authority strategic partnerships,

at Hertfordshire County Council wa continue
tc transform the way services are delivered
Expanded services have ncluded a pioneerning
new telecare service for adults in receipt of
social care With an initial value of £12m over
five years, there 15 potential for further growth
as the service 1s extended to provide wider
support At Thurrock, Serce has introduced

a new debt collection programme and

1§ providing additional ICT support, as part of
the council's wider transformation programme

In an importart development in our Middle
East operations, Serco was awarded a

new contract for shared services to over 50
government departments within the United
Arab Emirates Serco will initrally provide citizen
contact and issue resolution management
regarding the supply of public services, with
potential for the scope of the contract ta be
increased In the future to Include cther back
office precessing Contact will be delivered on
a unique multi-channe! basis, in¢luding voice,
email and web chat As per the agreement, the
contract will provide employment opportunity

We secured extensions for a number of UK Central
Government BPO contracts in 2013 valued at over
£100 million in total
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Serco 15 now the sole contact centre service provider for India’s

largest public sector bank

to only Middle Eastern nationals The inthial
four-year coniract 1s estimated to be valued
at approximately £24m

In India’s banking and financial services market,
Serco 1s now the sole contact centre service
provider for the country’s fargest public sector
bank For India's largest private sector bank,
additional work awarded has led to Serco now
suppoerting more than 75% of the collections
services and becoming the largest suppher
supporting card 1sseance on behalf of the bark
Expanding our support to the Indian public
sector, we were awarded a customer support
contract for energy services in the state of
Punjab Amongst other rebids and contracts
won, we successfully rebid a contract valued

at approximately £14m, supporting a leading
S credit bureau with customer services for
mortgage-related gueries

Our network of BPO delivery centres saw, dunng
2013, the cpening of our first centre in Cape
Town, South Africa, to service both international
and domestic customers The opening of our
centre in Teltow, Germany, 1S SUpRPOrUING Major
European customers such as Sky Deutschland
Meanwhile our workforce in Cardiff, where we
support multi-channel customer contact for

a number of well-known UK retall brands,

has almost doubled in size

Global Services - future developments
In the 2014 financial year, no significant attritton
18 anticipated from the ending of any individual
contracts Over the next two years there are also
no stgrificant contracts that require extending
or rebxdding There are, however, ongoing
pressures irom terms renegotiations with
existing customers, some reductions in actvity
levels as we move beyond the transition phases
on previous major contract starts and the need
to rebuild the pipeline, particularly after the
lower level of contract awards in the second
half of 2013, in part as a result of the UK
Government 1ssues

Serco has mponant capabilities 1o offer in the
attractive BPO market, with scale and depth to
provide private and public sector customers
with a range of end-to-end, integrated business
services, as they seek to reduce costs and
improve ethciencies by transforming then

operations In particular, Serco has strength
in offenng a blend of onshore, nearshore
and ofishore serice provision We also
have excellent capabilities in areas such

as multi-channel customer contact services

For the private sector, the Global Services
division has added to and expanded the scope
of existing customer relationships over time,
and sees further potential to continue growing
In thus manner in the future Referenceabilty ang
prospects are spread across large and diverse
industry groups Banking, Financial Services &
Insurance, Travel, Hospitality & Transportation,
Retall Healthcare Utilities & Manufactuning,
and Telecom, Technology, Online Services &
Media With significant presence to build from
:n the UK and india domestic markets, we are
also continuing to target opportunities in other
geographies

For the public sector, the Global Services
division 18 working alongside the regional
divisions in order to Bid and deliver fully
integrated solutions for ther customers The
dision provides bid support in areas relating
tc contact centre services, case management,
identity venfication, transaction processing,
{CT human resources and payroll, finance

and accounting, and any other rmiddle or back
office support function that 1s required Central
Government 1s expected to contmue (o develop
opporiunities for shared service centre support
UK strategic partnerships with iocal authoriies
1o transform their services should also further
develop as a market, with increasing potential
G outsource non-core supporting operations
Expanding existing local authoniy relationships
remans a key source of future growth,

as does {urther developing the ASP shared
service centre for the NHS and other

health organisations

Recognition of Serco's growing presence in the
BPC market continues 1o buld For example,
we have nsen Into the top three UK business
process services providers, as compiled by
leading software and IT services ndustry
research company TechMarketView, n its 2013
UK Software and IT Services Rankings report
In a separate recent repor regarding the
public sector, TechMarketView acknowledged
Serco s progress in transitioning from a pure T

outsourcer to a BPO player, using technology
to support innavation and transformation in
the front and back office We have also been
recognised as a top tier BPO service provider
by industry analysts and third party advisors
such as Gartner Everest NelsonHall and HFS

New bid opportunities that are expected to be
decided over the next two years include

® Eurcpean telecom operator customer
contact services and digitisation

@ Expanded existing and new operations for
lile and pensions companies

® Retal multi-channel customer management
services

® Linco!nshire County Council BPO support,
covering finance, HR, ICT and citizen contact

@ Further focal authority opportunities, coverng
similar services
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Overview

Revenue grew by 5 6% to £4,288 1rn and operating
profit, after exceptional items, was £143 8m (2012
£272 2m) Adjusted revenue from ongoing activiies
was £5,101 3m, a growth of 7 8% at constant
currency {5 9% organic) Adjusted operating profit
from ongoing activities was £285 4m, representing a
2 3% decline at constant currency Adjusted operating
margin on an ongoing basis reduced to 5 6%
compared to 6 3% In 2012, a decrease of 68 basis
points (59 basis points decrease at constant

For 2014, we are forecasting a mid-single

digit percentage organic revenue decline

This reflects the lower level of incremental work
won across the Group to date, the attrition from
contracts lost such as Electronic Monitoring,
and our latest assessment of the impact of
volume reductions In our Australian immigration
detention services coniract The Adjusted
operating margin is anticipated to decline by
approximately 50 to 100 basis points This takes
account of the margins assooated with the
revenue reductions, together with the ongoing
incremental costs of the agreed corporate
renewal programme Statulory operating profit
margins betfore exceptonal items are expected
to decline but at a lesser rate, reflecting the
lower levels of costs and charges expected

te be incurred in relation to the impact of the
UK Gavernment reviews, together with a lower
amount for amortisation of intangibles arising
on acguisition

Andrew Jenner
Group Chief Financial Officer
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currency) Adjusted profit before tax declined by

6 3% to £254 4m (3 6% decline at constant currency)
Group free cash flow was £84 8m, which reflected

a decrease on the prior year principally as a result

of working capital impacts of iming differences
between the penod when costs are incurred In

the delivery of the contract and the pertod when

we can contractually bill our customer, and

lower drvidends from joint veniures
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1 Income statement

The key lInes of Serco’s income statement for the year are summansed below and include analysis of revenue, operating profit, exceptional items,
profit before tax and earnings per share In the review of ithe business which follows the statutory resulis have been adjusted to reflect proportional
consolidation of the results of jont ventures, as these businesses form a fundamental part of the way the Group works to meel the demands of

iis customers

The tables show separately Adjusted revenue and Adjusted operating profit of ongoing actvities, which exclude the finaneial results of subsidianes
and operations disposed of dunng the year, in order to present more clearly the performance of the ongoing business Measures of Adpusted operating
profit, Adusted proiit before tax and Adjusted earrings per share are presented to assist the reader to understand the results of the underlying
business and reflect the measures used by seror management to assess the performance of the business Adjusted measures are also calculated
before amortisation of Intangibles ansing on acquisition, fransaction-related costs exceptional tems and management's estimate of other costs

and charges relating to the impact of the UK Government reviews

The pror year resulis have been restated following adoption of the revisions to 1AS 19 Employee Benefits and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, and also
to reflect the adjustment to pnor year acquisitions for prowisional acquisition accounting entnes The impact of these restatements is shown in note 4
to the financial statements and has reduced reported revenue by £852 9m, profit before tax by £20 9m and profit for the year by £4 9m

11 Revenue
2012 Change at
2013 {restated) constani
Year ended 31 December £m £m Change currency
Adjusted revenue — ongolng activitles 51013 47746 6 8% 7 8%
Adjusted revenue - disposed activities 426 138 4
Adjusted revenue 51439 49130 47% 57%
Less Share of joint venture revenue (895 B) 852 9)
Revenue 4,288 1 4060 1 56% 67%

Adjusted revenue from ongoing actmties grew by 6 8% to £5 101 3m (7 8% growth at constant currency) Organic revenue, which excludes currency
effects, acquismions and disposals, increased by § 9%, with the dnvers of ihis revenue performance discussed in the preceding Divisional Reviews
Revenue for the year was up 5 6% at £4,288 1m

12 Operating profit

2012 Change at

2013 {restated) constant

Year ended 31 December £m tm Change currency

Adjusted operating profit — ongoing activities 2854 2996 {4 7%) (2 3%)
Adjusted operating profit — disposed activities 66 145

Adjusted operating profit 2920 3141 (7 0%) {4 7%)
Amortisation of intangibles ansing on acquistion (21 4) {24 1)
Transaction-related costs @395 (37
Share of joint venture tax and interest (11 8) (147
Management estmaticn of charges related to UK Government reviews (21 0) -

Operating profit before exceptional tems 2343 2716 (13 7%} {11 2%)
Exceptional operating items {90 5) 06

Operating profit 143 8 2722 {47 1%) {44 6%)

Adjusted operatng margin — engoing actvities 5 58% 627% {68bps) {59bps}

Adjusted operating margin 5 68% 6 39% {71bps) {62bps})

Costs estmated and allocated by rmanagement as relating 1o the impact of UK Government reviews on the business are in addition to those identified
as exceptional tems on the face of the income stalement Included in this amount are onerous confract charges incurred in the penod on other Ministry
of Justice contracts, an estimation of the costs incurred on the Electronic Moritonng and Prisoner Escort & Custody Services (PECS) contracts relating
to supporting the review work, bid costs incurred on proposals where management believe the Cabinet Office reviews represented a significant reason
why the Group was unsuccessful, the effect of accelerated transition to a new service provider of the Electronic Monitoring contract and other specific
related costs

Adjusted operating profit from ongoing acivittes decreased by 4 7% to £285 4m (2 3% dechne at constant currency) This represents a margin of 5 6%,
which 1s a 68 basis point decrease compared wath the prior year Drivers of the margin performance are discussed in the Divisional Reviews Operating
profit before exceptional items in the year to 31 December 2013 was £234 3m (2012 €271 6m) and operating profit, after exceptional dems, was

£143 8m (2012 £272 2m}
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13 Reportable segments and ongoing activities

The table below shows the segmental results split between ongoing activities, being the part of the business which will continue into 2014,
and disposed activiies baing the part of the business which contributed to the 2013 and 2012 results but were disposed of during either year

Global

UK & Europe Americas AMEAA Services Corporate Total
Year ended 31 December 2013 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Adjusted segment revenue
Ongolng activities 2,514 3 7653 1,048 5 7722 - 5,101 3
Disposed activities 426 - - - - 426
Adjusted revenue 2,556 9 7653 1,049 5 7722 - 5,143 9
Adjusted operating profit
Ongoing actlvities 1507 588 821 399 {46 1} 2854
Disposed activities 66 - - - - 66
Adjusted operating profit 157 3 58 8 821 399 (46 1) 2020
Year ended 31 December 2012
Adjusted segment revenue
Ongoing activities 2,436 4 753 4 8830 7018 - 47746
Disposed activities 1247 - - 137 - 138 4
Adjusted revenue 25611 753 4 8830 71556 - 49130
Adjusted operating profit
Ongoing activities 163 4 552 643 613 (44 6} 299 6
Disposed activities 137 - - 08 - 145
Adjusted operating profit 1771 552 643 621 (44 6) 3141

14 Transaction-related costs

There were £3 5m of costs ansing from transactcn-related activity dunng the year (2012 £3 7m)

15 Management estimation of charges related to UK Government reviews

There were £21 0m (2012 £nil} of both costs estimated and allocated by management as relating to the impact of UK Government reviews on the
business These costs are in addition to those identified as exceptional items on the face of the Income statement Included in this amount are onerous
contract charges incurred in the penod on other Mimistry of Justice contracts (£6m} an estimation of the costs incurred on the Electroric Monitoning and
PECS conlracts relating to supporting the review work (£2m), bid costs incurred on proposals where management consider the Cabinet Cffice reviews
represented a significant reason why the Group was unsuccessful (£5m), the effect of accelerated transition 1o a new service provider of the Electronic

Monitonng contract and other specific related costs {£8m)

16 Exceptional operating profit tems

2013 2012
Year ended 31 December £m £m
Settlement relating to UK Government reviews {66 3) -
Costs associated with UK Government reviews (11 6) -
UK clinical health provisians (17 6) -
Restructunng costs (14 9) -
Asset impairment (9 6) -
Adjustment to deferred consideration relating to prior year acquisition 103 -
Charitable donation - 59
Gain on disposal of UK transport maintenance business 232 -
Loss on disposal of UK occupational health business (39) -
Loss on disposal of Ascot College 01 -
Gain on disposal of nuclear consulting services business - 576
Loss on disposal of German operation - (27 7)
Loss on disposal of UK data hosting operations - {11 5)
Loss on disposal of education software business - (12 8)
Net exceptional (costs)/income (90 5) 06
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Setilernent amounts relating to UK Government reviews

In December 2013, tcllowing a review of the billing arrangements on the Electroric Momitoning contract by the Mirustry of Justice, a setttement
of £64 3m was reached in respect of the contractual claim In addition, a £2 Om settlement was reached on the PECS contract which was also
subject to Government review, to reflect repayment of past profit earned on this contract

Costs associated with UK Government reviews
Since July 2013 there have been external adviser and other directly related incremental costs, including the exit costs of certain sentor management,
that amounted to £11 6m

Onerous UK chrical health provisions

Dunng the year we completed a comprehensive review of the chnical health operations in the UK As a result we will exit two coniracts early These
contracts, together with a third loss-making contract, require provisions for estimated losses mn future years together with a provision aganst underlying
assets, which in total amount to a non-cash exceptional charge of £17 6m This has been treated as exceptional due 1o the non-recurnng nature of the
charge and its significant value

Restructunng
As aresult of a renew of the cost structures in the UK businesses, a restructunng charge of £14 9m was taken and when complete will reduce
headcount by approximaiely 400, split equally between UK & Europe and Global Services

Asset impairment
As aresult of a review of under-performing businesses and operations, an imparment charge of £9 6m was taken in refation 1o the carrying value
of fixed assets in Great Southern Rallway, a rail tounsm business based in Australia, reflecting more challenging conditicns in that market

Adjustment 1o prior year acquisition
On assessment against earn-out crtena, an adjusiment was made to the accrual tor deferred consideration ansing on the 2011 Intelenet acquisition
of £10 3m

Exceplional net profit on disposal of subsidianes and operatrons
On 27 November 2013 the Group disposed of is UK transport maintenance and technology business for consideration of £44 8m, which resulted
In a gan of £23 2m The disposal on 4 Oclober 2013 of the occupational health business resulted in a loss of £3 9m

17 Exceptional other gamn

2013 2012
Year ended 31 December £€m £m
Gan on step acquisiton accounting of jont venture - 511

The excepltional other gain in 2012 represents the non-cash gan ansing from the step acquisition accounting of the DMS Joint venture where the onginal
50% shareholding was restated to far value

18 Netfinance costs

2012 Change ai

2013 (restated) consiant

Year ended 31 December £m £m Change currency

Adjusted net finance costs (37 6) {42 5) {11 5%) (11 8%}
Less Share of joint venture net interest costs 04 03

Net finance costs (37 2) 42 2) {11 8%} {12 1%)

Adjusted net finance costs decreased €4 9m to £37 6m (2012 £42 5m} The prnincipal reason for this was the non-recurrence of additicnal costs in the
pnior year relating to re-financing the revolving credit facility
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19 Profit before tax

2012 Change at

2013 {restated) constant

Year ended 31 December £m m Change Gurrericy

Ad)usted profit before tax 2544 2716 (€ 3%) {36%)
Amortisation of Intangibles ansing on acquisition (21 4) (24 1)
Transaction-related costs (35) (37
Share of jont venture tax (114) (14 4)
Management estimation of charges related (o UK Government reviews 210) -

Profit before tax and before exceptional items 1971 229 4 (14 1%) (11 1%)
Exceptional Hems (90 5) 517

Profit before tax 106 6 2811 (62 1%) {59 7%}

Adjusted profit before tax decreased by 6 3% to £254 4m (3 6% decraase at constant currency) Profit before tax and before exceptional tems was
14 1% lower than the pricr year, with the reduction fellowing the decrease in operating profits as descnbed above Profit before tax was £106 6m,
a reduction of 62 1% on the prior year

110 Tax
2012 Change at
2013 (restated) constant
Year ended 31 December £m £m Change currency
Adjusted tax (611) {66 9) 87% 6 0%
Tax on amontisation of intangibles ansing on acquisition 55 54
Tax on fransaction-related costs - 05
Share of joint venture tax 114 144
Tax on management estimate of charges related te UK Government reviews 42 -
Tax betore exceptional items {40 0) (46 €) 14 2% 10 5%
Tax on exceptional tems 288 656
Tax (112) (40 1) 721% 68 2%
Adjusted effective tax rate 24 0% 24 6%

The Adjusted effective tax rate was 24 0% (2012 24 6%) The mavement reflects changes in the mix of taxable profits in diferent unisdictions and the
reduction in the UK headline tax rate from 24% to 23% from 1 Apnl 2013

1 11 Earnings per share (EPS)

2012 Change at

2013 {restated) constant

Year ended 31 December Pence Pence Change currency

Adjusted earnings per share (basic) 3953 4155 (4 9%) (2 1%}
Amortisation of intangibles ansing on acquisition (3 25) (381)
Transaction-related costs (072) {0 69)
Management estimate of charges refated to UK Government reviews (343) -

Earnings per share before exceptional items (basic) 3213 3709 (13 2%) (10 5%)
Exceptional tems (12 62) 1185

Earnlngs per share (basic) 18 51 48 04 (B0 1%) (58 0%)

Adjusted EPS declined by 4 9% to 39 53p (2 1% decline excluding currency effects) EPS before exceptional tems declined by 13 4% to 32 13p,
while EPS declined 60 1% to 19 51p EPS and Adjusted EPS are calculated on a basic weighted average share base of 489 Om (2012 491 2m)

2 Dividend

2013 2012
Year ended 31 December Pence Pence Change
Dvidend per share 10 55p 10 10p 4 5%

The Board has proposed a final dwvidend for 2013 held at 7 45p, bninging the total dvidend for the year to 10 55p which I1s an increase of 4 5%

This reflects our ongoing transition to a higher payout ratic Based on Adjusted basic earnings per share of 39 53p the dividend represents a payout
of 27% (2012 24%), or dividend cover of 3 75x (2012 4 11x) The Board set out in 2013 the intention 1o move to dividend cover of 2 5-3x over time,
beyond which pamnt it would expect 1o revert to increasing the total dividend each year in ine with the increase in underlying earnings The final
dividend will be paid, subject to shareholder approval, on 14 May 2014 to shareholders on the register on 14 March 2014
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3 Cash flow
The Group generated a free cash inflow of £84 Bm {2012 £181 2m), the decrease ansing princtpally as a result of incremental working capital and lower
dwidends from joint ventures

2012
2013 (restatad)
Year ended 31 December £m £m
Adjusted operating profit excluding joint ventures 2331 2369
Non cash itemns 530 560
Adjusted EBITDA excluding joint ventures 286 1 2929
Warling capital movement (144 0) (47 2)
Adjusted operating cash flow excluding joint ventures 1421 2457
Interest (382) (44 6)
Tax (18 8) (33 6)
Net expenditure on tangible and intangible assets* (51 8) (66 9)
Dividends from joint ventures 515 806
Free cash flow 848 812
Acguisition of subsidianes net of cash acquired (18.6) (141 8)
Disposal of subsichanes and operations net of cash disposed 406 1310
Transaction-related costs {2 8) (39}
Purchase of own shares and ssue proceeds of share capital (14 9) (10 3}
Financing** 732 {152 0}
Management estimation of charges related (0 UK Government reviews 22) -
Other exceptional lems*** 837 (50)
Special pension contribution (197 -
Dmwidends paid (51 5) (41 9)
Group net decrease In cash and cash equivalents (18) 427
Adjustment io Include joint venture cash impacts (56) {4 5)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents betfore exchange loss (74) (47 2)
Exchange loss {15 9) 80
Net decrease Iin cash and cash equivalents {23 3) {56 2)
Notes

"

Net expenditure on tangible and intangible assets excludes assets funded under finance lease arrangements

** Financing 15 stated net of directly rembursed capital expendiure

*** Exceptional items include an amount of £22m due 1o the UK Government that was satishied through a net settlement in refation to receipts on billed amounts
due from the same custormer

31 Adjusted operating cash flow excluding joint ventures
Ad)usted operating cash flow excluding joint ventures was £142 1m (2012 £245 7m)

The movement in working capital of €144 0m (2012 £47 2m) prncipally refates to tming differences between the peniod when costs are incuired in the
delivery oi the contract and the penod when we can contractually bill our customer Examples of this include Shop Direct where we have undertaken
transitton serices In the first two years of the contract which may only be billed and recaovered from the customer over a longer penod Defence
Marine Services (DMS) in Austraha, where there has been significant vessel maintenance in the year, with recovery spread over a longer penod and
Fiona Stanley Hosprital, where there has been spend related to the start of the contract which will be billed and recovered i a later period There have
additionally been outflows from the decline in the accelerated payment cycle trom some of our customers in 2013 and delays to receipts from certain
customers in AMEAA

32 Interest
Net interest paid decreased to £38 2m (2012 £44 6m), pnncipally due to the payment in 2012 of £5 6m of facility fees relating to the refinancing of the
revolving credit facility

33 Tax
Tax paid was £18 8m {2012 £33 6m) Cash tax remans below the equivalent charge in the ncome statement, principally as a result of the availabulity
of accelerated capiial allowances and other tming differences, together with the impact of tax relief on exceptional tems pnimarnly in the UK

34 Net expenditure on tangible and intangible assets
Net expenditure on tangible and intangible assets was £51 8m (2012 £66 9m) This represents 1 2% of revenue {2012 1 6%)

35 Dwvdends from joint ventures

Dividends recerved from joint ventures totalled £51 5m (2012 £80 6m), with the dechine reflecting lower profits from joint ventures and from the impact
of the former DMS joint venture, which became a wholly owned subsidiary in late 2012
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36 Purchase of own shares and 1ssue proceeds of share capital

The net £14 9m cash outflow in the year related to a £16 Om outflow (2012 £16 O0m) for the Employea Share Ownearship Trust (ESOT) in erder to
satisty options granted under the Group s share option schemes and £1 1m (2012 £5 7m) of proceeds from the issue of share capital and exercise
of share options

37 Financing
The inflow from financing of £73 2m (2012 outflow of £152 0m) 1s primarly due to additional private placements laken out In the year Further details
on sources of funding are included in section 8 below

38 Management estimation of charges related to UK Government reviews
There was cash spend of £9 2m (2012 nil) in relation to management’s estiration of the charges related to the UK Government reviews

39 Other exceptional tems

There was spend of £83 7m (2012 £5 0m) in relation to other exceptional items This sncluded the agreed setilement paid on 23 December 2013 {0
the UK Central Government of £66 3m, together with related VAT of £5 8m in relation to the Electronic Monnionng and PECS contracts There was also
£11 6m of spend n relation to restructuring and the direct costs associated with the UK reviews

3 10 Special pension contributicns

The special pension contnbutions of £19 Ym relate to a £16 8m payment to fund the deficit on the Vertex pension fund, prior to its transfer into 1he
Group's largest defined benefit scheme, Serco Pension and Life Assurance Scheme (SPLAS), and £2 9m in relation to deficit recovery funding of the
Walsall defined benefit pension scheme The Verlex payment enabled its separate defined benefit scheme to be closed and thereby reduces ongoing
administration costs

3 11 Reconciliation of free cash flow

The table below reconciles the net cash from operating activities in the consolidated cash flow staterment 1o the free cash flow at the beginning
of section 3 of the Finance Review

2013 2012
Year ended 31 December £m £m
Cperating activities
Net cash inflow from operating activities befere cash spend on special pension contribution and cther excepticnal items 1113 2258
Investing activities
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from investing activities 142 {40)
Less Increase in secunty deposits 02 -
Less Proceeds on disposal of subsidianes and operations (40 6) (1310
Less Acquisition of subsidianes, net of cash acquired 186 1418
Financing activities
Interest paid (40 8} 47 1) ;
|
|
Management estimation of charges related to UK Government reviews 92 - |
Transaction-related costs 28 39
Drrectly reimbursed capital expendilure and other financing items 99 83)
Free cash flow 848 1812
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4 Acquisitions

Deferred consideration payments in relation 1o acquisiions totalled £18 6m (2012 £141 8m} This represented £11 9rm in relation to the acquisiion

of Intelenet and £6 7m i relation to the acquisiion of The Listening Company

5 Disposals

The table below shows the net cash proceeds from the disposal of businesses and operations, reflecting the cash proceeds less any cash and cash

equivalents disposed and disposal costs paid in the year

2013 2012
Yaar ended 31 Dacember £m £m
UK transport maintenance and technology business 40 2 -
UK occupational health business 22 -
Ascot College 07 -
Nuclear consulting services business - 1298
German operation - {35)
Education software business - 47
UK data hosting operations (disposal cash costs) (2 5} -
Net cash proceeds 406 1310
6 Net debt
2013 2012
At 31 December £m £m
Group — cash and cash equivalents 1251 1428
Group - loans (782 2) (699 5)
Group - obligations under finance leases (68 0) (50 2)
Group recourse net debt (725 1) {606 9}
Group non-recourse debt (20 3) (25 1)
Net debt (745 a) {632 0)

Adjusted net debt, which includes the proporticnal share of joint veniure net cash of £44 2m, 15 £701 2m (2012 £580 7m} A reconcihation of net debl

Is present In section 6 3 below

61 Group recourse net debt

Group recourse net debt increased by £118 2m to £725 1m (2012 £606 9m) Sources of funding are described in section 8 below

Cash and cash equivalents include encumbered cash of £10 2m (2012 £7 5m} This 1s cash relating to customer advance payments

62 Group non-recourse debt

The Group's debt 1s non-recourse if no Group company other than the relevant borrower has an obligation to repay the debt under a guarantee or other
arrangement The debt s excluded from all of our credit agreements and other covenant calculations and therefore has no impact on the Group's

ability to borrow

Group non-recourse debt decreased by £4 8m to £20 3m The decrease 1s mainly due to the final repayment of debt on our Driver Examination Services

contract in Canada
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6 3 Reconciliation of free cash flow to recourse net debt

The tables below reconcile free cash flow at the beginning of section 3 of the Finance Review to the movement in Group recourse net debt and net debt

2012 2012
Year ended 31 December £m £m
Free cash flow 848 1812
Acquisition of subsichanes net of cash acquired (186) (1418)
Disposal of subsidianes and operations net of cash disposed 40 6 1310
Transaction-related costs (28) 39
Purchase of own shares and ssue proceeds of share capital (14 9) (10 3)
New loans on acquisition of subsidianes - {15 2}
Repayment of non-recourse loans (102) 87
New and acquired finance leases (330) 26 1)
Management estimation of charges related to UK Government reviews 92 -
Other exceptional items (837) (50)
Special pension contnbution (19 7) -
Dwidends paid (515) (419
Cther financing items including foreign exchange - 36
Movement In Group recourse net debt (118 2) 629
Recourse net debt at 1 January {606 9) (669 8)
Recourse net debt at 31 December {7251) (6086 9)
2013 2012
Year ended 31 December £m £m
Repayment of non-recourse loans 102 87
Non-recourse locan advances 53) (18 4
Foreign exchange 01) 01
Movement in non-recourse debt 48 {9 6)
Non-recourse debt at 1 January {25 1) (15 5)
Non-recourse debt at 31 December (20 3} (25 1)
2013 2m2
Year ended 31 December £m £m
Movement in total net debt {113 4) 533
Net debt at 1 January (632 0} (685 3)
Net debt at 31 December (745 4) (632 0)

7 Pensions

The Group 1s a sponsor of a number of defined benefit schemes and defined contribution schemes At 31 December 2013, the net retirement benefit
asset included in the balance sheet ansing from our defined henefit pension scheme obligations was £42 7m (2012 £26 1m) The pension scheme

asset base 1s £1 4bn

Defined benefit pension schemes

2012

2013 {restated)

At 31 December £m £m
Group schemes - non contract specific 584 455

Contract specific schemes (55) {13 8)
Net retrement benefit asset 529 N7
Intangible assets ansing from nghts to operate franchises and contracts 10 32

Deterred tax habiities (11 2) (88)
Net balance sheet asset 427 261
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Serco has two main types of scheme which are accounted for as defined beneiit pension schemes Each type has its own accounting treatment
under IFRS These are

® Non contract specific - schemes which do not relate to speoific confracts or franchises For these schemes we charge the actuanal gain or loss for
the penod to the consolidated statement of comprehensive Income (the SOCH), and

& Contract specific — schemes relating to spectfic contracts or franchises, where the deficit will pass back to the customer or on to the next contractor
at the end of the contract For these schemes, we charge the actuanal gain or loss on our share of the defiat for the penod to the SOCI, recognise
a recoverable intangible asset on the balance sheet at the start of the contract or iranchise and amortise the intangible asset to the income slatement
over the contract or franchise life Serco has imited commercial risk in relation to the canifract specific schemes because the deficit will, in general,
pass back to the customer or on to the next contractor at the end of the contract

Amangst our non contract specific schemes the largest s the Serco Pension and Life Assurance Scheme (SPLAS) At 31 December 2013, SPLAS had
a surplus of £64 2m (31 December 2012 surplus of £69 7m) This is calculated under IAS 19 Revised using market-derived rates at 31 December 2013
It therefore reflects the eftect of the market conditions on investment returns in the period

The estimated actuarial deficit of SPLAS, calculated using prudent Trustee assumptions, as at 31 December 2013 was approxmately £13m
(2012 £11m} The value calculated in the latest tnennial review was a deficit of £24m a1t 5 Apnl 2012 We continue 10 review the level of henefits
and contributions under the scheme In the hght of our business needs and changes (o pension legislalion

8 Treasury
The Group has a five-year mulh currency revohang credit facility of £730m (31 December 2012 £730m) This five-year mulhi-currency revolving credit
faciity, which was signed on 28 March 2012, matures in March 2017 As at 31 December 2013 £175m had been drawn (31 December 2012 £178m)

In addition io the bank facility, Serco has US private placements totalling £575m (31 December 2012 £461m) which will be repaid between 2014 ana
2024, with £23m matuning in 2014 This includes $240 Om of new notes 1ssued In May 2013

The above facilities are unsecured and have financial and non-financial covenants and obligations typical of these arrangements The princpal financial
covenants (as defined) require leverage not to exceed 3 5 tmes EBITDA and EBITDA to cover interest at |least 3 0 times As at 31 December 2013 these
ratios were 2 3 imes and 8 8 imes respeciively

9. Going concern

In erder to satisty ourselves that we have adequate resources for the fulure, the Cirectors have reviewed the Group's committed funding and hguidity
positions, and our ability to generate cash from trading activiies The Directors have also reviewed our strategy and the principal nsks we face
Whilst the current economic environment continues to contain uncertaniies, our revenues are largely dernved from long-termn contracts and our
contract portiolio 1s of sufficient diversity that a downturn in any particular market sector or gecgraphy has a diluted effect on the Group as a whole

The Group's principal funcing 1s through a revolving credit faciity and US private placements As at 31 December 2013, the Group had £1,305m of
committed credit facilities and headroom of £555m The revolving credit facility matures in March 2017 whilst repayments of the US private placermenis
oceur between 2014 and 2024, with a scheduled repayment of £23m in August 2014 The Group lully expects to meet these repayments through
operaticnal cash flows

Based on the information set out above, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group will be able to operate within
the level of avallable facilities and cash for the loreseeable future and accordingly believe that it 15 appropnate to prepare the finanoial staternents on
a going concem basis

Andrew Jenner
Group Chief Financial Officer
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Corporate responsibility

The 1ssues we faced in the second
half of 2013 have only served to
reinforce our view that for Serco

to be successful and sustainable,
we have to work in the nght

way This means living up to our
responsibilities to our customers,
the public, our employees,
partners, suppliers, communities
and the environment

Being a responsible business
means ensurnng that we

e always do the nght thing

e are open and transparent with
our customers, our people and
the societies we serve

e delver on cur commitments
and comply with the law

e engage with and motivate
our people

e act safely and with respect for
the environment and those with
whom we work

e minimise business risks

e achieve approprate financial
returns, and

e develop and safeguard our
reputation and brand
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By being responsible, we will enhance our
financial performance and create sustainable
value for our shareholders The imporance
of corporate responsibility (CR) means that
we have built it Into the way we operate,
embedding 1t In all aspects of the Serco
Management System (SMS) The SMS
defines the rules that govern the way we
behave, operate and deliver our stralegy

It encompasses a set of Group-wide policies
and standards, covenng subjects ranging from
health, safety and the environment {HSE} to
procurement and supply chain Duning 2014,
we will further develop the SMS, including
our values and code of conduct as part of
our corporate renewal programme  More
information on the key components of the
programme can be found on page 60

The way we manage our responsibilities and our
performance n the year are summarised below
We also publish a futler CR repert online, which
1s available at www cr2013-serco com

Managing corporate responsibility
Our CR framework encompasses our

peaple, health and safety, communtties, the
environment, our marketplace which covers
our relationships with our customers, suppliers
and other parties, and our commiiment to
ethics and business conduct

The Serco Group plc Board has ulimate
responsibility for our Group busiress strategy
and therefore approves our Group CR strategy
One of our non-executive directors 1s the Board
sponsor for CR and charrs the CR Committee

In Cclober 2013, we announced that we
would establish a Board committee for CR,

to take oversight of our approach 1o ethics,
the struciure of governance, nsk management
and HSE matters This committee, which met
for the first time in February 2014, will meet
quarterly to receive formal progress reports
against each element of the CR framework
More information on the CR Commutiee can
be found in the Corporate Governance Report
on page 81

The Chief Executive 1s a member of the
CR Committee and 1s responsible for
promoting the Group's CR strategy and

its eifectve implementation across the Group
The Executive Committee 1s responsible for
implementing our Group CR ob)jectives

Our people need to feel confident that there

15 somebody they can turn 10 dis¢uss potental
ethucal conflicts that may anse dunng bidding
or when iransiioning or operating contracts,
so the matter can be discussed openly and we
can 1ake authontative decisions Towards the
end of 2013, we therefare appointed an ethical
lead in each dvision, who will be answerable
to a dmsional ethics committee, which has
now been established

Developing our CR strategy
Each element of CR has its own strategy,
which we develop as follows

® The Group HR Director sponsors our people
strategy, which is developed through the
Global HR Directors Forum The forum
includes divisional HR directors and other
senior corporale function members

@ The Group Drrector of Risk and Acquisitions
sponsors our HSE strategy This 1s based
an our dvisional strategres and the Group's
evolving HSE nsk profile The HSE Oversight
Group 1s made up of senior corporate
function members and divisional HSE leads
It agrees the HSE strategy before submiting
it to the Group Risk Management and Safety
Committee (GRMSC) The GRMSC reviews
the HSE strategy and monitors performance
al its quarnterly meetings The charr of the
GRMSC reports and presents the HSE
strategy to the Executive Committee

® Our communtty strategy 1s developed
through a CR Oversight Group The
Executive Committee then reviews and
maontors our community strategy

@ Serco operates across many countries,
Jjunsdictions and cultures, so we adopt a
flexible approach to the marketplace This
includes actively engaging our stakeholders,
50 we can take account of ther views when we
make decisions This process 1s embedded in
our overall business strategy

Serco s one of the UK s top 100 employers
of apprentices
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® The Director of Business Compliance and
Ethics has responsibility for the Group's Code
of Conduct Our Code and matters pertaining
to our ethical position will be reviewed and
monitored by the CR Committee We are clear
on the ethical standards we expect from all
employees and this 1s communicated through
the Code which all employees recewve This
15 supported by traimng on the Code for all
employees As pan of the corporate renewal
programme, we have refreshed our Code,
which will be relaunched in 2014

® Each dwvision has a CR strategy, which is
owned by the dwvisional CEQ and monitared
by the divisional board Our contracts
develop CR intiatives that fit ther dwvisional
strategies, ther business and their local
communites The contract director s
responsible for delivering these intiatives

® Our CR acivities also reflect our people’s
passionate involvement in local causes,
which often involve them volunteenng to
raise money or provide direct help

People

We depend on our people’s skills and
commitment to deliver the services our
customners expect QOur people contribute
directly to cur reputation and ability to grow

QOur human resources activiies are designed

tc create a robust and sustainable organisation,
which can operate effectively in a complex
environment Te do this, we follow a clear
people strategy, as described in the strategy
section on page 11

For 2013, we set the following objectives
n relaton to our people

Objective 1 To continue to develop
leaders who are fit for the future by
embedding the talent review and
succession planning process across
a wider proportion of our
management population

Durning the year, we embedded cur talent
management processes around the Group
and focused on consistently improving them
We are now linking these processes to our

wider leadership agenda This has seen us
carry out a significant plece of work with our
leaders arocund the world, te deternine what
we expect from leaders in Serco

This work has allowed us to create a new
leadership madel, which we will roll out in 2014
Our am 15 1e identity people who bave the
desire and capability to be leaders at all levels
n the organisation and to help them fulfil their
potential Whether people are nterested in
developing ther skills, managing a small group
or taking on wider responsibilites, the model
will enable them to understand what capabilities
they need to develop and demeonstrate, so they
can progress to the next level of leadership

It will also help to communicate and embed
our values throughout the organisation

Objective 2 To improve our overall
employee engagement levels by
focusing on the top engagement
drnivers across Serco

£ach year, we undertake a global employee
survey calfed Viewpomnt This gives us important
insights Into how we can improve the working
expenence at Serco In 2013, we achieved a
response rate of 82% The survey showed that
overall levels of engagement dechned shightly
in the last 12 months, in part refltecting the
specific challenges Serco faced in 2013
However, it also identified a generally positive
corporate culture, with most employess feeling
they have good working relationships with
cclleagues, that their contract provides a

hugh level of customer service and that Serco
values diversity

The results analysis also identiies the drivers
that will most improve engagement if we take
action To optimise engagement, we therefore
need to fecus on what we do with the survey
results In 2014, the Executive Team will be
senior sponsors of employee engagement and
personally commit to three actions These are

1 Engaging the leaclership team Leadership
engagement Is critica’ to the business
and mproving the overall engagement
of employees QOur actions will nclude
focus groups with the leadership team
i all regions, ‘hstening sessions' with the

Chuef Executive and Executive Commitice,
and akgning engagement and leadership
development

2 Bringing te Iie the strategic narrative for
Serco For employees, feeling parl of Serco
1 the top dnver to improve in this year s
results To close the gap, we need to clanfy
the role Serco plays in supporting great
service delwvery, io enable our people to
realise their service vocation This effort will
be hnked to other elements of corporate
renewal, such as our review of our values
and our new leadership model It will include
a broader range of communication channels
and greater recognition of best practice and
indwvidual achievements

3 Developing employee engagement as
a strategic prionty To meet our strategic
objectives, we need to focus on engaging
our people and using engagement data as a
predictive iIndicator of ethics and compliance
nsks We will create a set of global employee
wellbeing principles, with resources for
all regions, and centinue our focus on
performance-related processes, such as
setting objectives and reviews

Dunng the year, we also continued to support
Engage for Success, an independent and
voluntary group of leaders, managers, trade
unicrists, engagement practitioners and
experts, who all want to highlight the importance
of employee engagement

Objective 3 To continue to implement

MyHR - our single HR programme and
common core processes — throughout
the business

MyHR provides a range of self-service tocls

for both managers and employees It gives
managers better visibility and controt of their
team information, the ability to carry out people
management actvities onkne, and access

to reparts to support planning and decision
making The system also makes HR processes
easler for empioyees for example by allowing
them to maintain therr persenal information or
book annual leave online

We depend on our people s skills and commitment
to delver the services our customers expect

53



Serco Group ple | Annual report and accounts 2013
Strategic Report

Corporate responsibility

Continued

Implementation has taken place across a
complex global environment which presented
us with & number of techrnical and organisational
challenges We resclved these in the first half of
the year and put in place iImproved processes
for dealing with 1ssues as they emerge

We continued to develop the system during

the year, including better forms and trairuing
managers In using MyHR Online and our pecple
management processes We now intend to
move lo the next stage of development, adding
mere functionalty to MyHR to include learming,
reward and performance management It witl
also help us to deploy traning and compliance
programmes to all cur people, for example
around our Cade of Conduct

Cunng the year we transferred HR processing
for our Middle East business to our fransaction
centre In Delh

2014 objectives
Cur people objectives for 2014 are to

@ 1ol out our new leadership model

® contnue to bulld on best practices
In engagement, and

add new functionality to MyHR and use
the system to improve our efficiency

Diversity

Serco 15 an inherently diverse business
However, we still need to promote diversity and
ensure that all cur employees are able {0 be
successiul and happy at work, regardless of
their background We therefore have a global
civersity strategy, based on a set of globa!
principlas, details of which can be found on
our website, www Serce com
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At 31 Decembser 2013, the numbers of men and women emploved by Serco were as follows

Number Percentage
Male Female Male Female
Directors 5 1 83 3% 16 7%
Senior managers 56 8 87 5% 125%
Employees™ 77 780 41,020 B85 5% 34 5%

* At 31 December 2013, we had 120 535 employees of which we had gender information on 118 830

Cn 3 March 2014 we announced the
appointment of three new non-executive
directors At the date of this report we therefore
had nine directors of whom three are female

Human nghts

Respecting human nghts i1s an important
principle for us but 1t 1s not a significant 1ssue
for our business

We recognise and apply the pnnciples in

the Universal Declaration on Human Rights
Our Governance, Conduct and Ethics policy
requires us o respect the human nights and
digrmity of indwiduals and to not take part in, or
benefit from, any actity that breaks any taw
relating to human nghits or that supports or
encourages the abuse of human nghis We also
have a human nghts decision tree’, which we
use to assess the potential human nghts 1ssues
associated with contracts for which we are
thinking of bndding

Health and safety

Gur asprration 1$ zero harm Nothing is so urgent
or important that we cannot do It safely A strong
HSE performance ensures the safety of our
people and protects our reputation Wherever they
work and whatever ther role, our people must
adhere to siringent health and safety procedures
These procedures are embedded in the SMS and
are the rinimum standards that apply

Serco operates in a number of heavily
regulated, safety-cntical areas, which places
stnngent requirements upon us We have the
systems in place to deliver these requirements,
as reflected in tha regulatory approvals and
licences we operate under This also means
that we have regular regulatory oversight
Together, thase factors give us a strong
controls framework for managing cur HSE
responsibilities

For 2013, we set the health and safety
objectives below Definitions of these metrics
are contaned 1in cur CR report

Objective 1 A lost time incident (LTI)
rate of 573 per 100,000 emplcyees,
representing a 5% reduction against the
2012 baseline

The LTl rate fell from 611 in 2012 to 505 in 2013,
a reduction of 17% All our divisions improved
therr performance dunng the year

Slips, tnps, falls and manual handiing are

the biggest contnbutors 1o LTls so we have
implemented risk reduction intiatives, including
staff awareness and training

More specifically, the UK & Eurcpe division took
a nsk based approach to safety critical areas,
with initatives including improved governance

Nothing 15 s0 urgent of smportant that we cannot do
it safely and we have a strong controls framework for
managing our HSE responsibilities
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to prowvide oversight and challenge, consisteni
processes and toolsets across the division,
and a core curnculum of online safety traming
Qur Americas division tock prompt action

to address a spike in LTIs in its Engineening
business unit, with a focus on inury prevention
awareness

We also made organisational changes across
AMEAA, (o create a single HSE delivery function
supported by a centre of excellence that directs
policy, systems, processes and reporting
Global Services identified fatigue as the root
cause of some incidents at the start of the

year We i1ssued global guidance on fahgue nsk
assessment and management to all dwsions

Objective 2 A major reportable incident
rate of 57 per 100,000 employees,
representing a 15% reduction agamnst
the 2012 baseline

The number of major reportable incidents

fell by 45% to 33.1n 2013, resulting in a rate
of 33 4 per 100,000 employees This was
well below our target of 57 and the UK Health
and Salety Executive Total Service Industnes
benchmark of 81 5

One third of the major reportable incidents
related to road traffic incidents in Global
Services towards the beginning of 2013, which
were addressed through the global guidance
on fatigue discussed above AMEAA has seen
a signiicant reduction in major incidents as

a result of our safety iInimatives over ihe last

18 months We also closely monitored mayor
reportable incidents in our UK & Europe
division, resulting in a continued reduction

In the incident rate throughout 2013

Objective 3 A physical assault rate
of 528 per 100,000 employees,
representing a 15% reduction against
the 2012 baseline

No employee should be subjecied to either
physical or verbal abuse The physical assault
rate fell by 23% to 482 in 2013, beating our
target by 9%

The nsk of physical assault 1s highest in our
UK & Europe and AMEAA divisions, reflecting

the nature of some of ther contracts incfuding
prsons and immugration work AMEAA has
recduced the potential for assaults through
controls such as nteligence reports and
survellance, training our people in de-escalation
and situaticnal response, and a viclence
reduction strategy i our New Zealand justice
and corections business UK & Europe has
continued to raise awareness of reporting
requirements and liaised with national HSE
groups which focus on this topic We continue
to review and mplement specific control
measures across the contracts

2014 ohjectives
For 2014, we have set the following health
and safety targets

® an 8 5% reducton in the LTI rate to 462

® to sustain a major reportable incident rate
under 40, and

® a4 6% reduction in the physical assault
rate to 460

Community

Our communities are prmarly the people who
live and work around our contracts but our
definition extends to include the third-sector
organisations we pariner with, to deliver

a number of our contracts

Working with communilies conirnbutes directly
to our business success |t helps to enhance
our reputation and build trust with our customers
and the public, by demonstrating that Serco 1s
a values-led organisation Engaging alsc gives
us a better understanding of communities
needs, which can help us to win bids and

to operate existing contracts successfully,
particularly where we are delivenng services
directly 10 the public

For 2013, we set the following objectives

Objective 1 To continue 10 Invest 1% of
Adjusted pre-tax profits into wider society

We invested £2 575,029 into society,

through donations of maney, assels and time
This represented 1% of our Adjusted profit
before tax

The chart below shows the actvities that made
up this total

Objective 2 To promote and support
the Serco Foundation

2013 marked Serco's 25th anniversary as

a listed company In preparation for this
milestone, we had establshed the Serco
Foundation in the UK dunng the previous year

Qur employees voted for “children” to be the
Foundation's cause for fundraising support

tn response, the Foundation created the global
“Every Child, Everywhere" inihative, a three-year
commitment based on a behef that children
everywhere deserve the best possible start

n Ife

Durning the year, the Foundation engaged
our people and our commun:ties to support
ning chiid-related chanties around the
world Some incredible ndmdual and team
achievements raised more than £400,000
for the chosen charities

Working with our communities contnbutes directly |
10 our business success and gives us a better ,
understanding of therr needs
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Objective 3 To use the Serco25
campaign to encourage our people
to raise money for chanties

We wanted Serco25 to enable our employees
io make a difference in our local communities,
encouraging them to take part In numerous
fundraising and other community events dunng
2013 These ranged from ultramarathons to
volunteenng days to helping communities
affected by natural disasters

To showcase ther efforls, we created a
dedicated website so our pecple could see
what their colleagues arcund the werld were
doing The site had 220,000 visits 14,444
registrations and more than one million
page views

As part of the Serco25 campaign, our people
not only raised over £400,000 for our nine
child-related charities, but also rarsed more
than £200,000 for other chantes of therr

own choice

2014 objectives
For 2014, we have set the following community
objeclives

® 1o continue to invest 1% of Adjusted pre-tax
profits into wider society

® to promote and suppor the Serco
Foundation and

@ 1o recognise exceptional contributions made

by our people to the communities in which
they live and work
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Environment

Serco's aspiration for zero harm applies as
much 1o tha environment as it does to health
and safety It makes good business sense to
protect our reputation and reduce our energy
consumption and environmental impact Our
environmental policy 1s also driven by the desire
to do what 18 nght for the world we live in

Although Serco’s activiies are typically
managed al a local level, we are united 1n our
strategy of measuring cur impact and reducing
our emvircnmental footprint This supports many
intatives in our operations around the world
We also have contracts that help our customers
to improve their environmental performance

For example Serco provides envirzonmental
services to UK local authonties which help our
customers to reduce the volumes of waste sent
to landfil sites

For 2013 we set the following environmental
objectives

Objective 1 To reduce our carbon
emissions headcount intensity rate by
3% to 1,967 tonnes of CO, equivalent
{CO,e) per 1,000 employees

During the year we changed the basis on
which we calgulate our carbon emissions, n
crder 1o meet the UK's new regulations on
greenhouse gas reporing We adopted [SC
14064-1 2012 - Spectfication with guidance
at the organisation level for quantification and
reporting of greenhouse gas emissions and
removals which resulted in us collecting a far
more comprehensive data set across all our
operations globally

The profile of our business has also changed
For example, 2013 included a full year of the
Northhink Fernes contract which we took over In
July 2012, and DMS Manbme, which we took full
ownership of towards the end of 2012 This had
a significant Impact on our emissions, as these
two operatons make up areund one fifth of the
Group's tolal

As a result of these factors, our emissions
performance for 2013 of 4 04 tonnes of COe
per full ime equivalent (FTE) I1s not comparable

to previous years We will therefore use 2013
as the baseline for future reporting

We have calculated our emissions using a
matenalty threshold of 5% meaning we are
confident that our emissions are within 5% of

the total stated These calculations have been
venfied by Carbon Credentials, an independent
sustainability services provider More information
on our greenhouse gas emissiong can be found
on pages 58 to 89 We have also published a
detaded basis of reperting’ document on our
website www serco com

We continue to contribute to the Carbon
Disclosure Project In 2013, Serco achieved
a score of 82% (18th equal in the FTSE
350) placing us intc the Carben Disclosure
Leadership Index

Objective 2 Zero environmental
prosecutions, fines and enforcement
notices from our activities

We once again receved no environmental
prosecutions, fines and enforcement notices

2014 objectives
For 2014, we have set the following
environmental targets

® [ mprove the matenality threshold of our
greenhouse gas emissions reporting for
all divisions to 5%

@ 1o reduce cur carbon enissions intensity
{tonnes of CO,e per FTE) by 3% and

@ {0 agree targets for dvisional environmental
nitratives, $0 we can monitor therr impact

Marketplace

Customers

Developing and improving long-term
relationships with our customers 1s central

to our business The events of the |ast year
have demonstrated that being clear and
transparent with our customers 1s fundamental
to maintaining trusting relationships While day-
to-day responsibility for meeting our customers'
needs hes with our contract directors, our

2013 marked Serco s 25th annversary as a hsted
company and we used our Serco2b campaign

1o enable our people to make a difference n

Qur communities
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corporale renewal plan aims o increase the
irequency and transparency of our customer
engagement This will help to ensure we identify
and respond promptly 1o therr concerns We are
also placing customer satisfaction at the core
of our management reporting and incentive
struciures, so we are fully focused on ensuring
our customers receive the high-guality services
they deserve from us

We will maintain relationships at all levels with
our cuslomers so Ihey are aware of how we
can help them and we can anticipate ther
changing needs These relationships he with
our dsional and Group leaders

Our reputatign with our existing customers (s
also wital to our success and to our prospects
of future growth Many factors influence cur
reputabion, ncluding

@ the qualty of our service

@ the trust of our cusiomers

@ our values and service ethos
& our capacity 1o innovate, and

@ our engagement with our employees and other
stakeholders, such as iocal communities

Suppliers

Effective procurement helps us to achieve

our vision and deliver high-quality service to
customers We aim to be professional in all

our dealings with suppliers and to establish
mutually benehicsal relationships We have a
Procurement and Supply Chan function, which
15 responsible for putting this approach into
practice Each dwvision has its own ded:cated
procurement business partner embedded within
the divisional management team

Qur businesses have many comrmon
purchasing needs which we strive to fulfil with
preferred suppliers, enabling us to achieve
better terms and condittons and make the
most of our scale

Serco works with thousands of small and
medium-sized {SME} suppliers and we
continue to Improve our inferaction with them
Our Small Business Adwsory Body n the UK
1s made up of representatives of SMEs from
across the business The Body guides us

on our communications with and support to
SMEs in the US, we have a supplier mentor
programme, which prowides guidance to small
busnesses on key matters such as growng
therr businesses and creating budgets

In June 2013, we launched a supplier code
of conduct This sets out the principles and
standards we expect from these we work
with to ensure we aperate not just legally,
but ethically and fauly

Joint venture partners

Serco has many joint ventures with commerciat
pantners and customers Strong relationships,
based on mutual trust and respect and clanty
of roles are essential ingredients 1f a joint
verture s to deliver excellent customer service

Qur dwisional managemeni teams are
responsible for relationships with our joint
venture parners, supported by members of
the Group Executive Commitiee and Board

as appropnate This Includes helding regular
slrategy and review meetings with our partners

Strategic partners

We often deliver services as part of a
consortium either as prime contractor or as a
subcontractor This allows us to bnng together
companies with the skills to meet the precise
requirements of a tid

Our values and the open and honest way

n which we work also make us an attractive
partner for voluntary sector organisations,

who often lack the scale and expenence to
access major governmeni programmes
Responsibility for refationships with our sirategic
partners lies with the relevant contract and
disional management

Serco provides environmental services to UK local
authonties whuch help our customers to reduce the
volumes ol waste sent to landfill
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Greenhouse gas emissions

This section includes our
mandatory reporting of
greenhouse gas emissions,

as required by Section 7

of the Companies Act 2006
(Strategic Report and Directors’
Report} Regulations 2013

("the Regulations™)

Reporting year

Qur reporing year for greenhouse gas emissions
18 one quarter behind our financial year, namely
1 October 2012 to 30 September 2013 We have
established this reporting year 1o ensure that the
emissions iInformation we obtain from supplier
IVvoICes 1S complete

Global greenhouse gas
emissions data

For the penod 1 October 2012 to
30 September 2043
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Emissions from

Tonnes of COe

Combustion of fuel and operation of facilities 187 217

Electneity heat steam and cooling purchased

for our own use 211 302

- Emissions reported above, normalised

to tonnes of CO,e per FTE 404

Reporting boundary and responsibility
We report cur emissions data using an
operational control approach to defining our
organisational boundary This follows the
greenhouse gas protocol and defines how we
mee! the Regulations' requirements in respect
of the emissions we are responsible for

We have reported all matenal emissicn sources
for which we consider ourselves responsible
and have set our matenalty threshold at 5%
These sources align with where we consider
we have operaticnal control

We do not have responsibility for any emission
sources thal are beyond our operational
control For example, business travel other
than by vehicles under cur control (iIncluding,
for example, commercial ar travel) 1s not within
our operational control and, therelore, 1s not
considered to be our direct responsiblity

We anticipate reporting accurate and venfied
scope 3 emissions data in the 2013-14 report

Methodology

Serco quantifies and reporis to 1ISQ 14064-1
2012 We have used the Department for
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA)
2013 conversion factors within our reporting
methodology We have also opted to use
operational control as the consolidation
approach, due to the nature of our business,
with employees who are often on customer
sites where no operational control 1s possible
As this approach 18 inconsistent with the
financial statements we have descrbed the
classtfication of reporting boundanes in detail
in our Basis of Reporting document, whichis
avallable on our website, www serco com

In some cases, we have estmated emissions
based on similar taciites This 1s done, for
exarmple, where our staff work on leased
premises but have no access 1o actual
consumption figures In other cases, we have
extrapolated total emissions by using availlable
nformation from part of the reporting penod and
extending it 1o apply to the full reporting year
This has occurred where some information was
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not recorded at the start of the reporting pencd
and before the regulations came inte force

The sum of all estimated emissions 1s below
3 15% of our global emissions, so we consider
the potential error 1o be immaternal

Scope of reported emisslons
We have reported emissions data for our
operations in the following countries

Division Country

AMEAA Australia
Bahrain
Hong Kong
India

New Zealand
UAE

USA
Canada

Americas

Australa
India
{reland
UK

Gilobal Serices

UK & Europe UK

The emissions that have not been included in

this year's report relate to refrnigerant gases from
arr conditioning and refrigeration outside the

UK After analysis, we believe these emisstons

are immatenal However we are implementing
processes lo capture such data for future reporting

For countres where we have very imited
operations, such as Dybout, Dominican
Republic and Virgin Islands, where we have
fewer than ten employees, or where our

staff work m facihties where we do not have
operational control, we have underiaken a
maieriality assessment and consider that the
related emissions are not matenal Emissions
from these operations are therefore excluded
from our reported emissions

While we have used a matenalty threshold of
5%, we have reported emissions for a number
of sites that fali below this threshold

Intensity ratio

To express our annual reported emissions in
relation to the scale of our activities, we have
used full ime equivalents (FTE) as our intensity
ratio This 1s the most relevant indication of

our growih and provides the best comparative
measure over time

Emissions reported have been normalised to
4 04 tonnes CO,e per FTE

Baseline

The data for 2012-13 forms the baseline for
subsequent penods Although Serce has
previously reported on emissions, 1t 1S not
appropriate to use these reporis as baseline
years due to the differing methodologies used

Reducing carbon and waste

Across more than two thirds of our business,
we are working on our customers' premises
and are therefore not in direct control of the
environment n which we operate That 15 why
collaborative working with our customers

on environmental 1ssues 1s iImportant Serco
recogmises !ts responsibility to ensure that any
adverse impact on the environment 1s reduced,
or where possible, elminated by applying

the most approprate management systems

at contract level — whether designed by our
customers or by us

Where we are not in control of the working
environment, we support our custorers in
applying their own environmental management
systems and objectives

initiatives and progress

In line with our energy and envronmental
management targets, we have implemented a
number of ntatives and made sokd progress
Examples of current inthiatives include

® Infroducing enhanced monthly reporting for
dmsional executive ieams, to drive operational
performance improvement across the business,
in ine with global and dmsional targets

® Developing a Strategic Energy Improvernent
Plan for 2014, which aims 1o reduce carbon
emissions at our largest facilites This approach |
1s enhanced across our wider portfolio of
facinies by real-time montonng and tactical
interventions where electnaity and gas !
consumption is outside defined parameters ,

® Developing a comprehensive employee
engagement programme for 2014 This
programme aims to ensure all employees
are fully aware of theirr environmental
responsibidities and the role they play in
supporting the delivery of our energy and
environmental management largets

Our 2013 Strategic Report irom page 2 to page 59, has been reviewed and approved

by the Board of Directors on 3 March 2014

M’b/

Alastarr Lyons CBE
Chairman
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Corporate Governance Report

Chairman’'s Letter
Dear Shareholder

At Serco, we are commitied to achieving high standards of corporate governance, integrity and business ethics in all our actwviies around the world
Governance 1S not an exercise In comphance nor 1s (it a specific form of management For Serca, our framewark of governance 1s how we ensure the
best interests of all our stakeholders — our customers, our employees, our shareholders, and the sociebes and communities of which we are a part -
are uppermost In all our minds as we go about our business, and that where these interests are not drrectly aligned, we make decisions on the basis
of what 1s nght this 15 an essential part of cur public service ethos Dunng 2013, we found ourselves challenged &t the heart of the way 1n which we
do business A number of individuals were found to be acting outside our values as epitermised by our Governing Principles and our framework of
governance had nol identified sufficiently clearly the root causes that had allowed this to happen This challenged the trust in which we are held by
our customers, our employees, and society al large In response, the Company has designed and implemented a comprehensive programme
of corperate renewal to ensure we respond appropriately to these root causes and put in place the actions, systems and processes to deliver stronger,
more effective governance, organisational change and operational resilience across the Group

In the following pages, we describe what we are doing in this programme of corporate renewal, and outhne the work of the Board and the governance
framework we have designed to meet the current needs of our businesses around the world We also explain how we have applied the Main Principles
of the UK Corporate Governance Code n the financial year To illustrate how our governance arrangements work in practice we have redesigned this
Corporate Governance Report around the key elements of the Board's role leadership, effectiveness, accountability and engaging with shareholders

Board focus
In my Charrman’s Statement | speak about the independent reviews of our culiure and systems that we commissioned last year to understand the roct
causes of the 1ssues that had ansen It was these reviews that informed the design of our programme of corporate renewal, the key components of which
are as follows

@ Commitment by our leadership throughout the business to do what 1s nght’ by always dealing with customers fairly and placing this abave any other
conflicting drivers for success

® Rewvising Serco s Code of Conduct, Values Statement and Governing Principles, backed up by training, induction and performance management

® Strengthening contract level governance, including improved contract bid processes to ensure appropriate levels of operatienal resource and the
delivery of sustanable performance

@ Enhancing transparency and access, with robust reporting of operational and financial contract KPls, and greater engagement of customers
at contract and departmenital level

® Creating a separate dwvsion for our UK Central Government work to achieve both fecus and openness for Government as a collective customer

@ Developing our management system to include more prescrniptve guidance on reguired operational processes and procedures, supported by
strengthened risk management and internal audit processes and capabilities

® Appainting three additional Board Non-Executive Directors, one of whom will chair a new Corporate Responsibility Commuittee to formalise the process
of guidance and decision making on ethical 1ssues — more detail of this new Commitiee can be found on page B1

& Establishing formal Ethics Committees and Ethics Otficers in each division accomparnied by the redesign of our whistle-blowing process te the highest
internaticnal standards, and

& Measuring the progress of attitudinal change throughout the organisation with ongoing independent culture and ethics reviews

Qur Board established a Committee of the Board (the Board Oversight Committee) to oversee the programme The various reviews and audis undertaken
by the UK Government were completed dunng the year and found no further evidence of wrongdoing or malpractice Lord Gold was appointed as an
independent third-party member of this Commitiee The full and effective implementation of this programme 15 fundamental to our future success as a
company that seeks to work in partnership with its customers around the world delivering services to taxpayers It 15 management's top priority something
that will be appropriatety reflected in the structure of management incentivisation | am pleased to say that tc date they are ¢on plan 10 achieve ther vanous
milestones and that the plan to implement this programme has received a positive assessment by the Government Qversight Group, with the input of
the independent advisers appointed by the UK Government whe will continue to monitor the Company s implementation aganst the agreed milestones

Going forward through 'eadership, training and guidance, and appropnate incentivisation, we will change the balance of drivers within our business
such that the commitment to do what 1s night and to deal with our customers farrly and transparently always transcends that sustained dnve to succeed
This will be supported by the nght management structures and centrols and best-in-class Ines of assurance te ensuwre that through early identification
of nsks and 1ssues and therr swift resolution we never again compromise on our values and ethics

In summary, this plan seeks o ensure that never again does someocne amongst our 120,000 people do the wrong thing because they do not want
to fall 1o meet therr commercial objectives And if they do the wrong thing, we will have the controls in place to make sure the problem 1s 1dentified
at an early stage acted on and the lessons learned

Despite the exceptional events of last year that required my and my colleagues’ absolute focus and that dominated our agenda for the second half
of 2013, the Board has continued s programme of meeting local management with the Board conducting some of its meetings at cperational sites
A number of Board members also undertock tours of international sites to deepen Non-Executive Directors’ understanding of the day to day activities
of the business
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Board skills and diversity

After 10 years semce, Dawvid Richardson stood down from the Board at the Company’s Annual Geneial Meeting held on 15 May 2013 We are grateful to
Dawid for his contrnbution o the Company as both Senior Independent Director and Charman of the Audit Committee Malcoim Wyman who joined the
Board 1n January 2013 succeeded David in these roles Malcolm's significant financiat and :nternational business expenence makes him well placed to
make a strong contribution

In last year's repori, | outhned our approach to Board diversity wath particular reference to the Lord Davies of Abersoch’s report "Women on Boards,' and
emphasised our commitment to boardroom diversity, of which gender 1s one of several aspects We also stated an am 1o achieve appropnate diversity
across all elerments of Serco s management | am delighted that since | last wrote to you 1In addition 1o Malcolm, we have secured the services of three
new Non-Executive Directors, who bring a broad range of skills and experience to complement our current Board and of whom two are female Each has
a great track-record in therr particular field of expertise and will add much to the debate around our board table More information on al members of the
Board can be found on pages 62 to 64

With these appointments, a third of the Board 1s female but these are all non-executive members | believe there1s an increasing recognition that the real
1ssue 1s not Board composition but the balance of women in senior executive positions 1t 1s this that will provide the opportunity for talented women to
become directors, both execulive and non-executive, and It 1s here that, in my view, we should be focusing Within Serco we are, therefore, maintaining our
focus on dversity across our management team At present, 12 5% of our senior managers are female and we will be seeking to increase this over ime

Leadership and effectiveness

As you can see from the above there was considerable change dunng 2013 to our company and our Board With the appointments announced
today around half our directors will be new duning 2014 Gwven this extent of change dunng, and the exceptional events of last year which in turn
caused Board actity that was abnormal both in quantum and nature, | decided that it would not be constructive to undertake our normal annual internal
review of Board effectiveness | have menticned above the reviews that we undertook dunng 2013 into our culiure and systems of control These extended
to the Board and the Board discussed their findings which in turn has resulted in changes to our governance framework, including cur Board composition

M-b/

Alastanr Lyons CBE
Chairman

Compliance statement

Thicughoui the financial year ended 31 December 2013 Serco Group plc complied fully with all retevant prowisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code {the Code)
wilh the exceptien of membership of the Audit Committee as explained i the Audit Commitiee Report on pages 75 to 79 and undertaking a formal internal review of
the effectiveness of the Board, its committees and indimdual members in accordance with Code B 6 1 The Code can be found on the Financial Reporting Council s
website at frc org uk
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Meet the Board

Alastair Lyons CBE (60)
Role Chairman

Appointment Alastar was apponted a Non-Executive
Duector ot Serco Group plc n March 2010, becoming
Chatrman at the conclusion of the Company s AGM

n May 2010

Responsibilities Alastar s responsibla for the effective
operahon of the Board and oversight of corporate
governance Heis Charr of the Nomination Commitiee

Expenence In his executive career Alastar was
Group Finance Director and subsequently Chief
Executive of the National & Provincial Bullding Society
When the soctety was acqused in 1996 by Abbey
Natenal, he joined the Abbey National main Board

as Managing Director of its Insurance Division In 1997
he became Chief Executive of the pensions specialist

NPl where he led its demutualisation and acquisition

by AMP subsequent to which he joined NatWestin

1999 as Director of Corporate Projects A chartered
accountant with an MA mn econemics frem Trmity College
Cambridge, Alastarr has been a nen-executive director
ol, successively the Department for Work & Pensiens
and the Department for Transport

External appointments Alastar has been Chairman of
Admiral Group ple, the direct motor insurer since 2000
In 2008 he was appointed deputy Chaiman of Bovis
Homes Group PLC, one of the UK s leading quoted
house-builders In February 2011 he was appointed
Charrman of the Towergate Insurance Group He retired
in October 2013 from the role of Sanior Independent
Director and Audit Charr at the Phoenix Group

Edward J Casey, Jr (55)
Role Acting Group Chief Executive

Appomiment Ed was appointed 1o the Board of Serco
Group plc in October 2013

Responsibiliies Ed is responsible for the formation
and implementation of the Group s global strategy

as well as the day-to-day management of the business
operations and our relationships with the City and other
key stakeholders He prowvides leadership to the Group
and represents Serco to major custorners, shareholders
and industry orgamisations Ed 1s a member of the
Nomination Committee

Experience Ed has beenwith the Company since 2005
and until recentty was CEC of our Amencas dwvision

He 13 alse part of the Executive Commitiee Under

Ed s leadership the Amencas business tnpled in size
with USS$1 2bn of revenue and now has over 10 000
employees Ed was responsible for the integration of

Sl International and RCIL two major acquisiions of the
Company Prio: to this he spent a decade on Wall Street
and a decade in the energy sector

External appotntments None

Andrew Mark Jenner {45)
Role Group Chief Financial Officer
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Appointment Andrew was appointed Group Chiet
Financial Otficer in May 2002

Responsibitiies Andrew s responsible lor the Group's
financial strategy and management incluging reporting
farecasting, treasury 1ax and governance He shares
responsiility with the Chiel Executive tor our refationship
with shareholders and the City

Experience Andrew a chartered accountant joined
Serco in 1996 as Group Financial Controller having
previousty worked for Unifever and Deloitte & Touche
LLP He became Corporate Finance Director with
addional responsibility for treasury actvities in 1999
before jning the Board in 2002

External appointments Andrew (s a non-executive
director of Galliford Try plc one of the UK's ieading
construction and house-building groups and 1s Charr
of its Audit Commitiaeg
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Mike Clasper (60}
Role Non-Executive Director

Appointment Mike joined Serco as a Non-Executive External appointments Mike 1s currently Chairman ot
Direcior in March 2014 Coats ple and Which? Limited and 1s & nonrexecuine
director of Guinness Peat Group plc Mike has also been
Responstilities Mike s @ member of the Corporate apponted President Elect of the Chartered Management
Responsibility Audil and Nomnation Committees Instiute (CMI) where he will succeed the current

President in Oclober 2014
Experience Mike was previously the Group Chief
Executive of BAA plc from 2003 to 2006 and Charman
of Her Majesty s Revenue and Customs from 2008
10 2012 Mike was previously the Senor Independent
Drector 8t ITV PLC from which he stepped down on
31 December 2013 after eight years on the [TV Board

Ralph D Crosby, Jr (66)
Role Non-Executive Director

Appainiment Ralph joined Serco as a Non-Executive the Graduate instiiute of International Studies

Director 1n June 2011 Switzerland, and a BSc from the United States Military
Academy at West Point, NY

Expenence Ralph was Chairman of EADS North

America until his retirement from that posibon a1 the External appomntments Ralph s a non-executive
end of December 2011 He joined EADS 1in 2002 as director of Amencan Electne Power Co Inc and Arrbus
Chairman andg Chief Executive Officer of EADS North Group NV

Amenca and also served as a member of the EADS
global Executive Committee until 2010 Previousty
Ralph held numerous pesitions with Northrop Grumman
Corporation concluding over 20 years of service as
President of thenr Integrated Systems sector Prior io

his industry career Ralph served as an Officer in the

US Army Ralph has an MA In Public Admimistration
frem Harvard an MAOn International Relahons from

Tamara Ingram (53)
Role Non-Executive Director

Appointment Tamara eined Serco as a Non-Executive External appointments Tamara 1s Executive Vice

Dwector in March 2014 President at WPP where she 15 Managing Director
at Grey Group and CEOQ, Team P&G

Responsibilites Tamara 1s a member of the Corporate

Responsibilty and Remuneration Committees

Expenence Tamara is currently a Truslee of Save
the Children (UK} In 2013 she stepped down atter
completing rine years as @ non-executive directos of
The Sage Group plc Previously Tamara charred the
Board of Visit London (formerly the London Tounst
Board) from 2001 to 2011

Rachel Lomax {68}
Role Non-Executive Director

Appaointment Rachel joined Seico as a Non-Executive External appointments Rachel 1s currently a non-

Dwector in March 2014 executrve director of HSBC Holdings plc where she 1s
also Chair of the Conduct & Values Committee Rachel

Responsibilities Rachel 1s Charr of the Corporate ts also a nor-executive duwector at The Scotlish American

Responsibility Commities and a member of the Investment Company PLC and Heathrow Arporn

Audit Committee Holdings Limited

Experience Rachel was Deputy Governor of the Bank

of England from 2003 to 2008 and has been Permanent
Secretary at both the Depaniment for Transpori and the
Department for Work and Penstons
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Meet the Board

Angte Risley (55)
Role Non-Executive Director

Appointment Angle joined Serce as a Non-Executve
Director in April 2011

Responsibilies Angie 1s Charr of the Remuneration
Commitiee and a member of the Audit and Nomination
Committees

Expenence As Group Human Resources Director of

J Sainsbury plc Angte serves on Sainsbury s Operating
Board and has responsibility for corporate retall and
logistics HR, for 150,000 colleagues

Previously Angie was Group Human Resources Drector
of Lioyds Banking Group ple, serang as a membar
of the Lloyds Banking Group Executive Commitlea

with responsibilty for developing group-wide people
pracuces Untl May 2007 she was an execulrve direcior
ol Whitbread PLC having joined the Whitbread Group
n 1989 She has also been a member of the Low Pay
Commussion, and a non-executive directar of Biffa plc
and Arnva plc

External appointments Angie s Group Human
Resources Director of J Sainsbury plc

Malcolm Wyman (67)
Role Non-Executive Director

Appomntment Malcokn jned Serco as a Non-Executive
Direclor in January 2013

Responsibiliies Malcolm 1s Serior Independent
Director and Chair of the Audit Committes

He 15 also a member of the Remuneration and
Nomination Committees

Expenence Malcolm was prewously an executive
director and the Chiet Finanecal Officer of SABMilter ple
untd hus retirement 1n July 2011 Malcolm oined SAB n
1986 and joined the board as Group Corporata Finance
Director in 1990 He was appointed to the board of
SABMiller upon 1its hsting on the London Stock Exchange
in 1999 He was Chiel Financial Officer from 2001 untl
his retrement in July 2011

External appotntments Mailcolm a chartered
accountant 1s a non-executive director and Audit
Commuttee Chatman of iImpenal Tobacco Group PLC
a norrexeculrve director of Tsogo Sun Holdings Limited
and Sencr Independent Director and Audit Committee
Chairman of Nedbhank Group Limited in South Afnca

Gender Diversity

Male 6
Female 3
Board Tenure

1 < One year 4
2 One and three years 3
3 » Three years 2
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Our governance framework

Qur governance structure has been developed over several years 1o meet the increasing span and complexity of our businesses We have clearly
defined roies and responsibiities at Board levet and below it, 10 seek 1o ensure that decisions throughout the organisation are soundly based and nsks
are appropnately controlled and monitored

At a glance
Board
Audit Nomination Remuneration néo?:srlabti?h anﬁ%lr:t\:les;lts
Committee Committee Commiites s gmmme o) Commitiae
Pages 751079 | | Page 80 | | Pagessztotos | | Page 81 | | Page 67

Executive Management

Group Chief Executive

1
Executive Committee
Composition Sub-Committees
Group Chief Executive Executive Remuneration
Group Chief Financial Officer Group Risk Management and Safaty
Dmsional Chief Executives Investments and Ethics
Group Functional Heads Nominaton
1 |
Divisional Chief Executives
Divisional Boards
Composition Sub-Committees
Dwvistonal Chief Executives Audit and Risk
Desional Finance Directors Qperating & Financial Review
Semor Independent (Internal} Rermuneration
Ethics

The role of the Board

The Board drives the development and performance of the Group to deliver sustanable shareholder value over the long term, by setting the
entrepreneunal and governance framework that supports the achievement of the Group's strategic cbyectives within an acceptable nisk profile

Itis responsible for setting the Group s ethical compass and its nsk appetite, balancing nsks and reward in the interests of shareholders having
regard to the implications for other slakeholders, in parbcular customers and employees, and for achieving the Group’s commaercial potential, whilst
effectively addressing the Group's weaknesses I 1s responsible for oversight and review of the way in which the Group does business, of the Group s
performance in meeting its commitments to customers, shareholders, and its employees of the contnbution of the Group's executve management,
of the Group's principal nsks, and of its internal control and nsk management processes

Serco’s business culture and standards of conduct are estabhshed and monitored by the Board 1o ensure that the Group's goals are achieved
in a manner that also benefils society as a whole The Corporate Responsibiity Report 1s avalable online at www serco com and iHusirates how
Serco's approach to corporate assurance and responsibility translates from the Board into everyday working practices

Chalrman and Group Chief Executive

The roles of the Chairman and the Group Chief Executive are separately held and the dvision of therr responsibilues 15 clearly established, set out in
wriling, and agreed by the Board The Chairman leads the Board and ensures that it operates effectively and the Group Chief Executive has primary
responsibilty for the developmaent and debvery of strategy and the operational performance of the Group This separation of the two central board
roles safeguards pluralty and a balance of viewpoints on the Board which prometes better decision-making

Senlor Independent Director

This role 15 set out under wntten lerms available on the Company's website www serco com The Senior Independent Director provides an alternative
point of contact to the Charman, both for shareholders and other directors, should the need anise The role would alse deputise for the Charman
should the need anse
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Non-Executive Directors

Although the Charman and Non-Executive Directors do not carry any executive responsibilibies, together with the Executive Direcltors they are collectively
responsible for the Company’s direction In particutar, Non-Executve Directors apply ther skills, expenence and independent judgement to constructivety
challenge and contnbute to the development of the Group's strategy and business plans, and to hold management to account for Group performance

Company Secretary and independent advice
The Company Secretary i1s responsitie for adwising the Board on all corporate governance matters, assisting the Chairman in ensunng that all Board
precedures are followed and that there are good information flows, together wath facilitating induchon programmes for newly appointed directors

All directors have access o the advice and senvices of the Company Secretary

The Board has approved a procedure for directors to take independent professional advice, If necessary, at the Company's expense

Key Roles and Responsibllities

Charrman

Group Chief Executive

Leads the Board and ensures that it is effective in all aspects of its icle

Takes a leading role in determining the structure and composition of the

Board, and s capabiliies

Manages the business of the Board, ensunng that it taciltates the Board

to fultil its role and function and in doing so ensunng that

e the directors receve imely, accurate concise and clear information and

o the Board invests sufficient time on each matter for effeclive consideraton
and decision-making In keeping with the relative impertance of each
matter and especially for complex or strategically important 1ssues

Provides appropnate counse! and support to the Group Chief Executive whilst

respecting executive responsibiity

Takes a leading rgle in the development and succession needs of the Board

and the effectve performance of each director including

= promoting the eflfective contnbution of the nor-executve direcions

e ensurng that new directors recave an effectrve induction, and

e assisting directors in determining indmvdual training needs and ensuring
that they updale as appropnate therr knowledge and capabiities

Takes a leading role n the performance evaluation of the Board and

1is Commitices

Promotes the highest standards of corporate governance

Ensures that the Board has effective channels of commurucation with
shareholders and that the views of principal shareholders on significant
matters are taken into account

Senior Independent Director

Leads the busmess to develop and deliver the Group s strategy and business
plans as agreed with the Board

& Provides insprrational leadership across the Group setting the tone from
the top o promote the Company s values and the highest ethucal behawour
by all employees

o Develops motivates and retains a strong, professional and intemationally-
minded sermor management team capable of meeting the challenges
associated with the Company s long-term growth strategy

» Identfies strategic opportunities to enable the Group to grow and differentiate
ftself and agrees with the Board a roadmap to realising those opportunities

» Accountable for the Group's performance and operatonal management,
including its
» operational governance

ethical compass

profitabilty,

competive market posion and

nsk management and intemal control systems

» Mantains a close relationship of trust with the Chairman, seeking appropnate
counsel and support whilst preserving executive responsibility

# Leads the executive team setting a perscnal example bulding team spinit
ensufng clear ines of communication developing indmdual and team
capabiliies, and ensunng that robust succession planning processes are
in place

& Acts as an effective ambassador for the Group developing and mantairing
strong retationshups with cument and potential customers, and key
stakeholders

o Pioactively promotes the Group s imvestment case to mvestors and listens
to the views of major shareholders on key 1ssues affecting the Group

» Communicates both intemally and externally the Group s culture and values
key strategic imperatives and performanice of the business ensunng that
a clear sense of purpose 1s conveyed

Non-Executive Directors
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Acts as a sounding board for the Chairman and assists fim in the delivery

of his objectives as requested

Provides an alternative point of contact for pnncipal shareholders i {hey

have any concemns that are unresotved through normal channels of

communication

Seeks to maintan a balanced understanding of the views and concerns of

principal sharehoiders

Takes a leading role in the performance evaluation of the Charman

Shoutd it become necessary, leads an orderly succession process for the

Chairman

In the unhikely event that there 1s a senous failure In Board governance or

where normal Board functioning 15 senously impatred or the Chairman i1s

unable to act

» will act as anntermedtary where necessary,

o will Intervene to resolve the i1ssues and restere the Board to etfective
functioning

» Constructvely challenge and contnbute to the development of the Group’s
strategy and business plans |,

» Ensure tha the Group upholds high siandards ol integrity and protity with
appropriate oversight over the effectve embedding of the agreed culture
values and elhwcal compass

+ Mantain effectve oversight and review of the Group s performance
against agreed goals and objectives and of the performance of the
executive management

» Mantain an effective understanding and oversight of the Group s principal

nsks

Satisty themsefves as to

o the inlegnly of the financial statements and all other formal

announcements

o whether taken as a whole, the annual report and accounts s far,

balanced and understandable

e whether the Group’s nsk management and internal control processes,

including those relating to the financial reporing process are robust
and defensible, and

o whether the Board has robustly assessed the solvency and hquidity

nsks faced by the Group

o Takuing pnmary roles in
&« appoiniing and 1f necessary removing Executive Directors and in
Board succession planning,
« the Board s detenmination of remuneration policy for the Chairman
the Executwe Directors the Executive Committee members and the
Company Secretary
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Conflicts of interest

The Company's Articles of Association include provisions reflecting recommended practice concerning any directors’ confiicts of interest The

Board has in place procedures for directors o report any potential or actual conflicts to the other members of the Board for their authonsation where
appropriate In deciding whether to authonise a conflict or potential conflict of interest only non-interested directors (1 e those that have no interest in the
matter under consideration) are able to take the relevant decision acting in a way they consider 1n good faith is most likety to promate the Company s
success The dueclors may iImpose cenditions of imitabons when giving any authonsation, it they think this 1s appropnate

The process of reviewing conilicts disclosed, and authonsations given s repeated at least annually Any conllicts or potental conflicts considered
by the Board and any authonsations grven are recorded in the Board minutes and in a register of directors’ conflicts which is maintained by the
Company Secretary

How the Board operates

The Board and its Committees

Currently the Board has nine members the Chairman two Executive Directors and six Non-Executive Directors The Board organises itsell with clear
dwvisions of responsibility so that no individual or group of individuals has unfettered powers of decision-making Whilst each constituent of the Board
cames out distinct but complementary roles and responsibilities, collectively all directors work for the long-term success of the Company

Many key board responsibilities are referred to four standing board committees the Audit, Nomnation, Remuneration and Corporate Responsibility
Committees This structure 1s recommended under the Code as best practice for UK quoted companies and aliows particularly detaled or complex
rmatters 1o be given special scrutiny and oversight The Board has a fifth committee, the Approvals and Allotments Committee, which compnises the
Executve Directors and the Company Secretary, which meets on an ad hoc basis to approve proposals that have more operational significance but do
not ment full Board consideration Except where decisions are specifically delegated, each commultee reports and submits recommendations back to
the Board for its review and where necessary, decision Each committee operates within clearly defined terms of reference which are reviewed annually
by the respective committees and, if necessary approved by the Board, to ensure they remain appropnate and reflect any changes in good practice
and governance these are avallable online at www serce com

Commitiees are authanised to obtain outside legal or other ndependent professional advice f they consider it necessary

The Board and the four standing committees meet with sufficient frequency to fulfl their respective responsibilities using structured but flexible
agendas 1o ensure that regular matters are addressed properly, while allowing time to discuss significant new 1ssues More information on the work
and performance of the Board can be found in the followming pages Separate reports describing the activities of the Audit, Normination Corporate
Responsibility and Remuneration Commitiees are presented on pages 75 to 81

Conduct of meetings

Board meetings are scheduled six bmes a year, of which two are held over three days at a ime, two over two days and two meetings are held for one
day each The directors receive meeting packs in paper and electronic form ahead of each meeting Board meetings are structured to allow open
discussion of the strategy and trading and financial performance of the Group To facilitate a proper understanding of the Group's businesses Board
and Commuitiee meetings are held at varying locations and the opportunity s used 10 combine the formal business of the Board with sile wvisits and
divisional presentations and discussions Additional Board meetings are held as required

Board decisions are usually taken by consensus Exceptionally, if a decision is 10 be taken by vate the Charman does not have a second of
casting vote

Reserved matters
There 1s a formal schedule of matters reserved to the Board This schedule, which 1s reviewed annually includes approval of

® The Group strategy

Annual financial and operating plans

Major capital expenditure, acquisiions or divestments

Annual and half-year financial results and satisfying itself as to the integnity of financial information
The Company's dvidend policy

Ensunng there are adequate succession plans for the Board and semor management

Appointing and removing directors, the Company Secretary and committee members

Setting and reviewing sk management and treasury policies

Setting levels of operational delegated authorities

Agreeing the Group's culture, values, and ethical compass

Reviewing the Group s overall governance arrangements, and

Reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's system of Internal control and nsk management processes

Other specilic responsibiities are delegated to Board Committees which operate within clearly defined terms of reference Detalls of the responsibiliies
delegated to the Commuttees are given on pages 75 to 81 Each Commitiee has an appropnate balance of skills, expertience, ndependence and
krnowledge of the Group

67



Serco Group plc | Annual report and accounts 2013
Effectiveness

Corporate Governance Report

The work of the Board

At each Board meeting, the Group Chief Executive presents a comprehensive update on the strategy and business 1ssues across the Group together
with an update on transformation and portfolio management actvity The Group Chief Finaneial Officer presenis a detailed analysis of the financial
performance, both at Group and divisional levels Senior executives below Board level attend relevant parts of the Board meetings in order to inform

the Board of developments and actiwities in therr areas of responsibility This prowides the Board with access {0 a broader group of executives and helps
Drrectors make assessments of the Group's emerging talent as succession to senior management roles - this was an agreed action ansing from the
2012 Board evaluation During the year, the Board held some of its meetings at dwisional locations and conducted in depth reviews of operations and
strategy as well as gaining more presence and visibiity amongst management and staff Indwdual Board members also conducted several visits to
contract sites in the UK and internationally

Af1ts meetings dunng the year the Board discharged its responsibilities and in partcular rewewed the following areas In addition the Board gave
specific focus to the issues that arose in 2013 tn relation to certan of its contracts with the UK Government reviewing therr root causes and agreeing
the resulting programme of corporate renewal and the restoraion of the Group's relationship with government

Sirategy and transformation The Group and dmsional corporate strategies ranstormation plans portfolio
management and the Group's health and safety strategy

Investor relations Irveston feedback and analyst meetings following the release of the full year
2012 and half year 2013 annual resulis

Business performance The operational performance ol each of the dnisignal businesses, and pencdic
updates presented by the dwvisional management teams

Governance Rewview of the Group's Treasury policy nsk appetite, work undertaken with
regard to the corporate renewsal programme referred to above and in particular
torming the Corporate Respensibility Committee of the Board and the
recrutment of three Non-Executive Directors

Financial and nsk management The Group s business plans presentations on the Group nsk register and
significant areas of nsk

Diversity talent and suceession Presentation from Group Human Resocurces and Talent Directors
on talent management and development across the Group

Board effectiveness

Balance

To be eftective, the Board must understand the dynamics of Serco’s nch mix of complex businesses across its many diverse markets, including the
1ssues and factors upon which sustained success depends A balance of experience, skills and viewpoints within the Board promotes overall Board
effectiveness and enhances Company performance in the long term The directors are drawn from different backgrounds and industries, and each
has extensive expenence of other international businesses in sectors that help inform and augment Board debate

Induction, training and ongoing development
On joinng the Board each director receives a personalised induction programme including

® An overview of the Group's businesses, nisks, governance arrangements and relations with investors
® Structured meetings with a range of relevant serior managers from across the Group

® Mestings with key advisors and shareholders as appropnate to the director s role

® Site visits to gain first-hand insight into operational contracts with major customers

Legal and regulatory updates are essenbal for good governance, 1o ensure that directors understand the operational environment of the business
The Board and Commuttee meetings incorporate hrnefings penodically on changes o the business legislative and regulatory environment, and on
other relevant topics such as changes to the corporate and remuneration reporting landscape in 2013

As part of Its annual evaluation process the Board considers the training needs of the directors and the Company Secretary Development needs falt
within the remit of the Charrman, who reviews and agrees these with each indmdual All Board members are encouraged to atiend relevant external
traiming courses at the Company s expense More information on Board evaluabion can be found on page 69 An induchion programme for Malcolm
Wyman was successiully completed on his appointiment and a programme for Mike Clasper, Tamara Ingram and Rachel Lomax, who joined the Board
on 3 March 2014, 1s already underway and ncludes site visits and meetings with senior executives of, and advisers to the Group The Charman
continues to undertake an extensive programme of contract visits

Board Independence

The Board considers all of the Non-Executive Directors to be independent In coming to this conclusion, it has determined that each Non-Executive
Dirgctor 1s independent in character and judgement and there are no relationships or circumstances that are hkely to affect, or could appear to affect,
the drectors' Judgements In particular they are independent of management and have no cross-directorships or significant inks that could matenalty
interfere with the exercise of their Independent judgemenit

The Non-Executive Directors meet separately (without the Chairman or execulive directors being present) at least once a year principally to appraise
the Charman's performance This meeling I1s chaired by the Semior Independent Director
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All Non-Executive Directors are apponted for anoanal term of thiee years Thereafter, subject 1o satisfactory performance, they may serve one or two
additional three-year terms

The Board considered the Chairman 10 be independent on his appointment in 2010 The Nomination Commiitee keeps the Board s diversity, balance
and independence under review, the details of which can be found on page 80

The terms and conditions of the appointment of the directors are summarised in the Directors Remuneration Report on page 93 and are availlable
on request from the Company Secretary

Re-election of directors

The Company's Articles of Association stipulate that each director shall retire {but be eligible for re-election) at the annual general meeting held in the
third calendar year follomng the year in which he or she was elected or last re-elected by the Company Any directors appointed by Ihe Board since the
last annual general meeting must stand for re-election at the next annual general meeting Any Non-Executive Directors, excluding the Chairman, who
have served for more than nine years will be subject to annual re-election

Notwithstanding the above, in accordance with provisions contained within the UK Corporate Governance Code all directors retired and stood for
re-election at the 2013 Annual General Meeting and will do so on an annual basis at each annual general meeting Their names are set out In the Notice
of Annual General Meeting

Time commitment and external directorships

As part of the Board evaluation process, the available tme and commitment of each director 1s considered The Board considers that the Execuiive
Directors can gain valuable expenence and knowledge through appropriate and imited non-executive appointments in cther listed companies or
independent sector organisations The Board 1s careful to ensure that any such appointments do net present any matenal conflicts of interest 1o Serco
or compromise the effective management of the Group, and these are approved in advance of any appotniments being taken up Oetails of the fees
receved by executive directors for external appointments can be found in the Remuneratian Report on page 102

Alastarr Lyons i1s non-executive Charman of Admiral Group ple and of the Towergate Insurance Group and Deputy Chairman of Bovis Homes Group PLC
The Board believes that Alastar holds a balanced portiolio of positions which allow him to perform his duties as Chairman appropriately

Board attendance

Board meetings were held on a bi-monthly basis with ad hoc meetings in between as required The frequency and content of Board meetings are

reviewed by the Board annually

The attendance of the individual Direciors at Board and Commitiee meetings of which they were members dunng 2013 was as follows

Board Audit Remuneration Nomination R ec;:::p:snfﬁity

No Held [ 3 1 5 0

Alastar Lyons 6 2/3 9111 5 -

Chnstopher Hyman  5(5) n/a n/a - nfa
Andrew Jenner 6 3 n/a nfa n/a
Edward J Casey, Jr  1/(1) n/a n/a - -

David Richardsen  2/(2) 141) 5/(5) 2/(2) nfa
Ange Risley 6 3 11 5 n/a
Ralph D CrosbyJr 6 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Malcalm Wyman 6 3 1 5 na

Notes

1 The table excludes attendances of directors who atiended committee meetings by imitation anly

2 Where a number 1s given in brackels against a director s attendance this 1s the number of meetings which took place dunng their tenure

3 The Corporate Respensibility Committee was designed dunng 2013 but not formally constituted until 2014

4 As well as meetings detaled above 14 addibonal Board meetings were held during the year, to discuss 1ssues highlighted on the pravious pages
prncipally around the Corporate Renewal Programme

Performance evaluation

Thes year the Board did not underiake a formal internal review of the effectiveness of the Board, ts commuittees and individual members and did not,
therefore, comply with Code B 6 1 The Board last carned out an externally facilitated review with CTMC&A Limited in 2011 CTMC&A Limited has no
connection with Serco other than facilitating Board-level performance evaluations In ine with the Code the next external review will take place in 2014

In addition, an evaluation of the Charman'’s performance led by the Senior Independent Director {taking into account the views of both the
non-executive and executive directors) was carmed out dunng the year [tis considered that the Chasrman continues to provide strong leadership of
the Board and there is a good level of trust between him and the Acting Group Chief Executive The Chairman’s commitment 10 contract and site visis,
and the vatue derved from these by the business, was also acknowledged His very well informed view of the Group’s operations also enables im
to provide a strong sounding board for the executive directors
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Financial reporting process

The Company has a thorough assurance process in place in respect of the preparation, verification and approval of penodic financial statements
The process includes

® The involvement of qualified, professional employees with an appropnale level of expenence In Group Finance and across the divisions
@ Formal sign-offs from divisional Chief Executive Officers and Finance Directors
® Comprehensive review and where appropnate, challenge from key internal Group functions

® A transparent process to ensure full disclosure of information to the external audits Engagement of a prolessional and expenenced firm
of external auditors

& Oversight of the Audit Committee, nvolving amongst other duties
@ A detaled review of key inancial reporting judgements which have been discussed by management

® Review and where appropriate, challenge on matters including the consistency of, and any changes to, significant accounting policies and
practices dunng the year, significant adjustments resulting from an external audit the going concem assumption, and the Company's statement
on internal control systems, prior to endorsement by the Board

The above process and the review by the Audit Committee of a comprehensive note from management that sets out the details of the preparation,
internal veniication and approval process for the Annual Report and Accounts, provides comfort to the Board that the Group has undertaken an
appropriate process to include the necessary information tor it to congider that the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, is far, halanced
and understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company s periormance, business model and strategy

Duning the year as part of our programme of corporate renewal the reporting lines of divistonal and business unit finance executives were changed
such that these now have a direct reporting relationship to the Group Chief Financial Officer whilst also remaining a part of the divisional and business
unit management teams

Managing business risks and internal control

Serco has a system of internal control, including financial, operational and compliance controls and nsk management designed to safeguard
shareholders’ investments, our assets and our reputation The vanous reviews and audits undertaken by the UK Government which were completed
during the year found no further evidence of wrongdoing or malpractice

The Board has overall responsibility for our internal control system and for reviewing its effectrveness, and has delegated to management the
implementation of policies on risk and control

Risk management s fundamental to how we manage the business, it informs decision making and aligns to the organisation’s strategic objectives

The systems and processes we have developed to dentfy and manage the key nsks facing each of our businesses and the Group as a whole and the
resources that are commitied to nsk management, were reviewed dunng the year as part of the corporate renewal programme and a senes of actions
identified to further develop and strengthen our structure of internal control and sk management having regard to the breadth and depth of the Group's
actvites All parts of the business have appropnate crisis management plans that meet defined policy standards

Whilst Divisional Boards review quarterly the risks they face, the Group Risk Management and Safety Committee {GRMSCS, a formal commitiee of the
Executive Committee, meets quarterly to provide governance and oversight of nsk across the Group The Corporate Responsibility Committee of the
Board receives a quarterly report on the GRMSC's assessment of the principal nsks facing the Group and the action being taken by management 1o
mitigate nisks that are outside of the Group’s nisk appetite

Our nsk management policies, systems and processes align to the guidance contained wittun the UK Corporate Governance Code and ferm part
of the Serco Management System (SMS}

Such systems and processes however can only be designed to mitigate, rather than eliminate the nsk of tallure to achieve business objectives, and

can only provide reasonable and not absclute assurance against misstatement or loss The Board confirms that this process has been in place for the
year under review and up to the date of approval of the 2013 Annual Repori and Accounts
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Our approach to nsk within the Serco Management System

The Serco Management System (SMS) sets out policy standards, systems and processes that identity, review and report nsks at alf levels of our
business and in the Group as a whole, that impact upon strategic cbjectives, with the aim of safeguarding our shareholders’ investments, the
Group's assets and its reputation At each level within our business, nsk management processes reflect the nature of the activities being undertaken
and the business and operational nsks inherent in them, and therefore the level of control considered necessary to protect our interests and those
of our stakeholders

These controls and processes fall into four main areas |dentification, Assessment, Planning and Control and Monitoring, so that we

& |dentfy business objectives that reflect the interests of all stakeholders and the nisks associated with the achievement of these objectives
® Regularly assess our exposure 1o nisk, inctuding through the regular measurement of key sk indicators

# Control and reduce nsk as far as reasonably practicable or achievable through cost-effective risk reatment options, and

® ldentfy new rnisks as they anse and remove those risks that are no longer retevant

Risk identification

In identifying the potential nsks associated with the achievement of our business objectives we consider both external factors ansing from the
environment within which we operate, and internal nsks arising from the nature of our business, its controls and processes, and our management
decisions

Once identiied, we document nisks in nisk registers, which are mantained at contract, programme, business unit, dwsional and Group levels These nsk
registers change as new rnisks emerge and existing nsks diminish, so that the registers reflect the current threats to the relevant strategic objectives We
review the Group and Divisional Risk Registers at least quarterly and more frequently as required The GRMSC rewiews the Group Risk Register quarterly
ahead of formal review by the Corporate Responsibility Committee

Risk assessment

We assess the potential effect of each identified fisk on the achievement of our business abjectives and wider stakeholder interests To do so,
we use a fisk sconng system based on our assessment of the probability of a nsk matenalising and the impact if it does This is assessed from
three perspectives

@ The nsk s significance to the achievemnent of our business objectives
& The nsk's significance to society, including 1ts impact on public safety and the environment, and
& Our ability to influence, control and mitigate the nsk

Analysis of cur key nsks allows us to assess the impact of disruption to our business objectives, the probability of this occurring and highhght critical
areas that reguire management attention

Risk planning and control

We assign each identified and assessed nsk to a sk owner who 1s responsible for controfling, managing, and devetoping a robust and effective plan to
reduce or miigate the nsk Risk owners are required to report to the GRMSC or, as appropriate, the Board on specific nsks Either may ask for additonal
infermation or request an audit to provide additional assurance

Risk reduction involves taking early management action to remove or reduce dentified risks before they can affect the bid, programme, project or
contract We consider options to eliminate, reduce or control the nsks as part of the nisk identification and analysis process

Risk mitigation involves us tdentifying appropnate measures, including contingency plans to reduce the seventy of the impact of the nsks, shoukd they
occur This mctudes devetoping cnsis management plans in response to nsks whose potential impact warrants a specific management process

The SMS requires every contract to develop a nsk management plan reflecting assessed risks and supported by approprate measures and
contingency plans to mutigate the impact of the nsks

Risk monitoring
Changes in our external environment, internal structures and management decisions may all affect the nature and extent of the nisks to which the
Group 1s exposed

QOur nsk monitonng process therefore regularly monitors changes to our business and the external environment, to ensure that we have sight
of and respond appropnately to reduce the impact of emerging nsks

Managing and mitigating risk

The cbjective of cur sk management process Is to provide a governance overview of our operational nsk profle Cperational risk can never be
eliminated, risks are necessary to achieve targeted benefits (risk management informs dectsions) However, while nsk 1s necessary, we seek to
minimyse the probability and impact of threats through the consistent implementation of the SMS, ensunng that appropnate infrastructure, controls,
systems staff and processes are In place A comprehensive review of the SMS forms parl of the corporate renewal programme in order o address
those areas identified by the 2013 iIndependent review of systems and controls as having contrbuted to the 1ssues that arose last year on confracts
with the UK Government
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Some of our key management and control techrniques defined in the SMS are set out below

Our operating processes reflect the principles of clear delegation of authorty and segregation of dubes

The GRMSC meets quarierly to ensure thal nsks, internal control and business assurance are effectively managed and reviewed

Our processes of business review are intended to ensure that we maet customer expectabions, regulatory requirements and performance critera,
including operational effectiveness, investment returns cash flow requirements and profitability The effectiveness of these processes has been the

subject of paricular focus as part of our programme of corporate renewal

The business recogrises the importance of relevant key performance indicators to provide an analysis of business performance and vanances from
plan, occupational health and safety incidents, and error and exception reperting

Selective recruitment, succession planning and other human rescurce policies and practices ensure that staff skills are aligned with Serco's current
and future needs

We maintain insurance policies against losses ansing from crrcumstances such as damage or destruction of physical assets, theft, legal hability for
third-party loss and professional advice

We review the adequacy of our insurance cover at regular intervals

The Investment and Ethics Committee meets regularly to ensure appropriate governance and the management of nsk associated with larger or
higher sk bids, acquisitions, disposals and areas of significant capital expenditure

We apply robust project management and change implementation disciphines 1o all major projects, iIncluding new contract transitions, acquisitions,
new technology applications, change programmes and other major intiatives

The Strategic Report describes our approach to health safety and envirenmental protection Qualfied and expenenced staff in each business unit
provide advice and support on health, safety and environmental 1ssues and undertake regular audits

We have safety specialists in our aviation, rail, defence nuclear and marine businesses that report to the Board, and maintain and further develop
the very high standards expected in these industries

A Chief Information Officer 1s responsible for ensuning that systems and processes are In place to ensure the confidentiality, Integnty and avallability
of sensitive infermation and the associated information systems that suppon our business activities

Our Corporate Responsibility Committee has responsibility for the review of ethical 1ssues that may anse from our current and future activities
The Company Secretary manages a confidential reporting service, to which staff can report illegal, dangerous, dishonest or unethical activities
We have cnsis and business continuity pians in place 1o manage cnisis events, both within Cwisions and the Group

All Dwisional Chiet Executives are required to self certify their Division's compliance 1o the SMS at half and end-of-year points

As mandated by the SMS, throughout the business Iifecycle of all cur bids and contracts independent reviews (such as Black Hats and Gate
Reviews) are required to provide an appropnate standard of assurance and governance across the business

Group risk function

The Group risk function forms part of the overall nsk management process While ine managers are respensible for identifying and managing all nsks
within therr nsk appetite and tolerance limits, in ine with the policies and standards set within the SMS, the Group risk function (reporting to the Director
Risk and Acquisitions) 1s responsible for the development and implementation of nsk management policy, sirategy and governance In addition to this,
the function provides assurance over the business providing nsk management oversight, assurance and challenge as well as managing the Serco
Group overall nsk profile
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Internal audit

An integral part of nsk management 1s assurance that the controls ientiied to manage nsks are operating and effective internal audit i1s responstble for
reviewing the design and operation of rsk management processes and controls operated across the Group, provtding objective assurance around the
effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls

Dunng 2013, there was a change in administrative reporting lines of the Group Head of Internal Audit from the Group Chief Financial Officer to the
Group Chief Executive Functionally, the Group Head of Internal Audit reports to the Chair of the Audit Committee and is responsible for detvery of

the internal audit programme, ensuring that it 1s nsk-based and aligned with the overall strategy of the Group Internal audit ts delvered at Group and
divisional levels, using a mix of co-sourced and in-house resources, with each division operating an Audit and Risk Commuittee which reviews the results
of relevant internal audhts three times a year The findings of the overall internal audit programme are reported directly to the Board's Audit Committee
The effectiveness and resourcing of our internal audit capability has been specifically reviewed as part of our programme of corporate renewal

In addition to internat audit, many parts of our business are subject to other reviews of therr controls by third parties, including industry regulators,
ISO Standards, customers and other external audits This third-party scrutiny significantly increases the scope of independent assurance conducted
across the Group each year

Management assurance

Management assurance 1s part of the business assurance process Each division 1s required 1o carry out a programme of management assurance io
provide comfort that the division (s managing its nisks effectively and in comphance with the SMS The resulls of the programme are reviewed by the
dvisional Audit and Risk Commitiees

Business cenduct

Serco Group operates within a management system that defines the policies, standards and processes to be applied wherever we operate Integral

to this 15 our policy on Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to all business divisions, operating compantes and business units throughout the
world This policy outlines the Group's position on a wide range of ethical and legal 1ssues including conflicts of interest financial inducements, human
nghts and legal and regulatory compltance It applies to directors and 1o all employees regardless of their posihion or location Recogrising that ethical
difemmas may anse in a gromng company, the Group has an ethics consultation process that is to be followed to determine the Group's position on
particular 1ssues To support this process the Investment and Ethics Committee, comprising members of the Executive Team wath a quorum of three and
charred by the Direcior, Risk and Acquisiions, meets as required As the leadership of the Company, the Executive Team will make judgements about
what it considers acceptable

Under the Corporate Renewal Programme we have established the Corporate Responsibilily Committee of the Board to iake the lead In determining
the Group's ethical compass supported by the creation of formal Ethics Committees and the appointment of Ethics Officers in each division We have
also redesigned our whistle-blowing process, with input from the Institute of Business Ethics, to benchmark against the highest international standards

Serco s outsourced Ethics Hotline operated throughout the year which enabled employees to report any concerns, or report any wrongdoing, that they
did not feel able to raise with therr line manager, human resources colleagues or through ather reporting channels In addtion to the Hotline, which 1s
avallable 24 hours a day toll-iree worldwide in several languages, employees can also make reports via email or the (internet The Company Secretary
independently investigates, with external specialist support where required, any 1ssues raised and reports back to the Audit Committee and, as
appropnate, the Board

The Group maintans a position of neutrality with respect to party politics Accordingly, it does not contribute funds to any political party It does,
however, contrbute to the public debate of policy 1ssues that may afiect the Group in the countries in which i cperates

The Board confirms that the actions it considers necessary are being taken to remedy the falings and weaknesses which it has determined to be
significant from its review of the internal controls across the Group

Going concern
The Directors have acknowledged the guidance ‘Going Concemn and Liquidity Risk Guidance for Directors of UK Companies 2009’ and ‘An update for

Directors of bisted Companies Responding 1o increased country and currency nsk In financial reports’, published by the Financial Reporting Counait
n October 2009 and January 2012 respectively This i1s discussed in the Finance Review starting on page 42
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How we engage with shareholders

Serco uses a vanety of means to gain insight intc the views of shareholders and other stakeholders, and the Board 1s regularly briefed on the feedback
received through these engagement channels

Primary responsibility for engaging with shareholders rests with the Chairman Group Chief Executive and Group Chief Financial Officer in addition,
the Senior Independent Director 15 avallable 1o shareholders should these normal communication channels fail 1o resolve an 1ssue, or are INnappropriate
for any reason

We have formal arrangements for engaging with shareholders, including these descnbed below

Investor meetings
The Executive Directors and the Investor Relations team regularly meet with analysts and major investors 1o maintain effective dialogue The Chairman
also offers to meet with the Company's largest institutional investors each year

The Board reviews an investor relations report each quarter This highhghts share price movements, changes in the share register, the Company's recent
and planned investor relations activities, analyst recommendatons, and significant news from the market and the support services sector This report
significantly contnbutes to the Board's understanding of investors' views

Annual General Meetings (AGMs)

The AGM provides an opportunity to communicate with all shareholders, especially our private shareholders Individual shareholders have the
opportunity to guestion the Charrman and, through himn, the Chairs of the vanous Board committees and other directors  The Notice of Meeting sets
out the resolutions being proposed at the AGM to be held on 8 May 2014 It s the Company's policy at present 1o take all resolutions at a general
meeting on a poll A poll reflects the number of voting rights exercisable by each member and s considered by the Board to be a more democratic
method of voting Shareholders are advised of the total number of votes lodged for each resolution, in the categores “for” and “aganst” together
with the number of "votes withheld  This information 1s also posted on the Group's website www serco com

Formal consultations
When a matenal change n remuneration policy s being considered, the Chairman of the Remuneratron Commitiee consults with major investors
and seeks therr iews From time to time, we seek the views of major shareholders on other Company proposals

Direct communications inihated by shareholders and representative bodies

From time to time we receive enquines and circulars directly from major sharehelders and representative bodies, such as the Associatien of British
Insurers, the National Association of Pension Funds and Pensions Investment Research Consultants We also review the various environmental, social
and governance reports published about us annually and consider whether any changes are needed tc respond to any specific comments

Exiernal advisors

Legal, financial, remuneraticn and commurucations advisors gain insights into shareholder athitudes in the course of conducting specific research

or through their work with other clients Relevant insights are shared when the Board or its Commitiees are considenng important 1ssues and exiernal
advice has been sought

Corporate website

The Group website www serco com 1s a primary source of information on the Group The site Includes an area talored for nvestors, including
information such as an archive of all reports, announcements, presentations and webcasts share price tocls, the terms of reference for all Board
Committees, the Corporate Responsibility Report, and information on voting at the Annual General Meeting It also has a ink directty to the Company's
registrars, allowing shareholders to view therr shareholding online and 1o vote on the resolutions set out in the Notice of Annual General Meeting

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by

Job

John Hickey
Secretary
3 March 2014
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Audit Committee Report

Annual statement by the Chairman of the Audit Committee

Durning the year, the Audit Committee continued with the provision of its effective governance over the appropriateness of the Group's financial reporting,
adequacy of related disclosures, effecliveness of the internal control systems, and overseeing the external and internal audit functions A number of
reviews Into certain contracts with Government depaniments were undertaken by the Cabinet Office and the Ministry of Justice as mentioned on pages
2to 4 The Commitiee has devoted significant ime to monitonng and reviewing the process and outturn of these reviews as well as engaging regularly
with management, Iniernal Audit and the extemal auditors

Membership and meetings
The Audit Commuttee consists solely of Independent Non-Execulive Directors

The Commitiee welcomed the appoiniments of Mike Clasper and Rache! Lomax to the Commitiee from March 2014 and the broad range of skills
and expenence they bring tc complement the current Committee n addiion to Mike and Rachel, the Commuttee now comprises of Malcolm Wyman,
who chairs the Commritee, and Angie Risley Following the sad and untimely passing of Paud Brooks, a Non-Executive director, in January 2012,
membership of the Commitiee had been reduced below the level required by the Code The Board considered it appropriate to pend ncreasing the
membership of the Commutiee until new Non-Executive directors, wath the nght balance of skills were appotnted to the Board and this has now been
addressed The Company Chairman, who 1s himseli a qualified accountant and an Audit Commuttee charrman, attended the majonity of meetings in
the year and the Board considers that appropnate representation was maintained as a consequence

Malcolm Wyman, who joned the Committee on his appointment to the Board on 1 January 2013, took over as Charrman of the Committee on

the retrement of David Richardson at the ctose of the Company's 2013 Annual General Meeting and has recent and relevant financial expenence

The Audit Committee met three times dunng the year At the inwitation of the Committee, the Group Chief Financial Officer, the Group Head of

Internal Audit, KPMG LLP (the Group s internal audit providers) and Deloitte LLP (the external auditars) attend meetings The Commitiee meets with |
each of KPMG LLP the external auditors and the Group Head of Internal Audit separately at feast once a year The minutes of the Audit Committee

meetings are circulated to all directors

Responsiblilities of the Audit Commitiee

The Board has delegated to the Commuttee responsibility for assisting the Board in maintaining the integnty of the Company s financial information
and ensunng that the internal controls are robust and defensible, and for making recommendations te the Board in relation to the re-appointment
of the Company’s external auditors The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are

® Tomonitor the integnty of the financral statements of the Company. tncluding Intenm Management Statements, and any formal announcements
relating 1o the Company's financial performance, and reviewng signiftcant iinancial reporting judgements contained therein

® Toreview, approve and monitor the interal audit programme to ensure that the internal audit function 1s adequately resourced and has approprate
standing within the Company, and to assess the effectiveness of the internal audit function

@ To mantain oversight of the external audit activibes including discussing with the external auditors before the audit commences, the nature and
scope of the audit and to review the auditors’ quality control procedures and steps taken by the auditors 1o respond to changes in regulatary and
other requirements

® Toreview management 8 and the internal auditors' reports on the effectiveness of systems for Internal controls, and financial reporting

¢ To consider the appantment re-appointment or remaoval of the external auditors, and assess ther independence and objectivity, ensurnng that key
partners are rotated at appropnate intervals and relevant UK professional and regulatory requirements are taken into account

Additionally, in accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code, the Committee 1s responsible for overseeing a formal whistle-blowing policy and
procedures which apply throughout the Group This responsibility will be transferred to the newly formed Corporate Responsibility Committee duning
2014 Responsibility for the operation of this policy has been delegated to the Company Secretary

Members of the Audit Committee have received updates on accounting standards and generally accepted accounting practice on a quarterly basis
as part of the Group Chief Financial Officer’s report to the Board and also on a half-yearly basis from the external auditors

A copy of the Committee's full terms of reterence are available online at www serco com
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Principal activities during the year

Dunng 2013 the Aucit Committee discharged fully its rasponsibilities hsted above and, in doing so, considered the following key matters

@ Mondored the integnty of the financial stalements of the Company including the Corporate Governance Repont and statement of Directors'
Responsibilities for inclusion in the 2012 and 2013 Annual Report and Accounts, the 2013 Half Year Report and Auditors’ Report thereon and

the Intenm Management Statements 1ssued dunng the year

@ Accounting 1ssues, judgemenis and iformation to support the statements including but not imited to gomng concem revenue recogrition,
impatrments and exceptional tems and disclosure of that infermation to the audiiors

® The annual audit plan of the external auditors and the 2013 external audit fees

@ Pre-approving any fees in respect of non-audit services provided by the external auditors and ensuring that the provision of non-audit services
did not imparr the external auditors independence or objectivity

® Review of the whistle-blowing process and significant reports from that process
® Evaluation and independence of the Audit Committee and its members
¢ The continuing independence of the external auditors and the eftectiveness of the external audit process

® The 2013 internal audit programme, the proposed 2014 programme and a review of the restructuning of roles and responsibilities of the
Internal Audt function

® Reviewing the internal control envircnment processes and systems in the hight of the outturn of the reviews inte certain contracts with Government
departments undertaken by the Cabinet Office and the Ministry of Justice

@ The Commuttee's work plan for the year ahead and a review of its achievement against the Commitiee’s terms of reference

At its meeting in February 2014, the Commitiee reviewed and discussed a comprehensive paper prepared by the Group Chiet Financial Officer,

which set out the Group's accounting policies and basis of preparation, gave consideration to a number of key accounting judgements associated with
financial reporting, set out the Group's financial control procedures, and considered the impact of new accounting developments The Audit Committee
also reviewed and discussed a paper prepared by the external auditors which included significant reporting and accounting matters The Comimitiee
pays particular attention 1o matiers which it considers te be important as a result of their impact on the Group results and remuneration of management,
or the level of complexity, judgement or estimation in their application on the preparation of the Company's financial statements

In considening the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2013, the Committee discussed with the auditors and management all areas

of nsk it iIdentifeed during both the audit planning process and year end audit In the Commuttee's judgement, these areas are usual for a company of
Serco's size and business model
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The signilicant issues considered by the Committee duning the penod were as follows

Significant 1ssues considered by the Committee

How the 1ssue was addressed by the Commuttee

1

Onerous contracts — Provisions for future losses on onerous contracts
require an estimate to be made of the future performance of the

given contract This i1s based on vanous interdependent factors, often
outside the direct control of the Group

Documentation regarding the UK clinical health contracts was
presentad to, and approved by, the Committee This outlined the

key decisions, both operational and financial, and the proposed
accounting decisions Followng this report, the Commitiee agreed
the provision made of £17 6m and concluded that due to the matenal
size and nature of this charge, that it be treated as an exceptional termn

Management prepared a separate paper which included support
for the £9 1m provision for other onerous contracts made in the year
The Committee challenged the amounts provided for and whether
all contracts requinng provision had been covered

Following the process outlined above, the Commitiee was satisfied
that the Group's provision for onerous contracts s appropriate

Goodwill and intangibles impairment - The judgements In relation
to goodwill impairment testing relate to the assumptions applied
in calculating the value in use of the operating companies being
tested for impairment

The key assumptions applied in the calculation relate to the

future performance expectations of the business Business ptans
prepared by management supporting the future perfformance
expectations used tn the calculation were approved by both

the Executive Committee and the Board The Aucit Commuttee
receved a detaled report on the outcome of the Impairment review
performed by management The impairment review was also an
area of iocus for the external auditors, who reporied ther findings
to the Commitiee

The Committee concluded that the intangible assets were not
imparred and approved the disclosures in the Financial Staternents

3 Defined benefit pension schemes - Changes in the assumptions The costs, assets and llabihties of the Group's defined benefit
applied to the calculation of the defined benefit retirement scheme retrement schemes are considered together with the key
balances can have a matenal impact on assumptions underlying therr calculation Inaddition advice 1s
the Financial Statements sought from independent actuanes and discussions are held with

the extemal auditors
The Committee 1s satisfied that the assumptions made are
appropriate

4 Exceptional items — Certain items of income and expenditure Management prepared documentation in suppori of the treatment
require separation from statutory opesating profit, 1o assist the applied in these Financial Statements, which was reviewed and
reader of the Financial Statements to assess the quality of the challenged by the Committee This treatment was considered n
profits of the Group Determining the treatment of such items light of the guidance 1ssued by the Financtal Reporting Council
requires a level of judgement in December 2013

The Commuittee also considered detaided reporting from, and
discussions with, the external auditors on this matter, and
concluded that the items included as “exceptional” are needed
to provide clear and useful information about the trends in the
components of the results of the Group

5 Disposal accounting — There were three disposals in the year The Committee considered the accounting for the businesses
and the profit/loss on disposal for each of these were identified disposed in the year This included the judgement made in
as exceptional Hems in the Income Statement allocating gocdwill to these disposals, associated disposal costs

and a review of the disclosure of these items as exceptional items
in the Income Statement

6 Intangible assets capitalised — There were addiions to intangible The Committee reviewed the matenal items of intangible spend in

assets of £27 8m n the year covenng a number of sottware
projecis and internal development projects, partcularly in Global
Technology Delivery

the year and assessed whether these had been correctly judged to
have met the capitalisaton cntena of JAS 38 This involved a review
of the expected economic benefits
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Internal audit

The Audit Committee has oversight responsibility for the Internal Audit function, and reviews and approves the internal audit programme It also reviews
and assesses all reporis 1ssued, together with management's actions to respond to findings and recommendations The Group Head of Internal Audit,
who functionally reports directly to the Charman of the Audit Commitiee, 1s invited to and atiends the Audit Commuttee meetings and 1s also presented
with the opportunity to meet privately with the Audit Cormmitiee without any members of management present

Dunng 2013, a strategy for strengthening Internal Audit was developed and presented to the Audit Commitiee and this led to a number of changes

in the Internal Audit funchon, designed to further enhance the delivery of internal audit and its standing within the Group Key changes have been
implemented already including the formulation of a single Glokal Internal Audit team, changing of reporting lines, the rollout of a standard internal audit
methodology, approval of an updated internal audit charter which outlines the obyjectives, authorty, scope and responsibilities of the new group internal
audit function, and the change in admirustrative reporting lines of the Group Head of Internal Audit to the Group Chief Executive

External auditors

The Audit Committee has responsibility for making a recommendation on the appeointment re-appointment and removal of external auditors
Deloitte LLP were re-appointed auditors of the Group at the Annual Generat Meeting held in May 2013 Durning the year the Commitiee recewed
and reviewed audit plans and reports from the external auditors The external auditors also met privately with the Audit Commitiee without any
member of management or the Executive Directors being present

Non-audit services

The Committee has reconfirmed its policy on the provision of audit and non-audit services by Deloitte LLP |t determined three categones of services
Approved (e g audit and related assurance services), Permitted {e g tax compliance and due diigence) and Not Permitted {e g design/implementation
of financial information systems and quasi management services) The Commitiee, the Company, and Deloitte LLP all moritor compliance with the
polcy and review at each meeting the fees earned and the estimates for the year

The Commitiee acknowledges that the Group's external auditors will have a sigrificant understanding of the Group’s business and this knowledge and
expernence can be utihsed to the Group's advantage in many areas, thus ensunng efficiency in costs to the Group They also operate to professional
codes of conduct including the management of conflicts of Interest Accordingly, it considers that the external audidors may be engaged for the following
non-audit services

a) Assistance in tax compliance activites (including the preparation of tax reiurns)

b} Tax advisory services

¢) accountants reparis for any Stock Exchange purposes

d) Ad hoc reporting on histonc financial infermation for any other purpose and ad hoc accounting advisory services
e) Due dihgence activities associated with potential acquisihons or disposals of businesses

fy Other corporate finance adwisory services required in support of potential fransactions or bids including the review of financial models for internal
consistency and complance with Group financial accounting policies

g} Any other services which are not prohibited and are authonsed by the Group Chief Financial Officer or Group Company Secretary

Where such services are considered to be recurning in nature, approval of the Committee may be sought for the full financial year at the beginning of
that year Approval for other permitted non-audit services has to be sought on an ad hoc basis where no Audit Committee meeting 1s scheduled within
an appropnate ime frame approval i1s 1o be sought from the Chairman of the Commuttee {or his nominated aliernate} The Comrnitiee may establish
fee thresholds for pre-approved services and similar approvals are required for work awarded to accounting firms other than Company's auditors,
where fees are expected 10 exceed pre-approved imits The Group Company Secretary 1s nominated by the Audit Committee as the pomnt of review
and approval for the engagement of non-audit services

The Group has complied with the policy throughout the year Where appropnate, non-audit services have been provided by companies other than
Deloitte LLP to safeguard auditor cbjectivity and independence The fees paid to Delaitte for audit, audit-related and non-audit services for 2013 can be
tound in Note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements The pnincipal areas of engagement of Delaitte for audi-related and non-audit services were
cormmussioned In full comphiance with the above policy and a formal tender exercise was undertaken The services principally related to taxation advice
IT adwisory work and due dilgence and other corporate finance advisory services

78




i —— |

Effectiveness of external auditors

Dunng the year, the Audit Commitiee reviewed the effectiveness of the external audit process An assessment of the process was undertaken by
each member of the Commuttee with Input receved from management associated with the audits undertaken (Group Finance and Dvisional Finance
Directors) The assessment covered all aspects of the audit service provided by the audit firn The Committee also obtained a report on the audit
firm's own internal quality control procedures and consideration of audit firms' annual transparency reports

Audit tendering
The Audit Committee has nated the changes to the Code, the recent indings of the Competiion Commission and the Guidance tor Audit Commiitees
1ssued by the Financial Reporting Council each in the context of the tendering by audit firms for the external audit contract at least every ten years

The independence, cbjectivity and effectiveness of the external auditors have been examined by the Committee and drscussions were held regarding
therr terms of engagement and remuneration The Senior Statutory Audiitor 1s Richard Knights, who was appaointed to the role at the beginning of 2011
There are no contractual obhigations that restrict the Company’s current choice of external auditor Following an assessment of the iIndependence,
cbjectivity and effectiveness of Deloitte LLP, the Commitiee recommended to the Board that Deloitte LLP be proposed for reappointment at the
forthcoming 2014 Annual General Meeting This recornmendation has been accepted by the Board and will be proposect {o shareholders

The Commuttee will consider a formal tender process In accordance with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code 2012 It will comply
with the Competiion Commussion Order relating to the statutory audit market for FTSE 350 compares, which 1s expected to come into effect from

1 October 2014 Under the iransitional arrangements, the Committee expects a formal tender process to be held no later than two years from the end
of the current audit engagement partner rotation penod As pariner rotation 1s due in the year ended 31 Decemnber 2015, a tender process 1s expected
to commence no later than 2016

The Committee notes and continues to monitor the further developments from the EU Comimission in respect of audit regulations that will need to be
reflected in UK law in the next tew years These rules will require isted comparves 1o change auditors after ten years, with the posstbility of keeping the
same hrm tor an addiional ten years if the work has been put out to tender

!

Malcolm Wyman
Chairman of the Audit Committee
3 March 2014
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Annual statement by the Chairman of the Nomination Commitiee

The Nomination Committee 1s responsible for identifying and nominating, for the approval of the Board, candidates to fill Board vacancies as and when
they arse Before making an appointment the Committee will evaluate the balance of skills knowledge and expenence on the Board and, i the light ot
thus evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required for a particular appointment The Commitiee will also make recommendations
to the Board concerning the appointment of any Director or the Company Secretary to the Board and give full consideration to succession planning

mn the course of its work, 1aking intc account the challenges and opporiunities facing the Company and the necessary skills and expertise required

on the Board

Where an external recruitment 1s appropniate, or to benchmark a sutable internal candidate the Committee will engage the services of an independent
search consultant In consultation with the chosen search consultant specifications are drawn up for the roles and for those personal attnbutes and
experience thal are felt 1o be essenual for the effective performance of any new appointment, including for Non-Executive Directors what would be
considered appropriate in terms of ime commitment

The Committee 1s responsible for a number of other matters relating to the composttion of the Board and its committees In particular it is
responsible for

® Making a statement in the annual report and accounts about ts activiies, the process used for appointments, the membership of the Committes,
number of Committee meetings held and attendance over the course of the year

® Ensunng that on appointment (o the Board, Non-Executive Directors receive a formal letter of appointment setting out clearly what is expected
of them in terms of ime commitment, Committee senvice and involvement outside Board meetings

A copy of the Committee's full terms of reference are available online at www serco com

Membership and meetings
The Nomination Commitiee consists of Executive and independent Non-Executive Directors The majonty of members are independent
Non-Executive Directors

The Committee welcomed the appaintment of Mike Clasper to the Committee from March 2014 and the broad range of skills and experience
he brings to complement the current Committee In addition to Mike, the Committee currently compnses Alastar Lyons, who charrs the Commitiee,
Malcolm Wyman, Angie Risley and Ed Casey The Commitiee met five imes dunng 2013

The minutes of the Committee meetings are crculated to all directors

Principal activities during the year

Al its meetings durng the year, the Committee discharged its responsibiliies as outined above In particular, one of the key areas of focus in the 2012
Board effectiveness review was 1o enhance the profile of the Board through greater diversity Buring the year, the Comemitiee conducted a thorough
process of search to identify three additional Non-Executive Directors, in order to complement the existing non-executive members of the Board and
these were proposed for appointment and approved by the Board in 2014 With these appointments a third of the Board i1s now female

The Commitiee also dealt with succession planming for the role of Group Chief Executive following Christopher Hyman's resignation from ihe Board
in October this completed with the announcement of Rupert Soames’ appointment in February 2014

The Committee engaged the Zygos Partnership, an independent external executive search consuftancy, for the recrutment of the new Non-Execuiive |
Durectors, and for the postvon of Group Chuef Executive The Board confirms the Zygos Partnership s not connected with the Company in any way

Diversity

The Board strongly supports the principle of boardroom diversity, recognises the benefits of having diversity across all areas of the Group and believes
this adds to Serco's continued success and advantage The Board will always seek to appoint on ment against objective cntena, including diversity
When considenng the optimum composition of the Board, the benefits of diversity of the Board are appropnately reviewed and balanced where
possible, Including in terms of differences of skills industry experence, approach, gender, race, age, nationality, background and other contrbutions
that individuals may bring The Commitiee continues to focus on encouraging diversity of thought and expenence, recognising that Directors with
diverse skill sets, capabilities and expenence ganed from different gecgraphic and cultural backgrounds enhance the Board In addition 10 Board
diversity, the Company believes In promoting dversity at all levels of the orgarusation and has stated an aim to achieve appropriate diversity across
all elements of Serco’s management As highlighted earlier in the Corporate Governance Report, the Board has an increased focus on the balance
of women in senior executive positions in the organisation, in order to provide opportunities for talented women to become direciors, both executive
and non-executive At present 12 5% of our senior managers are female and the Board will be seeking to Increase this over ime

w%f"’

Alastar Lyons CBE
Chairman of the Nomination Committee
3 March 2014
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Corporate Responsibility Committee

Under the Corporate Renewal Programme, the Board committed 1o establish a Corporate Responsibility Committee which wili be responsible for
overseeing the Company's approach to all aspects of Corporate Responsibility, including its ethics and business conduct, the siructure of governance
its approach to health and safety 1ts contribution to the communities i which s people live and work, 1ts impact on the environment in which the
Company operates its approach 1o managing its relationships with customers, supplhers and other parties, and its nsk management framework

The terms of reterence for the Committee were designed dunng 2013 and formally approved in February 2014

The full terms of reference of the Committee are available online at www sercoe com

Membership and meetings

The Corporate Responsibility Commitiee consists of Executive and independent Non-Executive Directors The majonty of members are independent
Non-Executive Drectors

The Committee welcomed the appointment of Mike Clasper, Tamara Ingram and Rachel Lomax 1o the Committee from March 2014 and the broad range
of skills and expenence they bnng to it Rachel chairs the Committee and in additien to Mike and Tamara, the Commitiee compnses of Alastar Lyons
and Ed Casey The Commitiee will meet not less than four imes a year The Commuittee did not meet dunng 2013

The minutes of the Committee meetings wil be circulated to all directors

Principal activities during the year

The Commuttee held its first meeting in February 2014, which was chaired by Alastarr, at which the terms of reference were approved and formally
presented to the Board
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Dear Shareholder
On behalf of your Board, | am pleased to present our Directors' Remuneraton Repori for the year ended 31 December 2013

The Remuneration Committee continues to recognise the clear ink between pay and performance and prowides information on this in the Report by way of
additional disclosures on our reward and on cur remuneration decisions in ine with the recommendations of the UK Corporate Governance Code and
the requirements of the UKLA Listing Rules This Report also complies with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and the Large and Medium-sized
Compames and Groups (Accounts and Reports) (Amendment) Regulattons 2013 {Regulations)

We have structured the Report into two sections

1 Directors’ Remuneration Policy setting out alf elements of our Company's remuneration policy and the key factors that were taken into account in setting
that policy This policy 1s subject to a binding shareholder vote at this year s General Meeting on 8 May and thereafter at least every third year

2 Annual Report on Remuneration sething out payments and awards made to our directors and details on the lnk between Company performance and
remuneration for the financial year covered by the accounts This report on remuneration together with this letter 1s subject to an adwsory shareholder
vole at the General Meeting on 8 May

2013 Overview

As reported in the Strategic Review {pages 2 to 59), we have been through a very difficult and extremely unusua! period since July of last year, which has
had a major impact on the Company by reducing near-term growth, diverting management focus, and adding costs in order to strengthen the business
Whilst the impact will continue to be significant in 2014 as we implement the programme of corporate renewal and rebuild cur UK pipeling, the notdfication
by the UK Government in January that a positive assessment has been made of our corporate renewal plan will now allow the business lo begin to emerge
In a stronger position 1o compete in 1ts large and growing markets and rebuild value for shareholders Recognising the need for strong and effective
leadership | am delighted with the appointment of Rupert Soames as our new Group Chief Executive with effect from 1 June 2014 Also the range of skills
and experience of our current Board will be complemented by the addition of three new Non-Executive Directors one of whom, Tamara Ingram, will join
the Remuneraticn Committee

Remuneraticn outcomes in respect of 2013

During 2013 Chastopher Hyman resigned as Group Chief Executive and Ed Casey took on the role of Acting Group Chief Executive As communicated
at the time, and as descrnbed elsewhere i this Report, Chnis only received his contractual entittement of 12 months payment in lieu of notice, paid on
a phased basis and subject to mitigation He was allowed to retain the 2011 Performance Share Plan {PSP) and Deferred Bonus Plan (DBP) awards
that were due to vest within his notice pencd However, as the threshold performance conditions for these awards were not met, they lapsed entirely
and so no payment was made

Ed was appointed Acting Group Chief Executive in Oclober 2013 on a salary of USD1,046,000, with a pension supplement of 30% of salary His short and
long-term incentives are In hne with our nermal policy for the Group Chief Executive His bonus for the penod since his appointment in October 2013
has been based on a combination of financial KPls, in large part reflecting the performance of our US business which he had led for 10 months of
the year, alongside non-financial objectives relating to his role as Acting Group Chief Executive Our US business has had a strong year and Ed has made
an outstanding contribution as Acting Group Chief Executive, rapidly getting to gnips with our corporate renewal plan, demonstrating strong leadership in
a time of great instability, and showing great personal flexbility On the basis of this performance, a bonus award of 111% has been determined for
him for his penod since appointment (in Cctober 2013 Andrew Jenner, our Group Chief Financial Officer, has elecied not o take a bonus in respect of
2013 1n recognibion of the significant impact of events during the year on Serce's performance and share price Serco s financial performance for
the year 18 descnbed in more detail in the Strategic Report starting on page 2

As a consequence of our financial performance faling short of where we wanted 1t to be, the long-ferm incentive awards made under the PSP
and DBPin 2011, and due to vest in 2014 based on 2013 results, wifl lapse as we were below median against our peer group on a relative Total Shareholder
Return basis and EPS growth fell short of the threshold of 9% pa compound

These outcomes clearly demonstrate that out remuneration policy i1s effective in aligning pay with performance

Remuneration for 2014

The Committee conducted its regular annual review of salanes of the Executive Directars, taking nio account the challenges that have faced the business
last year, therr performance, the competitiveness of therr remuneration agamnst the UK market and the current economic chmate The Committee also has
regard to the overall pay decisions for employees across the Group as a whole With effect from 1 Aprl 2014, the salaries for the Executive Direclors will
increase by 1 5% to USD1 061,690 for the Acting Group Chief Executive and £463,855 for the Group Chief Financial Officer

Rupert Soames has been appointed on a base salary of £850 0600 with a first review date of 1 Apnl 2016, and will receive a pension supplement of 30%
of salary His incentives are in ine with cur current remuneration policy, as set out in this Report, and which will be put to shareholders for approval under
the hinding vote at the 2014 General Meeting In order to compensate him for awards he will forgo al Aggreko as a result of joining Serco, Rupert will
also receve an inidial one-cff long-term incentive award of 150% of salary under the PSP and an award of shares vesting over the penod to 1 Apnl 2017
The performance conditions on the one-oft PSP award will be relative TSR, Share Price {both tested following the announcement of the 2016 resulis) and
strategic abjectives Any Aggreko awards that have performance condiians attached will be replaced with Serco awards with performance conditions
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Under our corporate renewal plan, we have committed to review the Group's vanable incentivisation structures for the leadership such that they support
the process of behawioura! change and ensure there 1s a commitment to do what 1s night and to deal with our customers farly and transparently beyond
merely the achievement of financtal measures Changes to our leadership bonus plan have already been agreed for 2014 to reflect this objective
For 2014 performance measures in respect of the bonus for Executive Directors will be based 50% on fmancial metnics and 50% on non-financial metncs
related 10 implementing our corporate renewal plan, stabising our business and prowiding clanty of leadership and direction For the 2014 policy, we have
decided to make the {ollowing changes to improve the altgnment of our remuneration with long-term shareholder interests and sustamned performance

® We have introduced a two-year holding perod post-vesting for shares under the PSP and
& We have introduced malus prowisions pre-vesting for the PSP and DBR and claw back during the holding penod for PSP awards

We will keep our remuneration under review to ensure it remains strongly linked o the strategy and we will, theretore, dunng 2014 conduct a fuller review
of incentives and of our remuneration policy It 1s, therelore, possible that changes will be made for 2015, and a further binding policy voie In 2015 may
be required

Shareholder engagement

The Committee will engage as appropnate with our shareholders and key shareholder bodies dunng any policy review undertaken dunng 2014
In the short term we will also be consulting on the appropriate targets to apply to our long-term incentives for 2014 awards ahead of the
Annual General Meeting

I, and the Committee believe it 1s important io continue {o maintain effective channels of communicabhon with our shareholders The Commitiee takes the
views of shareholders very seriously and these views have been influential in shaping our policy and practice

The voting outcome at the 15 May 2013 General Meeting in 1espect of the Director s Remuneration Report for the year ending 31 December 201215 set
out on page 102 and reflected very strong shareholder support for the Company s remuneration policy

We welcome shareholder feedback on any aspects of executive remuneration

In summary, it has been an extraordinanly dificult ime for Serco over the last 8 months | believe that in making the necessary decisions the Remuneration
Commuittee has ngorously sought 1o ensure that reward 1s clearly linked to performance and shareholder inerests that no payment 1s made for tatlure or
loss of office and that the reward for Rupert Soames as our new Group Chief Executive 1s nosttioned appropnately to attract someone of his leadership
capability and commercial track-record, both of which are cntical for Serco's future success

.

Angie Risley
Charr of Remuneration Commitiee
3 March 2014
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At a glance. implementation of remuneration policy for 2014 and key decisions for 2013

The table below summarises how key elements of the remuneration policy will be implemented in 2014 and key decisions taken by the
Remuneration Committee in relation to base pay and incentives for Executive Directors in respective of 2013 year-end EPS targets will
be determined before the General Meeting on 8 May 2014 and following consultation with Serca's major investors

Element Acting CEQ (Ed Casey) CFO {Andrew Jenner)
Base salary from 1 April 2014 $1,061,680 £463,855
Pension 30% of salary including cost of 33% of salary
participation in US 401K plan
Annual bonus Maix 150% of salary Max 130% of salary
On-target  75% of salary On-target  65% of salary

Annual bonus measures

® 50% financial targets including revenue, PBT, Free Cash Flow
& 50% non-financiat targets from programme of corporate renewal The weighiing has been
increased to reflect the importance of the corporale renewal pricnties for 2014

Deferred Bonus Plan (DBFP)

Maximum of 50% of eamed bonus can be deferred to purchase investment shares,
each indwidual investment share purchased will be matched {on a gross investment basis)
by a maximum of two ‘'matching’ shares

DBP measures

EPS I1s the sole measure to determine the vesting of matching shares measurad over three years

Performance Share Plan (PSP)

Maximum 200% of salary Maximum 175% of salary

PSP measures

Measured over three years with one-third each on

® relative TSR measured against the companies in the FTSE 51 to 130
(excluding investment trusts),

® 2016 EPS

® Share Price

Relative TSR will be measured from a base-point of the average over the 30 days to

4 March 2014 and the end point for both Relative TSR and Share Price will be measured
over the 30 days fellowing anncuncement cf the 2016 results

Performance Vesting Relative TSR 2016 EPS Share price

Threshold 25% Median Targets to be confirmed
Maximum 100% Upper Quartle ahead of General Meeting

Holding requirement

Vested shares from the PSP to be held for two years post vesting (after payment of tax)

Shareholding requirement

200% of salary 150% of salary

Malus and clawback

® Malus provisions will apply to PSP and DBP awards dunng the three-year performance
period prior to vesting

® Clawback provisions will apply duning the two-year post-vesting holding peniod to shares
ansing from PSP awards

Changes in policy from 2013

® Weighting of non-financial targets increased from 20% to 50%

® Two-year holding period introduced on PSP awards

® Pre-vesting malus infroduced for PSP and D8P

@ Post-vesting claw-back introduced for the two year holding on PSP

Year-end decisions made

Executive Directors

1 April 2014 salary review 15% 15%
2013 Bonus outcome
& Currency value $216,734 Bonus waved
® % of salary 111% Nil
® % of maximum 74% Nil
2011 LTIP vesting Nil Nil
2011 DBP vesting N/A Nil
Non-Executlve Directors
Non-Executlve Directors Fees Chalrmanship Membership
Audit Committee £12,500 (no change) £5,000
Corporate Responsibility Committee £15,000 £8,000
Nomination Committee - -
Remuneration Committee £10,000 {nc change) £5,000
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Directors’ Remuneration Policy

The following report details the remuneration policy and the decisions on remuneration of the Directors of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2013 This report has been drafted in complance with the disclosure requirements of the UK Corporate Governance Code and the requirements of
the UKLA Listing Rules This Report also complies with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and the Large and Medium-sized Companies and
Groups (Accounts and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations 2013 (Regulations)

The remuneration policy report 1s subject to a binding vote at the 2014 AGM and if approved will take effect from 8 May 2014 and wil] apply untif
Sharehelders next consider and vole on the Policy

The directors’ remuneratton policy will be displayed on the company s website, in the investor area, after the 2014 AGM

Remuneration Policy

Serco s remuneration policy supports the achievement of the Company's long-term strategic objectives Serco’s approach to executive remuneration
1 designed to

& Support Serco's long-term fulure growth, strategy and values

® Algn the financial interests of executives and shareholders

& Provide market competilive reward opportuniies for performance In line with expectations and deliver sigruficant iinancial rewards for sustained
out-performance

@ Enable Serco to recruit and retain the best with the required skills and experience in all our chosen markets

# Be based on a clear rationale which participants, shareholders and other stakeholders are able to understand and suppart
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Future policy table

The remuneration package for Executive Directors consists of base salary, annual bonus, long-term share-based incentives, pension and other benefits

The Company's policy 1s to ensure that a significant proportion of the package Is related to periormance

The following table sets out each element of reward and how it supports the Company's shorl and long term strategic objectives Whilst the table
1s focused on Executive Directors lhe table set out on page 90 provides further information of how pay policies are set for the broader employee

populaton

How the element
suppaorts our
strategic objectives

Operation of the element

Maximum potential value
and payment at threshold

Performance metrics
used, weighting and time
period applicable

Base Salary

To help recruit and retain
executives of the necessary
calibre to execute Serco's
strategic objectives and to
recognise an individual's
experience, responsibility and
performance

To ensure base salanes are

competitive in the market in
which the individual 1s employed

Pay levels are designed to be
competitive and farr and reflect
the skills and performance

of ndviduals

Salanes are benchmarked from
time to time aganst salanes

for the Company’s relevant

peer group, with the market
positioning dependent on the
scale of challenges intrnsic

1o the individual’s role and
individual’s ability, experience
and role In some circumstances
there may be phased movement
to that positioning

Salanes are reviewed annually
and any changes are efiective
from 1 Apnl in the tinancial year

Over the policy period, base
salanes for Executive Directors
will be set at an approprate level
within the peer group and will
normally increase at ho more
than the greater of inflation

and salary increases made to
the general workforce in the
junsdiction the Executive Director
is based in

Higher increases may be made
In exceptional circumstances, for
example when there 1s a change
In role or responsibility

None

Benefits

To prowvide a competitive level
of benefits

Serco pays the cost of providing
the benefits on a monthly

basis or as required for one-off
events such as recaiving
financial advice

These include but are not imited
to car allowances, pnvate
medical insurance, permanent
healthcare msurance, life

cover, annual allowance for
independent financial advice,
and voluntary health checks
every two years

Refocation benefits will be
provided in a manner that reflects
ndividual circumstances and
Serca's relocation benefits
policy For example, relocation
benefits could include temporary
accommodation for the
Executive and dependents and
tax equalisation

Benefits are reviewed annually
against market practice and are
designed 1o be competitive

The maximum opportunity for
benefits 1s defined by the nature
of the benefits and the cost of
providing them As the cost of
providing such benefits vares
based on market rates and
cther factors, there 1s ng formal
maximum monetary value

Nene
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How the element
supports our
strategic objectives

Operation of the element

Maximum potential value
and payment at threshold

Performance metrics
used, weighting and time
period apphcable

Annual Bonus

Incentivise execulives to achieve
specific predetermined goals
durnng a one-year period
Reward ongoing stewardship
and contribution to core values

Bonus result 1s deterrmined by
the Commuittee after the year end,
based on performance against
objectives and targets

Annual bonuses are paid after
the end of the financial year end
to which they relate There s

an cptional deferral of 50%

of the total earned bonus into
Serco shares

On change of control the
Remuneration Committee may
pay bonuses on a pro-rata basis
measured on performance up to
the date of change of control

Maxaimum bonus opporturity

150% of salary for CEQ
130% of salary tor CFO

On-target bonus

75% of salary for CEO
65% of salary for CFO

Threshold bonus 1s 20% of
maxsimum bonus opporturity

Bonus 1s earned on the bastis of
achievement of a mix of financial
and non-financial objectives of
which at least 50% are financial

Finaneial measures are based on
the Company's Key Performance
Indicators (KPls) and the non-
financial measures are based

on key strategic objectives

Performance 1s measured over
the financial year

The Commitiee has discretion
to vary the weighting of
performance metncs over the life
of this remuneration policy Alsa
the Committee has discretion

n exceptional creumstances

1o vary performance measures
part-way through a performance
year if there 1s a significant event
(such as a major transaction or
fransition in role} which causes
the Committee to believe the
onginal performance conditions
are no longer appropriate

Deferred Bonus Plan (*“DBP"™)

This plan s 1o Incentivise
executives to achieve supernor
returns for shareholders and
to align executives 1o
shareholder interests

Executive Directors can efect 1o
defer, tor three financial years, up
to 50% of their annual bonus by
purchasing investment shares

Each individual snvestment
share purchased will be
matched {on a gross investment
basis) by a maximum of two
'matching’ shares

Divdends are renvested and
distnbuted only In respect
of shares that vest at the end
of the performance penod

The Commitiee, at its discretion
may attach a post-vesiing
halding pened for awards

In circumstances such as fraud,
mesconduct and/or misstatement
by a paricipant, the Company
will be entitled 1o withhold before
the vesting date the value of

any shares to be released or the
payment of cash equivalents
under the DBP

On a change of controt awards
vest pro-ata for ime and
performance up to the date of
change of control unless the
Committee decides otherwise

As provided in the plan rules
approved by shareholders, the
Committee has discretion to
adjust awards in the event of, for
example corporate restructunng
or capiial events

For maximum performance, each
investment share 1s maiched by
two matching shares

For threshold performance each
nvestment share 1s matched by
half a maiching share

Earnings Per Share ("EPS"} Is the
sole measure to determine the
vesting of matching shares

The performance condiion is
measured over three years

In exceptional crcumstances the
Committee retains discretion to
change performance measures
and targets and the weightings
attached to performance
measures part-way through the
performance penod if there is

a significant event (for example

a major transaction) which
causes the commiitee o

believe the onginat measures,
weightings or targets are

no longer appropriate

The Committee has discretion to
vary the proportion of awards that
vest, to ensure that the cutcomes
are far and appropnate and
reflect the underlying financial
performance of the Group
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How the element
supports our
strategic objectives

Operation of the element

Maximum potential value
and payment at threshold

Performance metrics
used, weighting and time
perod applicable

Performance Share Plan
(“PSP")

To diive achievement of longer
term objectives, increase
shareholder value akgned
closely to creating shareholders’
interests

Awards of nominal cost options/
conditional shares made annually

Dvidends are reinvested and
distnbuted only in respect
of shares that vest at the end
of the performance penod

The Commiitee, at its discretion,
may attach a post-vesting
holding penod tor awards

In circumstances such as fraud,
misconduct and/or misstatement
by a paricipant the Company
will be entitled to withhold before
the end of the holding pernod

the value of any shares to be
released or the payment of cash
eguivalents under the PSP

On a change of control awards
vest pro-fata for time and
performance up to the date

of change of control unless the
coemmittee decldes otherwise

As provided in the plan rules
appraved by shareholders,
the Committee has discretion
to adjust awards in the avent
of, for example, corporate
restructuring or capital events

Face value on grant of 200%
of base salary for the CEC
and 175% for the CFO

25% of the award vests for
threshold performance

Vesting 1s dependent on at least
two performance conditions
chosen from

e EPS
® Relative TSR
® Share Price or absolute TSR

The measures are mdependent,
and are measured over three
years The weighting of each

1s determined prior to award
The Remuneration Committee
has discretion to adopt other
measures following consultation
with major shareholders

In exceptional circumstances the
Committee retans discretion fo
change performance measures
and targets and the weightings
attached to performance
measures part-way through the
performance penod If there 1s a
significant event (such as a major
transaction) which causes the
commtiee to beheve the cnginal
measuras, weightings or targets
are no longer appropriate

The Committee has discretion to
vary the proportion of awards that
vest, to ensure that the outcomes
are farr and approprnate and
reflect the undertying hinancial
performance of the Group

Pension Executive Direclors may Since 2010, Andrew Jenner None
To provide funding for ratirement participate In tax-approved ceased accruing benefits in the
pension plans operaied by pension scheme and has been in
the Company receipt of a cash allowance equal
A cash allowance 1s avalable to 33% of base salary in heu of
for those not participating in further pension provision
a pension scheme or whose Andrew remains entitled to
paricipation exceeds one lump sum and widow s pension
or more tax allowances benetits should he die before
retirement and whiie still
employed by Serco
Ed Casey participates in the
US 401k pension and receives
a cash allowance In fieu of
pension equal io 30% of
base salary less the cost of
parbcipation in the US 401k plan
Shareholding Requirement Unvested performance shares CEO - 200% of salary None

To suppari long-term
commitment to the Company
and the aignment of employee
Interests with those of
shareholders

or options are not taken mnto
account Share pnce 1s measured
at end of each financial year

Executives are required to
retain in shares 50% of the
net value of any performance
shares vesting or options
exercised until they satisfy
the shareholding reguirement

CFO — 150% of salary

The Commiitee has the
discretion o increase the
shareholding requirements
of the Executve Directors
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Notes to the policy table:

Performance measures and targets

The table below sets out a raticnale for the performance conditions chosen for annual bonus, Deferred Bonus Plan and Performance Share Plans

and how targets wete set

Element

Performance measures
and rationale

How targets are set

Annual bonus

® Financal and non-financial performance
measures

® The Comrmitiee selected the financial
measures based on the Comparny s Key
Performance Indicators (KPls} and the
non-financial measures were indvidually
set and based on key strategic goals

#® The performance targets are determined

annually by the Commitiee taking into
account analyst consensus and the
Company's forecasts

Deferred Bonus Plan

® EPS is the sole measure
to determine the vesiing
of matching shares

® The Committee selected EPS as
It 15 a key pertermance indicator
both for the Company and its
major shareholders

® The Committee believes EPS can
be directly influenced by executive
decision-making while also reflecting
shareholder value

Performance Share Plan

@ EPS Relative TSR and Share Price or
absolute TSR

@ As set out above EPS 1s an important
measure of shareholder value which
can also be influenced by executive
decision making

@ Relative TSR reflects our performance
relative to other companies in which
investors could chose to invest

@ The rationale for the share price
measure 15 explicily to recognise the
recent falls in share price and to ensure
that the full award 1s not delivered
unless shareholders benefit from
a significant recovery in value over
the next three years

EPS targets are set In reference to
analyst forecasts, Company business
plans and levels of EPS required

o support our share price goals

Share price targets wili be se! to reflect
what the Commitiee deterrines as
stretching, taking nto account the
recent fall in share price and histornc
share pnce levels, but also what 1s
realistic and consistent with achievable
levels of financial performance

The Committee consults with a
selection of the largest shareholders
and the voting guidance services when
determining targets for the Company's
LTl arrangements
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Remuneration policy for other employees

The remuneration policy descrnbed in the previous table applies specifically to Executive Direciors of the Gioup The Commitiee believes that the
structure of management reward at Serco should be Iinked to Serco’s strategy and performance The table below explains how the remuneration
polcy has been cascaded below Executive Directors to achieve alignment of policy across the organisation

Element Difference in remuneration polcy for other employees

Base salary The same pnnciples and considerations that are applied to Executive Directors are,
as far as possible, applied to all employees

Benefits Serco also has provisions for market aligned benefits for all employees

Pension The Group cperates a number of defined benefit schemes and defined contribution

schemes Individuals who have exceeded certain tax allpwances may be offered cash
allowances in lieu of pension benefits

Annual bonus Approximately 600 members of the Global Leadership Team are eligible for a bonus award
under The Leadership Team Bonus Scheme

Deferred Bonus Plan (' DBP") Members of the Executive Committee are invited to participate in the DBP on the same
terms as the Executive Directors

Performance Share Plan (*PSP"} The PSP 15 awarded to approximately 600 employees in the Global Leadership Team

Sharesave An all-employee scheme Opbions are normally granted at a discount of 10% to the

market value and have ne performance conditions The Executive Directors do not
participate In Sharesave

Consliderations of conditions elsewhere in the Group

Although the Committee does not consult direcily with employees on the Directors’ Remuneration Policy, the Commitiee does consider the general
base salary increase remuneration asrangements and employment conditions for the broader employee poputation when determining the remuneration
policy for the Executive Directors
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lllustrations of application of the Remuneration Policy
The charts tlustrate the compostion and value of the different elements of remuneration that the Executive Director's will receive for below threshold
target and maximum corporate performance

The graphs show an estimate of the remuneration that could be receved by Executive Directors under the Policy set out in this Report Each of the bars
15 broken down 1o show how the total undes each scenano 1s made up of fixed elements of remuneration, the annual bonus and share-based incentives

The charts indicate that a significant proportion of both 1arget and stretch pay 1s performance-related For target performance - vanable pay accounts
for nearly two-thirds of total pay for the Acting Group Chief Executive, and over half for the Group Chief Financial Officer

Below Threshold Target performance Maximum performance
Fixed elements Base salary as at 1 Apnl 2014
of remuneration Estimated value of benefits prowided under the remuneration pohey

Cash allowance in lieu of pension 33% of salary for CFO
Cash allowance in lieu of penston 30% of salary for Acting CEO less the cost of participation in the US 401K plan
Ed Casey s fixed elements of pay are convened into GBP with an exchange rate of GBP1 = USD1 609

Annual bonus 0% 75% Acting CEO 150% Acting CEQ
{payoul as a % of salary} 65% CFO 130% CFO
Deferred Bonus Plan Nil 1 1 Matching Shares® 2 Matching Shares’
Performance Share Plan Nl 50%’ 100%’

{as a % of face value}

'The LT) values reflact target and maxsmum vesting of the proposed 2014 award Share price maverment or dvidend eguivalent has not been incorporated into the above figures
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Approach to Recruitment Remuneration

Serco operates in diverse markets and geographies and many of its competitors for talent are outside the UK In the event of hinng a new Executive
Dieector the Committee will typrcally align the remuneration package with the above Remuneration Policy, which provides for a maximum total incentive
under bonus, PSP and DBP combined of 500% of satary in any one year {assuming maxmum bonus, maximum invesiment in the DBP and maximum
achievermnent of all performance condiions) This 1s the maxmum level of incentives excluding buy-cuts that will apply to new recruts Different
performance conditions may apply for new recruits from those set out In the policy, depending on the particular crcumstances at the time (which
could, for example, include the appointment of an intenm Executive Director)

In determining appropriate base salary on hinng a new Executive Director the Committee will take into account all factors it considers relevant
including therr experience and calibre, current total remuneration levels of remuneration for companies in the Committee's chosen peer group,
and the remuneration required to attract the best candidate for Serco The Committee will seek to ensure that the arrangemnent 1s in the best
nterests of the Company and iis shareholders without paying more than 1s necessary New promotes or recruis to the board may on occasion
have therr salaries set below the targeted policy level while they become established in therr role In such cases, salary increases may be higher
than wnflation or the general UK workiorce increase until the targeted market positioning 1s achieved

Where It 1s necessary to compensate a candidate for entittements and/or unvested long-term incentive awards from an existing employer that are
forfented, the Committee will seek to match the quantum, structure and imeframe of the award with that of the awards forfeited In determining the
form and quantum of replacement awards, the Committee will consicer whether existing awards are stll subject to performance requirements and the
extent to which those are likely to be met, with the aim of providing an cpportunity of broadly equivalent value The principle will be 1o seek to replace
awards that remain significanily at sk for petrformance at the candidate’s current empioyer with awards subject to periormance at Serco and o seek
to make any other replacement awards in the form of Serco shares, subject to appropnate vesting or holding requirements Any compensation for
awards forfeited s not taken into account In determining the maximum incentive award leve!

The recruitment policy also includes the additional prowsion of benefits in kind, pensions and other allowances, such as relocation, education and
tax equahsation in line with Serco policies as may be requred in order to achieve a successful recruitment The policy for recruitment also includes
benefits that are either not significant in value or are required by legislation It 1s anticipated that any new Executive Director would be offered

a pension allowance equal to 30% of base salary in lleu of pension

Where a new Executive Director 15 an internal promote, the Committee reserves discretion to allow the new Executive Director to continue to benefit
from existing awards granted, or benefit entitlements {such as pension} prior to appointment to the Board

The policy on the recruitment of new Non-Executive Direciors 1s 1o apply the same remuneration elements as {or the existing Non-Executive Directors
It 1s not intended that day rates or benefits in kind be offered, although in exceptional circumstances such remuneration may be required in currently
unforeseen curcumstances

The Comrruttee will include in future Annual Repons detals of the implementation of the Policy in respect of any such recruitment to the Board

Element of remuneration Maximum percentage of salary
Maximum variable pay 500%

normally compnsing

® Annual bonus 150:’(’

® Long-term incentives 350%

Penston allowance 30% cash altlowance in heu of pension

Note Maximum percentage of salary for annual bonus and long-term incentives excludes compensation for awards forfested
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Service contracts and loss of office payments

The palicy for senace contracts for new Directors 1s shown in the table below Existing Directors have service contracis entered into before 27 June 2012

which have aspects that differ irom policy as highighted underneath the table The Committee may under this policy at any ime with the agreement of a

Durector, alter aspects of ther existing contracts so that they are in line with the policy for new Directors Copies of the directors’ service contiacts and letters

of appointment are available for inspection at the Company's registered ofice The date of appointment for each Director 1s shown in the table helow |

Provision Detailed terms
MNotice penod @ 12 months notice from the Company
@ 12 months’ notice from the Director

Termination payment

® Paymentin lieu of nolice compnsing

® Base salary
® Pension allowance
® Selected benefits

All of the above would be paid in instalments in accordance with the Director’s contractual payment
schedule, subject to an abligation on the part of the Director to mitigate his loss such that payments

will either reduce or cease completely, in the event that the Director gains new ernployment/remunaration
In the event of a compromise or severance agreement, the Committee may make payrnents it considers
reasonable in settlement of potential legal claims It may include in such payments reasonable
reimbursement of professional fees incurred by the Director in connection with such agreements

and reascnable payments in respect of restnctive undertakings

The Remuneration Committee may agree that if a Director steps down from the Board then for

a transiional period notice (iIncluding payment in lieu of notice} would contnue to be based on the
equivalent of up to twelve months’ notice based on therr rate of salary and benefits while a Director
payable in instalments and subject to mitigation

The reimbursement of repatnation costs or fees for professional or outplacement advice may also be
ncluded in the terminabion package, as deemed reasonable by the Committee as may the continuation
of benefits for a imited penod

Treatment of annual bonus on
terminahion under plan rules

No payment unless employed on dale of payment of bonus except for good leavers' defined as death
disability, redundancy and other circumstances at the Commitiee s discretion

‘Good leavers are entifled to a bonus pro-rated to the penod of service dunng the year, subject to the
outcome of the performance meinics and paid at the usual ime

The Committee has discretion to reduce the entitlement of a ‘good leaver’ in line with performance

and the cireumstances of the termination

Treaiment of unvested
performance shares or options
and unvested matching delerred
share awards on termination
under plan rules

All awards lapse except for good leavers' ill-health, injury or disabibity, death, redundancy, retirement,
change of control {as defined in the plan rules) and other circumstances at the Commitiee's discretion
{to the extent that they allow good leaver’ treatment for particular awards)

For good leavers’ vesting is pro-rated on a ime basis and 1s dependent on the achieved performance
over the perfgrmance penod

The Commuttee has the discretion to vary the level of vesting to reflect the indwdual performance, and
may, depending on the circumstances of the departure allow some awards to vest while fapsing others

Change of control

Where the Director leaves the Company following a change of control, whether or not he s dismissed
or he elects to leave on notice, he will be entitled to receive a payment equivalent to up o one year's
rermnuneration

Exercise of discretion

Intended only to be used to prevent an outcome that 1s not consistent with performance ‘
The Committee's determination will take into account the particular circumsiances of the
Executive Director's departure and the recent performance of the Company

NEDs

Appointed for initial three-year term

Appointment may be terminated on three months' written natice

All NEDs are subject to annual re-election

No compensation or other benefits are payable on early termination

Notes

Contractual terms for current Directors existing before 27 June 2012 and not subsequently amended have principal areas that deviate from the policy above as follows

¢ Inrespect of Andrew Jenner, the notice penod from the Director 1s six months and in the event of Change of Control notice reduces o one manth in the six months
followsng the date of the Change of Control

o Inrespect of Ed Casey the notice penod s six months from the Company and two weeks from the Director

e Inrespect of Andrew Jenner and Ed Casey, thete are no clauses for termination payments to be paid in instalments or for such payments to be migated

Whilst unvested Awards will normally lapse the Committee may in is absolute discretion allow for Awards ta continue until the normal vesting date and be satisfied
subject to achievement of the performance condiions In such circumstances Awards vesting will normally be prorated on a time apportioned basis unless the

Commiitee determinges otherwse

Any such discretion in respect of leavers would only be applied by the Committee to good leavers where it considers that continued participation is ustified for example
by reference to past performance to the date of leaving or by the requirement to achieve an ordery transition The claw back provisions would continue to apply in the

event that such discretion were exercised

Service contracts outine the components of remuneration paud to the indwvdual but do nat prescribe how remuneration levels may be adjusted from year to year |

93



Serco Group plc | Annual report and accounts 2013
Directors’ Report

Remuneration Report

The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors’ Fees

In accordance with the Company’s policy, the fees of the Charman and the Non-Executive Crectors, which are determuned by the Board, are set
at a level which 1s designed to attract indwduals with the necessary expenence and ability 1o make a substantial contribution to the Group's atfans

How the element
supports our strategic
objectives

Operation of the element

Performance metncs
used, weighting and time
penod applcable

Maximum potential value
and payment at threshold

To attract Non-Executive
Directors with the necessary
expenence and ability to make
a substantial contribution to
the Group's affairs

The fees of the Chairman are
determined anc approved by
the Remuneration Commitiee
{excluding Charrman} and fees
of the Non-Executive Directors,
are determined and approved
by the Board as a whole

The Chairman receives a base fee

The following fees are pard to
Non-Executive Directors
in addition to therr base fee

® SID fee
e Committee Charmanship fee
@ Committee membership fee

Fees are reviewed on an
annual basis aganst a relevant
peer group and taking into
consideration market practice

An allowance s payable io
directors for attendance at
meetings outside their country of
residence where such meetings
involve iInter-continental travel

In addition, reasonable travel
and business related expenses
are pad

Non-Executwe Directors are

not entitled to receve incentives
and pension

Non-Executive Directors are

encouraged to hold shares in
the Group but are not subject
to a shareholding requirement

Non-Executive Director fees are
not performance related

Over the policy penod, base
fees tor current Non-Executive
Directors will be set at an
appropriate level within the peer
group and increases will typically
be broadly in line with market
The base {ees or fees for
specific Non-Executive Directors
roles may be reviewed at any
time based on the anticipated
responsibility and time
commitment involved

Current fee levels are shown in
the section on iImplementation
of policy

94




[ Tommermm | ]

Dates of Director’s Service Contracts/Letters of Appointment

Director Date of appointment to the Board
Ed Casey 24 October 2013
Andrew Jenner 3 May 2002
Alastarr Lyons 16 March 2010
Ange Risley 1 Apnl 2011
Ralph D Crosby Jr 30 June 2011
Malcolm Wyman 1 January 2013
Mike Clasper 3 March 2014
Tamara Ingram 3 March 2014
Rachel Lomax 3 March 2014
Notes

All drectors are put torward annually for re-election at the AGM
Chnstopher Hyman was appointed to the Board on 1 April 1999 and ceased to be a director on 25 Ociober 2013

Annual Report on Remuneration

Statement of Implementation of Remuneration Policy for year ended 31 December 2013

The remuneration policy tor the year ended 31 December 2013 was consistent with the policy on wiuch shareholders will vole at the 2014 AGM apart
from the following that are being implemented for 2014

® Malus and clawback provisions did not apply under the Deferred Bonus Plan and Performance Share Plan for awards prior to 2014

& A holding penod did not apply to the Performance Share Plan after the vesting penod for awards prior to 2014

@ Committee membership fees were not paid to Non-Executive Directors prior to 2014

Single Figure - Directors’ remuneration (audited information)

Executive Director’s single figure

The following table shows a single total figure of remuneration in respect of qualifying services for the 2013 financial year for each Executive Direcior,
together with comparative figures for 2012 Details of NEDs' fees are set out in the next sechon

Ed Casey Chnstopher Hyman Andrew Jenner

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

£ £ £ £ £ £

Salary and fees 121,113 N/A 626,977 744,500 452,750 436,750
Taxable benefits! 2,634 N/A 59,572 77 254 72,553 77,755
Bonus? 134,701 N/A - 812,250 - 412,984
(1K - N/A - 701,435 - 359,725
Pension® 36,334 N/A 206,902 245,685 149,408 144,128
Total 294,782 N/A 893,451 2,581,124 674,711 1,431,342

Notes

1 The value of the taxable benefits relate 10 the provision of independent financial advice car allowance {fully inclusive of alf scheme costs including insurance
and maintenance} health care and private medical assessments

2 The bonuses shown include performance bonuses earned in the penod under review but not paxd until the following financial year

3 The value of shares vested in the year 1s based on an average markel value over the last quarter of the inancial year The vesting date for the PSP 1s 31 March 2014
and the DBP 1s 4 Apnl 2034 however these awards did not reach minmum vesting level so lapsed in full

4 The pension amount includes payments made in lieu of pension calculated as a percentage of base salary from which the Executive Qirectors make their own
pension arrangements and which do not include the value of accrued pension under the DB scheme

5 The 2012 LTl figures have been updated to reflect the actual share price on the date of vesting The share pnce on 28 March 2013 when the DBP vested was 632p
and on & Apnl when the PSP vested it was 611 5p

6 Ed Casey s remuneration 15 paid in US dollars and relates to the panad (25 Octaber to 31 December 2013) in the role of Acting Group Chsef Executive tor the purpose
of the single figure £1 = USD 1609

7 Chnstopher Hyman s remuneration 1s prorated 1o 25 October 2013
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The annual base salanes of the Executive Directors for the year ended 31 December 2013 were

Director Base salary Eftective Date Increase

Ed Casey $1,046,000 25 October 2013 N/A
Christopher Hyman £779,000 1 Apnl 2013 386%
Andrew Jenner £457,000 1 Apnl 2013 3 86%

Variable pay outcomes (audited information)

Performance-related annual bonus

For 2013, the Group Chief Financial Officer s bonus was on achieving a mix of financial and non-inanciat objectives which were weighted 80% and 20%
respectively The financial measures were based on the Company's Key Performance indicators (KPls) and the non-financial measures were indmdually
set and based on key strategic goals

Andrew Jenner asked not to be considered for a bonus payment in 2013

For 2013, Ed Casey s bonus for the penod (25 October to 31 December) he was Acting Group Chief Executive was based on achieving a mix

of financial and non-financiat objectives The financial measures were based on the Company's Key Performance Indicators, in large part reflecting
the performance of our US business which he had led 10 months of the year alengside non-inancial obiectives relating to his role as Acting Group
Chief Executive Our US business has had a strong year and Ed has made an outstanding contrbution as Acting Group Chief Executive, rapidly
gething to gnps with our corporate renewal plan, demonstrating strong leaderstup in a time of great instabibty, and showing great personal flexibilsty
On the basis of this performance, a bonus award of 111% has been deterrmned for him for his penod since appointment in October 2013

Christopher Hyman asked not to be considered for a bonus payment in 2013

Deferred Bonus Plan (DBP)

The LTI amount included in the 2013 single total figure of remuneration includes the DBP matching share award which was awarded n 2011
For matching awards which completed therr performance penod on 31 December 2013, achievement against the measure s shown in the
table below

Performance condition Weighting Threshold Maximum Actual Percentage
- 25% ~ 100% of max
vesting vesting achieved

EPS compound growth For 50% 9% 14% 7 69% No shares vest

threshold performance each
invested share 1s matched
by half a share rising to

a maich of two shares at
maximum performance

Relative TSR For median 50% Median Upper guartile Below median No shares vest
performance each (invested

share (s matched by half

a share nsing to a match

of two shares for upper

quartile performance

Total 0%

For awards made in 2012 onwards, EPS 15 the sole performance measure

For performance between threshold and upper quartile or maximum the number of matching shares will be determined on a straight line basis
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The awards made to the Executive Directors were as follows

Value of

No of shares No of shares Vesting vesting

2011 DBP Matching share awards awarded vesting date £

Christopher Hyman 173,898 0 4 Apni 2014 0

Andrew Jenner 88,033 0 4 Apnit 2014 o]
Note

1 Ed Casey did not participate in the DBP in 2011

Performance Share Plan {PSP)

The LTI amount included in the 2013 single total figure of remuneration includes the PSP award which was awarded in 2011 Face value awards on grant
were 200% of base salary for the Group Chief Executive and 175% for the Group Chief Financial Cfficer For the PSP awards which completed ther
performance perniod on 31 December 2013, achievement against the measure 1s shown in the table befow

Performance condthion Weighting Threshold Maximum Actual Percentage
- 25% -100% of max
vesting vesting achieved

EPS growth For threshold 30% 9% 14% 7 69% No shares vest

performance 25% of the award

vests nising on a straight line

basis to 100% at maximum

performance

Relative TSR For median 70% Median Upper guartile Below median No shares vest

performance each invested
share 1s matched by half

a share nsing to a match

of two shares for upper
guartile performance

Total

0%

For awards made in 2012 onwards the EPS weighting was increased from 30% to 50% and the TSR weighting was reduced from 70% te 50%

The awards made to the Executive Directors were as follows

Value of
No of shares No of shares Vesting vesling
2011 PSP share awards awarded vasting date |y
Ed Casey 73,899 0 31 March 2014 0
Christopher Hyman 247,568 0 31 March 2014 0
Andrew Jenner 127,652 0 31 March 2014 0
Note

1 Ed Casey s PSP award was made prior 1o him being appointed to the Board
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Single Figure — Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration (audited information)

Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration consists of cash fees paid monthly with increments for positions of additional responsibility In addition,

an nter-continental travel allowance and reasonable travel and related business expenses are paid No bonuses are paid 1o Non-Executive Directors
Non-Executive Directors’ fees are not performance related

Non-Executive Directors are encouraged to hold shares in the Group but are not subject to a shareholding requirement

The fees and terms of engagement of Non-Executive Directors are reviewed on an annual basis, taking into consideration market practice
and are approved by the Board

Board fee Board fee
{including (ncluding
Chairmanship Chatrmanship
fees) fees} Allowances Allowances Total Total
£ £ £ £ £ £
2013 202 2013 2012 2013 2012
Alastair Lyons
Chairman, Charman of Nemination
Committee and Member of
Remnuneration Committee 267,500 257,500 10,000 5000 277,500 262 500
Angie Risley
Chairman of Remuneration Committee,
Member of Audit and Nomination
Commitiees 60,000 56,666 - 5,000 60,000 61,666
Ralph D Crosby Jr 50,000 50,000 30,000 25,000 80,000 75,000
Malcolm Wyman
Chairman of Audit Commmittee, SID,
Member of Nomination
and Remuneration Committees 64,250 N/A - N/A 64,250 N/A
Total 441,750 364,166 40,000 35,000 481,750 399,166

Notes
1 Fees paid to the Chairman were increased from £260 Q0D to £270 000 with effect from 1 April 2013
2 £5 (00 s payable for each occasion that requires inter-continental travel cutside of the director s country of residence

Annual NED Fees

Base fee Base fee

1 April 2013 1 Agnl 2012 Perceniage
Role £ £ Increase
Chairman 270,000 260 000 38%
Seniar Independent Director 10,000 10,000 0%
Board fees 50,000 50,000 0%
Audit Committee Chairmanship 12,500 12,500 0%
Remuneration Committee Chairmanship 10,000 10,000 0%
Travel to international meetings 5,000 5,000 0%
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Performance graph and table

This graph shows the value as at 31 December 2013, of a £100 investment in Serco on 31 December 2008 compared with €100 invested in the
FTSE250 index on the same date N has been assumed that all dvidends paid have been reinvested The TSR level shown at 31 December each year
ts the average of the closing daily TSR levels for the 30-day penod up to and including that date

CEO’s pay in last five financial years

Year ended 31 December Group CEO 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Ed Casey - - - - 294,782
CEO single figure remuneration {£}

Chnistopher Hyman 3 625 830 2,646,894 2,826,038 2,582,185 893,451
Annual bonus cutcome Ed Casey - - - - 74%
(as % of maximum opportunity Chinistopher Hyman 90% 91% 81% 72% N/A
LTI vesting outcome Ed Casey - - - - 0%
{as % of maximum opportunity) Christopher Hyman 295 42% 168 77% 80% 63 60% 0%

Percentage change in CEQ’s remuneration

In the year ended 31 December 2013 Chnistopher Hyman receved a 3 86% salary increase, no increase (n taxable benefits and 100% less i bonus than
the equivalent amounts for the year ended 31 December 2012 The average percentage changes for employees in the leadership team were 2%,

0% and a 39 3% reduction respectively

Relative importance of spend on pay
The chart below details the percentage change in dividends and overall expenditure on pay compared with the previous financial year

Serco considers overall expenditure on staff pay in the context of the general finances of the company This includes the determination of the annual

salary increase budget, the annual grant of shares and annual bonus for the business

"Dividend”, and “Overall Expenditures on Staff Pay” have the same meaning as in the preparation of the accounts of the company
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Pensions {auditled Information)
As at 31 December 2013, there were no Executive Direclors actively participating in or aceruing addiianal entitlernent in the Serco Pension
and Lite Assurance Scheme which 1s a defined benefits scheme

Payments for loss of office (audited information})
Chnistopher Hyman ceased 1o be a director of the Company on 25 October 2013 and left employment of the Company on 8 November 2013,
he was paid £47,430 dunng this period

The principle adopted by the Committee when calculating his loss of office payment was to pay contractual entittements and to allow a retention
of awards that would have vested dunng his twelve months notice period had he served such notice All other unvested awards were forfeited

Christopher Hyman's compensation payment

12 months £
Salary 779,000
Pension benefit” 257,070
Cther benefits™* 73754
Total 1,109,824

* The pension benefit s a cash allowance equal 1o 33% of base salary in lieu of pension contributions
** Private medical permanent health insurance, life cover financial advice health checks and the prowision of a car allowance

Vesting of LTI awards

The awards granied to Christopher Hyman in 2011 under the PSP and the DBP would have vested on the usual vesting dates (31 March 2014 and
4 Apnl 2014 respectively} to the extent that the relevant performance condiions have been met These would have been reduced pro-rata to reflect
the proport:ion of the performance penod which had elapsed at the date of cessation of employment However, the periormance conditions were
net met and so these awards lapsed

Shares
Share awards Performance achieved vested £
2011 DBP award (173,898 shares) Minimum vesting level not achieved No shares vest 0
2011 PSP award (247,568 shares) Minimium vesting level not achueved No shares vest 0
Value of shares vesting 0

Chnstopher Hyman has six months from the date of ceasing employment to exercise his previously vested outstanding options under the
Serco Group plc 2005 Executive Share Cption Plan, 2006 Long Term Incentive Plan and Performance Share Plan

Payments to Past Directors
No payments were made in the year to past directors other than the payments made to Chnistopher Hyman on him ceasing to be a director
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Awards made in 2013

Deferred Bonus Plan (DBP) (audited information)
In 2013 both the CEQ and the CFOQ elected to defer 50% of therr earned bonus into the DBP

For matching share awards made in 2013 EPS growth was the sale performance measure The range for the three-year performance penod was

set at annual compound EPS growth of 5 5% at threshold to 10 5% at maximum No matching shares wali vest where performance 1s below threshold
For threshold performance, each invested share will be maiched by ball a malching share For maximum level performance each invested share

will be matched (on a gross investment basis) by two shares For perfermance between thresheld and maamum, the number of matching shares
will be determuned on a straight ine basis

The definitvon of EPS 1s Adjusted EPS calculated in accordance with IAS 33 “Earnings per Share™ and 1s before amortisation of acquired
tntangibles ansing on acquistions, acquisition-related costs and exceptional items EPS 1s alse adjusted for any matenal acquisitions disposals
and currency movements

Percentage
vesting at
Basis of Award Award Market price Face value threshold Number of Performance
Directors Scheme (% of salary) date at award (p)' £  performance shares perlod end date
Chnstopher Deferred
Hyman Bonus Plan
{conditional
share award) 108 3% 3May13 625 812,044 25% 129,927 31 Dec 2015
Andrew Deferred
Jenner Benus Plan
{conditional
share award) 93 86% 3 May 13 625 412,875 25% 66,060 31 Dec 2015
Notes

1 The market price at award was the purchase price of the investment shares
2 Ed Casey did not defer his 2012 earned bonus into the Deferred Bonus Plan

Performance Share Plan (PSP) (audited information)
In 2013 the Executive Directors receved awards equivalent to 200% of salary for the Group Chief Executive and 175% for the Group Chief Finaneial Officer

The shares will normally only vest at the end of a three-year performance penod, if the Executive Directors are still in employment with Serco and
the two performance measures have been met The measures are EPS growth and relative TSR compared to the companies in the FTSE 51 to 130
{excluding imvestment trusts} The two measures are independent and each determines the vesting of half of the award

The structure for vesting 1s the same for both measures and no shares vest where performance 1s below Threshold

Far Threshold performance 25% of the award will vest nsing on a straight iine basis to 100% for maxmum/upper quartile performance The EPS growth
range was set at & 5% - 10 5%

Percentage
vesting at
Basis of Award Award Market price Face value threshold Number of Pertormance
Directors Scheme {% of salary) date  ataward {p)’ £  performance shares period end date
Ed Performance
Casey? Share Plan
{conditional
share award) 130% 15 Apr i3 618 468,203 25% 75,761 31 Dec 2015
Chinstopher Performance
Hyman Share Plan
(nominal cost
options} 200% 15 Apr 13 618 1,501,209 25% 242914 31 Dec 2015
Andrew Performance
Jenner Share Plan
(nominal cost
options} 175% 15 Apr 13 618 770,621 25% 124,696 31 Dec 2015
Notes

1 The market price at award was the preceding days MMQ
2 Ed Casey s conditional share award under the Performance Share Plan was made pror to him being appeinted as Acting CEO and a director
and was equivalent to 130% of salary
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Statement of voting at the general meeting
At the last annual general meeting votes on the Remuneration Report were cast as follows

For % number Against % number Withheld % number*

2012 remuneration feport 95 82% 4 18% N/A
346,071,397 15,084,901 5,923,160

2011 remuneration report 93 72% 628% N/A
351,474 463 23547,217 8,299,355

2010 remuneration report 92 98% 702% N/A
298,080,103 22,494,102 54,392,029

* A “Vote Withheld™ 1s not a vote in law and i1s not counled in the calculation of the preportion of voies “For” or “Against” a Resolution

The disclosure in the 2014 Remuneration Report will include details of the binding shareholder vote at the 2014 AGM on directors' remuneration policy
External appointments

The Board believes that the Group can benefit from its Executive Directors holding appropnate non-execulive directorships of companies

or independent bodies Such appointments are subject to the approval of the Board Fees are retained by the Executive Director concerned

Andrew Jenner served as a non-executive director of Galliford Try plc during the year Fees payable in the year were £40,400

No other fee-paying external pesitions were held by the Executive Qirectors

Directors’ shareholding and share interests (audited information)

Current shareholdings are summarised in the table below Shares are valued for these purposes at the year-end price which was £4 532 per share
at 31 December 2013

Number of
shares owned Restricted Woeighted Weighted
Share outright share awards Sheare average average period
ownersghip Number of {including Vested subject to ownership exercise price to vest
requirements shares reguired connected unexercised performance  requirements of vested of restricted
(% of salary) to hold persons) share aptions conditions met options  share awards
Ed Casey 100% 130,227 17,626 87,738 200,136 No 0 0
Chnstopher
Hyrman 200% 312,099 526,387 794,090 421,466 Yes 306 002
Andrew Jenner 150% 137,320 464,861 618,937 633,123 Yes 204 ao2
Alastar Lyons N/A N/A 33,600 N/A NfA N/A N/A N/A
Angle Risley N/A N/A 5967 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Ralph ©
Crosby Jr N/A N/A - N/A NfA N/A N/A N/A
Malcolm
Wyman NfA N/A - N/A NA N/A N/A N/A
Notes

1 Ordinary shares are beneficial holdings which include the Directors persenal holdings and those of their spouses anda miner children

2 122 990 of Chnistopher Hyman s and 65,386 of Andrew Jenner s shares are hetd in trust on thew behalf under the terms of therr partictpation in the Deferred Bonus Plan
Prowided such shares rernain in trust for three years and subject 1o certan performance conditions they are also granted an award over malching shares equalent
to two times the gross bonus inilrally used for the share purchase

3 Secunty has been granted ta Chrnistopher Hyman s bank over 85 564 ordinary shares held in his name
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Gain on exercise of share awards

Gain on

exercigse of

Number Market value  share option/

of options Exerclse on exercise award

exercised price P} £
Ed Casey 26,611 - 608 161,662
Christopher Hyman 58,832 - 605 361,954
289,515 153 605 1,308,462
Andrew Jenner 30,548 - 603 184,806
173,709 153 605 785,077

Aggregate gain on exerclse of shares awards 2,801,961

Note
1 The awards that Ed Casey exercised during the year were granted pnor to him being appointed to the Board

Other Shareholding infermation (audited information)

Shareholder Dilution

Awards granted under the Serco Group ple share plans are met either by the 1ssue of new shares or by shares held in trust when awards vest

The Committee moniiors the number of shares 1ssued under i1s vanous share plans and their impact on dilution hrits  The relevant dilution limits
established by the Associatien of British Insurers in respect of all share plans s 10% in any rolling ten-year penod and in respect of discretionary share
plans i1s 5% in any roling ten-year penod Based on the Company’s 1ssued share capial at 31 December 2013, our dilution level was 6 83% aganst

all share plans and 4 54% aganst discretionary share plans

The Group has an employee share ownership trust which 1s administered by an independent trusiee and which holds ordinary shares in the Company
to meet vanous obligations under the share plans In June 2013 a lean of £16 million was made to the Employee Trust in order to finance the purchase
of shares to salisly the ongomng habiliies under the Company's employee share plans

The Trust held 10,174,594 and 11,883,973 ordinary shares at 1 January 2013 and 31 December 2013 respectively

103




Serco Group plc | Annual report and accounts 2013
Directors’ Report

Remuneration Report

The Remuneration Committee

The Committee determines the overall remuneration pohicy for sentor management and the individual remuneration of the Executive Directors and the
members of the Executive Cormmittee This includes the base salary, bonus, long-term incentives, pensions and terms of employment (including those
1erms on which service may be terminated) The Committee alse determines the remuneration ot the Chairman

Terms of reference
The terms of reference of the Commitiee, a copy of which can be found on the Group s website, are reviewed annually to ensure that they remain
appropriate Detalls of the Directors attendance at meetings of the Commitiee can be found in the Corporate Governance Report on page 69

Members of the Committee
All members of the Commitiee are independent Non-Executive Directors of the Group are inttially appointed for a three-year term and that appointment
may be terminated on three months’ written notice

Remuneration Committee members and attendees (the Comrmittee met 11 times during 2013}

Remuneration Commitiee members Fosition Comments

Angie Risley Chairman of Remuneration Commitiee

Alastarr Lyons Member from 10 May 2011

David Richardson Member from 2 June 2003 Retired from the Board at the conclusion
of the Company's 2013 AGM on 15 May
2013

Malcolm Wyman Member from 1 January 2013

Tamara Ingram Member from 3 March 2014

Christopher Hyman Group Chief Executive Attended by invitation

Andrew Jenner Group Chief Financial Cfficer Altends by invitaticn

Geotf Loyd Group HR Director Allends as an executive responsible for

advising on the remuneration policy

Cathy Aldwinckle Group Head of Reward Attends as an executive responsible for
adwvising on the remuneration policy

John Hickey Company Secretary Attends as the secretary to the Committee
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Meeting Regular items Ad hoc items

February Congsider salary review proposals for
the Executive Directors, members of the
Executive Committee and the Company
Secretary, review of achievement ot
performance conditions for LTI vesting
review final draft of the remuneration report

March Confirmabon of bonus payable, approve
the salary increases for the Executive
Durectors, members af the Executve
Committee and the Company Secretary,
review bonus objectives, approve LTI
awards, finahsation of remuneration report

May Review the share scheme performance

August Review performance of the Executive
Directors against bonus objectives, review
the share scheme performance, review of
Remuneration Committee advisors

November Review the Commitiee Terms of Finalisation of termination package for
Reference, review the share scheme Chnstopher Hyman, Consideration of
performance remuneration package for Ed Casey

Adwvisors to the Remuneration Committee

The Committee has been advised dunng the year by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP { PwC") PwC were selected as advisors o the Committee
through a competrtive tendenng process in 2012 and no conflicts of interest were identified

PwC have provided advice throughout the year mainly around the foilowing key executive reward areas

® Benchmarking the Charman and Non-Executive Director fees

® Benchmarking the Board and Executve Committee total remuneration

@ Support in reviewing the DRR

® Adwice in relation to design of remuneration arrangements and treatment of leavers and joiners

@ Responding to general and techmical reward guenes

A representative from PwC attends each meeting of the Remuneration Committee Consulting services have also been provided to the Group
by the adwvisors n relation to retrement benefits and pay dala, accounting and taxation services

Fees paid to PwC as advisors to the Commitiee dunng the year totalled £144,600, iees are charged on an hourly rate basis PwC are members
of the Remuneration Consultants’ Group which oversees the voluntary code of conduct in relation to executive consuliing in the UK

The Commitiee reviews the objectivity and independence of the advice It receives from PwC each year Itis satisfied that PwC is providing robust
and professional advice In the course of its deliberations, the Committee considers the views of the Group Chief Executive on the remuneration
and performance of the other members of the Executive Committee The Committee have also received legal advice from Linklaters LLP and
Clifford Chance LLP during the year

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by

Jeh

John Hickey
Secretary
3 March 2014
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Annual Report and Accounts

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the Annual Report and Accounts of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 Comparative figures
used In this report are for the year ended 31 December 2012 The Corporate Governance Report set out on pages 80 to 74 forms part of the Statutory
Directors Report

The Chairman's Stalement and the remainder of the Strategic Report on pages 2 to 59, provide a descrniption of the business model and report
on the activities duning the year, post balance sheet events, and likely future developments

Share capial
The 1ssued share capial of the Company, together with the details of shares 1ssuad durning the year ts shown in note 35 to the Consalidated
fFinancial Statements

The powers of the Directors to 1ssue or buy back shares are restncted 1o those approved at the Company's annual general meeting

The rules relating to the apponiment and replacement of Directors are contained in the Company's Articles of Association Changes to the Articles
of Association must be approved by the shareholders in accordance with the legislation in force from time to time

Dividends

An intenim dividend of 3 10p (2012 2 65p) per ordinary share was paid on 18 October 2013 The Directors recommend a final dwidend of 7 45p
{2012 7 45p) per ordinary share which, f approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, will be paid on 14 May 2014 to those
shareholders on the register at the close of busmess on 14 March 2014

Interests in voting rights
As at 3 March 2014* the Company had been notified under Rule 5 of the Disclosure Rufes and Transparency Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority
of the following holdings of voting nghis in its shares

Number of shares {millions)

{milons) % held
Invesco Limited 718 14 37
The Capital Group Companies, Inc 247 498
UBS Investment Bank 291 590
Morstan Nominees Limited 251 511
AXA S A 244 495
Fidelity International Limited 245 490
Ballle Gitford & Co 240 492
FMR LLC 243 4 86
Newion Investment Management Limited 236 485
BlackRock Inc 241 4 82
HBOS plc 205 422

The Directors are unaware of any restrictions on transfer of securites in the Company or on voting nghts There are also no known agreements between

holders of the Company's securties which may result In such restnctions

Directors
The current members of the Board together with biographical detalls of each Director are set out on pages 62 1¢ 64

On 25 October 2013, the Company announced the appointment of Edward J Casey Jr as an Executive Director of the Company with eifect from the
same date On 3 March 2014 the Company announced the appointments of Mike Clasper, Tamara Ingram and Rachel Lomax as Non-Executive
Directors of the Company with efiect from the same date Mike will serve as a member of the Audit, Corporate Responsibility and Nomination
Committees Tamara will join the Remuneration and Corporate Responsibilty Commuittees Rachel wll Charr the Corporate Responsibility Committee
and serve as a member of the Audit Committee Ed, Mike, Tamara and Rachel will all stand for election at the Company's AGM on 8 May 2014

As In previous years, and in accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code, all other Directors will stand for re-election at the AGM
Directors’ interests
With the exception of the Executive Direclors’ service contracts and the Non-Executive Directors’ tetters of appointment, there are no contracts

in which any Director has an interest

Certain change in control conditions are included in the senice contracts of Directors which provide compensation or reduclion of notice penods
in the event of a change in control of the Company

Detalls of the Directors’ interests in the crdinary shares and options over the ardinary shares of the Company are set out In the Remuneration Report
on page 102
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Annual general meeting
The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at the offices of Chiford Chance LLF, 10 Upper Bank Street, London E14 5.) on 8 May 2014
at 11 D0am

The Notice of Annuat General Meeting together with explanatory notes 1s sent to shareholders with this Annual Report

Financial risk policies
A summary of the Group s treasury policies and objeclives reating to financial nsk management, including exposure to assooated rnisks, 1s shown
on pages 152 to 157

Employment policies

The Boardis commiited to maintaning a working environment where stalf are indwidually valued and recognised Group comparnies and dvisions
operate within a framework of human resources policies, practices and regulations appropriate to their own market sector and country of operation,
whilst subject to Group-wide policies and principles

The Group I1s commitied 1o ensunng equal opporturity, honouring the nghts of the individual, and fostering partnership and trust in every working
relationship Pohicies and procedures for recrutment, training and career development promote diversity respect for hurnan righis and equality
of opportunity regard|ess of gender, sexual onentation, age mantal status, disability, race, religion or other beliefs and ethnic or national ongin

The Group promotes diversity so that all employees are able to be successiul regardless of ther background The Group gives full consideration to
applications for employment, career development and promotion received from the disabled and offers employment when surlable opportunities anse
It employees become disabled durnng their senace with the Group arrangements are made wherever practicable to continue their employment and
traimng Further information on gender breakdown 1s provided in the Strategic Report at pages 54

The Group recognises and applies the punciples in the Universal Declaration on Human Rights These are embedded in the Company's policies
and standards and considered when reviewing business opportunities Further information on Human Rights 1s provided in the Strategic Report
at page 54

The Group remains proud of its record of managing employee relations and continues to believe that the structure of ndividual and collective
consultation and negotiation 1s best developed at a local level

QOver the years, the Group has demonstrated that working with trade umons and creating effective parinerships allows improvemenis to be delivered
in business performance as well as in terms and condittons of employment Where employees choose not to belong to a trade union, employee
communication forums such as works councils exist to ensure involvement of staff within the business

Participation by staff in the success of the Group 1s encouraged by the avallability of sharesave schemes a share option scheme, and long term
incentive arrangements for senior management, which effectively align their interests with those of shareholders by requinng that perfermance cntena
are achieved pricr to exercise

Corporate Responsibility

The Group maintains a focus on corporate responsibiity through a model that 1s applied across the business focusing on our people, safety

the environment and the communities we serve This model forms an integral part of our Management System and 1s supported by defined policies
in all of the areas it covers More informatron on Corporate Respensibibty, including Greenhouse Gas Enission reporting, can be found in the
Strategic Report on pages 52 to 59

Political Donations

Dunng the year naither the Company nor the Group made politicaf denations and they intend to continue with this policy Within the US business
there exists a Political Achion Committee (PAC) which s funded entirely by employees and their spouses The Serco PAC and its contributions are
administered in strict accordance with regulatory requirements Employee contnbutions are entirely voluntary and no pressure 1s placed on employees
to participate Under US law, an employee-funded PAC must bear the name of the employing company

Financial statements

Al the date of this report, as tar as each Director 1s aware, thera 1s no relevant audit information of which the Group's auditors are unaware
Each Birector has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a Director in order to make himsel or herself aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the Group's auditors are aware of that information

Auditors
Deloitte LLP have expressed therr willingness 1o continue in office as auditors and a resolution to reappoint themn will be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting

Approved by the Board of Directors and sigred on its behalf by

Jeh

John Hickey
Company Secretary
3 March 2014

*As at 25 March 2014 the Company had not been notiied of any changes of additions to these interests
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Directors’ responsibilities statement

The Directors are responsible for preparng the Annual Report and the financial statements in aceordance with appheable law and regulations
Company law requires the Directors o prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors are required to prepare the
group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the European Urion and Article 4
of the IAS Regulation and have elected fo prepare the parent company financial statements in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101
Reduced Disclosure Framework Under company law the Directors must not approve the accounts unless they are satistied that they give a true
and farr view of the state of affars of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company tor that perniod

In prepanng the parent company financial statements, the Directors are required to

® Select sutable accounting pohicies and then apply themn consistently

& Make judgments and accouniing estimates that are reasonable and prudent

@ State whether Finaneial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework has been followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed
and explained n the finaneial statements, and

@ Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropnate 1o presume that the company will continue In business
In prepanng the Group financial statements International Accounting Standard 1 requires that Drectors

® Properly select and apply accounting poilcies

& Present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, rehable, comparable and understandable information

® Prowde additional disclesures when comphance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insuffictent to enable users to understand the impact
of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity's financial position and financal performance, and

® Make an assessment of the Company's ability to continue as a going concern

The Drrectors are responsibte for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's transactions and disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statemenis comply with the
Compares Act 2006 They are also responsible for sateguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularnties

The Drectors are responsibie for the mantenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the Company's website
Legislation 1n the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial staterments may differ from legislation i other junsdictions

Responsibility statement
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge

1 The financial statements, prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU, give a true and fair view
of the assets, habilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included n the consolidation taken as a whole

2 The Strategic Report includes a farr review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the Company and the
undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole together with a descrniption of the principal nsks and uncertainties that they face, and

3 The annual report and financial statements, taken as a whole, are farr, balanced and understandable and provide the information necessary for
shareholgers to assess the Company's performance business model and strategy

By order of the Board

Ed Casey Andrew Jenner
Acting Group Chief Execulive Group Chief Finangial Cfficer
3 March 2014 3 March 2014
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Independent Auditor's Report

to the members of Serco Group plc

Opinion on financlal statements of Serco Group plc
In cur opinien

@ the financial statements give a true and far view of the state of the Group s and parent company's atfars as at 31 December 2013, and of the
Group's profi for the year then ended,

® the conschdated financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards FRSs)
as adopted by the European Urwon,

& the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework, and

@ the financial statements have been prepared i accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and as regards the Group financial
staternents, Article 4 of the JAS Regulation

The financial statements comprse the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated and
company balance sheets, the conschidated cash flow statement, the consolidated statements of changes in equity, and the related notes 1 to 55
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements is applicable law and IFRSs

as adopied by the European Union The financial reporiing framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial
statements Is applicable faw and the Financial Reporting Standard 1901 Reduced Disclosure Framework

Going concern
As required by the Listing Rules we have reviewed the Directors’ assessment included in the Finance Review section of the Strategic Report that the
Group 15 a guing concern We conlirm that

& we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements 1s appropnate, and
& we have not identified any matenal uncertainties that may cast sigmificant doubt on the Group's ability to conttnue as a going concern

However because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement 1s not a guaraniee as to the Group's abilily to continue as
a going concerm
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

to the members of Serco Group pie

Our assessment of nsks of maternal misstatement

The assessed risks of maternial misstatement described below are those that had the greatest effect on our audi strategy, the allocation of resources

in the audit, and directing the efforts of the engagement team

Risk

How the scope ¢f the audit responded to the risk

Revenue and profit recogrition

There are significant accounting judgements in applying the
Group's revenue recognition policies 1o the contracts entered
into by the Group

Revenue and profit recognifion on contracis requires judgement
over complex areas Including assessment of stage of completion,
consideration of onercus contract terms, recognition of pre-contract
costs, and billing and cash flow arrangements The Group s

policy on revenue recognition is set out In note 2 to the Group
financial statements

Dunng the year 75% of the UK Ceniral Government contracis were
subject to an external review into operaticnal and biling arrangements

We carned out tests relating to controls over revenue recognition,
including the iming of, and the night to recognise revenue We also
reviewed forecast costs to complete and profit recognition policies
on those contracts where the requirement s to recognise revenue
on a percentage of completion basis

We reviewed specific contract forecasts and historical operational
costs to validate management's assessment of whether contracts are
deemed to be onerous and reviewed provisions for anticipated losses

We also considered the results of the external forensic investigations
In scoping the focus of our testing and work

Disclosure of tems as exceptional

The Group has recorded exceptional income and expenditure in
respect of one-oft items and transactions that fall outside of the
normal course of frading In particular, the Group seftled a matenal
contractual dispute with the Cabinet Office In the year and dispesed
of certain non-core businesses as disclosed In note 11 1o the
financial statements

Exceptional items are not defined by IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union Therefore judgement 1s required by the Directors
to dentify such items as exceptional and to maintain comparability
of the results wath previous years

We reviewed the nature of exceptional items challenged
management’s judgements in this area and agreed the quantification
1o supporting documentation

In particular we discussed with the Directors and the Audit Committee,
the costs related to the Cabinet Office contractual dispute, and venfied
costs to appropriate audit evidence

On the Chrucal Health onerous contracts and on the mparment of
assets, we reviewed and challenged management's forecasts and
underlying assumptions in determining the level of exceptional costs
recorded

In respect of the sales of businesses n the year, we also tested
the component parts of the profit on disposal calculation to source
documentation including the proceeds recewved, the net assets
disposed of and the costs associated with the disposal, including
goodwill allocation {o the disposed entities

Geodwill and intangible assets

The assessment of the carrying value of goodwill and other intangible
assets I1s a judgemental process which includes assumptions around
fulure revenue growth and cash periformance, together with the
applicable discount rate

There are inherent uncertainties in forecast cash flow modelling which
requrre the exercise of management judgement

Goodwill and intangible assets are matenal balances in the Group
financial statements and the Group operates in varnous global markets
which are susceptible to economic change Group management's key
judgemenits are disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements

We evaluated management s assumptions within the cash flow
forecasts used in the value In use calculations for each Cash
Generating Unit (“CGU") and other intangible assets as described
in note 20 1o the iinancial statements These include CGU cash flow
projections, growth rates and pipeline levels at each CGU

We have challenged the discount rate apphed to the separate CGUs
by utihsing valuation experts, the prevaiing Group ¢ost of capital at
the year end and our understanding of the future prospects of the
Group We have considered the level of nisk adjustment applied to
each of the CGUs

We have assessed management s sensitivities applied to the model
We have considered whether the Group’s disclosure appropriately
reflected the nsks inherent in the valuation of goodwill assessed

Pension commitments

The actuanal assumptions used in the measurement of the Group's
pension commitments mvolve management judgement in relation
to martalty, price inflaton discount rates, and rate of pension and
salary Increases

Judgement 1s also exercised in determining whether a pension surplus
should be recognised, and the extent of the Group’s pension liability
n respect of franchise and other contractual agreements

We evaluated the appropnateness of the pnncipal actuanal
assumplions used in the calculation of the Group's pension
commitments, using our own actuanal experts, and by making
enquines of the Group's external actuary as te the key assumptions
made, and comparing these to our knowledge of market practice

As part of our work we evaluated the recoverahbility of pension surplus
amounts and of contract specific pension commitmentis recorded
franchise adjustments (notes 21 and 34)
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The Audit Committee’s consideration of these nsks is set out on page 77

Our audit procedures relating to these matters were designed in the context of our audit of the finanaial statements as a whole, and not to express an
opinion on individual accounis or disclosures Cur opinion an the financial statements 1s not modified with respect to any of the nsks descnbed above,
and we do not express an opinicn on these individual matters

Our application of materiality

We define matenality as the magnitude of misstaternent in the financial statements that makes it probable that the econemic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced We use matenality both in planning the scope of our audit wark and In evaluating the resulls
of our work

We determined matenality for the Group to be £12 5 million, which 1s betow 6 5% of normalised pre-tax profit Pre-tax profit has been normalised by
adding back net exceptional costs of £90 5§ millkon incurred in the year

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Commitiee all audit differences in excess of £200 000, as well as differences below
that threshold that, n our view, warranted reporting on quatitative grounds We also report to the Audit Committee on disclosure matters that
we dentfied when assesstng the overall presentation of the financial staterments

An overview of the scope of our audit

Our group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Group and its envronment, including group-wide controls, and assessing the nsks
of matenal misstatement at the group level Based on that assessment, we focused our group audit scope primarily on the audit work at four operating
divisions UK & Europe, Global Services, Amencas and AMEAA Each of these was subject to a full audit in the case of significant joint ventures, the
Group audit team issue audit referral instructions fo the auditors of these entihes In additon certain central reporting entiies and Group funchions
including thase covenng treasury, taxation and pensions and the parent company were subject to an audit Qur audit work at each dvision was
executed at levels of matenality apphcable to each individual entity which were lower than Group materiahty

At the parent entity level we also tested the consolidation process and camed out analytical procedures to confirm our conclusion that there were
no sigrificant nsks of matenal misstatement of the aggregated financral information of the remaining components not subject to audit or audit of
specihied account balances

The Group audit team toltows a programme of planned wvisits to the operating locations of the Group that s designed to ensure the Senior Statutory
Audnor or another senior member of the group audit team wisits the principal locations at least once a year and remaining locations as part of our
rotation strategy For 2013 year end audit purposes the Sentor Statutory Auditor or another senior member of the group audit team visited Washington
DC, Dubal, Mumba and Delti The Group audd team also holds detaled meetings with audit teams in the other locations

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our cpinion

# the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared mn accordance with the Companies Act 2006, and
® the infoermation given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financiai statements are prepared
15 consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of explanations recelved and accounting records
Under the Compamies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if i our opimion

® we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audst, or

® adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not breen received from branches
not visited by us, or

# the parent company financial statements are not In agreement with the accounting records and returns

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters

Directors' remuneration

Under the Companies Act 20086 we are also required to report f In our opiion certain disclosures of directors remuneration have not been made or the
part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited 1s not in agreement with the accounting records and returns  We have nothing to report ansing
from these matters

Corporate Governance Statement
Under the Listing Rules we are alsc required to review the part of the Corporate Governance Staternent relating to the Company's comphance with nine
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code We have nothing to report ansing from our review
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

To the members of Serco Group plc

Our duty to read other information in the Annual Report
Under Intemnational Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland} we are required to report to you f, in our opinion, informaton in the annual report 1s

@ matenally inconsistent wath the information in the audited financial statements or

& apparently matenially incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent with, our knowledge of the Group acquired in the course of performing
our audi, or

& otherwise misleading

In particular we are required to consider whether we have identified any inconsistencies between our knowledge acquired duning the audit and the
directors’ statement that they consider the annual report 1s far balanced and understandable and whether the annual report apprapriately discloses
those matters that we communicated to the Audit Committee which we consider should have been disclosed We coniirm that we have not identihied
any such inconsistencies or misleading statements

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible {or the preparation of the financial statements and for
being satisfied that they give a true and far view Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the hinancial statements in accordance with
apphcable law and International Standards on Auditing {UK and lreland} Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's
Ethical Standards for Auditors We also comply with International Standard on Quality Centrol 1 (UK and Ireland} Our audit methodclogy and tools am
to ensure that our quality control procedures are effective, understood and applied Our quality controls and systems include our dedicated professional
standards review team, strategically focused second partner reviews and independent partner reviews

This report 1s made solely to the Company s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditer s report and for no
other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's
members as a body, for our audit worlk, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves cbtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures m the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from matenal misstatement whether caused by fraud or error This inctudes an assessment of whether the accounting
policies are appropnate to the Group's and the parent company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed

the reasonableness of sigruficant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentaticn of the financial statements In addition,

we read all the tinancial and non-financial information in the annual repor to identdy matenal nconsistencies with the audited financial statements and
to identfy any intormation that 1s apparently matenally incomect based on, or matenally inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course
of performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstalements or incensistencies we consider the implications for our report

/'Zok»-& Léa’!-vt‘
—

Richard Knights (Serior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London

United Kingdom

3 March 2014
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December

2013 2012 {restated)*
Before Before
exceptional Exceptional exceptanal Exceptional

Items. items Total tems ems Total
Continuing operations Note £m £m £m £m £m £m
Adjusted revenue 5,143 9 - 51439 49130 - 49130
Less Share of revenue of joint
vertures {855 8) - (855 8) (852 9) - (852 9)
Revenue 10 4,288 1 - 4,288 1 4060 1 - 4,060 1
Cost of sales {3,788 9) - {3,788 9) (3,576 5) - {3,576 5)
Gross profit 499 2 - 499 2 4836 - 483 6
Administrative expenses {287 1) - (287 1) (246 7) - (246 7)
Other expenses — amortisation
of ntangibles ansing on acquisition (21 4) - (21 4) (24 1) - (24 1}
Other expenses - transaction-
related costs (3 5) - (3.5) 87 - 37
Share of profits tn joint ventures, net
of interest and tax 7 471 - 471 625 - 625
Exceptional net profit on disposal
of subsidraries and operations 1 - 192 192 - 56 56
Other exceptional operating items 1 - {108 7) {108 7) - (50 (50)
Operating profit 2343 {90 5) 1438 2716 06 2722
Investment revenue 14 52 - 52 64 - 64
Exceptional other gan " - - - - 511 511
Finance costs 15 (42 4) - (42 4) 48 6) - (48 6)
Profit before tax 197 1 (90 5) 106 6 2294 17 2811
Tax 16 {40 0) 288 112 {46 6) 65 (40 1)
Profit for the year 1871 |17 95 4 1828 582 2410
Attnbutable to
Equity owners of the Company 167 1 617 954 1822 582 2404
Non-controlling interest - - - 06 - 06
Eamings per share (EPS}
Basic EPS 19 3213p {12 62)p 19 51p 3709p 11 85p 48 94p
Diluted EPS 19 31 38p (12 32)p 19 06p 36 23p 11 57p 47 80p

*Cenatin amounts shown here do not correspond to the 2012 financial statements and reflect adjustments made in respect of the retrospective
application of new or revised standards and reallocation of costs See note 4
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December

2012
2013 {restated}
Note £m m
Profit for the year 85 4 2410
Other comprehensive income for the year
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Net actuanal gain/{loss) on defined benefit pension sechemes! 34 a3 1170
Actuanal (loss)/gan on reimbursable nghts® 34 (37 1) 343
Tax relating to items not reclassified 16 30 230
Share of other comprehensive Income/(expense} in jomnt ventures 39 09
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Net exchange loss on translation of foreign operations? (53 1) {18 6)
Farr value loss on cash flow hedges dunng the penod? {4 8) {4 1)
Tax relating to items that may be reclassified? 16 12 41
Share of other comprehensive expense In joint ventures (18) {0 4)
Total comprehensive income for the year a7z o 161 4
Aftnbutable to
Equity owners of the Company 370 160 8
Non-controlling interest - 06

Notes
1 Recorded inretirement benefit obigations reserve in the consohidated statement of changes in equity
2 Recorded In hedging and translation reserve In the consolidated statement of changes N equity
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December

Retirement Share-
Share Caphtal benefit based Hedging and Non-
premlum raedemption Retained obligations payment Own shares translation controlling
Share capltal account reserve eamings reserve reserve reserve reaerve Total equity Interest
£m £m £m £m €m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2012 99 3227 01 7063 (92 0) 661 (48 2) 389 1,003 8 -
Changes in accounting
palicies {note 4) - - - (2 8) 131 - - (103) - -
At 1 January 2012
(restated) 99 3227 01 7085 (78 9) 661 (48 2) 286 1,0038 -
Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - 2391 {52 7) - - (18 6) 160 8 06
Shares transferred
to option holders on
exercise of share options 01 s - - - (36) 54 - 57 -
Dwvidends paid - - - 419) - - - - (419) {0 4)
Expense in relation to
share-based payments - - - - - 121 - - 121 -
Tax charge in relation to
share-based payments - - - - - 31 - - 31 -
Purchase of own shares
for Employee Share
Ownership Trust (ESOT) - - - - - - (160) - {16 0) -
Change in non-controfling
Interest - - - - - _ _ _ _ 11
At 1 January 2013 100 3265 01 9007 (138 6) T (58 8) 100 1,127 8 13
Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - 975 {(38) - - {56 7) 370 -
Shares transferred
to option helders on
exercise of share options - 13 - - - {4 5) 43 - 11 -
Dvidends paid - - - {51 5} - - - - {51 5) (0 6}
Expense in refation to
share-based payments - - - - - 29 - - 29 -
Tax credit in relation to
share-based payments - - - - - (59) - - (5 9) -
Purchase of own shares
for ESOT - - - - - - (16 0) - {16 0) -
Change in non-controlling
interest - - - - - - - - - -
Al 31 December 2013 ioo 3278 01 948 7 {142 4) 702 (70 5) (46 7) 1,095.2 a7y
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

At At Al
31 December 31 December 1 January
2013 2012 2012
(restated} {restated)
Note £m £m £m
Non-current assets
Goodwill 20 1,270 8 13121 1,253 9
Other iItangible assets 21 1857 2157 180 4
Property, plant and equipment 22 176 8 1766 174 4
Interests in joint ventures 7 81 119 361
Trade and other recevables 24 783 492 789
Retirernent benefit assets 34 642 697 1223
Deferred tax assets 17 579 401 250
Denvative financial instruments 33 - (¢ 11
1,841 8 18757 1,8721
Current assets
Inventones 23 494 531 479
Trade and cther receivables 24 7844 7781 7010
Current tax assets 196 246 92
Cash and cash equivalents 26 1261 1428 1946
Dervative financial instruments 33 87 27 62
967 1 1,001 3 958 9
Total assets 2,8089 2,8770 28310
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 27 {644 1) (757 3) 679 7)
Current 1ax habiliies (10 4) 96) (6 4)
Obhgations under finance leases 28 {14 9) (107) 98
Provisions 30 {26 2) {(115) (10 4)
Loans 29 (52 2) {64 0) {204 1}
Denvative financial instruments 33 {20 2) {13 8) (12 3)
(768 0) {866 9) (922 7}
Non-current liabshities
Trade and other payables 27 (341) {42 3) (610)
Oblgations under finance leases 28 53 1) {39 5) (351)
Loans 29 (756 1) (661 8) (630 8)
Dervative financial instruments 33 {21 1) {24 5) (26 3)
Retrernent benefit obligations 34 {11 3) {38 0) (758}
Provisions 30 {34 9) {44 7) {53 6}
Deferred tax liabiliies 17 {34 4) {30 4) (21 9}
(945 0} (881 2) (904 5}
Total liabilities (1,713 0} (1,748 1) (1,827 2}
Net assets 1,095 9 1,128 9 1,0038
Equity
Share capital 35 100 100 99
Share premium account 36 3278 3265 3227
Capital redemption reserve o1 G1 01
Retained earnings 946 7 900 7 7035
Retirement benefit obhgations reserve 37 (142 4) {138 6) {78 9)
Share-based payment reserve 37 702 777 661
Own shares reserve 37 {70 5) (58 8) {48 2)
Hedging and translation reserve 37 {46 7) 160 286
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 1,0952 1,127 6 10038
Non-controlling interest 07 13 -
Total equity 1,095 9 1,128 9 1,003 8

The hinancial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 3 March 2014 and signed on its behalf by

Z ey frbt

Ed Casey Andrew Jenner
Acting Group Chief Executive Group Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December

2012
2013 {restated)
Note £m £m
Net cash inflow from operating activities befare cash spend on special pension contribution
and other exceptional items 113 225%
Special contnbution to defined benefit pension scheme (19 7) -
Other exceptional items {83 7) ©0)
Neot cash inflow from operating activities 40 79 2209
Investing activitles
Interest received 26 25
Increase In secunty deposits 02) -
Dividends received from joint ventures 7 515 8C 8
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 46 209
Proceeds from disposal of iIntangible assets 04 01
Proceeds on disposal of subsidianes and operations 9 406 1310
Acquisihon of subsidianes, net of cash acquired {excluding transaction-related costs) 8 (18 6) (141 8)
Purchase of other intangible assets {27 8) {49 9)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {38 9) (47 4)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from investing activities 142 (4 0)
Financing activities
Interest paid (40 8) (47 1)
Dividends paid 18 (51.58) [GhR]
Non-controlling interest dividends paid (0 6) (04
Repayment of loans {77 5) (365 3)
Repayment of non recourse loans {102) 87
New loan advances 1765 2163
Capital element of finance lease repayments (49) 24
Purchase of own shares for Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) (16 0) (16 Q)
Proceeds from issue of share capital and exercise of share options 11 57
Net cash outflow from financing activities (23 9) (259 8)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (18) {42 9)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1428 194 6
Net exchange loss {159} {8 9}
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 26 1251 1428
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 General information

Serco Group pic (the Company) 1s a company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006 The address of the registered
otfice 1s Serco House, 16 Bartley Wood Business Park Bartley Way, Hook, Hampshire, RG27 9UY

These consolidated financial statements {the financial statements) are presented in pounds Sterling because this 1s the currency of the pnmary
econornic environment in which Serco Group operates Foreign operations are included in accordance with the policies set out in note 2

2 Significant accounting pohcies

Basis of accounting
These financial statemenis on pages 113 to 169 have been prepared in accordance with Intemnational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) adopted
for use in the European Union and therefore comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS regulation

The financial statements have been prepared on the hustoncal cost basis, except for the revaluation of financial nstruments Historncal cost (s generally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services The following pnincipal accounting policies adopted have been
apphed consistently In the current and preceding financial year except as stated below

As discussed in more detall in the Finance Rewiew section of the Strategic Report, these financial statements have been prepared on the going
concern basis

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial stalements incorperate the financtal statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (together, the
Group) up to 31 December each year Control 1s achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity s0 as to obtan benefits from ts activities

The results of subsidianes acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement trom the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal as appropnate Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries
to bring accounting policies Into ine wath those used by the Group Al intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated

on consolidation

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets in subsidianes that 1s not held by the Group and 1s presented within equsty
in the consolidated balance sheet, separate from equity of shareholders of Serco Group plc

Adoption of new and revised standards
The followsng accounting amendments, standards and interpretations became effective n the current reporting penod

® Amendments to IAS 1 Presentabion of Financial Statements Presentation of items of Other Compretiensive income
® JAS 19 Employee Benefits revised 2011
@ IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

In addition the Group has early adopted the following standards, which are endorsed by the EU but not effective until 1 January 2014

IFRS 10 Consoidated Financial Statements

IAS 27 Separate Financral Staterments

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

IAS 28 Investments in Assocates and Joint Ventures
IFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in Other Entities

1AS 36 Impairrment of Assets

The nature and the impact of each of the new amendinents, standards or interpretations which have a significant impact on the financial statements
are described below

® IFRS 10 Consohidaled Financial Statements {IFRS 10} replaces the parts of the previously existing IAS 27 that dealt with consolidated financial
statements The new standard changes the definiion of control such that an investor controls an investee when it i1s exposed or has nghts, to
vanable returns from s involvement with the investee and has the abiity to control those returns through 1ts power over the investee The adoption of
IFRS 10 has had no impact on the censolidation of investments held by the Group

® IFAS 11 Joint Arrangements {IFRS 11} removed the option for the proportional consolidation of joint ventures and instead requires equity accounting
A restatement of the 2012 results for these changes reduced statutory reported revenue by €852 9m and profit before tax by €15 1m

® FRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other Entitres (IFRS 12) resulted in additional disclosures with respect 10 indmidual joint venture arrangements

® IFRS 13 Faur Value Measurement (IFRS 13} establishes a single source of guidance under IFRS for all farr value measurements IFRS 13 does not
change when an entity 1s required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on how 1o measure far value under IFRS IFRS 13 defines far value
as an exit price As a resuit of the gudance in IFRS 13 the Group re-assessed its policies for measuring far vatues, in particular, its valuation inputs
such as non-performance nsk for far value measurement of habities IFRS 13 also requires additional disclosures Application of IFRS 13 has not
matenally impacted the far value measurements of the Group
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2 Sigmficant accounting policies (continued)

® /AS 1 (amended) Presentation of Financral Statements (IAS 1) Increases the required level of disclosure within the stalement of comprehensive
income and clanfied the requirements for comparative informabon Cne impact of these amendments has been to analyse itlems within the stalement
of comprehensive Income between ilems that may be reclassified subsequently to proiit or Joss and items that wili not The finanoal statements have
also been amended o analyse income tax on the same basis The amendments have been applied retrospectively, and hence the presentation
of items of comprehensive income has been restated to reflect the change The amendments also clanfy that the opening statement of financial
posihon (as at t January 2012 in the case of the Group) presented as a result of rétrospective restatement or rectassification of items in the
bnanoal statements does not have te be accompanied by comparative information in the related notes Other than the above mentioned
presentation changes the application of the amendments to IAS 1 do not result in any impact on profit or loss, comprehensive income and total
comprehensive Income

® /AS 19 (revised) Employee Benefits {IAS 19) reguires pension interest return to be calculated using the value of scheme assets multipled by the
discount rate rather than the expected rate of asset return The Group has applied |AS 19 {rewised) retrospectively and in accordance wath the
transiional provisions as set out in that standard The impact of this change 1s to reduce pre 1ax profits by £5 8m and 10 reduce post tax profits
by €4 8m IAS 19 (revised) also introduces more extensive disclosures in the presentation of the defined benefit cost

® IAS 36 (revised) Impairment of Assets (JAS 36} The amendments to IAS 36 enhance the disclosure requirements ansing when recoverable amounts
have been determined on the basis of farr value less costs of disposal They also imit the requirement te disclose the recoverable amount of an asset
or CGU to penods in which an impairment loss has been recognised or reverses We have chosen to adopt the amendments early, as allowed by the
standard, with effect from 1 January 2013

New standards and interpretations not applied
At the date of authonisation of these financial statemnents, the following standards and interpretations which have not been apphed in these financial
statements were 10 1ssue but not yet effective or have not yet been adopted by the EU

® /FRS 9 Financial Instruments {IFRS 9)
® /AS 39 {revised) Financial instruments Recogmition and Measurernent {IAS 39}

The Durectors do not anticipate that the adoption of these standards will have a material impact on the Group's financial statements in the penod of
inihial application except for IFRS 9, which will impact both the measurement and disclosures of financial instruments However, 11s not practicable
to provide a reasonable eshmate of the effect of this standard untl a detalled review has been completed

Fair value

Fair value 1s the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a ltability in an orderly fransaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that prrce 1s directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique In estimating fair value of
an asset or liability, the Group takes into account those charactenstics of the asset or lability market participants would consider when pricing the
asset or hability Faw value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes In these consolidated financial statements 1s determined on such a bass,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of /AS 17 Leases,
and measurements that have some similanties to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in [AS 2 Inventones or value in use

N IAS 36 Impairment of Assets

Revenue recognition
Revenue 1s measured as the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts due for goods and services provided
tn the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT and other sales related taxes

Revenue 1s deferred when the Group has recerved consideration under the terms of a contract in advance of performing the related service or
delivering the associated goods Deferred revenue 1s recognssed as revenue in the income statement when the Group has fulfilted the relevant
contractual commitment

Revenue recognition repeat service-based contracts
Revenue on repeat service-based contracts 1s recognised as services are provided Where initial contract costs {phase-in costs) are paid for by the
customer, revenue 1s recognised when the related costs are incurred

Revenue recognition long-term project-based contracts

The Group has a number of long-term contracts for the provision of complex, project-based services Where the outcome of such long-term project-
based contracts can be measured reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract actvity at the
balance sheet date In accordance with 1AS 18 Revenue and 1AS 17 Construction Contracts This 1s measured by the proportion of contract costs incurred
for work performed to date compared to the estimated total contract costs

Vanations in confract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the exient that they have been agreed with the customer, or are virtually
certain of being receved

Where the outcome of a long-term project-based contract cannot be estimated reliably. contract revenue 1s recogmised 10 the extent of contract costs
that are probable to be recovered Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the penod in which they are incurred

When it 1s probable that the total contract costs will exceed total contract reverue, the expecied loss 1s recognised as an expense immediately
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recogniticn other
Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has passed

interest income 1s accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which 1s the rate that
exactly discounts estmated future cash recelpts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount

Bradend income from nvestments 1s recogrised when the shareholders' nghts 1o receve payment have been established

Bld costs and phase in cosis

All bid costs are expensed through the iIncome statement up to the point where contract award {or full recovery of costs) 1s virtually certain betng the
point at which the Group 15 awarded preferred bidder status Bid costs incuried after this point are then capitalised within rade and other recevables
On contract award these bid costs are amortised through the Income statement over the contract penod by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract activity at the balance sheet date Bid costs are only capitalised to the extent that it 1s expecied that the related contract wilt generate sufficient
future economic benefits 1o at least offset the amortisation charge

Phase in costs that are ncremental and duectly related to the inmal set up of contracts are capitalised within trade and other recevables and are
recogrised on a straight-line basis over the life of the contract except where they are specifically rembursed as par of the terms of the contract
when they are recognised as revenue

Foreign currencies

Transactons in currencies other than Sterling are recorded at the rates of exchange on the dates of the transactions At each balance sheet date,
monetary assets and labiities that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date Gans and
losses ansing on retranslation are included in the net profit or loss for the perod, except for exchange differences ansing on non-monetary assets and
liabiities where the changes in fair value are recogrused directly in equity through the consohdated statement of comprehensive iIncome (SOCI)

On consolidation, the assets and habilities of the Group's overseas operations are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date
Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the penod Exchange differences ansing, if any, are recognised directly
within equity in the Group's hedging and translation reserve Such translation differences are recogrised as income or expenses in the penod in which
the operation 1s disposed of Goodwill and farr value adustments ansing on the acquisiion of a foreign entity are treated as assets and habilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate

Business combinations

Acquisiions of subsidianes and businesses are accounted for using the acquisiion method The consideration for each acguisition 1s measured at
the aggregate of the far values at the dale of exchange, of assets given, habilites incurred or assumed, and equity instruments 1ssued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree Acqguisition related costs are recognised in profit of loss as incurred

Where applicable, the consideration for the acquisition includes any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, measured
al Its acquisition date far value Subsequent changes in farr values are adjusted against the cost of acquisiton where they gualify as measurement
perod adjustrnents (which 1s subject to a maximum of one year) All other subsequent changes in the far value of contingent consideration classified
as an asset or hability are accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting standards Changes in the fair value of contingent consideration
classified as equity are not recogrised

The acquiree's identifiable assets, labilittes and contingent habihties that meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS 3 (2008) Busmess Combnations
are recognised at therr far value at the acqusition date, except where a different treatment 1s mandated by ancther standard

Investments in joint ventures

Ajoint venture 1s an arrangement whereby the owning parties have joint eontrol and nghts over the net assets of the arrangement Following adopton
of IFRS 11, the Group's Investments In foint ventures are no longer reperted in the financial statements using the proportional consolidation method, but
are mstead incorporated using the equity method of accounting

Under the equity method, investments in joint ventures are camed in the consolidated balance sheet at cost less any mparment For investments

held at the date of implementation, cost 1s deemed to be the aggregate of the carrying amounts of the assets and habillies previously proportionaiely
consolidated Any excess of the cost of acquisttion over the Group's share of net farr value of the identifiable assets, habiliies and contingent hatsiiies of
the joint venture recogrised at the date of acquisiion 1s recogrised as goodwill Goodwill 1s included within the canying value amount of the investment
and s assessed for impairment as part of that investment Any excess of the Group's share of the net farr value of the identifiable assets, habilities and
contingent ilabiimies over the cost of acquisiion after reassessment, 1s recognised immedhately i profit or loss Where a Group entity transacts with

a joint veniure profits and losses are elminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the arrangement

Goodwill

Goodwill ansing on acquisitton s recognised as an asset at the date that controt1s acquired Goodwall 1s measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controling interest and the fair value of any previously held equity interest in the acquired endity,
over the net of the acquisition date amounts of the identihakle assets and liabilities acquired

If, after reassessment the Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree's Identifiable net assets exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,

the amount of any non-controling interest and the fair value of any previously held equity interest in the acguired entity, the excess 1s recogrised
immediately in the income statement
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2 Significant accounting policies {continued)

Goodwill which 1s recognised as an asset 1s reviewed for Impairment at least annually Any impairment s recognised immediately in profit or loss and 1s
not subsequently reversed For the purpose of impairment testing goodwill is allocated o each of the Group's cash-generating uniis (CGUs) expected
to benefit from the synergres of the combination CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for imparment annually, or more frequently
when thete 1s an indication that the unit may be impaired I the: recoverable amount of the CGU 1s less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
imparrment loss 1s allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then 1o the other assels of the urit pro rata

on the basis of the carrying amount of each assat in the unit On dispesal of a subsidiary, associate or jomtly-controlled entity, the attnbutable amount
of goodwill 1s Included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal

Other intangible assets
Assets are grouped inte classes of similar nature and use and separately disclosed except where this 1s not material

Expenditure on research is recogrused as an expense tn the perod in which it 1s incurred  Development expenditure ts capitalised as an intangible asset
only i all of the followang conditions are met

® an asset s created that can be separately identified, and which the Group intends to use or sell,

@ the finalisation of the asset 1s techrucally feasible and the Group has adequate resources to complete its development for use or sale,
® 1t13 probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefits, and

® the development cost of the asset can be measured rehably

Customer relationships represent the value of contracts acquired on the acquisiion of subsichanes and are amortised over the average length of the
related contracts

Purchased soitware and development expenditure 1s amortised over the penod in which the Group 1s expected to benefit This period is between three
to exght years, or the length of the contract if longer Prowvision 1s also made for any impairment All other development expenditure 1s written off as
incurred Assets under the course of construction are not depreciated

Licences compnse premums paid for the acquisibion of icences while franchises represent costs incurred in obtaining franchise nights and franchise
goodwill ansing on the acquisition of franchises These are amortised on a straight-line basis over the life of the respective licence or franchise

Penston related intangibles represent assets ansing in relation to the Group s nght 1o manage and operate contracts where there I1s a defined benefit
pension scheme and 1itis not virtually certain that contnibutions will be recovered from the customer but where the Group’s cbligation 1o contribute to the
scheme ends when the contract ends The intangible assets represent the Group's share of scheme net labilities on the date that contracts commence
and are amortised on a straight-ine basis over the life of the contract

Property, plant and equipment
Assels held for use in the rendenng of services, or for admmistrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost, net of accumulated depreciation
and any provision for imparment Assets are grouped Into classes of similar nature and use and separately disclesed except where this 1s not matenal

Depreciation 1s provided on a strarght-ine basis at rates designed to reduce the assets to therr residual value over ther estimated useful lives

The principal annual rates used are

Freehold buldings 25%

Short-leasehold building improvements The hugher of 10% ar the rate produced by the lease term
Machinery 15%~-20%

Motor vehicles 10%-50%

Furniture 10%

Office equipment 20%-33%

Leased equipment The hrgher of the rate produced by the tease term or useful life

The gain or loss ansing on the disposal or retirtement of an asset s determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
ol the asset and (s recognised in the Income statement

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

Annually, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there 1s any indication that those assets
have suffered an imparment loss if any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 15 estimated in order o determine the extent of the
imparrment loss (if any) Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets the Group estimales the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs A CGU 1s the smallest group of assets that generates cash iflows from continuing use that are
largely independent of the cash flows of other assets or groups of assets For the purpose of impairment testing, the goodwill acquired in a business
combination 1s allocated to cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination

Recoverable amount is defined as the higher of farr value less costs to sell and value in use In assessing value in use the estimated future cash flows !

are discounted to thew present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reftects current market assessments of the time value of money and the nsks
specthc to the asset for which the estmates of future cash flows have not been adjusted
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If the recoverable amount of an asset {or CGU} 1s estmated to be {ess than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset {or CGU) 1s reduced
1o Its recoverable amount An impairment loss 1s recognised as an expense immediately Imparment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are
allocated first 1o reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the uris and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit {group of units) on a pro rata basis

An mparrment loss in respect of goodwill 1s not reversed In respect of other assets, impairment losses recogrised in prior penods are assessed

at each reporting date for iIndications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists Where an impanrment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU} 1s increased to the rewsed estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amaorhisation, had no imparrment loss been recognised for

the asset (or CGU) In pror years A reversal of an impairment l0ss$ 1$ recognised as ncoma immedchately

impairment losses and reversals are included within adminisirative expenses within the consolidated income statement

Retirement benefit costs
Payments to defined contribution pension schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due

For defined benefit pension schemes, the cost of prowiding benefits 1s determined using the projected unit credit actuanal cost method with actuanal
valuations being carned out at each balance sheet date

Actuanal gains and losses are recognised in full in the period in which they occur They are recognised outside the income staterment and are presented
in the SOCI The current service cost represents the increase in the present value of the scheme llabiliies expected to arise from employee service in the
current penod

Past service cost g recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested, and 1s amoriised on a straight-line basis over the
average penod untl the benefit vests Gains and losses on curtallments or setlements are recognised in the penod in which the curtaiment or
seitlement occurs

The retirement benefit obligation recegrised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit ohhigahon as adjusted for
unrecognised past senice costs and as reduced by the farr value of scheme assefs Any asset resulting from this calculation 1s imited 1o past
service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and reductiens in future contributions to the scheme

The economic benefit from refunds is only recogrised to the extent that the Group has an unconditional nght tc receive a refund

To the extent that an economic benefl 1s avallable as a reduction in contnibutions and there 15 a mimimum funding requirement, the economic beneftt
avallable as a reducticn in contributions 1s calculated at the present value of

a} the estimated {uture service cost Iin each year, less
b} the estmated minimurm funding contnbutions required in respect cf the future accrual and benefits in that year

Defined benefit obligations arising from contractual abligations

Where the Group takes on a contract and assumes the obligation to contribute vanable amounts 10 the defined benefit pension scheme throughout the
pertod of the contract, the Group's share of the defined benefit obligation less its share of the pension scheme assets that it will fund over the penod of
the contract 1s recognised as a hability at the start of the contract with a corresponding amount being recogrnised as an intangible asset The intangible
asset, which reflects the Group's nght 1o manage and operate the contract, 1s amortised over the contract period The Group s share of the scheme
assets and habilites 1s calculated by reducing the scheme assets and habdities by a franchise adjustment The franchise adjustment represents the
amount of scheme deficit that 1s expected to be funded outside the contract penod Subseguent actuanial gains and losses in relation to the Group's
share of pension obligations are recogrised outside the income statement and are presented in the SOCI

Multi-employer pension schemes
Multi-employer pension schemes are classified as either a defined contnbution pension scheme or a defined benetit pension scheme under the terms
of the scheme

Derivative financial Instruments and hedging activities

The Group enters into a varety of denvative financial iInstruments to manage the exposure to interest rate foreign exchange nsk and price nsk including
currency swaps, foreign exchange torward coniracts interest rate swaps and commodity future contracts Further detards of dervative financal
instruments are given in note 33

Denvatives are inihially recogrised at fair value at the date a derivative contract 1s entered inte and are subsequently re-measured to therr far value
at each balance sheet date The resulting gain or loss 1s recogrused in profit or loss immediately unless the denvative 1s designated and effective
as a hedging instrument, in which event the timmg of the recagriton in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship The Group
designates certain dervatives as either hedges of the farr value of recognised assets or habiliies (fawr value hedges) or hedges of highly probable
forecast transactions or hedges of firm commitments (cash flow hedges)
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents the relatonship between the hedging instrument and the hedged ttem, atong with its
nsk management objectives and Its strategy for undertaking vanous hedge transactions Both at the inception of the hedge and on a penodic basis,
the Group assesses whether the hedging instrument that 15 used in a hedging relationshup 1s highly etfective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash
flows of the hedged itern

A dervative 1s presented as a non-current asset or a non-current liability if the remaining maturity of the instrument 1s more than 12 months and it 1s not
expected to be realised or settled within 12 months Denvatives, which mature within 12 months, are presented as curent assets or current habilities

Details of the farr values of the dernvatwve instruments used for hedging purposes and movements in the hedging and translation reserve in equity are
detarled in the SOCI and descrnbed in note 33

Farr value hedges

Changes in the farr value of denvatives that are designated and qualify as farr value hedges are recorded i profit or loss immediately, together with
any changes in the far value of the hedged item that s attnbutable 1o the hedged risk The change in the fair value of the hedging instrument and the
change in the hedged item atinbutable to the hedged nsk are recognised in the line of the Income statement relating to the hedged itern

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group de-designates the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, terminated,
exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting The adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item ansing from the hedged nskis
amortised to profit or loss from that date

Cash flow hedges

The efiective portion of changes in the far value of denvatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are deferred in equity The gain or
loss relating to the ineffective portion (s recognised immediately in profit or loss Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the
penods when the hedged item aftects profit or loss, in the same lne of the Income statement as the recognised hedged item

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the Group de-designates the hedging relabonship the hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, terminated,
exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting Any cumulative gain or loss deferred in equity at that ime remains in equity and 18 recogmised
when the forecast transaction 1s ulimately recognised in profit or loss When a forecast transaction s no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or loss that was deferred in equity ts recognised immediately in profit or loss

Tax
The tax expense represents the sum of current tax expense and deferred tax expense

Current tax expense 1s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income statement because 1t exciudes
items of ncome or expense that are taxable or deductble in other years and 1t further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The Group's
liability for current tax 1s calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s pronided, using the hability method, on temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and habilities
and therr carying amounts for accounting purposes

Deferred tax habilihes are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, 10 the extent that (t)s probable that taxable profits will be avalable
aganst which these items can be utiised

Deferred tax assets and habilties are not recogrised if the temporary difference anses from goodwill or from the iniial recognition of an asset and
lability in & transacthon other than a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences ansing on investments in subsidianies, except where the Group 1s able to contral
the reversal of the iemporary difference and 1t 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced 10 the extent that it 1s no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be utiised

Deferred tax 1s measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability Is settled or the asset is realised based upon tax
rates and fegislation that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date Detferred tax is charged or credited in the income
staternent except where it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax 1s also recogrused in equity

Deferred tax assets and habibties are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets agamnst current tax liabiliies and when
they relate to Income taxes levied by the same tax authornity where the Group intends 1o settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis

Share-based payment

The Group makes equity-setiled share-based payments to certain employees and operates an HMRC approved Save As You Earn {SAYE) share option
scheme open to ehgible employees which allows the purchase of shares at a discount These are measured at fair value at the date of grant The fair
value 1s expensed on a straight-ine basis over the vesting penod based on the Group's estmate of shares that will eventually vest SAYE options are
treated as cancelled when employees cease to contnbute to the scheme resulting in an acceleration of the remainder of the related expense
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Where the {arr value of share options requires the use of a valuation model far value rs measured by use of the Binormial Lattice or Monte Carlo
Simulation models depending on the type of scheme, as set out in note 38 The expected hife used in the models has been adjusted based on
management's best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restnctions, and behavioural considerations Where relevant, the value
of the option has also been adjusted to take account of market conditions applicable to the option

Inventories

Inventones are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value and comprise service spares parts awaiting installation and work in progress for
projects undertaken for customers where payment s receved on complebon Cost compnses direct matenals and, where applicable direct labour
costs that have been incurred in bringing the inventones to thetr present focation and condition

Trade recelvables

Trade receivables are recognmised inially at far value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision
for imparrment A provision for impairment of trade recervables ts established when there s objective evidence that the Group will not be able to

collect all amounts due according to the onginal terms of the contract Significant financial ditficulties of the debior, probability that the debtor will

enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation and default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that a trade receivable 1s impared

The amount of the proviston I1s based on management's best esttmate of the recoverahble amount The carrying amount of the asset 15 reduced through
the use of an allowance for doubtful debts and the amount of the loss 18 recognised in the iIncome statement within administrative expenses When a
trade receivable 1s uncollectible, it 1s wntten off against the allowance for doubtiul debts Subsequent recovenes of amounts previously wntien off are
credited aganst administrative expenses

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and batances with banks and similar institutions, which are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and which are subject 1o insignificant changes in value and have a maturty of three months or less from the date of acquisition This definition
15 also used for the consolidated cash flow statement

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership to the lessee
All other leases are classified as operating leases

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group af far value or, if lower at the present value of minimum lease payments
determined at the inception of the lease The corresponding hability to the lessor 1s included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remairing balance of the labihty Finance charges are charged directly to the income statement, unless they are directly attnbutable to a qualifying
asset, In which case they are capitaised in accordance with the Group s general policy on borowing costs (see below)

Total rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-ine basis aver the term of the relevant lease

Loans
Loans are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method Accrued interest is recorded separately from the associated borrowings
within current habilihes

Loans are descnbed as non recourse loans and classified as such only f no Group company other than the relevant borrower has an obhgation,
under a guarantee or other arrangement, to repay the debt

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly atinbutable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarnly take a
substantial penod of time to get ready for therr intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantally
ready for ther intended use or sale

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the pericd in which they are incurred

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it 1s probable that the Group will be required to settle
that obligation Provisions are measured at management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date

Net investments in forelgn operations
Exchange differences ansing on monetary items that forrm part of the Group's net snvestment in foreign operations are initially recognised in equity
and accumulated in the hedging and translation reserve and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the net investment

Dividends
Dividends are recorded in the Group s consclidated financial statements in the penod in which they are dectared, appropnately authonsed and
no longer at the discretion of the Company
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Segmental informatlon
Segmental informahon s based on Internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the Group s Chief Operating Decision
Maker in order to aliocate resources 1o the segments and 1o assess ther performance

Segmental revenue 1s analysed on an external basts Inter-segment revenue 1s not presented as it s not significant in the context of revenue as a whole
Net finance costs are not presented for each operaling segment as they are reviewed on a consolidated basis by the Group's Chief Operating Decision
Maker

Items excluded from segmental results compnse corporale expenses Specific corporate expenses are allocaied to the corresponding segments
Segment assets comprse goodwill other intangible assets, property, plant and eguipment, inventones, rade and other recevables {excluding
corporation tax recoverable) and any retirement benefd asset Segment labilities compnse trade and other payables and retirement benefit abligations

3 Cnhtical accounting judgements and key sources of estmation uncertainty

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note 2 above, management has made the following judgements
that have the most significant effect on the amounis recognised in the financial statements (apart from those involving estimations which are dealt
with below)

Revenue and profit recognition of long-term project-based contracts

Revenue and profit 1s recognised for certan long-term project-based contracts based on the stage of completion of the contract activity

The assessment of the stage of complehon requires the exercise of Judgement and 1s measured by the proportion of costs incurred to estmated
whole life contract costs except where whole life coniract costs exceed the contract value, In which case the excess is expensed immediately

Caprtalisation of internally generated intangible assets
When the Group creates an intangible asset where the future econornic benefits are greater than the expected costs, the developmenti cosis are
capitahsed if they meet the other requirements of JAS 38 Intangible Assets as set out in the accounting policies section above

Separation of income statement items from underlying results

IAS 1 requires matenal tems to be disclosed separately in a way that enables users to assess the quality of a company’s profitabiity In practice,
these are commonly referred 10 as “exceptional” tems but this 1s not a concept defined by IFRS and therefore there 1s a level of judgement involved
in determining what to include in underlying profit We consider items which are matenal non-recurnng and cutside of the normal operating practice
ol the Company to be suitable for separate presentation

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date that have a significant nsk
of causing a materal adjustment to the carrying amounis of assets and habilifies within the next financial year, are discussed below

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill 1s imparred requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating uruts to which goodwill has been allocated
The value in use calculation involves an estimation of the future cash flows of cash-generating units and also the selection of appropnate discount rates,
which involves judgement, to calculate present values (see note 20) The carrying value of goodwill 1s £1,270 8m (2012 restated €1,312 1m} at the
balance sheet date

Retirement benefit obligations

The calculation of retirement benefit obligations 1s dependent on matenal key assumplions including discount rates, future returns on assets and future
contnbution rates (see note 34) The value of net retirement benefit obligations at the balance sheet date 1s an asset of £52 9m {2012 restated £31 7m)
Detalls of the impact of changes in assumptians relating to retirement benefit obligations are disclosed in note 34

Business combinations

The calculation of far values associated with business combinations requires the use of judgement In determining the future economic inflows and
outflows associated with the acquired assets and lrabilfies This includes the estimation of contingent deferred consideration and intangibles ansing on
acquisition As permitted by IFRS 3 (2008), provisional amounts are recognised for acquired net assets dunng the measurement peniod where complete
information about facts and crcumsiances that existed at the acquesition date s not available at the reporting date

Provistons for onerous contracts

Determining whether provisions are required for {oss making onerous contracts requires an estimate to be made of the future profitability of the given
contract, based on vanous interdependent factors Histoncally these provisions have been rare, but in the cutrent year an exceptional charge was made
for onerous contracts, with further details provided in notes 11 and 30
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4 Prior year restatement

Changes in accounting policies

IFRS 11 and the revisions to |AS 19 were adopted in 2013 IFRS 11 removes the option for proporiional consolidation of joint ventures and instead
requires equity accounbng The revisions to IAS 19 require the pension interest return to be calculated using the value of scheme assets multiphed by
the discount rate rather than the expected rate of return Both of these changes were applied retrospectively, with the date of imitial applicaton bemng

1 January 2012, In accordance with the transition provisions of the individual standards and /AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Enors

Reallocation of costs
In 2012 £114m of costs previously included in admimstrative expenses have been reallocated to cost of sales, as in the view of the Group,
this classification better reflects the underiying nature of these items

Acquisition adjustments
Alter a review of the provisional acquision accounting for Vertex Pubhc Services Limited and DMS Marntime Pty Limited recogrused in the
2012 accounts, the comparative information in relation to these acquisibons has been adjusted retrospectively

Impact of prior year restatement on summarised financial statements
Changes in accounting policies

Acquisition

As disclosed adjustments IFRS 11 1AS 19* Restated
Year ended 31 December 2012 m £m £m £m £m
Income statement
Revenue 49130 - {852 9) - 4,060 1
Operating profit 287 6 - (12 9) (25) 2722
investment revenue 124 - @9 (33) 64
Exceptional other gan 511 - - - 511
Finance costs (48 1) - 05 - (48 6}
Profit before tax 3020 - (15 1) (58) 2811
Tax (56 1) - 151 09 (40 1)
Profit for the year 2459 - - 49) 2410
*1AS 18 Revised atjustment after application of IFRS 11
Earnings per share 49 94p - - (1 00)p 48 94p |
OCther comprehensive income for the year (84 5) - - 49 {79 6)
Total comprehensive Income for the year 161 4 - - - 161 4
Balance sheet
Non-current assets 2,103 4 07 {227 0) - 18757
Current assels 1,143 7 - {142 4) - 10013
Total assets 3,247 1 o7 (369 4) - 28770
Current habiliies (997 8) - 1309 - {866 9)
Non-current hiabilities {1,120 4) 07 2385 - {8812)
Total llabilitles (2,118 2) 07 3694 - (1,748 1)
Net assets 1,128 9 - - - 1,128 9
Equity 1,128 9 - - - 1,1289
Cash flow
Net cash inflow from operating actwities 303 4 - (82 5) - 2209
investing actmities (89 2) - gs2 - (40)
Financing actviies (261 4) - 186 - {259 8)
Net decrease In cash and cash equivalents (47 2) - 43 - (42 9)
Net exchange loss 90y - 01 - (89}
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4 Prnor year restatement (continued)

Changes in aceounting policies

Acquisition

As disclosed adjustments IFRS 11 IAS 19 Restated
At 1 January 2012 £m £m £m £m £m
Balance sheet
Non-current assets 20531 - {181 0) - 1,8721
Current assets 1,129 0 - {170 1) - 958 9
Total assets 3,182 1 - (351 1) - 2,831 0
Current habibhes (1,061 6) - 1389 - (922 7}
Naon-current labidities (1,116 7) - 2122 - (904 5}
Total llabifities {2,178 3) - 3511 - {1,827 2)
Net assets 1,003 8 - - - 1,003 8
Equlity 1,003 8 - - - 1,003 8

5 Segmental information

Information reported to the Chiet Operating Decision Maker for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses
on the geographic spread of the business in order to gan advantage of local market and customer understanding In addition due to its strategic
importance to the Group, the global Business Process Qutsourcing (BPO) business i1s reviewed separately as a single unit The Group's reportable

operating segments under IFRS 8 Operating Segments are

Reportable segments

Operating segments

UK & Europe UK and Europe fronttine services in areas including home affairs, defence, health, transportation
and local government direct services

Amencas US defence, inteligence and federal civilian agencies operateons and Canadian operations

AMEAA Frontline contracts in Australasia, Middle East, Asia {nclud:ing Hong Kong and India) and Afnca

Glcbal Services Global BPO middie and back office services

The reportable segments will change in 2014 to reflect the separation of the UK & Europe segment into two new segments, UK Central Government

and UK Local and Regional Government, and the existing segment will no longer exist

The accounting policies of the reporiable segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies descnbed In note 2

Geographic information

Nen-current

Non-current Revenue assets”

Revenue assets* 2012 2012

2013 2013 {restated) (restated)

Year ended 31 December £m £m £m £m
United Kingdom 20715 784 1 2,008 7 7812
United States 7065 4237 6594 4 437 5
Australa 869 2 167 0 7003 1925
Other countries 6409 406 5 656 7 4217
Total 4,288 1 1,781 3 4060 1 18329

* Non-current assets exclude financial instruments deferred tax assets and loans to joint ventures

Revenues from external customers are atinbuted to indvdua!l countnies on the basis of the location of the customer
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5 Segmental information {continued)

Information about major customers

The Group has twa major governmental customers which each represent more than 10% of Group revenues The customers' revenues were
respectvely £1,807 Om (2012 restated £1,727 3m) across UK & Europe and Global Services and £643 2m {2012 restated £649 7m) wathin the
Amerncas segment

The tfollowing 1s an analysis of the Group's revenue, results assets and liabilities by reportable segment

UK & Global

Europe Ameticas AMEAA Services Corporate Total
Year ended 31 December 2013 £m Em £m £m £m £m
Adjusted revenue 2,556 9 7653 1,049 5 7722 - 5,143 ¢
Less Share of joint venture revenue (770 8) 07 (84 3) - - (855 8)
Revenue 1,786 1 7646 965 2 7722 - 4,288 1
Result
Operating profit before exceptional temns 133 4 475 778 255 (49 9) 2343
Exceptional net profit on disposal of
subsidianes and operations 192 - - - - 192
Other exceptional operating items (92 3) - {10 1) (60) (13) (109 7)
Operating profit 603 475 677 195 (512) 143 8
Investment revenue 52
Finance costs (42 4)
Profit before tax 106 6
Tax (11 2)
Profit for the year 95 4
Supplementary information
Interest in the profit of joint ventures 427 - 44 - - 471
Depreciation (24 2} (27) {15 3} (11 9) - (541)
Amortisation of intangibles arising on acguisition {03) (11 3) 24) {7 4) - (21 4)
Cther amortisation 29) (13) 53) (13 2) 52) (27 9)
Total amortisation (32) (12 6) 77 (20 6) 52) (49 3)
Segment assets
Interests in joint ventures 14 02 65 - - 81
Other segment assets 6365 5583 4187 846 7 126 0 2,586 2
Total segment assets 6379 5585 425 2 8467 126 0 2,594 3
Unallocated assets 2146
Consolidated total assets 2,808 9
Segment liabllitles
Segment labilities (229 2) (70 3) (147 7) (180 5) (61 3) (689 0)
Unallocated habilities (1,024 0)
Consolidated total hakihties (1,713 0)
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5 Segmental information (continued)

UK & Global

Europe Amencas AMEAA Services Corporate Total
Year ended 31 December 2012 (restated) £m fm £m £m £m £m
Adjusted revenue 25611 753 4 2830 7155 - 49130
Less Share of joint venture revenue {723 4} o7 (128 8) - - (852 9)
Revenue 18377 7527 754 2 7185 - 4,060 1
Result
Operating profit before exceptional items 166 0 Mns 581 506 {44 6) 27186
Exceptional net profit on disposal of
subs:dianes and operahons 310 - - (25 4) - 56
Other exceptionat operating items - - - - {50 {50)
Operating profit 1970 415 581 252 {49 6) 2722
Invesiment revenue 64
Exceptional other gaun 511
Finance costs {48 6)
Profit before tax 2811
Tax (40 1)
Profit for the year 2410
Supplementary information
Interest in the profit of joint ventures 511 01 113 - - 625
Depreciation (197 {29) 57 (177} {01} (46 1)
Amertisation of intangibles arising on acquisition 04 {137} {©03) @7 - (24 )
Other amortisation (32) (0 8) 20 {11 8} (3 1} (20 9)
Total amoriisation (36) {145} 23 {21 5) 31 {45 Q}
Segment assets
Interests in joint ventures 44 03 72 - - 119
Other segment assets 674 2 604 3 4537 8449 742 26513
Total segment assets 6786 6046 4609 8449 742 2,663 2
Unallocated assets 2138
Consoldated total assets 28770
Segment liabliHles
Segment habilities {313 1) 937 (146 3} (256 1} (28 4) (8376)
Unallocated labilities {910 5)
Consolidated total habiliies (1748 1)

6 List of principal undertakings

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under Section 410(2) of the Companies Act 2006 by prowding information only in relation
to undertakings whose results or financial position, i the optnion of the Drectars, pnnaipally affected the financial statements

A complete list of subsidiary and associated undertakings will be aftached 1o the next Serco Group plc annual return to Companies House

The percentage of equity capital held directly or indirectly by Serco Group plc 1s shown below, together with the iocation of incorporation and operation
The voting rights are the same as the percentage holding

Principal subsidlaries 2013 2012
United Kingdom Serco Limited 100% 100%

NPL Management Limited 100% 100%
Australia Serco Australia Pty bmited 100% 100%
Incha Serco BPO Prvate Limited 100% 100%
UsA Serco Inc 100% 100%
Joint venture undertakings 2012 2012
United Kingdorn AWE Management Limiied 33% 33%

Northern Rall Holdings Limited 50% 50%

All joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method, none have quoted shares and there are no significant restnictions on the abibty of
any of the joint ventures to pay ddends or repay amounts owed All the subsidianes of the Group have been consolidated

All the principal subsidianes of Serco Group ple and its joint venture undertakings are engaged in the prowision of support services
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7 Joint ventures

The Group has certain arrangements where control 1s shared equally with one or more parties As each arrangement 1s a separate legal entity and legal
ownership and control are equal with all other parties there are no significant udgements required {o be made

Surnmansed financial information of the joint ventures which are matenal to the Group and an aggregation of the other joint ventures in which the Group

has aninterest is as follows

31 December 2013

AWE Northern Group portion
Management Rail Holdings Group portion of other Group
Limited Limited of material joint venture portion
(100% of results) (100% of resuits)  Joint ventures*  arrangements® total
Summarlsed financial Information £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 1,023 6 650 4 666 4 1894 8558
Operating profit 777 336 27 162 589
Net investment revenue/(finance costs) 03 06 0a (0 8) (0 4)
Income tax expense (111 e4) 84) (3 0) {114)
Proft from continuing operations 669 248 347 124 471
Other comprehensive income - {2 6) {13) 34 21
Total comprehensive income 669 222 334 158 492
Dmwdends recerved from joint venture 258 142 397 18 515
Non-current assets 454 2 120 1574 201 1775
Current assels 1632 90 2 995 367 136 2
Current habities (147 3) (95 2) (96 7) {34 9) (131 6)
Non-current liabiliies (453 6) {92) {155 8) (18 2) {174 0)
Net assets 165 (22) 44 37 81
Proportion of group ownership 33% 50% - - -
Carrying amount of investment 55 {11} a4 37 81
AWE Northern Group portion
Management Rail Holdings Group portion of other Group
Urnited Limited of material Joint venture portion
{100% of results) (100% of results}  joint ventures*  arrangements* total
Supplementary materlal £m £m £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 393 490 376 127 503
Current financial habiities excluding trade and other payables
and provisions (7 5) (52) (51) (15) (6 6)
Non-current financial habilihes excluding trade and other
payables and provisions - (30) (15) (4 4) (59)
Depreciation and amoriisation - (34) (17) (33) (50)
Interestincome 03 o4 03 01 04
Interest expense - - - (02} 02)

* Total results of the joint ventures multiphed by the respective proportien of Group ownership

The financial siatements of Northern Rail Holdings Limited are for a penod which 1s different from that of the Group, being for the 52 week penod ended
4 January 2014 The 52 week penod reflects the toint venture's internal reporting structure and 1s sufficently close so as to not require adjustment to

match that of the Group
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7 Joint ventures (continued)

Certam employees of the groups headed by AWE Management Limited and Northern Rasl Holdings Limited are members of sponsored defined benefit
pension schemes Given the significance of the schemes to understanding the positicn of the joint ventures the following key disclosures are made

AWE Northem
Management Rail Holdings
Maln assumptions 2013 Limited Limited
Rate of salary increases (%} 3s 34
Inflation assumption {CPI, %) 27 27
Driscount rate (%) 48 a7
Post-retirement montality
Current male industrial pensioners at 65 {years) 227 N/A
Future male industnal pensioners at 65 {years) 245 N/A
Retirement benefit funding posibon {100% of results) £m £m
Present value of scheme lab:liies {1,416 3) (770 8)
Farr value of scheme assets 962 7 564 2
Net amount recognised (453 6) (206 6)
Members' share of deficit - 826
Franchise adjustments* - 1202
Related asset, nght to rembursement 453 6 -
Net retirement benefit obligation - (38)

* The franchise adjustment represents the amoun: of scheme deficit that is expected to be funded outsice the contract penod

The Northern Rail defined benefit pension scheme uses a mortality rate multipher of 98% based on the S1 normal males (heavy) table, adjusted for the

geographic location of members

AWE Management Limited 1s net iahle for any deficiency m the defined benefit pension scheme under current contraciual arrangements The deficit
reflected in the financial statements of Northern Rail Holdings Limited covers only that porfion of the deficit that 1s expected to be funded over the term
of the franchise arrangement the entity operates under in additton, the defined benefit position reflects an adustment in respect of funding required

to be provided by employees

31 December 2012

AWE Northern Group portion
Management Rail Holdings Group portion of othor Group
Limnited Limited of matenal jont venture porhion
(100% ol results)  (100% of resubts) Joint ventures™® arrangements” total
Summarised financial Information £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 9735 597 2 6231 2298 8529
Operating profit 065 348 529 243 772
Net investment revenug/(hnance costs} 06 04 04 (06) 02)
Income tax expense (17 4) {54) (8 5} 60 (14 8)
Prchit from continuing operations 897 298 448 177 625
Other comprehensive Income - 48 24 37) 13
Total comprehensive Income 897 346 472 40 612
Dwidends receved from joint venture 309 171 480 326 806
Non-current assets 6441 108 2201 214 2415
Current assets 17556 871 1021 403 142 4
Current habilities (149 5} {92 7 (96 2) (34 7) (1309
Non-current liabilitres (644 1} {12 {215 3) (25 8) {241 1)
Net assets 260 40 W07 12 119
Proportion of group ownership 33% 50% - - -
Carrying amount of investment 87 20 107 12 119

* Total results of the joint ventures mullipled by the respective prapartion of Group ownership
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7 Joint ventures (continued)

AWE Northern Group poriton
Management Raul Holdings Group portion of other Group
Liruted Liied of materal ot ventura partion
(100% of results)  {100% of results) joint ventures* arrangements” total
Supplementary material £m Em £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 904 310 456 102 558
Current financial kabiliies excluding trade and other payables
and provisions 93 (56) 59) 28 B7)
Non-current financiai habiities excluding trade and other
payables and provisions - - - (6 5) (65)
Depreciation and amortisation - (57) (29) (31) (6 0)
interest Income 06 04 04 03 o7
Interest expense - - - - -
* Total results ol the yoint ventures multiphed by the respective propertion of Group ownership
The financial statements of Northern Rail Holdings Limited are for the 52 week penod ended 5 January 2013
Key disclosures with respect of the defined benefit pension schemes of matenal joint ventures
AWE Northern
Management Rad Holdings
Main assumptions 2012 Lirmited Lirited
Rate of salary increases (%) 340 340
Inflation assumption (CPI, %) 220 220
Discount rate (%) 430 430
Post-retirement mortality
Current male industnal penstoners at 65 {years) 226 N/A
Future male ndustrial pensioners at 65 (years) 24 4 N/A
Retirerment beneft funding position (100% of results) £m £m
Present value of scheme habilities (1,494 9) (782 3)
Farr value of scheme assets 8509 506 6
Net amount recognised (644 Q) 275 7)
Members' share of deficit - 1103
Franchuse adjustments* - 165 4
Related asset, nght to reimbursement 6440 -

Net retirement benefit cbligation

* The franchise adjustment represents the amount of scheme deficit that 15 expected to be funded outside the contract period

The Northern Rall defined benefit pension scheme uses a mortality rate multipher of 98% based on the §1 normal males (heavy) table, adjusted for the

geographic location of members

IFRS 11 was adopted i 2013 IFRS 11 removes the option for proportional consolidation of joint ventures and instead requires equity accounting
for such entities, which 1s apphed retrospectively from 1 January 2012 A breakdown of the assets and lhabilities of all joint ventures at 1 January 2012

15 as follows

£m
Non-current assets 220 4
Current assets 1716
Current habities (140 4)
Non-current liabilites {215 5)
Net assets 361
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8 Acquisihons

Prior year acquisitions

Deferred consideration payments in relation to pnor year acquisiions were made in 2013 totalting £18 6m This represented £11 9m in respect

of Intelenet and E6 7m in relation to The Listening Company Dunng 2012, a cash payment of £6 6m was made in respect of deferred contingent

consideration payable following the acquisition of The Listering Company Limited in 2011

After a review of the prowisional acquisiion accounting for Vertex Public Services Limited as recognised in the 2012 accounts, the comparative
information in relation to this acquisiton has been adjusted retrospectively to increase the farr value of deierred tax assets by £2 3m offset by a

decrease in goodwill of £2 3m Following a review of the provisional acguisition accounting for DMS Mantime Py Limited as reported in the 2012
accounts, the comparative information in relation to this acquisihon has been adjusted retrospectively to reduce the far value of ntangible assets
recognised by £7 9m, offset by an increase in goodwill of £7 2m and a decrease in the deferred tax lability of £0 7m  As a result of the failure to

meet earn-out crtena an adjustment was made to the deferred consideration anising on the Intelenet acquisition In 2011 01 £10 3m

A summary of the significant 2012 acquisiions, together with the other acquisiions in aggregate s as follows

Farr value of net assets acquired

Ventex Public DMS Mantime Cther acquisitions
Services Limited Pty Limited {in aggregate) Totai
2012 2012 2012 2012
£m £m £m £m
Intangible assets 74 327 43 44 4
Property, plant and equipment 06 48 06 60
Inventories - 55 - 55
Deferred tax asset 38 - - 38
Trade and other receivables 278 100 21 399
Cash and cash equivalents - - 08 08
Trade and other payables {23 3) - {12) (24 5)
Tax habtilies - - {0 1) (0 1)
Deferred tax hability - {10 3) - (10 3)
Provisions (4 9) (04) 07) (6 0}
Loans - (14 8) - (14 8}
Bank overdraft - {0 4) - (04)
Retrament benefit chhigations {13 4) - - (13 4)
Net (habilities)/assets acquired 20 271 58 309
Gain on remeasurement to farr value - {51 1) - {51 1)
Goodwill 575 931 94 1600
Total consideration 555 69 1 152 1398
Satisfied by
Cash 555 691 114 136 0
Contingent consideration - - 38 38
Total consideration 555 691 152 1398
Net cash outflow ansing on acquisition
Purchase consideration 555 691 14 1360
Cash and cash equivalents acquired - - (08) 08)
Net cash outflow ansing on current year acquisitions 555 691 106 1352
Consideration paid n respect of previous penods 66
Acquisition of subsiciaries, net of cash acquired 1418
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9 Disposals

On 27 November 2013 the Group disposed of its London streets maintenance and UK transpon technolegy business On 4 October 2013, the Group
disposed of its occupational health business Details of these transactions are given below

The net assets at the date of disposal were

Occupational
Transport health Other Total Total
2013 2013 2013 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m £m
Goodwill 140 17 - 157 B6 8
OCther intangible assets - 05 - 05 46
Property, plant and equipment 04 02 01 07 190
Inventones 03 - - 03 -
Deferred tax asset - - - - 52
Trade and other receivables 75 3o 0S 110 537
Loans recevable - - - - 259
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - 14
Trade and other payables {(35) 07) - {42) (15 6)
Finance lease gbhgations - - - - 62)
Bank overdraits - - - - {13)
Provisions (0 3) - - (©3) {01)
Other loans - - - - on
Retirement benefit obligations - - - - (50 5)
Deferred tax habiliies - - - - (52)
Net assets disposed 184 47 06 237 1176
The profit/(loss) on disposal 1s calculated as follows
Cash consideration 449 35 08 49 2 1416
Less
Net assets disposed (18 4) 47 (0 6) (23 7) 1176)
Disposal-related costs (3.3) 27) (03) (63) (184)
Proft/{loss) on disposal 232 (39) (01) 192 56
The net cash inflow/{outflow} arising on disposals 1s as follows
Caonsicderation receved 44 8 35 08 a9 2 14186
Less
Deferred consideration (23) - - (23) -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed - - - - (14)
Disposal-related costs pad durning the period (24) (13) (26) (6 3) 92)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) on disposal 402 22 (18) 406 1310
Dunng the year, £2 5Sm of disposal costs in relation to a prior year transaction were cash setiled
10 Revenue
An analysis of the Group's revenue 1 as follows
22
2013 (restated)
Year ended 31 December £m £m
Renderning of services 4,214 0 349701
Revenue from long-term project-based contracts 741 900
Revenue as disclosed in the consoltdated Income statement 4,288 1 40601
Investment revenue (note 14} 52 64
Operating lease Income 10 09
Total revenue as defined in IAS 18 4,294 3 40674
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11 Exceptional items

Current year exceptional items

Exceptional items are non-recurmng items of inancial performance that are matenal to the results of the Group either by virtue of size or nature

We believe these items reguire separate disclosure on the face of the income statement to assist in the understanding of the undertying performance
of the Group

Net profit on disposal of subsidiaries and operations

2013
Year ended 31 Decemnber £m
Gain on disposal of UK transport maintenance business 232
Loss on disposal of occupational health business (39
Loss on cisposal of Ascot College 01)
Net profit on disposal of subsidiaries and operations 192

In November 2013 the Group completed the sale of its London streets maintenance and UK transport technclogy business to Cubic Corporation which
after disposal-related costs, resotted in a profit on disposal of £23 2m This was offset by a loss on the disposal of the occupational health business in
Ociober 2013 of £3 9m and Ascot College of £0 1m, which was sold in December 2013

Other exceptional operating items
Durning the year an investigation was undertaken by the Ministry of Justice (MaJ) into the biting practices in respect of our Electronic Monitoring
(EM) contract Additionally, the Cabinet Office undertook a wider review across other Serco contracts with UK Central Government 48% of 2013 contract
revenues In the UK & Europe division were covered by reviews undertaken by Central Government and the Mintstry of Justice Serco has also agreed
with the UK Government io undertake a process of corporate renewal, to strengthen governance and transparency which includes the separation of the
UK & Europe division into two The audits, reviews and corporate renewal processes all incurred ong-off costs that are deemed to be exceptional items,
which are set out 1n the table below together with cther items identified for separate presentation

UK Government

review refated

ltems Other Total

2013 2013 2013
Year ended 31 December £m £m £m
Settlement amounts relating to UK Government reviews {66 3) - (66 3)
Costs associated with UK Government reviews (11 6) - {11 6)
UK chirucal health contract provisions - (17 6) (17 6)
Restructunng - (149 (14 9)
Asset impairment - (9 6) (9 6)
Deferred considetation relabng to prior year acquisition - 103 103
Other exceptional operating ltems (77 9) (31 8) (109 7)

Settlement amounts relating to UK Government reviews

In December 2013, following a review of the billing arrangements on the EM contract by the Mtnistry of Justice a settlement of £64 3m was reached

in respect of contractual clams [n addition, a £2 Om settlement was reached on the Prisoner Escort and Custody Services (PECS) contract which was
also subyect to Government review to reflect repayment of past profit earned on this contract The settlement was full and final In respect of contractual
claims with the prowiso that additional payments might be sought in imited crrcumstances, such as if cnminality were to be established Serco continues
to cooperate fully with the ongoing Investigations by the Senous Fraud Office

Costs associated with UK Government reviews
Since July 2013 there have been external adwiser and other directly related incremental costs that amount to £11 6m

UK clirical health contract provisions

Dunng the year we completed a review of the chrical health operations in the UK As a result, we will exit two contracts early These contracts, together
wath a third loss-making contract, require contract provisions for estimated losses in future years and the imparment of operating assets which in total
amounts 1o a non-cash exceptional charge of £17 6m

Restructunng
As a result of a wider assessment of the Group’s operations, a restructunng charge of £14 9m was taken with £13 3m directly related to the corporate
renewal process

Asset impairment
As aresult of a review of under-performing businesses and operations an imparnrment charge of £6 6m was taken in relation to the carrying value
of fixed assets in Great Southern Rallway a rail tourism business based in Australia reflecting more challenging conditions in that market

Adjustment to pnor year acquisitions

On assessment agamst the earn-out cntena an adjustment was made to the deferred consideration anising on the Intelenet acquisition in 2011
of £1¢ 3m
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11 Exceptional items {continued)

Tax impact of above items
The tax impact of these lems was a tax credit of £28 8m

Prior year exceptional items

Net profit on disposal of subsidiaries and operations

2012
Year ended 31 December £m
Net profit on disposal of subsidianes and operations 56

During the pnior year the Group disposed of its Technical Services business which provided consulting and project solutions, resulting in a profit of
£57 6m [n additon, the German Serco business was sold as well as the UK data hosting operations and education software businesses, resulting in
losses of £27 7m, £11 5m and £12 8m respectively

Other exceptional operating items

2mz2
Year ended 31 December £m
Excephonal donation to Serco Foundation 50
To mark Serco's 25th year as a publicly traded company dedicated to service excellence, we established the Serco Foundation as an independent
chantable foundation An exceptional payment of £5 Om was made in the prior year te establish the chartable foundation
Exceptional other galn gain on step acquisition accounting of joint venture

202
Year ended 31 December £m
Gan on step acquisition accounting of joint veniure 511

On 16 Novernber 2012 Serco acquired the remaining 50% equity stake in DMS, taking its equity ownership to 100% DMS was formerly accounted for as
a joint venture and following the acquisition of further shares it became a wholly owned subsidiary In accordance with IFRS 3 (Revised 2008) Business
Combinations, before accounting for the purchase of the remaining equity stake, the value of the previously held 50% shareholding was restated to faur
value on the acquisihion date This resulted in an exceptional gain of £51 1m being recognised n the Income statement

Tax impact of above items
The tax impact of these items was a credit in the iIncome statement of £6 5m

12 Operating profit

Operating profit 1s stated after charging/{crediting)

2012
2013 (restated)
Year ended 31 December £m £m
Research and develcpment costs 200 235
Profit on disposal of propetty, plant and equipment - (09}
Loss on disposal of intangible assets 10 -
Depreciation and mpairment of property, plant and equipment {note 22) 541 461
Amertisation of intangible assets — anstng on acquisition (note 21) 214 241
Amortisation and imparrment of intang:ble assets ~ other {note 21) 279 209
Staff costs {note 13) 1,999 2 19119
Exceptional net profit on disposal of subsidianes and operations {note 11) (192) (56}
Cther exceptional operating items {nole 11} 1097 50
Allowance for doubtiul debts charged/(credited) to income statement {note 24) 04 (08)
Net foreign exchange credit 77 {75
Movement on non-designated hedges and reclassified cash flow hedges 66 71
Minimum lease payments recognised as an operating lease expense 1176 1015
Operating lease income from sub-leases (note 10) (10) (0 9}
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Amounts payable to Deloitte LLP and therr associates by the Company and its subsidiary undertakings in respect of audit and non-audit services are

shown below
2013 2012
Yoar ended 31 December £m £m
Fees payable 1o the Company's Auditor for the audit of the Company's annual accounts 11 09
Fees payable 10 the Company s Auditor and ther associates for other services to the Group
— Audit of the Company's subsichanes pursuant to legislation 1}] 08
Total auci fees 19 17
- Audit-related assurance services 02 01
— Taxation complance services 01 03
— Other taxation advisory services 0.3 03
- Other serices 03 04
Total non-audit tees 09 11
Fees payable to Delaitte LLP and ther associates for non-audit services to the Company are not required to be disclosed separately because the
consolidated financial statements are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated basis
Details of the company s policy on the use of auditors for non-audit services and how the auditor's independence and objectivity was safeguarded
are set oulin the Audil Committee Report on page 78 No services were provided pursuant to contingent fee annangements
13 Staff costs
The average monthly number of employees (including Executive Directors) was
2012
2013 {restated)
Year ended 31 December Number Number
UK & Europe 20,155 23,403
Amencas 9,293 8,854
AMEAA 49,952 8,465
Global Services 55,464 483 672
Unallocated 116 141
94,980 89,535
Aggregate remuneration comprised
2012
2013 (restated)
Year ended 31 December £m £m
Wages and salaries 1,752 5 1,680 4
Social secunly costs 135.2 1339
Other pension costs {note 34) 108 6 855
1,996 3 1,899 8
Share-based payment expense {note 38) 29 121
1,999 2 19119
14 Investment revenue
2012
2013 {restated)
Year ended 31 December £m £m
Interest recevable on other loans and deposits 24 25
Net interest receivable on retirement benefit obligations (note 34} 23 39
Movement in discount on other debtors 05 -
52 64
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15 Finance costs

2012
2013 (restated)
Year ended 31 December £m £m
Interest payable on non recourse loans 08 09
Interest payable on obligations under finance leases 25 28
Interest payable on other loans 315 308
Facilty fees and other charges 61 122
Movement in discount on provisions and deferred consideration 15 19
42 4 486
16 Tax
16 (a) Income tax recognised in the income statement
Belare
Before Exeeptlonal exceptional tems Excephonal Total
exceptionatl items tems Total 2012 iems 2012
2013 2013 2013 {restated) 2012 {restated)
Year ended 31 Decemnber £m £€m £m £m £€m £m
Current Income tax
Current income tax expense e - 316 375 51 324
Adjustments in respect of prior years (9 2) 02) 9 4) (5 5) - 55
Detferred tax
Current year 197 (25 4} 57 95 {14) 81
Adjustments in respect of prior years 21) 32) {53) 51 - 51
400 (28 8) 112 466 (6 5) 401
The tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit in the consolidated income statement as tollows
Betore
Before Exceptional exceptional items Exceptonal Total
exceptional tems Items Total 2012 items 2012
2013 2013 203 (restated) 2012 (restated)
Year ended 31 December £m £m £m £m £m £m
Profit before tax 197 1 {90 5) 106 6 2294 517 2811
Tax calculated at a rate of 23 3% (2012 24 5%) 459 21 1) 248 562 127 689
Expenses/(income) not deductible for
tax purposes {0 5) 06 01 14 o7 21
Unreheved tax losses 29 - 29 36 - 36
Effect of the use of unrecognised tax losses {01) - (01) - - -
Unprovided deferred tax 09 - 09 08 - 08B
Impact of changes in statutory tax rales a1 36 77 14 - 14
Overseas rate differences 109 (08) 101 27 - 27
Other non-taxable income - (2 4) (2 4) - - -
Step acquisiion accounting of yoint venture - - - - (12 5) (125)
Disposal of Serce GmbH - - - - 68 68
Statutory tax benefits {18) (5 3) (71) 37 (14 2) {17 9)
Adjustments in respect of prior years {11 3) {(34) (14 7) {0 4) - 04
Adjustments in respect of equity
accounted investments {11 0} - (11 0) {15 4) - {15 4)
Tax charge/(credit) 400 (28 8) 112 466 69) 401
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16 Tax {continued)

16 (b) Income tax recognised in the SOCI

2012

2013 (restated}

Year ended 31 December £m Em

Current tax

Taken to retirement benefit obligations reserve (1n 59
Deferred tax

Relating to cash flow hedges 12 41

Taken to rebrement benefit obligations reserve 41 171

42 271

The income tax expense tor the year 1s based on the blended UK statutory rate of corporation tax tor the penod of 23 3% (2012 24 5%) The impact of
changes in statutory tax rates relates principally to the reduction of the UK corporation tax rate from 24% to 23% from 1 Apnl 2013, which was enacted
on 17 July 2012 In addinon, the UK corporation tax rate was reduced from 23% to 21% from 1 Apnl 2014 and from 21% to 20% from 1 Apnl 2015, which
wasg enacled on 17 July 2013 These changes have resulted in a deferred tax charge ansing from the reduction in the batance sheet carrying value of
deferred tax assets to reflect the anticspated rate of tax at which those assets are expected to reverse

16 (c) Tax on ltems taken directly to equity

2013 2012
Year ended 31 December £m £m
Current tax
Recorded in share-based payment reserve [(+I}] 06
Deferred tax
Recorded in share-based payment reserve (58) 25
(59 31

17 Deferred tax
Delerred income taxes are calculated in {ull on temporary differences under the hability method using local substantively enacted tax rates

The movement In deferred tax assets and habilites dunng the year was as follows

2012

2013 (restated)

£m £m

At 1 January - asset (o0 (2%
Income statement charge (note 16} (11 0) 132
Acquisttions/disposals - 35
ltems recognised in equity and in other comprehensive ncome {note 16) 05 (23 7)
Exchange differences (33) 02
At 31 December - asset (23 5) 97
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17 Deferred tax {continued)

The movement In deferred tax assets and kabilikes dunng the year was as follows

Temporary Share-based
differences payment and Retlroment Derivative Other
on assets/ employee beneflt financial temporary
intangibles benefita scthemes Instruments differences Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2013 {restated) 213 {21 0) 63 (13 8) {25) 97
(Credited}/charged to income statement (99) 44 {12) 01 44) (11 0)
ltems recognised in equsty and i other
comprehensive income - 68 18 (12) 69) 05
Exchange ditterences (28) 04 - ©1) {08 (33)
At 31 Dacember 2013 86 (9 4) 69 (150) (14 6) {23 5)
The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the previous year was as follows
Temporary Share-based
differences payment and Retirement Deswvative Other
on assels/ employee benefit financial temporary
intangibles benefits schemes instruments differences Tonal
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2012 256 (23 8} 1856 ©1) (17 1) 59
Changes in accounting policies 01 14 20 08) 01 30
At 1 January 2012 (restated) 257 (22 4) 205 97) {17 0) 29)
(Credited)/charged to income staternent {32 36 07 - 121 132
Acquisitions/disposals 10 01 20 - 04 35
ltems recogrused in equity and in other
comprehensive income - (2 5) {17 1) 4 1) - (237)
Exchange differences (22 62 02 - 20 oz
At 31 December 2012 (restated) 213 (21 0} 63 {138) (25) @7

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable rnight to set ofi current tax assets against current tax habilities
and when the deferred income taxes relate io the same fiscal authonty The following is the analysis of the deterred tax balances (after offset) for

financial reporting purposes

2012

2013 {restated)

£m £m

Deferred tax labilities 344 304
Deferred tax assets (57 9) (401)
(23 5) 97

At the balance sheet date, the Group did not recognise delerred tax assets of £9 4m (2012 £16 5m) which principally relate to unused tax losses
of £40 2m {2012 £48 4m) Losses of £14 4m (2012 £11 8m} expire within five years losses of £1 2m (2012 £24 4m) expire within six to ten years
losses of £7 O0m (2012 £nil) expire within fiteen to twenty years, losses of £1 Om (2012 £nil) expire within twenty to tweniy-five years and losses

of £16 6m {2012 £12 2m) may be carried forward indefinitely
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18 Dividends
2013 2012
£m £m
Amounts recognised as distributions to equlity holders In the year
Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012 of 7 45p per share on 488 3 million ordinary shares
{2012 Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2011 of 5 9p per share on 480 2 millon ordinary shares) 364 289
Intenm dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013 of 3 10p per share on 486 § mithon ordinary shares
{2012 Intenm dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012 of 2 65p per share on 488 2 millon ordinary shares) 51 130
515 419
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013 of 7 45p per share on 487 4 milhon
ordinary shares (2012 7 45p on 488 3 million ordinary shares) 363 364

The proposed final dividend for 2013 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and has not been included as a hability In these
financial statements A dividend warver 1s effective for those shares held on behalf of the Company by its Employee Share Ownership Tiust {note 37)

19 Earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share (EPS) have been calculated in accordance with /AS 33 Earmings per Share

The calculation of the basic and diluted EPS 15 based on the following data

2013 2012

Number of shares Millions Millons
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic EPS 489 0 4912
Effect of dilutive potent:al ordinary shares share options 116 117
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of diluted EPS 5006 5029
Per share

Per share Earmings amount

Earnings amount 2012 2012

2013 2013 (restated) [restated)

Earnings per share £m Pence £m Pence
Earnings before exceptional items 1571 3213 1828 3709
Exceptional items 617 {12 62) 582 1185
Earmings for the purpose of basic EPS 954 19 51 2410 4894
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares - {0 45) - (114)
Diuted EPS 95 4 19 06 2410 47 80

At 31 December 2013 options over nil (2012 nil) shares were excluded from the weighted average number of shares used for calculating diluted
earnings per share because ther exercse price was above the average share price for the year and they were, therefore, ant-dilutive
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20 Goodwill

£m
At 1 January 2012 1,259 0
Changes in accounting policies (51)
At 1 January 2012 (restated) 1,253 ¢
Additions 167 5
Disposals (86 8)
Exchange differences (22 9)
At 1 January 2013 (restated) 1,3121
Oisposals (157)
Exchange differences (25 6)
At 31 December 2013 1,270 8

The goodwill acquired in business combinations 1s allocated, at acquisiion to the cash-generating units (CGUs) that are expecied to benefit from that
business combination

The Group tests goodwill annually for imparment or more #requently 1f there are indications that goodwll might be impaired The annual impairment test
15 performed immediately prior to the year end based on financial plans approved by senior management coverng a five-year penod The recoverable
amount of each CGU 1s based on value in use calculations denved from these plans The plans include a terminal value based on the projections for the
final year of that plan with a growth rate assumption applied to subsequent periods The results of the Imparment test are further reviewed after

the year end in hight of any signsficant changes in the environment

Key assumptions
The key assumptions affecting the CGUs wathin each operating segment are discussed below The table shows the key assumptions applied n the
impairment review across the CGUs These assumptions are revised year on year in light of changes 1o the current economic environment

Discount Discount Terminal Tarminal Goodwill
rate rate growth rates growth rates Goodwill 2012
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 {restated)
% % % % £m £m

UK & Europe
Health 91 84 22 25 795 812
Transport & Local Drect Services 21 84 22 25 1169 1309
Home Affars 91 84 22 25 460 460
Germany 86 80 20 22 176 171
Global Services 125 105 40 50 5133 5135
Americas 05 95 24 27 3859 3932

AMEAA

ASPAC 104 95 30 30 1033 1218
Middle East 86 73 30 35 83 84
At 31 December 1,270 8 1,3121

Short-term growth rates

Short-term revenue growth rates used in each CGU five-year plan are based on internal data regarding the current pipeline of opporturities and
publshed industry forecasts tor the relevant market Further discussion of the Group's order book and pipeline 1s provided in the Ous bustness and
Our performance sections

Terminal growth rates
The cash flows subsequent to the five-year penod are based upen management’s estimate of the growth rates of the sectors in which the CGUSs
operate Where possible these have been denved with reference to external sources

These rates do not exceed the average long-term growth rates forecast for the ndividual market sectors
Discount rate
Pre-tax discount 1ates, denved from the Group's post-tax weighled average cost of capital have been used In discounting the projecled cash flows

These rates are adjusted for nsks speaific o the market in which the CGU operates, including but not imited to gecgraphic and economic risks
contract length and customer type

142




|

I Financizl statements |

20 Goodwill {continued)

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis has been performed for each key assumplion and, except as noted below, the Directors have not identified any reasonably possible
change in a key assumption that would cause the carrying vatue of net assets, including goodwill, to exceed the recoverable amount

Sensitvity analysis shows that a 1% increase in the discount rate would result in an impairment of the Amerncas CGU of £40m, the Health CGU of £3m
and the Global Services CGU of £58m A 1% increase n the discount rate would not cause the operating assets, including goodwill, to exceed therr

recoverable amount on any other CGU

Sensitvity analysis shows that a 1% decrease in the terminal growth rate would result In an imparment of the Amencas CGU of £14m, the Health CGU
of £1m and the Global Services CGU of £41m A 1% decrease in the terminal growth rate would not cause the operating assets, including goodwill,

to exceed therr recoverable amount on any other CGU

If the short term growth rale were to equal the terrminal growth rate applied to the Health CGU forecast this would result in an impairment of £20m

21 Other intangible assets

Acqulsition related Other
Sottware, IT
Licences and other Penslon
Customer and development related
relatlonships franchises expenditure intanglbles Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 2013 147 2 720 2086 167 4435
Eliminated on disposal - - {15) - (15)
Additions from ntemal developrent - - 278 - 278
Disposals - (711) (16 7) - (87 8)
Reclassification (fo}firom property, plant and equipment - 04 81 - 77
Exchange differences (10 0} 07 (59) - (15 2)
Al 31 December 2013 137 2 1.2 2204 157 3745
Accumulated amortisation and Impalrment
At 1 January 2013 56 4 66 4 925 125 2278
Eliminated on disposal - - {10) - (10)
Charge for the year — imparment (exceptional) - - 32 - 32
Charge for the year — amortisation 165 49 225 22 461
Disposals - (71.1) (15 3) - (86 4)
Reclassification from property, plant and equipment - - 49 - 49
Exchange differences (33) 06 31 - (5 8)
At 31 December 2013 696 08 1037 147 188 8
Net book value
At 31 December 2013 67 6 04 1167 10 1857
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21 Other intangible assets (continued)

Acquisthon related Other
Sottware (T
Licences and gther Pension
Customer and development retated
relationships franchises expenditure intangibles Total
£€m £em tm £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 2012 116 5 742 1709 262 3878
Changes in accounting policies - 22) 08) (12 4) {15 4}
At 1 January 2012 (restated) 1165 720 170 1 138 3724
Ansing on acquisition 368 - 11 - 379
Elminated on disposal - - (14 1) - (14 1)
Additions from intermal development - 07 492 - 499
Disposals (0 4) - (2 5) - 29
Reclassilication from property, plant and equipment - 09 64 - 73
Pension scheme franchise adjustment - - - 19 19
Exchange differences (57} (16) (16) - (8 9}
At 31 December 2012 (restated) 1472 720 2086 187 4435
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2012 421 618 791 199 2029
Changes in accounting policies - {17} {0 3) {89 (10 9}
At 1 January 2012 (restated) 421 601 788 10 192 0
Arsing on acquisition - - 03 - 03
Eliminated on cisposal - - (10 Q) - (100)
Charge for the year 166 75 19 4 15 450
Disposals {0 4) - (2 3) - 27}
Reclassificaticn {to)/ from property, plant and equipment {C3) 05 63 - 65
Exchange differences {16) (17} - - (33
At 31 December 2012 (restated) 56 4 B6 4 925 126 2278
Net book value
At 31 December 2012 (restated) 808 56 1161 32 2157

Inciuded in Software T and other development expenditure 1s an amount of £16 2m {2012 £9 7m} in respect of leased (ntangibles

Customer relationships are amortised cver the average length of contracls acquired The Group 1s carmang £67 6m {2012 £90 8m) in relation to
Customer relationships The remaining average life of the Customer relationship intangible assets 1s approximately four years (2012 five years)

Amortisation of intangibles ansing on acquisiion consists of amortisation in relation to Customer relationships and Licences and franchises and tolals

£21 4m (2012 £24 1m)

The Group 1s carrying £116 7m (2012 £116 1m} in relabion to Software, IT and other development expenditure which includes assets relating to the
Group's SAP related systems of €44 2m (2012 £59 4m) The average amortisation penod of these assets has five vears {2012 six years) remaming

The value of internally generated intangible assets as at 31 Decernber 2013 was approxmately £64 4m (2012 £70 7m) Internally generated intangbles

relate to development costs and software
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22 Property, plant and equipment

Short- Machinery,
leasehold motor vehicles,
Freehold land building tumiture and
and buildings Improvements equipment Total
£m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2013 48 591 297 3 3612
Additions 01 70 625 69 6
Reclassification from/(to) intangible assets 08 69 (15 4) (77
Disposals - (7 9) (29 4) {37.3)
Elminated on disposal - (04) 14 {(1.8)
Exchange differences (0 3) (3 3) (14 6) (18.2)
At 31 December 2013 54 614 2090 3658
Accumulated depreciation and impalrment
At 1 January 2013 19 321 1503 184 3
Charge for the year — imparment {exceptional) - - 64 6.4
Charge for the year — depreciation and imparment 03 78 396 a7 7
Reclassification from/{to} intangible assets 01 01 51) 49
Disposals - 62) (25 9) (32 1)
Elminated on disposal - 02 {09) {11)
Exchange differences 02) (17) 94 (11 3)
At 31 December 2013 21 31¢ 1550 1890
Net book value
At 31 December 2013 33 295 1440 176 8
Short- Machinery
leasehold motor vehicles,
Freehold tand building furniture and
and bulldings Improvements equipment Total
£m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2012 70 590 3396 405 6
Changes in accounting policies - (30} (52 5) (55 5)
At 1 January 2012 (restated) 70 560 2871 3501
Additions 12 49 751 812
Reclassification from/{to) intangible assets 15 83 (17 1) {73)
Disposals {0 6) (19) (43 4) (459)
Arising on acquisition - 14 224 238
Eliminated on disposal (42) (79) 21 3} (33 4)
Exchange differences (01) (17) (5 5} {73)
At 31 December 2012 (restated) 48 591 297 3 3612
Accumuiated depreciation and impalrment
At 1 January 2012 37 271 1800 2108
Changes in accounting policies - {13) (33 8) (35 1}
Al 1 January 2012 {restated) 37 258 1462 1757
Charge for the year 03 86 372 461
Reclassificaton from/(to) intangible assets 02 34 {10 1) (65)
Disposals o1 (v 1) (24 7) (259)
Ansing on acquisiion - 13 165 178
Elminated on disposal 22) (51) (120 (19 3)
Exchange ditferences - {0 8) (28) (36)
At 31 December 2012 (restated) 19 321 150 3 184 3
Net book value
At 31 December 2012 (restated) 29 270 1470 176 9

The carrying amount of the Group's Machinery, motor vehicles, furniture and equipment includes an amount of £57 Om (2012 £42 Om} in respect of

assets held under finance leases

The carrying amount of the Group's Short-easehold bulding improvements includes an amount of £0 4m (2012 £0 5m) tn respect of assets held under

nance leases
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23 Inventones

2012
2013 {restated)
£m £m
Service spares 338 335
Parts awaiting installation 104 128
Work in progress 52 68
494 531
24 Trade and other receivables
2012
2013 {restated)
£m £m
Trade and other receivables non-current
Amounts owed by joint ventures 95 9z
Loans recevable {(note 29) 33 o1
Securnty deposits 06 03
Other receivables 649 396
783 49 2
2012
2013 (restated)
£m £€m
Trade and other recelvables current
Trade recevables 2107 2750
Prepayments and accrued income** 431 1 3307
Amounts recoverable on tong term contracts® (note 25) B3 312
Amounts owed by joint ventures 04 14
Loans recevable (note 29) 25 11
Secunty deposits o2 78
Other recewvables 1112 1309
764 4 7781

* Inrespect of 2012, an amount of £7 2m has been reclassiied trom work in pregress within inventones to trade and other recenables in relation to long-term
contracl accounting
** Also Iin respect of 2012 an amount of £262m has been reclassified from trada recenables 1o accrued income I relation to unbilled recewvables

As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables of £2 5m (2012 £12 3m} were considered 10 be imparred Imparments to trade recewvables are based on
specific estmated inmecoverable amounts and provisions on outstanding balances greater than a year old unless there 1s firm evidence that the balance
18 recoverable The amount of the provision was £4 7m as of 31 Decembrer 2013 (2012 £5 3m) primanly because our customers either have a sovereign
credit raking being government organisations or are blue chip private sector companies

Included wathin current other receivables are capitalised bid and phase in costs of £64 9m (2012 £64 9m) that are reahised as a part of the normal
operating cycle of the Group

The Group has a non recourse receivables financing facility of £60m, of which £27 1m had been utihsed at 31 December 2013
(31 December 2012 £32 5m utilised)

The ageing of trade recevables 15 as follows

2012

2013 (restated)

£m £m

Neither impaired ner past due 1253 1509
Not impared but overdue by less than 30 days 488 68 3
Not impared but overdue by between 30 and 60 days 203 269
Not imparred but overdue by more than 60 days 185 219
Impaired 25 123
Allowance for doubtful debts (47) {53}
2107 2750
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24 Trade and other receivables {continued)

Movements on the Group allowance for doubtful debts are as follows

2012

2013 {restated)

£m m

At 1 January 53 63
Charged/(credited) to income statement 04 08)
Utihsed (0 5) a1
Exchange differences (0 5) {03)
At 31 December 47 53

The maximum exgposure to credit nisk in relation to trade recewvables at the reporting date 1s the farr value of trade receivables The Group doees not hold

any collateral as secunty

25 Long-term contracts

2012
2013 {resiated)
£m €m
Contracts In progress at the balance sheet date
Amounts due from long-term project-based contract customers included in trade and other receivables 83 312
Amounts due to long-term project-based contract customers included in trade and other payables - 09
83 303
Long-term project-based contract costs incurred plus recognised profits less recognised losses to date 2397 7270
Less progress payments (231 &) (696 7)
83 303
As at 31 December 2013, £nil {2012 €nil) of advances receved from customers were included within long-term project-based contract balances
As at 31 December 2013, the Group had £0 4m (2012 £1 3m) of contract retentions held by customers
26 Cash and cash equivalents
Cther
Other Sterkng currencies Total
Sterling currencies Total 2012 2012 2012
2013 2013 2013 {restated) {restated) (restated)
£m £Em £m £m £m £m
Customer advance payments* - 102 102 - 75 75
Other cash and short-term deposits 285 864 1149 330 1023 1353
Total cash and cash equlvalents 285 96 6 1251 330 1098 t428

* Customer advance payments fotaling £1¢ 2m (2012 £7 5m) are encumbered cash balances

Cash and cash equivalents {which are presented as a single class of assels on the face of the balance sheet) compnise cash at bank and other
short-term highly igutd investments with a maturity of three months or less

147



Serco Group plc | Annual report and accounts 2013
Financial statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

27 Trade and other payables

2012
2013 (restated)
£m £m
Trade and other payables current
Trade payables 1699 1479
Amounts payable on long-term contracts - 09
Other payables 1289 1471
Accruals and deterred income 3453 460 0
Amounts owed to joint ventures - 14
6441 7573
The average credit period taken for trade purchases 1s 33 days (2012 restated 32 days)
2012
2013 {restated)
£m £m
Trade and other payables non-current
Other payables 41 423
3 423
28 Obligations under finance leases
Present value of
Present value of Minimum rinmum lease
Minimum  minimum lease lease payments payments
leasa payments payments 202 22
2013 2013 (restated) {restated)
£m £m £m £m
Amounts payable under finance leases
Within one year 169 149 118 107
Between one and five years 52.6 483 392 363
After five years 50 48 33 32
745 680 543 502
Less future finance charges (6 5) - (4 1) -
Present value ol lease obligations 68 ¢ 680 502 502
Less amount due for setllement within one year (shown under current habilites) (16 9) (14 9) {118} (10 7}
Amount due for settiement after one year 511 531 384 395

Finance lease obligations are secured by the lessors’ title to the leased assets

The Directors estimate that the fair value of the Group's lease obligations approximates their carrying amount
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29 Loans
Non recourse
Non recourse Cther loans Other loans Total
ioans loans Total 2012 2012 2012
2013 20313 2013 {restated) {restated) {restated)
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Loans are repayable as follows
On demand or within one year* 29 46 8 497 100 529 629
Between one and two years 30 207 237 24 378 402
Between two and five years 84 2770 2854 73 2119 2192
After five years 60 4377 443 7 54 3969 4023
203 7822 8025 251 699 5 724 6
Less amount due for settlement within one
year {shown within current habilities) {(29) (49 3) (52.2) (100) (54 0) (64 0)
Less Amounts shown in recevables {note 24) - 58 58 - 12 12
Amount due for settlement after one year 174 7387 756 1 151 6467 6618
* Included in loans repayable on demand or within one year are loan recevable amounts of £2 5m {2012 £1 1m)
The carrying amounts and far values of the loans are as follows
Carrying Fair  Carnying amount Fair value
amount value 2012 2012
2013 2013 (restated) (restated)
£m £m £m £m
Non recourse loans 203 204 251 266
Other loans 782.2 7700 6995 7196
8025 7904 7246 746 2
The fair values are based on cash flows discounted using a market rate appropriate to the loan All loans are held at amortised cost
Analysis of net debt
At
At 1 January Exchange Nen cash 31 December
2013 Cash flow Acquisitions* Disposals differences movements 2013
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalerts 142 8 {18} - - (15 9) - 1251
Non recourse loans {(251) 49 - - {0 1) - {20 3)
QOther loans (699 5) (99 0) - - 163 - (782 2}
Obligations under finance leases {50 2) 49 - - 03 {23 0) {68 0)
(632 0) (91 0) - - 06 (23 0) (745 49)
Al 1 January A131 December
2012 Exchange Non cash 2012
{restated) Cash tiow Acquisitions* Disposals diferences movemants {restated)
£m £m £m tm £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 194 6 (43 3) 08 (0 4) (89 - 1428
Non recourse loans (15 5) {97) - - 01 - (25 1)
Other loans {819 4) 149 0 {30 4} {24 4) 257 - (699 5)
Obligations under finance leases (44 9) 24 - 62 03 {14 2) (50 2)
(685 2) 98 4 (29 6) (18 6) 172 (14 2) (632 0)

* Acquesitions represent the net cash/(debt) acquired on acquisiion
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30 Prowisions

Employee
related Property Contract Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2012 (restated) 125 88 261 166 640
Ansing from acquisiions 10 16 64 o1 91
Darecognised on disposal of subsichary {01 - - - {01}
Charged to 1ncome staternent 14 01 - 89 104
Released t¢ income statement {0 4) 07 57 - (6 8)
Utihsed during the year (0 6) (a7 {11 3) 47 (183
Unwinding of discount - 02 03 - 05
Exchange differences {0 5) {04 o9 08) {2 6}
At 1 January 2013 (restated) 133 79 149 201 56 2
Derecognised on disposal of subsidiary - 03) - - 03)
Charged to income staternent 58 02 217 78 355
Released to income siatement - ©01) {4 6) (7 4) {121)
Utihsed dunng the year @27 (2 5) 59) (60) (17 1)
Unwinding of discount - 02 02 - 04
Exchange differences (10 4] 01) (0 4} (03) (+5)
At 31 December 2013 157 53 259 142 611
Analysed as
Current - 11 168 83 262
Non-current 157 42 91 59 349

Employee related provisions are for long-term service awards and termmal gratuities habilities which have been accrued and are based on contractual
entitlement together with an estimate of the probabilities that employees will stay until retrement and receive all relevant amounts

Property provisions relate to leased properties which are erther underutilised or vacant and where the unavoidable costs associated with the lease
exceed the economic benefits expected to be received Management has calculated the provision based on the discounted cash outflows required
to settle the lease obligations as they fall due over the next ten years

Contract provisions relate 1o provisions for loss making onerous contracts Management has used the present value of the estimated future cash
outflows required to settle the contract obligatons as they fall due over the respective contracts in determining the provision

Other provisions are held for legal and other costs that the Group expects to incur over an extended period These costs are based on past expenence
of similar items and other known factors and represent management s best estmate of the likely outcome
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31 Capital and other commitments

2012
2013 (restated)
£m £m
Capttal expenditure contracted but not provided
— Propenty, plant and equipment 3o 11 '
- Intangible assets 103 77 '
At the balance sheel date, the Group had cutstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases,
which fall due as follows
2012
2013 (restated)
£m £m
Within one year 741 66 8
Between one and five years 1721 1825
After five years 68 6 685
3148 2878

Principal lease commitments are within the UK & Europe segment, with future minimum lease payments totaling £66 2m (2012 restated €74 4m)
These leases relate pnmarly to administrative and operational builldings, track and rolling stock within the tran cperating compantes The length of
the leases 1s concurrent with the perod of the franchises and the terms of the leases are fixed during this penod

32 Contingent habilities

The Company has guaranteed overdrafts, finance leases, and bonding facilities of its joint ventures up to a maximum value of £26 Om (2012 £27 2m)
The actual commitment outstanding at 31 December 2013 was £22 6m (2012 £23 2m)

In addition to this, the Company and its subsidianes have prowded performance guarantees and indemnities relating to performance bonds and letiers !
of credit 1ssued by its banks on iis behalf, in the ordinary course of business These are not expected to resull in any matenal financial loss ,

The Group s aware of certain claims in respect of employee, Insurance and pension related matters with a potential value of up to £40m However,
no provisions have been made in respect of these items as management’'s assessment 1s that the likelihood of such claims being successfulis remote

The Group 1s aware of other clams and potential claims which involve or may involve legal proceedings aganst the Group The Directors are of the
opmion, having regard to legal advice recerved and the Group’s insurance arrangements, that it 1s unlikely that these matters will, In aggregate
have a material effect on the Group's financial posiion

As discussed in note 11 the EM contract was referred by the Cabinet Office to the Senous Fraud Office for investigation At this stage, the Group has
not been informed of the outcoeme of this investigation
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33 Financial nsk management
33 (a} Fair value of financial instruments

1} Hierarchy of fair value

The classification of the fair value measurement ¢alls into three levels, based on the degree to which the fair value is cbservable The levels are

as follows

Level 1 denved from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or habilibes,

Level 2 denved fiom other observable market data for the assets or labilities, and

Level 3 derwved from valuation techniques using data that ts not based on aobservable market data

Based on the above the dervative financial instruments held by the Group at 31 December 2013, are all considerad to fall nto Level 2 There have

been no transiers between levels in the year

The Group held the followang financial instruments which fall within the scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurenent

at 31 December

Carrying amount
{measurament basis)

Comparison
falr value

Carrying amount
{measurement basis)

Comparison
fair value

Amortised
cost
2013

£m

Fair value -
Level 2
2013

£m

Level 2
2013

£m

Amartised
Gost

2012
{restated)
£m

Fau value -
Level 2
2012
{restated)
&m

Level 2
2012
{restated)
£m

Financial assets - current
Cash and bank balances 1251
Dervatives designated as FVTPL

Forward foreign exchange confracts -
Dervative Instruments in designated hedge
accounting relationships

Forward foreign exchange contracts -
Loans and recewvables

Trade recevables {note 24) 2107

Loan receivables {note 24} 25
Financlal assets - non-current
Denvative instruments in designated hedge
accounting relationships

Forward foreign exchange coniracts -
Loans and recevables

Loan recevables (note 24) 33

86

01

1251

2107
25

33

1428

27590
11

01

27

01

1428

2750

01

Financlal liabillties - current
Denvatives designated as FYTPL
Forward foreign exchange contracts -
Denvative instruments in designated hedge
accounting relationships
Cross currency swaps -
Forward foreign exchange contracts -
Financial habiities at amortised cost
Trade payables (note 27) (169 9)
Loans {note 29) 522)
Oblgations under finance leases (note 28) {14 9)
Financial liabllitles - non-current
Dernvatives designated as FYTPL
Interest rate swaps -
Denvative instruments in designated hedge
accounting relationships
Cross currency swaps -
Forward foreign exchange contracts -
Financial habilities at amortised cost
Loans (note 29) (756 1)
Obligatens under finance leases {(note 28) {53 1)

&8

(08)
{13 1)

(©1)

(03)
(207)

(169 9)
(593)
(14 9)

(736 8)
{53 1)

1479)
{64 0)
o7

(661 8)
{39 5)

(28)

o)

0

08
(23 8)

(1479)
(887)
(107)

(678 7)
(39 5)
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33 Financial nsk management (continued)

33 (a) Fair value of financial instruments {continued)

The Directors estimate that the carrying amounts of cash, trade receivables and trade payables approximate to their far value due to the short-term

matunty of these instruments

The farr values of loans and finance lease obhigatons are based on cash flows discounted using a rate based on the borrowing rate associated with

the hability

The farr value of denvatives 1s calculated using a discounted cash flow approach applying discount factors dernved from observable market data
to actual and estimated future cash flows Credit nisk 1s considered in the calculation of these tasr values

1} Fair value of denvative financial instruments

The farr valuation of derivative inancial instrumenis results 1in a net hability of £32 6m (2012 £35 5m) comprising non-current assets of €nil

(2012 £0 1m), current assets of €8 7m (2012 £2 7m) current habiliies of €20 2m (2012 £13 8m) and non-current habilities of £21 1m (2012 €24 5m)

Movement in Movement in

talr value fair value

of derlvatives of derivatives

designated  not designated

In hedge In hedge
1 January aceounting accounting 31 December
2013 relationships relatlonships 2013
£m £m £m £m
Currency swaps (06) - - (0 6)
Forward foreign exchange contracts (34 8} 10 19 (319)
Interest rate swaps ©1 - - (01)
(35 5} 10 19 (32 6)

Movement in Movement in

farr value far value

of denvatives of denvatives

designated not designated
1 January in hedge n hedge 31 December
202 accounting accounting 2012
{restated) relatensiips relationships (restaled)
£m £m £m £m
Currency swaps o8 (14) - ()]
Forward foreign exchange contracts (31 5) (0 3) (30} (34 8)
Interest rate swaps {086) 06 01 01)
{31 3) (11) (31) (35 5)

The farr value of financial habiliies at far value through profit and loss 1s €6 8m (2012 £2 9m), and relates to denvatives that are not designated
in hedge accounting relationships  The fair value of the denvatives and therr credit nsk adjusted far value are not matenally different and are
approximately equal to the amount contractually payable at matunty due to the short tenure of the instruments

33 (b) Financial risk

The Board 1s ultimatety responsible for ensuning that inancial and non-financial nsks are monitored and managed within acceptable and known
parameters The Board delegates authorty to the executive team to manage financial ngks The Group's treasury funchion acts as a service centre
and cperates within clearly defined guidelines and policies that are approved by the Board The guidelings and policies define the financial risks to
be managed, specify the objectives in managing these nisks, delegate responsibilibes to those managing the nsks and establish a control frarmework

to regulate treasury actvties to minimise operational nsk
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33 Financial nsk management (continued)
33 (c) Liquidity risk

1) Credit facilities

The Group mamntains committed credit faciities to ensure that it has sufficient lquidity to maintain its ongoing operations As at 31 December,
the Group's commutted bank credit facilivtes and corresponding borrowings were as follows

Amount Drawn Undrawn Total facility

2013 2013 2013 2013

Currency Millions £m £m £m

Syndicated revolving credit faciity GBP 7300 1750 5550 7300
Amount Drawn Undrawn Totat {acility

2012 2012 2012 2012

Currency Mifions £m £m £€m

Syndicated revolving credit facility GBP 7300 1776 552 4 7300

The £730 Om syndicated revolving credit facility was signed in March 2012 and matures in March 2017 It s unsecured and contains financial and

nen-financial cavenants and obligations typical of these arrangements

In addition to the banking facility the Group has outstanding US private placements of £574 8m, £46 4m of which will be repaid in equal instalments
over 2014 and 2015, with the remaining £528 4m as buftet repayments between 2016 and 2024

In addiion to the bank and prnivate placement facilities the Group has drawn teceivable financing faciliies of £27 1m (2012 £32 5m) and total faciliies

of £60m (2012 £60m)

i1} Matunty of financral habilities

The Group's financtal habilites will be settled on both a net and a gross basis over the remaning penod between the balance sheet date and the
contractual maturity date The amounts disclosed below are the contractual undiscounted cash flows based on the earliest date on which the Group

can be required to pay

On demand Between Between After

or within one and two two and five five
one year years years years Total
At 31 December 2013 £m £m £m £m £m
Trade payables (note 27) 1699 - - - 1699
Oblhgatons under finance leases {note 28) 169 199 327 50 745
Loans (note 29) 52 2 270 2854 4437 808 3
Future loan interesi 248 230 607 598 168 3
Derivative financial habilities 200 143 76 - 419
2838 842 386 4 508 5 1,262 9

On demand Between Between After

or within one and two wo and five frve
one year years years years Total
A1 31 December 2012 (restated) £m £m £m £m £m
Trade payables (note 27} 1479 - - - 1479
Obligations under finance leases (note 28) 118 122 270 33 543
Loans {note 29} 640 403 2193 4022 7258
Future loan interest 225 196 491 54 6 1458
Denvative financial habilities 1486 99 190 - 435
2608 820 314 4 460 1 11173
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33 Financial nsk management (continued)

33 (c) Liquidity risk {continued)

The Group’s denvative financial habilities are settled on both a net and gross basis depending upon the terms of each denvative financial instrumend

The matunty of the Group's undiscounted dervative financial habilities 1s as follows

Forward
Cross foreign Interest
currency exchange rate
swaps contracts swaps Total
At 31 December 2013 £m £m £m £m
On dernand or within one year (02) (19 7) 1) (20 0)
Between one and two years (0 4) (13 9) - (14 3}
Between two and five years - (7 6) - (7 6)
{0 6) (41 2) (0 1) (41 9)
Forward
Cross foreign Interest
curency exchange rate
swaps contracts Swaps Total
At 31 December 2012 £m £m £m £m
On demand or within one year - (14 8) - (14 6)
Between one and two years - {9 8) 01) 89)
Between two and five years 07 (18 3} - (190)
o7 {42 7) 01) {43 5)

33 (d) Forelgn exchange risk

1} Transactional

It1s the Group's policy to hedge matenal transactional exposures using forward foreign exchange contracts to fix the functional currency value of
non-functional currency cash flows At 31 December 2013, there were no matenal unhedged non-functional currency monetary assets or abilites

firm commitments or highly probable forecast transactions

u) Translational

Where possible the Group will raise external funding to match the currency profile of its foreign operations n order to mitigate translation exposure

If matched funding 1s not possible, currency dervatives may be used 1o protect against movements in fereign exchange

m) Hedge aceounting

For the purposes of hedge accounting hedges are classified as either fair value hedges, cash flow hedges or hedges of net investments in foreign
cperations Pages 122 to 123 detall the Group's accounting policies in relation to denvatives qualifying for hedge accounting under IAS 38

Al 31 December 2013, the Group held iwo cross currency swaps designated as cash ffow hedges against the 2003 US Dallar private placement
Fixed interest cash flows denominated in US Dollars are exchanged for fixed interest cash flows denominated in Sterling The profile of these cross

currency swaps hetd by the Group 15 as follows

2013 2012
Receivable Payable Recewable Payable
Notlonal usD GBP Interest Netional usD GBP interest
amount interest rate rate amaount interest rate rate
Maturity usD m % % UsDm % %
August 2015 2290 57 57 330 57 57

The Group also held a number of forward foreign exchange contracts designated as cash flow hedges The net notional amounts are summarnised

by currency below

2013 2012

£m £m

Sterling 997) (176 3)
US Dollar 49 (47 2)
Euro 45 95
Indian Rupee 935 190 7

All currency derivatives designated as cash flow hedges are highly effective and as at 31 December 2013 a net far vatue loss of £33 2m {2012 £29 7m
loss) has been deferred in hedging reserve During the course of the year to 31 December 2013, £14 5m (2012 £13 8m) of farr value losses were
transferred to the hedging reserve, and £8 7m (2012 £9 7m) reclassified to the consolidated income statement

v) Currency sensitivity

The Group s currency exposures in respect of monetary ilems at 31 December 2013 that result In net currency gains and losses in the income statement
and equity anse principally from movement in US Dollar and Indian Rupee exchange rates At 31 December 2013 (f both had weakened by 10%

against Sterhing, with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have ingreased by £0 6m (2012 £0 6m increase), comprsing
USD £0 2m and INR £0 4m and equity would have decreased by £13 1m (2012 £9 1m increase), compnsing USD £0 9m and INR £12 2m
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33 Financial nsk management (continued})

33 (e) interest rate risk

The Group’s policy Is to minimise the iImpact of interes! rate volatility on eamings to provide an appropnate level of certanty to cost of funds
Exposure to interest rate sk anses principally on changes ic US Dollar and Stering interest rates

I} Interest rate management

An analysis of inancial assets and habilities exposed 1o interest rate nsk 1s set out below

Financial assets

Weighted Waighted
Floating average fixed Floating average fixed
rate Fixed rate interest rate rate Fixed rate ngrest rale
2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012
£m £€m % £m £m %
Cash and cash equivalents 1251 - - 1428 - -
Other loan receivables 11 a7 330 12 - -
126 2 47 1440 -

Financial habilities
Weighted Weighted
Floating average fixed Floating average fixed
rate Fixed rate interest rate rate Fixed rate interest rate
2013 2013 2013 202 2012 2012
£m £m % €m em %
Non recourse Canadian Dollar loans - - - - 75 527
Non recourse Sterling loans - 203 362 - 176 364
Sterling loans 2001 32 230 972 498 323
US Dollar loans 15 5416 409 265 4110 416
AL Dollar loans - - - 794 - 449
Other loans 116 - - 368 - 438

2132 5951 2399 4859

Exposure to interest rate fluctuabons 1s mitgated through the ssuance of fixed rate debt and the use of interest rate denwvatives Excluded from the
above analysis 1s £68 Om {2012 £50 2m) of amounts payable under finance leases, which are subject to fixed rates of interest

1) Interest rate swaps

Interest rate swaps outstanding at 31 December 2013 relate to interest rate nisk management on debt held locally within the Group

Notional Payabte USD Recelvable USD Receivable JPY

Value interest rate interest rate interest rate

2013 2013 2013 2013

Maturity usDm % % %
March 2014 05 689 - 3 month JPYLIBOR + 10
January 2015 25 6 30 3 month USD LIBOR + 20 -
Notonal Payable USD Recevable USD Recewable JPY

Value nferest rate Interest rate interast rate

2012 2012 2012 2012

Maturity UsSD'm % % %
March 2014 21 689 - 3month JPY LIBOR + 10
January 2015 38 630 3month USD LIBOR + 20 -

The interest rate swaps were not designated as cash flow hedges The fanr value loss of £0 1m has therefore been recorded in the income siatement

(2012 £0m loss)

w} Interest rate sensitivity

The effect of a 100 basis point increase in LIBOR rates on the net financial hability position at the balance sheet date, with all other vanables held

constant, would have resulted in a reduction in post-tax profit for the year to 31 December 2013 of €3 7m (2012 £0 7m)
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33 Financial nsk management (continued)

33 (f) Credit risk
The Group's principal financial assets are cash and cash eguivalents and trade and other recevables

Credit nsk I1s the nsk that a counterparty could default on its contractual oblgations In thrs regard, the Group's prinaiple exposure 1s 1o cash and cash
equivalents, denvative transactions and trade receivables

The Group s trade recesvables credit nskis relatively low given that a high proportion of our customer base are government bodies with strong
soveresgn, or sovereign lke, credit ratings However, where the assessed credit worthiness of a cusiomer, government or non government, falls
below that considered acceplable, appropriate measures are taken to mittigate against the nisk of contractual detault using instruments such as
credit guarantees

The Group's Treasury function only transacts with counterparties that comply with Board policy The credit nsk 1s measured by way of a counterparty
credit rating and as a mimimum any counterparty must have a long term public rating of 'Single A’ from any two recognised rating agencies
Pre-approved limits are set based on a rating matnx and exposures moritored accordingly The Group alse employs the use of set-off nghts in
some agreements

33 {g} Capltal risk

The Group defines capital as equity, loans and borrowings and cash and cash equivalents The Articles of Association of Serco Group ple require

that the net borrowings of Serco Group plc and its subsidiary undertakings shall not at any time without the previous sanction of an ordinary resolutton
exceed three and a half times adjusted capital and reserves The Group does not have any externally imposed requirements for managing capital,
other than those imposed by its debt covenants and Company Law

The Board's objective 1s to maintain a capital structure that supports the Group's strategic objectives, including but not kmited to reshaping the portfolio
through mergers, acqusitions and disposals In doing so the Board seeks to manage funding and iquidity sk, optimise shareholder return and
maintain an implied investment grade credit posiion This strategy 15 unchanged from the prior year

The Board reviews and approves at least annually a treasusy policy document which covers inter alia, funding and guidity nsk, capital structure and
nsk managernent This policy details targets tor commtted funding headroom, diversification of commutted funding and debt matunty profile All targets
were met throughout the financial year

The Group ensures that suificient funds and distnbutable reserves are held to allow payments of projected dmdends to shareholders and it intends
to pursue a policy of dvidend growth that broadly reflects the increase in underlying earnings of the business

The foltowang table summanses the capital of the Group

2013 2m2

£m £m

Cash and cash equivalents (125 1) {142 8)
Loans 8025 7246
Obligations under finance leases 680 502
Equity 1,095 9 11289
Captal 1,841 3 1,760 9
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34 Retirement benefit schemes

The Group has accounted for pensions in accordance with JAS 19 Employee Benefits The Group operates a number of defined beneft schemes and
defined coninbution schemes The pension charge for the year ended 31 December 2013 excluding joint ventures, was €108 6m (2012 £85 5m)

34 (a) Defined benefit schemes
The Group operates defined benefit schemes for qualfying employees of its subsidianes in UK and Europe

The assets of the funded schemes are held independently of the Group’s assets in separate trustee administered funds The trustees of the pension
fund are required by law to act in the interest of the fund and of all relevant stakeholders in the scheme The Trustees of the pension fund are
responsible for the investment policy with regard to the assets of the fund The Group s major schemes are valued by independent actuanes annually
using the projected unit credit actuar:al cost method This reflects service rendered by employees to the dates of valuaton and incorporates actuanal
assumptions prmarily regarding discount rates used in determining the present value of benefits projecied rates of salary growth, and long-term
expected rates of return for scheme assets Discount rates are based on the market yields of high-quality corporate bonds in the couniry concerned
Long-term expected rates of return for scheme assets are based on published brokers’ forecasts for each category of scheme assets Pension assets
and habihties in different defined benefit schemes are not offset unless the Group has a legally enforceable nght to use the surplus in one scheme to
setile obligations in the other scheme and intends to exercise this nghit

The schemes in the UK typicalty expose the Company to actuanal nisks such as investment nisk, interest rate nsk, longewity risk and salary nsk

® /nvestment nsk
The present value of the defined benefit schemes’ hability 1s calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to high quality corporate bond
yields, if the return on plan assets (s below this rate, a deficit will be created

® Interest nsk
A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the scheme hability but this will be partially oliset by an increase in the return of the plan s deht
investments

® Longevity nisk
The present value of the defined benefit plan hability 1s calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortalily of plan partictpants both dunng
and after ther employment An increase in the hife expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's hability

® Salary nsk
The present value of the defined benefit scheme lability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants, as such, an increase
in the salary of the plan partcipants will increase the plan s iability

I} Balance sheet values
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are grouped together as follows

Contract specific

These are pre-funded defined benefit schemes The Group has cbligations to contribute varniable amounts to the pension schemes over the terms of
the related contracts At rebid, any deficit or surplus weuld transter to the next contractor The Group has recognised as a liability the defined benefit
obligation less the farr value of scheme assets that it will jund over the penod of the contracts with a carresponding amount recognised as intangible
agssets at the start of the contracts Subsequent actuanal gains and losses in relation to the Group's share of the pension obligatiens have been
recogrised in the SOC! The intangible assets are amortised over the term of the confracts

Non contract specihic

These consist of a pre-funded defined benefit scheme which does not relate to any specific contract (the funding policy 1s to contribute such varable
amounts, on the advice of the actuary, as will achieve 100% funding on a projected satary basis) and an unfunded defined benefit scheme, both of
which do not relate to any specific contract Any labihties ansing are recognised n full

1) Tniennial funding valuation

Ameng our non contract specific schemes, the largest 1s the Serco Pension and Life Assurance Scheme (SPLAS) The estimated actuanal deficit of
SPLAS as at 31 December 2013 was approxmately £13 0m (2012 £10 9m) The most recent full actuarial valuatton of this scheme was undertaken

as at 5 Apnl 2012 and :esulted in an actuanally assessed deficit of £24m Following this review, the Group agreed with the Trusiees to make a small
inerease in contnbutions bringing cash contnbutions of up to 33% of members pensionable salaries untl 2021 The level of benefits and contnbutions
under the scheme 1s kept under continual review 1n light of the needs of the business and changes to pension legislation
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34 Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

34 {a) Defined benefit schemes (continued)
The assets and habilities of the schemes at 31 December are
Contract Non contract

speclfic speclfic Total
2013 2013 2013
£m £m £m
Scheme assets at falr value
Equities 93 4 360 1294
Bonds except LDt 4086 137 843
Liability driven investments (LDH) 136 1,0489 1,062 5
Gilts 425 - 425
Property a1 - 91
Cash and other 259 250 509
Annuity policies 21 223 244
Fair value of scheme assets 2272 1,145 9 1,373 1
Present value of scheme habiliies (267 8) (1,001 2) (1,359 0)
Net amount recognised (40 6) 547 141
Members' share of deficit - 37 37
Franchise adjustment* 351 - 351
(55) 58 4 529
Analysed as
Net penslon liabllity {5 5) (5 8) (11 3)
Net penslon asset - 642 642
Related assets
Intang:ble assets (note 21) 10 - 10

* The franchise adjustment represents the amount of scheme deficit that 1s expected 16 be funded outside the contract penod

Contract Non cantract
specific spacHic Total
2012 2012 2012
{restated) {restatad) {restated)
£m £Em £m
Scheme assets at falr value
Equites 832 589 1421
Bonds except LDI 509 119 628
Liabibty dnven investments (LDI) 159 9B2 6 998 5
Gilts 237 209 44 6
Property 75 04 79
Cash and other 171 58 6 w7
Annuity policies - 225 225
Fair value of scheme assets 198 3 11658 1,354 1
Present value of scheme habiities (280 4) (1,115 3) {1,395 7)
Net amount recognised @21) 405 (416)
Members' share of deficit - 41 41
Franchise adjustment* 683 - 68 3
Effect of IFRIC 14 - 09 09
(13 8) 455 37
Analysed as
Neat penslon liabllity 38} (24 2) (38 0)
Net penslon asset - 697 697
Related assets
Intangible assets (note 21) 32 - 32

* The franchise adjustment represents the amount of scheme delicit that 1s expected to be lunded outside the contract penod
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34 Retirement benefit schemes {continued)

34 (a) Defined benefit schemes (continued)
Liabilsies in relation to unfunded schemes included above amount to £0 3m (2012 £0 2m}

Certan of the Group's non contract speofic schemes have a Liability Driven investment (LD1) strategy which aims to reduce volatity nsk by better
matching assets to labilittes The main asset classes that make up the LDl investments are gilts and corporate bonds with inflatien and interest

swap overlays The assumed expected rate of return is taken to be gilts +0 8% (2012 gilts +0 8%)

Virtually all equity and debt instruments have quoted prices in actwe markets Annuity policies and property assets can be classified as

Level 3 instruments

In some schemes employee contributions vary over time to meet a specified proportion of the overall costs, including a proportion of any deficit

The habibties recognised n the balance sheet for these schemes are net of the proportion attnbuted to employees In addition, the amounts charged

to the iIncome statement for these schemes are net of the proportion atinbuted to employees The amounts atinbuted to employees are shown

separately in the reconciliation of changes in the far value of scheme assets and habilities

The amounts recognised in the financial staiementis for the year are analysed as follows

Contract Non contract
spacific specific Total
2013 W13 2013
£m £m £m
Recognised in the Income statement
Current service cost — employer 93 108 201
Past service cost - - -
Curtallment gain - (24) {24)
Settlement gain - (01) {01)
Administrative expenses and taxes [13:] 32 41
Roecognised in arriving at operating profit 102 115 217
Interest ncome on scheme assels — employer 92) (48 0) (57 2}
Interest on franchise adjustment (24) - (24)
Interest cost on scheme liabilittes - employer 18 45 4 573
Finance Income 03 (2 6) (2 3}
Included within the SOCi
Actual return on scheme assets 200 220 420
Less interest ncome on scheme assets 92) (48 8) (58 0)
108 (26 8) (16 0)
Effect of changes in demographic assumptions 88 (92) (04
Effect of changes in financial assumptions 125 9 1) 34
Etfect of expenence adjustmenis 88 345 433
Remeasurements recognised In the SOCI 409 (10 6) 303
Change in IFRIC 14 - {09) {0 9)
Change in franchise adjustment (35 6) - (35 6)
Change in members' share - {0 6) {0 6}
Actuarial gains on relmbursable rights {35 6) {15) (37 1)
Total penslon cost recognised in the SOCI 53 (12 1) (6 8)
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34 Retrement benefit schemes (continued)

34 (a) Defined benefit schemes (continued) Contract Non contract
specific specihic Tolal
2012 2012 2012
{restated) {restated) (restated)
£m £m m
Recognised in the Income statement
Current service cost — employer 73 119 192
Past serace cost - 11 11
Curtalment gain - 61 6 1)
Administrative expenses and taxes o7 13 20
Recognized 1n arnving at operating profit 80 82 162
Interest iIncome on scheme assets — employer (79 {50 3) (58 2)
Interest on franchise adjustment @21 - 21
Interest cost on scheme liabilities ~ employer 103 450 563
Interest on effect of asset celing - 01 a1
Finance Income 03 “42) (39)
tncluded within the SOCI
Actual return on scheme assets 143 393 536
Less interest ncome on scheme assets (80) (51 4) (59 4)
63 (12 1} (58}
Effect of changes 1n demographic assumptions (22) - 22}
Effect of changes in financial assumptions (315) (96 D} (127 5)
Effect of expenence adjustments 36 149 185
Remeasurements recognised In the SOCI 23 8) 93 2) (117 0)
Change in IFRIC 14 - 84 84
Change in franchise adjusiment 238 - 238
Change in members share - 21 21
Actuarlal gains on reimbursable rights 238 105 343
Total pension cost recognised In the SOCI - (82 7} 827
Changes in the farr value of scheme labilties are analysed as follows
Contract Non contract
spaciflc speciflc Total
£m £m £m
At 1 January 2012 {restated) 2091 1,001 3 1,210 4
Current service cost - employer 73 119 192
Current service cost — employee - 02 02
Past service costs - 11 11
Scheme participants’ contrbutions ns 815} 14
Interest cost — employer 103 460 563
Interest cost - employee - 09 09
Benefits paid 38) (38 4) (42 2)
Effect of changes in demographic assumptions 22 - 22
Effect of changes in financial assumptions 315 960 1275
Effect of expenence adjustments (36} (149 (18 5)
Plan curtailments - &1 81
Ansing on acquisition of a subsidiary 266 699 965
Eliminated on disposal of a subsidiary - {51 6) (51 6)
Exchange differences - (16) (18)
At 31 Decernber 2012 (restated) 2804 11153 1,395 7
At 1 January 2013 280 4 1,1153 1,395 7
Current seriice cost — employer 93 108 201
Currendt senaice cost — employee - 02 02
Scheme particspants’ contnibutions o7 08 15
Interest cost — employer 19 45 4 573
Interest cost — employee - 10 10
Benehts paid (4 4) (378) (42 2)
Effect of changes in demographic assumptions (8 8) 92 04
Effect of changes in financial assumptions (12 5) 91 (3 4)
Effect of experence adjustments {8 8) {34 5) (43 3)
Plan curtailments - 24) (24)
Ptan settlements - {25 9) (25 9)
At 31 December 2013 267 8 1,091 2 1,359 0
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34 Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

34 {a) Defined benefit schemes (continued)
Changes In the farr value of scheme assets are analysed as follows
Contract Non contract

epecific specific Total
£m £m £m
Al 1 January 2012 (restated) 1528 1,065 3 1,218 1
Interest income on scheme assets — employer 79 503 582
Interest income on scheme assets — employee 01 11 12
Administrative expenses and taxes on {13) (20)
Employer coninbutions 136 298 43 4
Contributions by employees 06 06 12
Benetts paid (38) (38 4) {42 2)
Return on scheme assets less interest income 63 (121 (58)
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary 215 616 831
Ehminated on disposal of a subsidiary - (1 (11)
At 31 December 2012 {(restaied) 198 3 1,155 8 1,354 1
At 1 January 2013 1983 1,155 8 1,354 1
Interest income on scheme assets — employer 92 48 0 572
Interest income on scheme assets — employee . - 08 08
Admiruisiralive expenses and taxes {09) (32) 41)
Employer contnbutions 134 340 a74
Contnbutions by employees o8 09 17
Benefits pard {4 4) (37 8) (42 2)
Return on scheme assets less interest income 108 {26 8) {16 0)
Plan settlements - {25 8) {25 8)
At 31 December 2013 227 2 11459 1,373 1

Employer contnbubions for non contract specific schemes in 2013 include a £19 7m (2012 £nil} special contribution The special pension contributions
of £18 7m relate to a £16 8m payment to fund the deficit on the Vertex pension fund pnor to its transfer into the Group's largest defined benefit scheme
Serco Pensten and Life Assurance Scheme (SPLAS), and £2 9m in relation to deficit recovery funding of the Walsall defined benefit pension scheme
The Vertex payment enables ther separate defined henefit scheme to be closed and thereby reduces ongoing adminestration costs

The normal contrnbutions expected to be paid dunng the financial year ending 31 December 2014 are £27 3m (financial year ended
31 December 2013 £32 3m)

The average duration of the benefit cbligation at the end of the reporiing penod s 17 B years (2012 17 5 years)

Assumptions in respect of the expected return on scheme assets are based on market expectations of returns over the life of the refated obligation
Due consideration has been given to current market conditions as at 31 December 2013 in respect to inflation interest, bond yields and equity
performance when selecing the expected return on assets assumptions

The expected yield on bond investiments with fixed interest rates 1s derived from ther market value The yield on equity investments contains

an addibonal prermium {an ‘equity nsk premium’) 1o compensate investors for the additional anticipated nsks of holding this type of investment,
when compared to bond yields Management have concluded that an approprate equity nsk premium 1s 4 6% {2012 4 6%}
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34 Retrement benefit schemes (continued)

34 (a) Defined benefit schemes (continued)

The overall expected return on assets s calculated as the weighted average of the expected returns for the prncipal asset categores held by scheme

2013 2012
% %
Maln assumptions
Rate of salary increases 320 340
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 2 50 (CP1} and 3 30 (RPI} 2 20 (CPI} and 3 00 {RPI)
Rate of increase in deferred pensions 2 60 (CPI) and 3 40 (RP1} 2 20 (CPI)y and 300 {RPI)
Inflatton assumption 2 60 (CPI) and 3 40 (RPI) 2 20 (CPIy and 300 (RPI)
Chscount rate 460 430
2013 2012
Yeoars Years
Post-retirement mortality
Current pensioners at 65 = male 225 210
Current pensioners at 65 - female 249 235
Future pensioners at 65 — male 242 225
Future pensioners at 65 - female 269 246

Management considers the signiftcant actuanal assumptons with regards to the determinahon of the defined benefit obhigation to be the discount 1ate,

inflation the rate of salary increases and mortality

Sensitmity analysis (s provided below, based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurnng at the end of the reporting penod, assuming

all other assumptions are held constant

The sensitivities have been denved in the same manner as the defined benefit abligation as at 31 December 2013 where the defined benefit obkgation
18 estmated using the Projected Unit Credit method Under this method each participant s benefits are attnbuted 10 years of service taking into
consideration fulure salary increases and the scheme's benefit allocation formula Thus the estimated total pension to which each participant 1s
expected to hecome entitled at retirement «s broken down into units, each asscciated with a year of past or future credited service

The defined benefit obligation as at 31 December 2013 15 calculated on the actuanal assumptions agreed as at that date The sensitvities are calculated
by changing each assumption in turn following the methodology atove wath all oiher things held constant The change in the defined benefit obligation
from updating the single assumption represents the Impact of that assumption on the calculation of the defined benefit obligation

Change In
present value of

Assumption Change in assumption scheme liabilities

Discount rate

Inflation

Rate of salary increase

Moriality

46% +05% (9%)

(0 5%) +10%

2 4% (CPl) +05% +9%
3 4% (RPI) {0 5%} {8%)
32% +0 5% +1%

(0 5%) {1%)

207-278" Increase by one year +2%

* Post retirament martality range or male and female current and future pensioners

Management acknowledges that the method used of presuming that all other assumptions remaining constant has inherent imitation given that it 1s
more lkely for a combination of changes, but highlights the value of each individual nsk and 1s therefore suntable basis for providing this analysis

34 (b) Defined contribution schemes

The Group paid employer contributions of £86 9m (2012 £69 3m) into UK and other defined contribution schemes and foreign state pension schemes

Pre-funded defined benefit schemes treated as defined contnbution

Serco accounts for certain pre-funded defined benefit schemes relating to contracts as defined contibution schemes because the contributions are
fixed until the end of the current concession and at retid any surplus or deficit would transfer o the next contractor Cash coniributions are recogrised

as pension costs and no asset or hability 1s shown on the balance sheet
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35 Share capital

Number Number
2013 2013 2012 2012
£m Millions £m Milkons

Issued and fully paid
498 462,508 (2012 497,327,070} ordinary shares of 2p each at 1 January 100 498 5 9¢ 497 3
Issued on the exercise of share options - 08 01 12
499,328,896 (2012 498,462,508} ordinary shares of 2p each at 31 Dacember 100 4993 100 498 5

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no nght to fixed income

Durning the year 866,388 (2012 1,135,438) ordinary shares of 2p each were allotted to the holders of share-based awards or therr personal
representatives using newly listed shares

36 Share premium account

2013 2012

£m tm

At 1 January 3265 3227
Premium on shares issued 13 38
At 31 December 3278 3265

37 Reserves

37 (a) Retirement benefit obligations reserve
The retirement beneht obligations reserve represents the actuanal gains and losses recognised in respect of annuat actuanal valuations for defined
benefit retirement schemes, the farr value adjustments on rembursable nghts and the related movements (n deferred tax balances

37 (b) Share-based payment reserve
The share-based payment reserve represents credis relaling 1o equity settled share-based payment transactions and any gain or loss on the exercise
of share options saishied by own shares

37 (c) Own shares reserve

The own shares reserve represents the cost of shares in Serco Group ple purchased in the market and held by the Serco Group plc Employee
Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) to satisfy options under the Group s share options schemes At 31 December 2313, the ESOT held 11,883,873
(2012 10,174 594) shares equal to 2 4% of the current allotted share capital (2012 2 0%) The market value of shares held by the ESOT as

at 31 December 2013 was £59 3m (2012 £54 4m)

37 (d) Hedging and transiation reserve

The hedging and translation reserve represents foreign exchange differences ansing on translation of the Group's overseas operations and movements
relating to cash flow hedges

38 Share-based payment expense

The Group recognised the following expenses related to equily settled share-based payment transactions

2013 2012

£m £m

Long Term Incentive Scheme and Plan 01 08
Transformational Share Scheme - 01
Performance Share Plan 15 99
Deferred Bonus Plan (09) 11
Sharesave 2012 22 oz
29 121
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38 Share-based payment expense {continued)

Executive Cphtion Plan {(EOP)

Optongs granted under the EOP may be exercised affer the third anniversary of grant dependent upen the achievermnent of a inancial performance
target over three years The options are granted at market value and awards made to eligible employees are based on between 50% and 100% of salary
as at 31 December prior to grant If the options remain unexercised after a penod of ten years from the date of grant, the options expire Furthermore,

options may be forieited If the eligible employee leaves the Group before the options vest

Details of the movement in all EOP options are as follows

Weighted Weighted

Number of average Number of average

options exercise pnce oplions exeicise price

2013 2013 2012 2012

Thousands £ Thousands £

Outstanding at 1 January 2,472 256 3389 249
Granted dunng the year - - - -
Exercised dunng the year (797} 158 (758} 229
Lapsed during the year (206) 153 (158} 222
Qutstanding at 31 December 1,469 324 2,472 256

Of these options 1 468,534 (2012 2,471,696) were exercisable at the end of the year with a weighted average exercise price of £3 24 (2012 £2 56)

The optiohs outstanding at 31 December 2013 had a weighted average contractual life of 2 O years (2012 2 0 years)

The exercise prices for options cutstanding at 31 December 2013 ranged from £2 17 {0 £4 55 (2012 £1 39 to £4 55)

The weighted average share price at the dale of exercise approximates to the weighted average share price dunng the year, which was £5 73

{2012 £550)

The far value of options granted under the EOP 1s measured by use of the Binomial Lattice model The Binomial Lathce model 1s considered to be
most appropnate for valuing optiens granted under this scheme as it allows exercise over a longer penod of ime between the vesting date and the

expiy date
There were no new options granted under Executive Option Plans dunng the year

Long Term Incentive Scheme {LT!S) and Long Term Incentive Plan {LTIP)

Awards made to eligible employees under the above schemes are structured as options with a zero exercise price The extent to which an award vesls
{and therefore becomes exercisable) 1s measured by reference to the growth in the Group's earnings per share (EPS) or total shareholder return (TSR)

over the performance perod or service perod condiions

[f the options remain unexercised after a penod of ten years from the date of grant, the options expire Furthermore, options may be forfeited if the
eligible employee leaves the Group betore the options vest Detalls of the movement in all LTIS and LTIP options are as tollows

Welghted Weighted

Number ot average Number of average

options exercise price cptions exercise prce

2013 2013 2012 2012

Thousands £ Thousands £

Qutstanding at 1 January 917 NI 2,638 Nil
Granted dunng the year 62 Nil 218 Nil
Exercised dunng the year {332) Nil (247) Nil
Lapsed during the year {159) Nil {1,682} Nil
Quistanding at 31 December 488 Nil 917 NIl

Of these options, 425,953 (2012 521,453) were exercisable at the end of the year The options outstanding at 31 December 2013 had a weighted

average contractual life of 2 38 years (2012 3 92 years)

There was one grant of LTIP options dunng the year The far value 1s considered to be therr face value less the present value of any dividend payments
not paid over the vesting penod The weighted average farr value of options granted under this scheme in the year (s £6 22
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38 Share-based payment expense (continued)

Transformational Share Scheme

Awards made to eligible employees under the Transtormational Share Scheme are structured as options with a £nil exercise pnce and are exercisable

after the third anmversary of the grant

The employee must exercise the options no later than 30 days after the vesting date Furthermore, if the eligible employee leaves the Group befare

the options vest, the cptions may be forfeited

Weighted Waighted

Number of average MNumber of average

options exercise price options exercise price

2013 2013 2012 2012

Thousands £ Thousands £

Cutstanding at 1 January 33 Nil 86 Nil
Granted dunng the year - Nil - Nil
Exercised durnng the year (26) NIl (53) Nil
Lapsed dunng the year t4) NI - Nil
Qutstanding at 31 December - L1 a3 Nil

None of these options were exercisable at the end of the year (2012 none) The options outstanding at 31 December 2013 had a weighted average

contractual life of G years (2012 0 2 years)

Performance Share Plan (PSP)

Under the PSE eligible employees have been granted options with an exercise price of two pence Awards vest after the performance penod of three
years and are subject to the achievement of two performance measures The pnmary performance measure 1s TSR and the second performance

measure 1s based on EPS growth

Weighted Weighted

Number of average Number of average

options exercise price options exercise price

2013 2013 2012 2012

Thousands £ Thousands £

OCutstanding at 1 January 10,084 002 7,426 0oz
Granted during the year 4,399 002 4,104 002
Exercised dunng the year {635) 002 (125) 002
lL.apsed dunng the year (3.477) 002 (1,321} 002
Outstanding at 31 December 10,471 002 10,084 002

Of these options 292,203 (2012 148,830} were exercisable at the end of the year

The opbions outstanding at 31 December 2013 had a weighted average contractual Iife of 8 37 years (2012 8 45 years)

In the year four grants were made with 50% of the options granted subject to TSR performance condiions and 50% subject to EPS growth

performance condihons

The options subject to TSR performance conditions were valued using the Monte Carlo Simulation model The options subject to EPS growth
performance conditions were deemed to have far values equal to ther face value less the present value of any dividend payments not received over

the vesting penod

The Monte Carlo Simulation model 15 considered to be the most appropriate for valuing options granted under schemes where there are changes

In perfermance conditions by which the options are measured, such as for the TSR based awards

The inputs into the Monte Carlo Simulation moded for options granted during the year with TSR performance condihons are

2013 2012
Woeighted average share price 618p 540p
Weighted average exercise price 2p 2p
Expected volatility 22 5% 22 7%
Expected life 3 years 3 years
Risk free rate 02% 03%

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the histoncal volatility of the Group's share price over the previous three years The expected
life used N the model has been adjusted, based on management's best estimate, for the effacts of non-transferability exercise restrictions,

and behavioural considerations
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38 Share-based payment expense (continued)

The assumptions for options granted dunng the year with EPS growth performance condiions are

2013 2012
Weighted average share price 618p 540p
Weighted average exercise price 2p 2p
Expected volatiity N/A NIA
Expected life 3 years 3years
Risk free rate N/A N/A

The weighted average far value of options granted under this scheme In the year 1s £4 83

Deferred Bonus Plan (DBP)

Under the DBR eligihle employees are enttled to use up to 50% of therr earned annual bonus to purchase shares in the Group at market price
Provided they remain in employment for this pertod, the shares are retaned for that penod and the two performance measures (which are the same
as the PSP scheme, being TSR and EPS growih} have been met, the Group will make a matching share award For shares purchased by employees

in 2011 the match was on a basis of two times the gross bonus deferred

Weighted Weighted

Number of average Number of average

options exercise price options exercise price

2013 2013 2012 2012

Thousands £ Thousands T

Qutstanding at 1 January 1,058 Nil 750 Nil
Granted during the year 390 Nil 519 Nil
Exercised dunng the year {91) Nil (107} Nil
Lapsed during the year (532) Nil {104) Nil
Qutstanding at 31 December 825 Nil 1,058 Nil

None of these oplions were exercisable at the end of the year (2012 none) The ophions outstanding at 31 December 2013 had a weighted average

contractual e of 1 2 years {2012 1 6 years)

In the year, cne grant was made with 100% of the deferred bonus subject to EPS growth performance conditions

The portion subject to EPS growth performance conditions was deemed to have a farr value equal to therr face value less the present value of any

dwidend payments nol recewved over the vesting penod

Expected volatiity was determined by calculating the histoncal volatility of the Group's share price over the previous three years The expected
life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management's best estmate, for the eftects of non-transferability exercise restrictions and

behawvioural considerations

The assumptions for options granted durng the year with EPS growth performance conditions are

2013 2012
Weighted average share price 623p 515p
Weighted average exercise price Nil Nl
Expected volatility N/A N/A
Expected life 3 years 3years
Rigk free rate N/A N/A

The werghted average fair value of options granted under this scheme in the year 1s €6 23
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38 Share-based payment expense (continued)

Sharesave 2012

The Sharesave 2012 scheme prowvides for a purchase price equal to the daily average market price on the date of grantfess 10% The options can
be exercised for a penod of six months following their vesting Details of the movement in Sharesave 2012 options are as follows

Waeighted Weighted

Number of average Number ot average

options exercise price optong exercise price

2013 2013 2012 2012

Thousands £ Thousands £

Qutstanding at 1 January 6,012 514 - -
Granted during the year - 514 6,074 514
Exercised dunng the year {23) 514 - 514
Lapsed durng the year (857) 514 (62) 514
Qutstanding at 31 December 5,132 514 6,012 514

Of these options, none (2012 none) were exercisable at the end of the year The options outstanding at 31 December 2013 had a weighted average
contractual life of 2 4 years (2012 3 4 years) Given that options granted under the Sharesave plan can be exercised at any tme after vesting,
management consider the Binomial Latlice model 1o be appropnate o value the options granted under this scheme The Binomial Lattice mode! allows
exercise over a window in time, from vesting date to expiry date and assumes option holders make economically rational exercise decisions

39 Related party transactions

Transactions between the Company and its wholly owned subsidianes, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not
disclosed in this note Transacions between the Group and its joint venture undertakings are disclosed below

Trading transactions

Dunng the year, Group companies entered into the following matenial transactions with jont ventures

2013 2012
£m £m
Royalties and management iees recewable 21 23
Dmdends receivable 515 806
536 829
The following receivable balances were held relating to joint ventures
2012
2013 (restated)
£m £m
Current
Loans and other recewvables 04 14
2012
2013 {restated)
£m em
Non-current
Loans and other recenables 95 92

Joint venture receivables and loan amounts cutstanding have ansen from transactions undertaken during the general course of frading are unsecured
and will be settled In cash Interest arising on loans 1s based on LIBOR, or its equivalent, with an appropnate margin Nec guarantee has been given
or received No provisions are required for doubtful debts in respect of the amounts owed by the joint ventures
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39 Related party transactions {continued)

Remuneration of key management personnel
The Directors of Serco Group plc had no matenal transactions with the Group during the year other than serice contracts and Directors’
hability insurance

The remuneration of the key management personnel of the Group 1s set out below in aggregate for each of the categones specified n IAS 24 Related

Party Disclosures
2013 2012
£m £m
Short-term employee benefits 109 94
Post-employment benefits 01 04
Share-based payrment (credity/charge {07) 18
103 116
The key management personnel comprise the Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and members of lhe Executive Committee
(2013 16 indviduals 2012 17 indwiduals)
40 Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement
Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities
20t2
2013 {restated)
Year ended 31 December £m £m
Operating profit for the year 143 8 2722
Adustments for
Share of profits in joint ventures 47 1) (62 5}
Share-based payment expense 29 121
Exceptional impairment of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 96 -
Depreciation and imparrment of property plant and eguipment — other ar7 461
Amortisation of intangible assets 461 450
Exceptional profit on disposal of subsidharies and cperations (19 2) {586)
Loss on disposal of Intangible assets 10 -
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment - (09)
Increase/{decrease) in provisions 74 (19 4)
Release of deferred consideration in relation to prior year acquisition — exceptional (10 3) -
{Other non-cash movements (6 2) 28)
Operating cash inflow before movements In working capital 1757 284 2
Decreasef(increase) In Inventones 72 22)
Increase in recevables {66 0) 61 1)
{Decrease)/increase in payables (80 2) 336
Cash generated by operations 267 2545
Tax paid {18 8) {33 6}
Net cash inflow from operating activities 79 2209

Additions to fixtures and equipment dunng the year amounting to €23 1m {2012 £14 4m) were financed by new finance leases
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Company Balance Sheet

At 31 December

2013 202
Note £m £m
Fixed assets
Investments in subsidianes 42 8155 8118
8155 8118
Current assels
Debtors amounts due within one year 43 173 60
Debtors amounts due after more than one year 43 1,174 0 1,2221
Deferred tax 47 29 59
Cenvative financial instruments due withuin one year 46 29 07
Cash at bank and in hand o7 56
1,197 8 12403
Tota! assets 2,0133 2,0521
Creditors amounts falling due within one year
Trade and other payables a4 (142 0) {249 4)
Borrowings 45 997) (106 2)
Denvative financial instruments 46 {6 6) (2 6)
(248 3) (358 2)
Net current assets 8495 8821
Credltors amounts falling due after more than one year
Borrowings 45 (726 5) 6150Q)
Amounts owed to subsidiary companies (352 0) (385 3)
Dervative financial instruments 46 {03) {0 6)
(1,078 8) {1000 9)
Total llabilities {1,327 1) {1359 1)
Net assets 686 2 6930
Capltal and reserves
Called up share capital 48 100 100
Share premium account 49 3278 3265
Capital redemption reserve 01 01
Own shares reserve 50 (70 5) (58 8)
Share-based payment reserve 51 553 577
Hedging and translation reserve 52 02) 19
Profit and loss account 53 3637 3556
Total shareholders’ tunds 686 2 6330

The financial statements (registered number 02048608) were approved by the Board of Directors on 3 March 2014 and signed on its behalt by

Ed Casey
Acting Group Chief Executive
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

41 Accounting policies
The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below and have been applied consistently throughout the current and preceding year

Basis of accounting

The Company meets the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 100 (Financial Reporting Standard 100) 1ssued by the Financial Reporting Council
The financial staternents have therefore been prepared in accordance with FRS 101 (Financial Reporting Standard 101) Reduced Disclosure
Framework as issued by the Financial Reporting Council

As permitted by FRS 101, the Company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptlions available under that standard in relation to share-based
payments, financial Instruments, capital management, presentation of comparative information 0 respect of certain assels, presentation of a cash
flow statement, standards not yet effective, impairmery of assets and related party transactions

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis and on the going congern basis, except for the revaluation of certain financial
nstruments Mistoncal costis generally based on the fan value of the consideration given in exchange for the goods and services The prncipal
accounting policies adopted are the same as those set out in note 2 1o the consolidated financral statements except as noted below

Fixed asset investments
Investments held as fixed assets are stated at cost less provision for any impairment in value

42 |Investments held as fixed assets

£m
Shares in subsidiary companles at cost
At 1 January 2012 8166
Options over parent s shares awarded to employees of subsidianes 72
Disposals {(120)
At 1 January 2013 8118
Options over parent’s shares awarded to employees of subsidiaries 37
At 31 December 2013 8155
Full details of the principal subsidhanes of Serco Group plc can be found in note 6 to the Group's consolidated financial statements The Company
directly owns 100% of the ordinary share capital of the following subsidiary
Name % ownershlp
Serco Holdings Limited 100%
43 Debtors
2013 2012
£m £m
Amounts due within one year
Corporation tax recoverable 138 36
Other debtors 3as 24
173 60
Amounts due after more than one year
Amounts owed by subsidiary comparues 1,165 4 1.2121
Amounts owed by joint veniures 40 41
Other debtors 46 59
1,174 0 1,222 1
1,113 1,228 1
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44 Trade and other payables

2013 2012
£m em
Amounts owed to subsidiary companies 1281 2315
Trade creditors 02 03
Accruals and deferred ncome 107 157
Other creditors including taxahon and social secunty 30 19
1420 249 4
45 Borrowings
2013 202
£m £m
Loans B26 2 7212
Less amounts included in creditors faling due within one year — loans (232) {27 0)
tess amounts included in creditors faling due within one year — bank loans & overdrafis (76 5) {79 2)
Amounts falling due after more than one year 7265 6150
Loans
Within one year or on demand 997 106 2
Between one and two years 232 234
Between two and five years 2656 542
After five years 4377 5374
826 2 7212
46 Derivative financial instruments
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabiities
2013 2013 2012 2012
£m £m £m £m
Currency swaps - (06) - (0 6)
Forward foreign exchange contracts 2.9 (63) 07 (26}
2.9 (69) 07 (32
Analysed as
Non-current - 03) - (0 B)
Current 29 (6 6) 07 (26)
29 69) 07 32

The Company holds denvative financial instruments in accordance with the Group s policy in relation to its financial nsk management Details of the
disclosures are set out in note 33 of the Group's consolidated financial statements

47 Deferred tax asset

2013 2012
£m £m
Capdal allowances i excess of depreciation 02 01
Short-term timing differences 27 58
29 59

The movement in the deterred tax asset dunng the year was as follows
2013 2012
£m £m
At 1 January 59 49
{Credited)/charged to profit and loss account {18) 08
ltems taken directly to equity (12) 02
At 31 December 29 59
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48 Called up share capital

Number Number
2013 2013 2012 2012
£m MHlions £m Millions

Issued and fully paid
498,462 508 (2012 497 327,070) ordinary shares of 2p each at 1 January 100 4985 99 497 3
Issued on the exercise of share options - [/ 3] 01 12
499,328,896 (2012 498,462,508) ordinary shares of 2p each at 31 December 100 499 3 100 488 5

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no nght to fixed income

Dunng the year 866 388 (2012 1,135,438) ordinary shares of 2p each were aflotied 1o the holders of share-based awards or ther personal
representatives using newly listed shares

49 Share premium account

2013 2012

€m £m

At 1 January 3265 3227
Premium on shares 1ssued 13 38
At 31 December 3278 3265

50 Own shares

The own shares reserve represents the cost of shares in Serco Group ple purchased in the market and held by the Serce Group plc Employee
Share Cwnership Trust (ESQT) to satisty options under the Group's share options schemes At 31 Decernber 2013, the ESQT held 11,883,973
(2012 10,174,594) shares equal to 2 4% of the current allotted share capital (2012 2 0%) The market value of shares held by the ESOT as at

31 December 2013 was £59 3m (2012 £54 4m)

51 Share-based payment reserve

2013 2012

£m £m

At 1 January 577 491
Options over parent's shares awarded to employees of subsidiaries 37 72
Share-hased payment (credi)/expense (0 8) 48
Share options to holders on exercise {4 5) (36)
Tax (credit)/charge on tems taken directly to equity (08) 02
At 31 December 553 577

Detaills of the share-based payment disclosures are set out in note 38 of the Group's consolidated financial statements

' 52 Hedging and translation reserve . ‘
2(13 2012

£m £m

At 1 January 19 19
Fair value toss on cash flow hedges dunng the penod 10 -
Net exchange loss on translation of foreign operations an -
At 31 December 02) 19
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53 Profit and loss account

2013 2012

£m £m

At 1 January 3556 2889
Profit for the year 596 1086
Equity dividends (51 5) (419)
At 31 December 3637 3556

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the profit and loss account of the Company 1s not presented as part of these accounis

54 Contingent habilities

The Company has guaranteed overdrafts, finance leases and bonding faciibes of its joint ventures up to a maximum value of £26 Om (2012 £27 2m)
The actual commitment outstanding at 31 December 2013 was £22 6m {2012 €23 2m)

The Company has provided certain financial guarantees and indemmnities in respect of the loans, overdraft and bonding facilities, and other linancial
comrtrments of its subsidiaries  The total commiiment cutstanding as at 31 December 2013 was £1450m (2012 £151 Om})

In addibon to this, the Company and its subsichanes have provided performance guarantees and indemnities relating to performance bonds and letters
of credit 1ssued by its banks on iis behalf, in the ardinary course of business These are nol expected to result in any matenal financial loss

The Group I1s aware of claims and potential claims which involve or may involve legal proceedings against the Group The Directors are of the opirion,

having regard to legal advice received and the Group's msurance arrangements, that it 1s unhkely that these matters will, in aggregate, have a matenal
effect on the Group's financial position

55 Related parties

The Directors of Serco Group plc had ne material transactions with the Company or its subsidianes dunng the year other than service contracts and
Directors' hability insurance Details of the Directors’ remuneration are disclosed in the Remuneration Report for the Group

The Company i1s exempt under the terms of FRS 101 from disclosing related party transactions with entities that are 100% owned by Serco Group ple

Supplementary information

Five-year record (unaudited)

2012 201 2010 2008

2013 (restated) [restated) (restated) (restated)

Adjusted revenue fm 5,144 4913 4 646 4327 3,970
Revenue* £m 4,288 4,060 3,827 3,533 3,184
Adjusted operating profit* £m 2020 3141 2890 2576 2287
Adjusted operating margin® % 568% 6 39% 622% 595% 5 76%
Adjusted profit before tax* Em 254 4 2716 2526 2263 2005
Group free cash flow £m 848 1812 1683 1858 1373
Group recourse net debt £m (725 1) {606 9) {669 8) (303 6} (387 7)
Adusted net debt &m (701 2) {580 7) {633 9) (261 2} {358 5)
Ad|usted earnings per share* p 3953 4155 3814 3396 3039
Dwidend per share p 10 55 1010 840 735 625

* Restated for IFRS 11 and 1AS 19R where appropriate
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Directors, Secretary and Advisors

Chairman
Alastar Lyons CBE

Directors
Malgolm Wyman* ©
Edward J Casey Jr
Andrew Jenner
Raiph D Crosby Jr*
Ange Risley*
Rachel Lomax*
Mike Clasper*
Tamara Ingram*

Secretary
John Hickey

*  Non-Executive Director
~ Senior Independent Director

Registered Office

Serco House

16 Bartley Wood Business Park
Bartley Way

Hook

Hampshire

RG27 aUY

Serco Group plc s registered In
England and Wales, No 2048608

Auditors

Deloitte LLP

2 New Street Square
London

EC4A 382

Investment Bankers
UBS Limited

1 Finsbury Avenue
London

EC2M 2PP

Stockbrokers

J P Morgan Cazenove
125 London Wall
London

EC2Y 5AJ

Bank of Amenca Mermll Lynch
2 King Edward Street

London

EC1A 1HQ

Principal Bankers
HSBC Bank PLC

8 Canada Square
London

E14 5HCG

Solicitors

Chfford Chance LLP
10 Upper Bank Street
Londeon

E14 5JJ

Registrars
Equiniti
Aspect House
Spencer Road
Lancing

West Sussex
BN99 BDA

175



Serco Group plc | Annual report and accounts 2013
Additional information

Shareholder information

Group website
Go to www serco com to catch up on the current share price, latest news
in the investors section and read the Annual report and accounts

Registrars

Administrative enguines about the holding of Serco Group plc shares
and enquiries in relation to the Serco Dividend Re-investment Plan (DRIP}
should be directed lo

Equiniti
Aspect House
Spencer Road
Lancing

West Sussex
BNS9 6DA

Tel 0871 384 2932

There 15 a text phone available on 0871 384 2255 for shareholders with
heanng difficulties

Calls cost 8p per minute plus netwerk extras
Callers from outside the UK should use + 44 (0) 121 415 7047
Telephone lines are open 8 30am to 5 30pm Monday to Friday

Dividend re-investment plan

You can elect 1o receive future dividends as shares rather than cash
by participating 1n the DRIP To register, request further information,

or to abtain a copy of terms and conditions booklet and mandate torm
please contact Equiriti on 0871 384 2932 Alternatively, these can be
downloaded from the website www shareview co uk by choosing the
Dividend Investment Plan heading within the Product Centre section

Dividends paid direct to your bank account

@ Avad the nsk of cheques being lost In the post
® No need 1o present cheques for payment
® Dividend credited to your account on payment date

To set up a dividend mandaie or change your existing mandated details
please register with the Shareholder Centre via the Shareview websile
or contact Equiniti on the number prowvided above

Global payment services

For overseas shareholders in certain countnes Equinit offers an
Overseas Payment Service by arrangement with Citibank Europe
PLC This service offers shareholders the ability to have therr dividend
converted into therr local currency and sent electronically (o thewr local
bank account To sign up for this service, please contact Equiniti on
0871 384 2932 {+ 44 (0) 121 415 7047 i caling from outside the UK)
Altematively you can download an application form and terms and
conditions from the website www shareview co uk
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Electronic communication

You can register for elecironic communications by visiting www shareview
co uk you will need your shareholder relerence number to sign up

After you have registered you will receive emails alerting you to
communications as they become available

Share dealing

Serco does not endorse any one service for the buying and selling

of its shares However, arrangements have been made with the
tollowing independent share dealing provider {o offer ali shareholders
competitive charges

Alternatively 1f shareholders hold a share certificate they can also use
any bank, bullding society or stockbroker offenng share dealing faciities
Sharehelders in any doubt about buying or selling their shares should
seek professional financial advice

Stocktrade

We have arranged a telephone sharedealing service with Stocktrade
for purchases/sales ot Serco Group plc shares You should call

+44 (0)131 240 0414 between 8 00am and 4 30pm, Monday to Friday
and quote Low Co 330 Comrmission is charged at 0 5% an amounts
to £10,000 and 0 2% on the excess thereafter subject to a mimmum
charge of £17 50 Further details and other dealing options can be
found at www stocktrade co uk/serco This service Is not available

to US residents

Please note that UK share purchases will be subject to 0 5% stamp duty
Shareholder profile

The range and size of ordinary shareholding as at 31 December 2013
15 set out below

Number of Number of

shareholders % shares %
1-1,000 4,428 5348 1,754,387 035
1,001 - 5,000 2626 3209 5,667 119 111
5,001 - 10,000 415 590 2,782,599 056
10,001 - 100,000 484 595 15,413,813 309
100,001 - 500,000 162 199 40,586,900 813
500,001 - 1,000,000 48 060 34,748 478 6 96
1 000 001 - 10,000,000 60 075 161,184,275 3228
10,000,001 and above 1 014 237,291,325 4752
Total 8,234 100 499,328,896 100
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Financial calendar

2013 Full Year Results Announcement
Ex-dividend date for 2013 final dividend
Record date for 2013 final dividend
Deadline for DRIP mandates

AGM and Intenm Management Statement
Payment date tor 2013 final dwvidend
Pre-close statement

2014 Ha'l Year Results announcement
Ex-dividend date for 2013 intenm dividend
Record date for 2014 intenm dividend
Deadine for DRIP mandates

Payment date for 2014 intenm dividend
Imtenm Managerment Statement
Pre-close statement

4 March 2014

12 March 2014

t4 March 2014

22 Apnil 2014

08 May 2014

14 May 2014

27 June 2014

*12 Augusi 2014

*3 September 2014
*5 September 2014
=26 September 2012
*17 Ociober 2014
*18 Novemnber 2014
*19 December 2014

= Provisional andfor subject to sharehelder approval

Printed on Cocoon Silk 50 which is certified
as an FSC® preduct manufactured with 50%
recycled fibres and 50% virgin fibres

Designed and produced by FTI Consulting  www iliconsulting com
Printed in England by Purepnint Group  www purepnint com
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